ANNUAL REPORT
2009-10

Towards
a low carbon

future.

sitestsied

oNnGcC



At ONGC, we believe that enhanced productivity doesn't
have to come at the cost of mother earth's well-being.
Which is why, we offset carbon emissions with set

timelines.

ONGC leads the way when it comes to achieving carbon
neutrality within the energy sector. In an effort to do so,
we've become the first PSU to receive emission reduction
certificates from the United Nations. Achievements of this
sort, coupled with growth, makes us the undisputed leader
in our business. And, as the leader, admittedly, it feels a
little lonely at the top. However, these days, with earning of

10,722 carbon credits, the spot looks refreshingly green.




Keshava Deva Malviva realizsed the
importance of an indigenous petroleum V3§
industry in India and laid the foundation of
ONGC In August 1956. The sclentists and
engineers of ONGC, fuelled by his
pioneering spirit, have made ONGC the
Numero Uno Exploration & Production
Company of Asia today. =
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CHAIRMAN'S MESBAGE

Dear Sharsholders

h ks indeed my privilege to shane with you the admirable performance
of ONGC In the fiscal FY'10. Once egain, your Compeny has set
many a milestones, After rigorous screening, the Govemment of India
{Gol} has daclded to bestow 'Maharaina' status to your Compary
with enhanced smpowerments and distinctly higher stature as a
pramiar Public Sactor Enterprise.

In recent years we Intensifiad our exploratory efforts which have
started vislding deslred rasulte. During FY'10, ulimete resarve
accration (3F) has been 82.98 MTOE in ONGC operated fields; the
highest In last two decades. Our organic Reserve Raplacemeant Ratlo
{ARA) has sxcesded one for the fifth consecutive year. RAA at 1.74
{3P reserves} during FY'10 is the highest in |est two decades.
Production levels too were malntalned amidst global trend of
deciining production from ageing Nelds.

Your Company recorded the highest-ever Net Profit of ¥ 187,878
million. It Net Worth bacame even more heatthler at ¥ 864,412
million deaphte shardng under-recoverles of ¥ 115,540 milllon as par
the Govermment directives,

The Board of Directore of your company have recommanded final
dividend of ¥ 15 per shana (150%6). With this the aggregeta dividend
for FY'10 at T 33 per share (330%) k= 10% mora than the last year
{320%) and the highest-sver in absolute tenme,

On 25" June, 2010 the Government dacontrolled price of Petrol and
increased the prices of Diesal, LPG and SKO. This may help in
reducing under-recoveries and unceriaimiies to some extart. The
sarfier decision w.e.f 1% June 2010 for revision in APM gas price from
about US$ 1.79/ mmBiu to USS 4.20/ mmBtu {(ncluding rovalty) will
cartalnly provide much neaded upside to the gas buginess. As per
this Gl decsion, the nor-APM gas from nominated fisids shall fetch
us even higher markat determined price.

You will appreclate tha fact that your Company continued to pursue
growth sirategy deapite the fact that global economy was in
shambles and tha oll Industry has been &t crosaroads since |later half
of 2008. In just 2 small span of ima a numbear of pressure polnts have
ermarged for the industry which beg for finding a now enargy
paradigm for rasolution.

Az If constraints on easy to access oll, an ever Incraasing demand
frorn the smenging sconomies, volatility in oil pricas, declining
discoveries, lower Investmarts, and the emironmental urgency of
reducing carbon footprint were not encugh, that now hata cries ane
emanating against the industry after Macondo blowout in Gulf of

Maxico {GOM).




Sincere efforts are on to permanently cap oil flow and contain the spill by the operator; the accident is bound to
prove a 'game changer' for upstream industry particularly offshore operations. Likely stricter regulations may
put a spanner for E&P industry. The offshore, especially the deep and ultra-deepwater are one of the few frontier
areas where future of oil and gas industry lies.

In such tight supply scenario, the industry is looking for all options. Shale gas revolution in USA, growing
interest for ethanol, exploitation of tar-sands, exploration in arctic regions, etc., are few developments which
will bring permanent changes for the industry. However, these initiatives are not hassle free. Increasing ethanol
production is now linked with crippling shortage of critical food crops and increasing food inflation.
Requirement and disposal of water is fast emerging as an environmental issue with shale gas exploitation. As
such abalanced and sustainable approach becomes imperative for which industry will have to focus.

Your Company is also pursuing these opportunities aggressively, albeit with stricter and more rigorous
approach to safety and unflinching commitment towards sound practices. Our approach for enhancing and
augmenting oil and gas production has been multipronged; namely discover and develop new fields, arrest
decline and augment production from matured fields, sourcing equity oil and gas from overseas assets and
developing new gas sources. Alternate sources of energy also are afocus area.

We have set an accelerated programme for monetizing marginal and new fields. Of the 134 discoveries made
since 2002 (21 of them in FY'10), a total of 58 discoveries have already been put on production. Few others are
on fast track of appraisal and development; especially the Cluster-7, WO series, B-193, D-1 additional, B-22,
North Tapti, etc. In addition, development programme of Northern Discovery Area (NDA) in KG-DWN 98/2 is set
to begin after DGH gives its seal on Declaration of Commerciality (DOC). We have also taken up expeditious
development of Daman-Tapti block. These are expected to propel our crude oil and gas production quite
significantly in next few years with gas production over 100 mmscmd by 2016.

In the NELP-VIII round of bidding your Company has been awarded 17 of the 31 awarded blocks; 14 of them
with operatorship. Your Company remains the largest acreage holder in the country and has prioritized
exploratory efforts to convert these exploration licenses to mining lease.

Negating decline and augmenting production from the matured fields through technology and capital intensive
IOR/ EOR schemes remains your Company's priority. A total of *209.44 billion has been invested since 2001 in
21 IOR/EOR schemes and re-development projects; out of these 14 schemes have been completed. This has
resulted in a cumulative oil gain of 56 MMT till FY'10 and enhanced the recovery factor of these 15 fields from
27.5%inFY'011t033.5% in FY'10.

The growth vehicle of your Company, ONGC Videsh Limited (OVL) with 40 projects in 15 countries sourced 8.87
MTOE of oil and gas in FY'10; the highest-ever. | am also pleased to share that OVL led consortium has
acquired a mega project with 40% participating interest in Carabobo project in Venezuela. The first oil from the
project is expected to flow in 2012-13 with estimated peak production of 400,000 barrels of extra heavy oil per
dayin2014-15; 44,000 bbl/day being OVL's share.

Another asset, the BC-10 in Brazil, where OVL has 15% participating interest commenced production from
12" July, 2009 onwards and is currently producing 72,500 bopd. Production from Imperial Energy assets in
Russia, which was acquired in January, 2009 has been ramped up to 16,700 bopd from 6,000 bopd when it was
acquired.



The nameplate capacity of Mangalore Refinery & Petrochemicals Ltd. (MRPL), a subsidiary of your Company,
has been increased from 9.69 MMTPA to 11.82 MMTPA during FY'10. MRPL registered thruput of 12.5 MMT
during FY'10. The refining capacity of the MRPL is being enhanced to 15 MMTPA by March, 2012.

Beyond core E&P activities, your Company's efforts towards new gas sources are also laudable. CBM
production from the pilot Parbatpur, Jharia project has started in January 2010. Environmental clearance for
UCG pilot project at Vatsan, Gujarat has been obtained. Your Company has also taken lead in exploration of
Shale Gas in the country by launching an integrated pilot Shale gas project in Damodar valley in April 2010 in
association with M/s Schlumberger and with an envisaged investment of ¥ 1,280 million.

The value-multiplier projects in the areas of Power, Petrochemicals, SEZ, etc., are at different stages of
completion and all of these projects are scheduled to be commissioned during 2012/2013.

Alternate sources of energy have a huge potential and they may prove to be a significant contributor to the
energy basket in future. Keeping this in view, your Company has adopted a holistic approach to leverage
potential opportunity. Your Company is planning to establish another 100 MW Wind farm and a Photo-voltaic
solar plant. ONGC Energy Centre, which is pursuing a number of alternate energy source projects, generates
lot of hopein this regard.

For all these endeavours, your Company has catered for systematic and required investment plans. During
FY'10, Capex has been ¥ 235.59 billion (11% more than FY'09) for its domestic operations, ¥ 49.92 billion for
overseas operations and ¥ 14.15 billion for MRPL. During FY'11, Capex is estimated to be ¥ 265 billion for
domestic operations, ¥ 86 billion for overseas operations and ¥ 32 billion for MRPL.

Your Company's 6" Clean Development Mechanism (CDM) project was registered with United Nations
Framework Convention on Climate Change (UNFCCC) on 1* March, 2010. Here, | would like to share with you
that UNFCCC has issued the first set of Carbon Emission Reduction (CER) units to ONGC for its first registered
CDM project, ‘Waste Heat Recovery Project at Mumbai High’ on 18" March, 2010.

Ever mindful of its social responsibility, your Company has enhanced its contribution to Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) projects to 2% of its net profit. These contributions now encompass the whole gamut of
social fabric including welfare, health, education, culture, etc. Your Company’s CSR initiatives have been
bestowed with Gold Trophy for SCOPE Meritorious Award for Corporate Social Responsibility &
Responsiveness for the year 2007-08 which was presented on 10" April, 2010.

Your Company is also fully committed to good Corporate Governance and ethical practices. Your Company
unilaterally launched a Whistle Blower Policy on 1* December, 2009, again the first to adopt this unique policy.

You may be pleased to know that this year also your Company received 'nil' comments from CAG as well
as Statutory Auditors; the fourth time in row and six times in last seven years.

I will round up with a firm commitment and earnest efforts to fulfill what has been captured in the new Vision
Statement of your Company: “To be a global leader in integrated energy business through sustainable

growth, knowledge excellence and exemplary governance practices.”

(R.S. Sharma)
Chairman & Managing Director
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OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS FY'10
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NOTICE

Noticeis hereby given that the 17" Annual General Meeting of the Members of OILAND NATURAL GAS CORPORATION LIMITED will
be held on Thursday, the 23" September, 2010 at 10:00 hrs. at Siri Fort Auditorium, Khel Gaon, August Kranti Marg, New Delhi-
110049, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2010, Profit & Loss Account for the year ended
31 March, 2010 together with the Reports of the Directors and the Auditors' thereon and comments of the Comptroller & Auditor
General of Indiain terms of Section 619 of the Companies Act, 1956.

2. To confirm the payment of interim dividend and declare final dividend on equity shares for the year 2009-10.

3. Toappointa Directorin place of ShriA. K. Hazarika, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

4. Toappointa Director in place of Shri D. K. Pande, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

5. Toappoint a Directorin place of ShriD. K. Sarraf, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

6. To authorise Board of Directors of the Company to fix the remuneration of the Joint Statutory Auditors of the Company for the
Financial Year 2010-11, in terms of the provisions of Section 619(2) read with Section 224(8)(aa) of the Companies Act, 1956 and
to pass the following resolution, with or without modification(s}, as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to decide and fix the remuneration of
the Joint Statutory Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2010-11, as may be deemed fit by the Board”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

ITEMNo.7

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Shri Sudhir Bhargava, Additional Secretary, Ministry of Petroleum & Natural Gas, who was appointed as an
Additional Director under Section 260 of the Companies Act, 1956, effective 15" March, 2010 and holds office upto the
17" Annual General meeting and in respect of whom, the Company has received a notice in writing, under Section 257 of the

Companies Act, 1956, from a member proposing his candidature for the office of director, be and is hereby appointed as a
Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

By Order of the Board of Directors

Regd. Office:
Jeevan Bharti Building
Tower |1, 124 Indira Chowk, W
New Delhi -110001.
(N. K. SINHA)
Company Secretary

9" August, 2010



NOTES:

1.

10.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND
VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE AMEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE PROXY FORM SHOULD
BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LATER THAN FORTY-EIGHT HOURS (48 HRS.)
BEFORE THE TIME OF COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING. BLANK PROXY FORMIS ATTACHED.

Relevant Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 173(2) of the Companies Act, 1956, in respect of Special Business, as set out
above is annexed hereto.

Brief resume of the Directors seeking re-appointment as mandated under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock
Exchanges is annexed hereto and forms part of the Notice.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Tuesday, the 14th September, 2010
to Thursday, the 23rd September, 2010 (both days inclusive).

The Board had recommended a final Dividend of ¥ 15 per share at its meeting held on 28th May, 2010. The dividend, if approved by
the Members at the said Annual General Meeting, will be paid before 22nd October, 2010 to the members whose names appear
on the Register of Members of the Company after giving effect to all valid share transfers in physical form lodged with the
Company on or before Monday, the 13th September, 2010 and the respective Beneficial Owners as at the close of business
hours on Monday, the 13th September, 2010 as per details thereof to be furnished by the depositories.

Share transfer documents and all correspondence relating thereto, should be addressed to the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the
Company — M/s. Karvy Computershare Private Ltd. (Karvy), Plot No. 17-24, Vittal Rao Nagar, Madhapur, Hyderabad — 500 081;
Phone Nos.: 040-23420815-19 & 1600-345-4001(Toll Free); Fax: No. 040-23420814; e-mail: mailmanager@karvy.com. Karvy is
also the depository interface of the Company with both NSDL and CDSL.

However, keeping in view the convenience of the Shareholders, documents relating to shares will continue to be accepted at
Karvy Computershare Private Ltd.; 105-108, 1st Floor, Arunachal Building, 19, Barakhamba Road, Connaught Place,
New Delhi-110 001; Phone Nos.: 011-41036370 (tele-fax) & 43528522 ; e-mail: delhi@karvy.com and at the Registered Office of
the Company at 8th Floor, Jeevan Bharati, Tower-ll, 124, Indira Chowk, New Delhi- 110 001; Phone No.: 011-23301277/23301299;
e-mail: secretariat@ongc.co.in.

The Company has designated an exclusive e-mail ID called secretariat@ongc.co.in for redressal of shareholders'/investors'
complaints/grievances. In case you have any queries/complaints or grievances, then please write to us at the above e-mail address.

Members holding shares in electronic form may please note that the bank account details and 9-digit MICR Code of their Bankers,
as noted in the records of their depository, shall be used for the purpose of remittance of dividend through Electronic Clearing
Service (ECS), or for printing on dividend warrants wherever applicable. Members are therefore requested to update their bank
account particulars, change of address and other details with their respective Depository Participants for shares held in demat mode
and to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent for shares held in physical form.

Reserve Bank of India (RBI) is providing ECS facility for payment of dividend in select cities. Members holding shares in physical
form are advised to submit particulars of their bank account, viz., names and address of the branch of the bank, 9 digit MICR code of
the branch, type of account and account number latest by 13th September, 2010, to M/s. Karvy Computershare Private Ltd.

Pursuant to section 205A(5) and 205C of the Companies Act, 1956, the Company has transferred the unpaid/unclaimed amount of
dividend declared on 20th September, 2002 and Interim Dividend declared on 31.01.2003, to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund of the Central Government. The unpaid/unclaimed amount of Final Dividend declared on 29th September, 2003 for the
financial year 2002-03 and interim dividend declared on 4th February, 2004 will be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund (IEPF) of the Central Government by 28th October, 2010 and 3rd March, 2011 respectively. Members
who have not encashed their dividend warrants pertaining to the said year may approach the Company or its Registrar &
Share Transfer Agent for obtaining payment thereof.
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11. In order to avoid the incidence of fraudulent encashment of dividend warrants, the Members holding shares in physical form are
requested to provide their Bank Account Number, Name and Address of the Bank/Branch to the Company or Karvy to enable them to
incorporate the same in the dividend warrant.

12. Members desirous of obtaining any information/clarification(s) conceming the accounts and operations of the Company or
intending to raise any query are requested to forward the same at least 10 days before the date of the meeting to Company
Secretary atthe Registered Office of the Company, so that the same may be attended to appropriately.

13. The Annual Accounts of the subsidiary companies and the related detailed information will be made available to the shareholders of
the holding and subsidiary companies, desirous of seeking such information. Further, Annual Accounts of the subsidiary companies
will also be kept for inspection, by any investor, at the Registered Office of the Company as well as at the Registered Office of the
subsidiary companies, during its business hours.

14 Members who have not encashed their dividend warrants within its validity period may write to the Company atits Registered Office
or M/s. Karvy Computershare Private Limited, Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the Company, for revalidating the warrants or
payment in lieu of such warrants in the form of demand draft.

15. In terms of Section 109A of the Companies Act, 1956, nomination facility is available to individual shareholders. Members holding
shares in physical form may nominate a person in respect of all the shares held by them whether singly or jointly. Members who hold
shares in individual name are advised to avail of the nomination facility by filing Form No. 2B in their own interest. Blank form can be
had from Karvy on request. Members holding shares in dematerialised from may contact their respective DPs for registration
of nomination.

16. Members holding physical shares in multiple folios in identical names are requested to send their share certificates to Company's
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, M/s. Karvy Computershare Private Ltd. for consolidation.

17. Pursuant to Section 619(2) read with Section 224(8)(aa) of the Companies Act, 1956, the Auditors of a Government Company are
appointed or re-appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) of India and their remuneration is to be fixed by the
Company in the Annual General Meeting. The General Meeting may authorise the Board to fix up an appropriate remuneration of
Auditors for the year 2010-11 after taking into consideration the increase in volume of work and prevailing inflation, etc.

18. Members are requested:

i) Tobring their copies of Annual Report and Attendance Slip duly completed and signed at the meeting.

ii) Toquote their Folio/DP & Client identification No. in all correspondence.

i) Not to bring brief case, bags, eatables, cell phone etc. as they are prohibited inside the meeting hall for security
reasons.

iv) To notify immediately any change of their address and bank particulars to the Company or its Share Transfer Agent, in case
shares are held in physical form.

AND

In case their shares are held in dematerialised form, information should be passed on directly to their respective
Depository Participants and not to the Company/Share Transfer Agent, without any delay.
v) Tonote that no gift will be distributed at the meeting.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 173(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956

ItemNo.7
APPOINTMENT OF SHRISUDHIR BHARGAVA

Shri Sudhir Bhargava, Additional Secretary, Ministry of Petroleum & Natural Gas was appointed as an Additional Director and
designated as Government Director on the Board of ONGC effective 15" March, 2010 vice Shri S. Sundareshan. In terms of section 260
of the Companies Act, 1956, he holds office upto the 17" Annual General Meeting of the Company. The Company has received a notice
in writing from a member pursuant to the provisions of Section 257 of the Companies Act, 1956, signifying intention to propose Shri
Sudhir Bhargava as candidate for the office of Director. Shri Sudhir Bhargava, if appointed, will be liable to retire by rotation under
sections 255 and 256 of the Companies Act, 1956 and subject to retirement by rotation under the Articles of Association of the Company.
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Shri Sudhir Bhargava, born on 12th January, 1955, IAS-Rajasthan (1979) has served with distinction in various State and Central
Government posts. Prior to joining MoP&NG, Shri Bhargava served as Joint Secretary in the Ministry of Chemicals & Fertilisers,
Department of Fertilisers. Shri Sudhir Bhargava succeeds Shri S. Sundareshan, who has been elevated to Secretary, Ministry of
Petroleum & Natural Gas.

Shri Sudhir Bhargavais a director on the Board of Indian Oil Corporation Ltd. and GAIL India Ltd. He holds 90 sharesin ONGC.

None of the Directors, except Shri Sudhir Bhargavais interested or concerned in the resolution.

The Board of Directors considers that in view of the background and experience of Shri Sudhir Bhargava, it would be in the interest of the
Company to appoint him as a Director of the Company. The Board recommends the resolution for your approval.

By Order of the Board of Directors
Regd. Office:
Jeevan Bharati Building

Tower I, 124 Indira Chowk,
New Delhi- 110001
(N K SINHA)

Company Secretary
9"August, 2010



BRIEF RESUME AND OTHER INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF DIRECTORS '@'
SEEKING RE-ELECTION AT THE 17th AGM Elict

Name ShriA.K.HAZARIKA ShriD. K.PANDE ShriD.K. SARRAF

Date of Birth &Age September 30, 1952, 57 years January 13, 1951, 59 years September 3, 1957, 52 years

Date of Appointment September 9, 2004 September 23, 2005 December 27, 2007

Qualifications B.E.(Mech) B.Sc. (Hons) - Gold Medallist Associate Member of ICWAI and
M.Sc. (Hons) in Geology ICSI

No. of Shares held 640 1350 798

Experience in Specific Functional
Areas

Holding the position of Director
(Onshore); enriched and wide
experience of about 30 years of
several field and staff assignments
in various disciplines including
Regional Cementing In-charge,
Head/Chief Well Services, handled
various important & complex
responsibilities

Currently holding the position of
Director (Exploration); diverse and
rich experience of about three
decades in various fields including,
hydrocarbon exploration and
development, Basin Analyst and
Field operations; In-charge of
exploratory and development
activities in acreages held by
ONGC, R&D Institutes; guided and
facilitated evaluation of overseas
acreages for ONGC Videsh Ltd,
pioneer in implementation of
deepwater project “Sagar
Samridhi®, his initiatives led to
discoveries in KG, Assam Arakan
and Western Offshore basins, a
sports lover and participated in 4th
Antarctica Indian Expedition.

Currently holding the position of
Director (Finance); nearly 30 years
of rich and varied experience in the
QOil Industry. Servedin Oil India Ltd.,
ONGC Videsh Ltd. Also enriched
with regulatory experience of
serving in Qil Co-ordination
Committee under MoP&NG.

Directorship held in other Public
companies

* ONGC VideshLtd
* ONGC Tripura Power Co. Ltd.
* ONGC Teri-Biotech Ltd.

* ONGC VideshLtd
* Energistics(Foreign Company)

* ONGC VideshLtd.

* Mangalore Refinery &
Petrochemicals Ltd.

* Mangalore SEZLtd

* ONGC Tripura Power Co. Ltd.

* ONGC Petro-additions Ltd.

* ONGC Mangalore

Petrochemicals Ltd.
* PetronetLNG Ltd.

Chairmanship/
Membership of Committees across
all Publiccompanies

ONGC

Member

* Project Appraisal

* Health, Safety & Environment

* HumanResource Management

* COD for redressal of Grievances
ofthe Parties

* ProjectAppraisal
* Health, Safety & Environment
* Human Resource Management

ONGCVidesh Ltd.
Member-Audit Committee

ONGC

Member

* ProjectAppraisal

* Shareholders'/ Investors'
Grievance

* Human Resource Management

* Remuneration

* Health Safety & Environment

* Financial Management

* COD for redressal of Grievances
ofthe Parties

Permanent Invitee
* Audit & Ethics

ONGC Videsh Ltd.
Member-Audit Committee

ONGC Tripura Power Company
Ltd.
Member -Audit Committee
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2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2006-07 2005-06 2004-05
(in million unless otherwise stated)

PHYSICAL

Quantity Sold (Other than Trading)

-Crude Oil (MMT) 22.33 22.88 24.08 24.42 22.45 24.09
-Natural Gas (MMM?) 20,598 20,534 20,432 20,308 20,500 20,644
-LPG (000'Tonnes) 1,108 1,029 1,037 1,033 1,084 1,086
-Naptha/ARN (000'Tonnes}) 1,598 1,545 1,442 1,442 1,578 1,567
-Ethane/Propane (000" Tonnes) 533 497 520 548 535 528
-Superior Kerosene Oil (000'Tonnes) 166 153 168 156 176 177
Quantity Sold (Trading)

-Superior Kerosene Oil (Q00'KL) 0 441 308 563 432 970
-HSD (000'KL) 4 1742 1539 1394 874 1538
-Motor Spirit (Q00'KL) 1 273 232 121 110 262
FINANCIAL

Income from Operations (Turnover) 619,832 650,494 615,426 590,575 494,397 472,454
Statutory Levies 121,845 118,013 129,768 122,516 99,738 103,258
Operating Expenses 126,293 123,812 106,823 102,016 76,762 71,397
Exchange Loss (Gain) (4,033) 3,819 (1,070) 177 (172) 2
Purchases (Trading) 139 85,166 65,115 59,401 34,338 51,013
Profit Before Interest Depreciation & Tax (PBIDT) 375,588 319,684 314,790 306,465 283,731 246,784
Recouped Costs 146,588 120,849 97,979 94,994 84,573 62,016
Operating Income (PBIT) 229,000 198,835 216,811 211,471 199,158 184,768
Interest (Net) (20,839) (40,314) (35,535) (20,480) (12,808) (11,887)
Profit before Tax and Extraordinary ltems 249,839 239,149 252,346 231,951 211,966 196,655
Extraordinary ltems 0 658 0 4,751 6,405 0
Profit before Tax 249,839 239,807 252,346 236,702 218,371 196,655
Corporate Tax 82,163 78,544 85,330 80,273 74,063 66,825
Net Profit (PAT) 167,676 161,263 167,016 156,429 144,308 129,830
Dividend 70,583 68,444 68,444 66,305 64,167 57,037
TaxonDividend 11,616 11,632 11,632 10,125 9,000 7,763
Share Capital 21,389 21,389 21,389 21,389 14,259 14,259
NetWorth 864,413 780,848 699,435 614,099 535,934 463,142
Borrowings 50 267 369 696 1,069 1,490
Working Capital 342,714 334,949 322,248 304,021 265,664 212,895
Capital Employed 738,014 640,583 604,844 540,744 493,763 419,926
Intemal Resources Generation 228,068 172,449 185,158 242,253 142,847 117,120
Plan Expenditure 235,591 218,201 176,510 133,050 114,210 106,813
Contribution to Exchequer 280,983 280,496 300,200 286,596 234,086 228,117
Expenditure on Employees 57,191 47,396 60,484 48,833 30,147 27,465
Number of Employees 32,826 33,035 32,996 33,810 34,722 36,185
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE RATIOS

PBIDT to Turnover (%) 60.6 491 51.2 51.9 57.4 52.2
PBDT to Tumover (%) 64.0 55.3 56.9 55.4 60.0 54.8
Profit Margin (%) 271 248 271 26.5 29.2 275
Contribution to Exchequer to Turnover (%) 453 431 48.8 48.5 473 48.3
ROCE(PBIDT to Capital Employed) (%)} 50.9 49.9 52.0 56.7 57.5 58.8
Net Profitto Equity (%) 19.4 20.7 239 255 26.9 28.0
BALANCE SHEET RATIOS

Current Ratio 2.38:1 2.26:1 2471 2.77:1 3.08:1 2.62:1
Debt Equity Ratio 0.00006:1 0.0003:1 0.001:1 0.001:1 0.002:1 0.003:1
Debtors Turnover Ratio (Days) 19 23 26 17 27 29
PER SHARE DATA

Eaming Per Share (%)- before extraordinary items 78.39 75.19 78.09 71.66" 98.22 91.05
Eaming Per Share (3)- after extraordinary items 78.39 75.40 78.09 73.14* 101.20 91.05
Dividend (%) 330 320 320 310* 450 400
Book Value Per Share () 404 365 327 287" 376 325
*Postbonus
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2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2006-07

(Tin million)

REVENUES

Sales

Crude Oil 445,053 391,718 386,805 372,090
Natural Gas 73,797 75,528 71,780 72,113
LPG 21,924 22,752 20,168 14,866
Naphtha/Aromatic Rich Naphtha 47,137 48,406 43,849 37,907
Ethane/Propane 10,249 9,890 9,291 9,095
Superior Kerosene Oil 3,256 16,701 10,775 15,754
HSD 156 61,910 48,621 42,037
Motor Spirit 27 11,062 9,159 4,530
Others 463 1,526 925 634
Price RevisionArrears 0 0 0 11
Sub- Total 602,062 639,493 601,373 569,037
Pipeline Revenue 1,078 2,329 1,522 82
OtherReceipts 15,512 7,861 11,390 21,653
Accretion/ (Decretion) in stock 1,180 811 1,141 (197)
Total Income from Operations 619,832 650,494 615,426 590,575
COST &EXPENSES

Operating, Selling & General

(a)Royalty 54,832 44,934 60,707 53,428
(b) Cess/ Excise Duty 56,752 59,174 61,106 62,024
(c) Natural Calamity Contingent Duty - Crude Oil 1,062 1,081 1,127 1,149
(d) Sales Tax 2,990 6,910 772 1,380
(e)Education Cess * 1,719 1,784 1,861 1,303
(f) Octroi & Port Trust Charges 4,486 4,130 4,195 3,232
Sub-Total (atof) 121,841 118,013 129,768 122,516
Pipeline Operations (Excluding Depreciation) 7,975 6,963 7,318 6,460
Other Operational Costs 118,322 116,849 99,505 95,556
Exchange Loss (4,033) 3,819 (1,070) 177
Purchases 139 85,166 65,115 59,401
Recouped Costs

(a)Depletion 45,302 42,148 36,776 33,849
(b) Depreciation 12,312 14,491 14,060 16,249
(c)Amortisation 89,407 67,320 47,580 43,167
(d) Impairment (433) (3,110 (437) 1,729
Sub-Total (atod) 146,588 120,849 97,979 94,994
Total Cost & Expenses 390,832 451,659 398,615 379,104
Operating Income Before Interest &Tax 229,000 198,835 216,811 211,471
Interest

-Payments 686 1,190 590 215
-Receipts 21,525 41,504 36,125 20,695
-Net (20,839) (40,314) (35,535) (20,480)
Profit before Tax and Extraordinary ltems 249,839 239,149 252,346 231,951
Extraordinary ltems 0 658.00 0 4,751
Profit before Tax 249,839 239,807 252,346 236,702
Corporate Tax ( Net) 82,163 78,544 85,330 80,273
Net Profit 167,676 161,263 167,016 156,429
Dividend 70,583 68,444 68,444 66,305
Taxon Dividend 11,616 11,632 11,632 10,125
Retained Earnings For The Year 85477 81,187 86,940 79,999

* Upto 2005-06, education cess isincluded in respective heads of levies.



STATEMENT OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS

2005-06 2004-05 2003-04 2002-03 2001-02 2000-01
317,357 311,824 222,124 244,131 137,115 141,538
66,701 53,206 52,039 49,986 49,446 49,756
16,293 12,066 16,352 19,087 11473 14,161
35,679 29,260 22,538 22,035 18,782 18,554
7,401 5,705 4,779 5,837 4,082 4,359
10,605 16,896 2,658 3,188 1,731 1,616
23,403 29277 85 80 0 0
3,797 6,846 0 0 0 0
617 1434 1,060 995 766 522
156 584 3,461 1,568 5,017 1,355
482,009 467,098 325,096 346,907 228412 231,861
15 23 2% 478 3,966 4,612
10,257 5,034 4,262 6,276 6,194 5,784
2,116 299 (112) 211 2 447
494,397 472,454 329,270 353,872 238,574 242,704
46,181 37,911 28,451 30,002 25,142 23,024
44,302 46,498 46,302 46,994 25,660 23,833
1,081 1,138 1,117 98 0 0
5,727 14,580 11,050 12,561 7,713 7,439
2,447 3,131 2,236 2,679 1,227 1,219
99,738 103,258 89,156 92,334 50,742 55,515
5,907 8,982 5,717 5,452 4,951 4,965
70,855 62,415 53,131 65,403 44,133 46,629
(172) 2 36 191 469 1,269
34,338 51,013
20,702 24,851 23323 17,497 15,638 15,759
23759 5,437 6,057 7,599 8,286 10,602
31,437 31,588 26,339 16,181 14,228 18,172
(325) 140 162 162 247 2,861
84,573 62,016 55,881 41,439 38,399 47,394
295,239 287,686 203,921 204,819 147,694 155,772
199,158 184,768 125,349 149,053 90,880 86,932
470 377 468 1,132 2,469 3,084
13,278 12,264 11,209 13,317 10,141 8,620
(12,808) (11,887) (10,741) (12,185) (7.672) (4,636)
211,966 196,655 136,090 161,238 98,552 91,568
6,405 0 0 0 0 0
218,371 196,655 136,090 161,238 98,552 91,568
74,063 66,825 49,446 55,945 36,573 39,280
144,308 129,830 86,644 105,203 61,979 52,288
64,167 57,037 34,222 42778 19,963 15,685
9,000 7,763 4,385 2,375 0 1,600
71,141 65,030 48,037 60,140 42,016 35,003




Asat Asat Asat Asat

March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2010 2009 2008 2007
(X in million)
RESOURCES
A.Own
1. Net Worth
(a) Equity
i) Share Capital 21,389 21,389 21,389 21,389
ii) Reserves & Surplus 851,437 765,965 684,785 597,851
Sub-Total 872,826 787,354 706,174 619,240
(b) Less : Deffered Revenue Expenditure 8,413 6,506 6,739 5,141
Net Worth 864,413 780,848 699,435 614,099
2. Long Term Liabilities
Deferred Tax Liability 89,182 78,023 73,708 65,227
Provision For Gratuity & Abandonment *
Total Own Funds (1 +2) 953,595 858,871 773,143 679,326
B. Outside
1. Unsecured Loans
a) Indian Loans 0 0 0 202
b) Foreign Loans 50 267 369 494
Total Unsecured Loans 50 267 369 696
2. Deferred Credits ( Principal Only ) 0
Total Qutside Resources 50 267 369 696
TOTAL RESOURCES (A+B) 953,645 859,138 773,512 680,022
DISPOSITION OF RESOURCES
A. Block Capital
1. Fixed Assets 156,485 104,144 105,180 88,391
2. Producing Properties (Net) 402,822 361,580 301,874 295,685
less: Liability for Abandonment Cost 164,007 160,090 124,458 147,353
Total Block Capital 395,300 305,634 282,596 236,723
B. Working Capital
a) Current Assets
i) Inventories 46,786 40,607 34,806 30,338
i) Debtors (Net of Provision) 30,586 40,838 43,604 27,594
iii) Cash & Bank Balances 108,279 121,405 160,143 136,704
iv) Deposit with Bank Under Site Restoration Fund Scheme * 74,031 69,557 64,033 56,103
v) Loans & Advances and Others 278,031 273,593 195,745 193,214
Sub-Total 537,713 546,000 498,331 443,953
Less
(b) Current Liabilities and Provisions
and Short Term Loans 194,999 211,051 176,083 139,932
(Excl. Prov. for Gratuity, Abandonment & Impairment)*
Working Capital 342,714 334,949 322,248 304,021
C. CAPITAL EMPLOYED 738,014 640,583 604,844 540,744
D. INVESTMENTS 57,720 50,903 58,995 57,021
E. CAPITAL WORKS IN PROGRESS 102,414 116,965 70,745 48,251
F. EXPLORATORY/DEVELOPMENT WELLS IN PROGRESS 55,497 50,687 38,928 34,008
TOTAL DISPOSITION 953,645 859,138 773,512 680,022

* For the Year 2002-03 & 2001-02 Provision for Gratuity & Abondonement are included in Current Liabilities.
From the Year 2003-04, Provision for Gratuity is included in Current Liabilities and Liability for Abandonment has been deducted from Producing Properties.
# Excluded for Current Ratio.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Asat Asat Asat Asat Asat Asat
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
14,259 14,259 14,259 14,259 14,259 14,259
525,338 454,195 391,172 343,130 282,963 288,854
539,597 468,454 405,431 357,389 297,222 303,113
3,663 5,312 5,407 1,308 2,103 1,635
535,934 463,142 400,024 356,081 295,119 301,478
63,551 54,438 58,420 52,348 53,471
7,181
599,485 517,580 458,444 408,429 348,590 308,659
404 607 809 1,011 1,213 1,415
665 883 1,309 2,616 29,168 38,411
1,069 1,490 2,118 3,627 30,381 39,826
0 0 0 0 0 2,085
1,069 1,490 2118 3,627 30,381 41,911
600,554 519,070 460,562 412,056 378,971 350,570
78,422 58,365 56,684 53,928 56,008 58,893
275,833 229,607 227,372 171,110 163,804 160,052
126,156 80,941 80,292
228,099 207,031 203,764 225,038 219,812 218,945
30,385 25,692 24,057 15,710 14,526 15,369
37,043 37,293 23,178 39,359 22,514 17,338
42,792 58,488 55,735 36,309 49,105 20,545
45,336 36,181 31,682 24,781 6,350
216,059 164,004 145,963 98,811 84,164 86,463
371,615 321,658 280,615 214,970 176,659 139,715
105,951 108,763 89,080 87,838 67,410 48,329
265,664 212,895 191,535 127,132 109,249 91,386
493,763 419,926 395,299 352,170 329,061 310,331
48,885 40,367 44217 39,826 33,232 23,607
28,303 41,419 9,826 9,329 6,903 7,283
29,603 17,358 11,220 10,731 9,775 9,349
600,554 519,070 460,562 412,056 378,971 350,570
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2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2006-07

& in million)
DETAILS OF DEPRECIATION ALLOCATED TO:
Survey 1,181 1,555 1,029 863
Exploratory Drilling 4,842 3,005 2,151 1,672
Development 34,098 24,426 21,924 14,251
Profit & Loss Account 12,201 14,434 13,984 16,094
Others 105 136 70 48
Total 52,427 43,556 39,158 32,928
CONTRIBUTION TO EXCHEQUER
CENTRAL
1. Cess/Excise Duty 56,759 59,185 61,103 62,028
2. Natural Calamity Contingent Duty - Crude Oil 1,062 1,082 1,127 1,149
3. Royalty 32,190 31,394 30,631 27,920
4. Education Cess * 1,719 1,784 1,863 1,303
5. Corporate Tax

a) On ONGC's Account 71,203 79,770 80,720 78,403

b) For Foreign Contractors 7 277 32 34
6. Dividend 52,330 50,744 50,744 49,159
7. Taxon Dividend 11,616 11,632 11,632 10,125
8. Customs Duties 125 354 815 1,441
9. Mumbai Port Trust Charges 793 657 742 691
Sub Total 227,803 236,879 239,409 232,253
STATE
1. Sales Tax/VAT 26,355 26,258 26,899 25,998
2. Royalty 22,649 13,551 30,078 25,513
3. Octroi Duties etc. 4176 3,808 3,814 2,832
Sub Total 53,180 43,617 60,791 54,343
Grand Total 280,983 280,496 300,200 286,596

* Upto 2005-06, education cess is included in respective heads of levies.



DEPRECIATION AND CONTRIBUTION TO EXCHEQUER

2005-06 2004-05 2003-04 2002-03 2001-02 2000-01
722 575 760 712 370 463
1,885 1,503 1,517 1,590 1,748 1,680
13,605 10,623 9,322 9,587 9,725 9,000
22,226 5,435 6,056 7,594 7,865 10,602
89 106 25 85 0 8
38,527 18,242 17,680 19,538 19,708 21,753
44,302 46,501 46,314 47,008 25,662 23,862
1,081 1,138 1,117 98
23,056 21,811 16,202 17,380 16,602 15,615
64,025 69,817 43,516 58,850 31,012 39,280
3 23 20 24 32 76
47,573 42,287 27,364 35,981 16,791 13,193
8,999 7,763 4,385 2,375 0 1,600
888 2,423 4114 1,432 1,213 1,741
710 2,999 364 345 260 185
190,637 194,762 143,396 163,493 91,572 95,552
18,263 14,581 11,060 12,561 7,719 7,430
23,126 16,103 12,249 12,623 8,541 7412
2,060 2,671 1,877 2,339 967 1,034
43,449 33,355 25,186 27,523 17,227 15,876
234,086 228,117 168,582 191,016 108,799 111,428




A. ENERGY TERMS
Development Well: Awell drilled within the proved area of an Oil and Gas reservoir to the depth of a harizon known to be productive.

Exploratory Well: Awell that is not a development well, a service well, or a stratigraphic test well i.e. well drilled in an unproved area for the
purpose of finding and producing Oil or Gas.

Appraisal Well: A well drilled as part of an appraisal drilling programme, which is carried out to determine the physical extent of oil and gas
reserves & characteristics thereof and the quantity of recoverable Petroleum therein.

Producing Property: These may be defined as the value assigned to crude oil or gas reserves which can be produced from existing facilities.

Unit Of Preduction Method: The method of depreciation (depletion) under which depreciation (depletion) is calculated on the basis of the
number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the enterprise.

Condensates: Liquid hydrocarbons produced with natural gas, separated by cooling and other means.
Development: Following discovery, drilling and related activities necessary to begin production of oil or natural gas.
Enhanced Recovery: Techniques used toincrease or prolong production from oil and natural gas fields.

Exploration: Searching for oil and/or natural gas, including topographical surveys, geologic studies, geophysical surveys, seismic surveys and
drilling wells.

Integrated Petroleum Company: Acompany engaged in all aspects of the industry from exploration and production of crude oil and natural gas
(upstream) to refining, marketing and transportation products (downstream).

Liquefied Natural Gas (LNG): Gas that s liquefied under extremely cold temperatures and high pressure to facilitate storage or transportation in
specially designed vessels.

Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG): Light gases, such as butane and propane that can be maintained as liquids while under pressure.
Natural Gas Liquids (NGL): Separated from natural gas, these include ethane, propane, butane and natural gasoline.

Heavy Cut: These are heavier hydrocarbons obtained in fractionation unit of Kerosene Recovery Process, where NGL is processed to yield
Aromatic Rich Naphtha and Superior Kerosene Oil.

Oil Equivalent Gas (OEG): The volume of natural gas that can be burnt to give the same amount of heat as a barrel of il (6,000 cubic feet of gas
equals one barrel of oil).

Reserves: Oil and Natural Gas contained in underground rock formations called reservoirs. Proved reserves are the estimated quantities that
geologic and engineering data demonstrate can be produced with reasonable certainty from known reservoirs under existing economic and
operating conditions. Reserve estimates change as additional information becomes available. Recoverable reserves are those that can be
produced using all known primary and enhanced recovery methods.

Mining Lease: The license issued for offshore and onshore properties for conducting development and production activity.

Petroleum Exploration License: The license issued for offshore and onshore properties for conducting exploration activity.

Work-Over: Remedial work to the equipment within awell, the well pipe work or relating to attempts to increase the rate of flow.



GLOSSARY OF ENERGY & FINANCIAL TERMS

B.FINANCIAL TERMS

Recouped Cost: It refers to Depreciation, Depletion, Impairment and Amortisation charged in accounts. These are non-cash costs.

a) Depreciation: A measure of the wearing out, consumption or other loss of value of a depreciable asset arising from use, efflux of time or
obsolescence through technology and market changes. It is provided for and allocated as mentioned in para 13 of the Significant
Accounting Policies.

b) Depletion: A measure of exhaustion of a wasting asset (Producing Properties) represented by periodic write off of cost. It is computed
with reference to the amortisation base by taking the related capital cost incurred divided by hydrocarbon reserves and multiplied by
production.

¢} Impairment: An impairment loss is the amount by which the camying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
Loss is recognized in the accounts as per para 7 of the Significant Accounting Policies.

d) Amortisation: It refers to the Dry wells and Survey expenditure expensed in the accounts in line with para 6.3.1 and 6.2 of the Significant
Accounting Policies.

Royalty: Itis alevy imposed under The Petroleum and Natural Gas Rules, 1959 payable to the respective State or Central Government granting
the lease (Central Government in case of offshore) on crude oil and natural gas.

Cess: Itis alevy imposed under The Oil Industry (Development) Act, 1974 on crude oil produced and payable to the Central Government.

Exploration Costs: Costs incurred in exploring property. Exploration involves identifying areas that may warrant examination and examining
specific areas, including drilling exploratory wells.

Development Costs: Costs incurred in preparing proved reserves for production i.e. costs incurred to obtain access to proved reserves and to
provide facilities for extracting, reating, gathering and storing oil and gas.

Preduction Costs: Costs incurred in lifting the oil and gas to the surface and in gathering, treating and storing the oil and gas.

Abandonment Cost: Abandonment costs are the costs incurred on discontinuation of all operations and surrendering the property back to the
owner. These costs relate to plugging and abandoning of wells, dismantling of wellheads, production and transport facilities and to restoration of
producing areas. Abandonment Cost is recognized in the accounts as per para 8 of the Significant Accounting Policies.

Absorption Costing: Amethod whereby the cost is determined so as to include the appropriate share of both variable and fixed costs.

Accounting Policies: The specific accounting principles and the methods of applying those principles adopted by an enterprise in the
preparation and presentation of financial statements.

Accrual Basis of Accounting: The method of recording transactions by which revenues, costs, assets and liabilities are reflected in the
accounts in the period in which they accrue. The 'accrual basis of accounting’ includes considerations relating to deferrals, allocations,
depreciation and amortisation. This basis is also referred to as mercantile basis of accounting.

Balance Sheet: A statement of the financial position of an enterprise as at a given date, which exhibits its assets, liabilities, capital, reserves and
other account balances at their respective book values.

Book Value: The amount at which an item appears in the books of account or financial statements. It does not refer to any particular basis on
which the amountis determined, e.g., cost, replacement value, etc.

Capital Commitment: Future liability for capital expenditure in respect of which contracts have been made.

Capital Employed: The finances deployed by an enterprise in its net fixed assets, investments and working capital. Capital employed in an
operation may, however, exclude investments made outside that operation.

ONGC



Capital Reserve: Areserve of a corporate enterprise which is not available for distribution as dividend.

Contingent Liability: An obligation relating to an existing condition or situation which may arise in future depending on the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events.

Current Assets: Cash and other assets that are expected to be converted into cash or consumed in the production of goods or rendering of
services in the normal course of business.

Deferred Expenditure: Expenditure for which payment has been made or a liability incurred but which is carried forward on the presumption that
it will be of benefit over a subsequent period or periods. This is also referred to as deferred revenue expenditure.

Diminishing Balance Method: A method under which the periodic charge for depreciation of an asset is computed by applying a fixed
percentage to its historical cost or substituted amount less accumulated depreciation (net book value). This is also referred to as written down
value method.

Dividend: Adistribution to shareholders out of profits or reserves available for this purpose.

Earning Per Share: The eamings in monetary terms atiributable to each equity share, based on net profit for the period, before taking into
account prior period items, extraordinary items and adjustments resulting from changes in accounting policies but after deducting tax appropriate
thereto and preference dividends, divided by the number of equity shares issued and ranking for dividends in respect of that period.

Expenditure: Incurring a liability, disbursement of cash or transfer of property for the purpose of obtaining assets, goods and services.

Expense: A cost relating to the operations of an accounting period or to the revenue earned during the period or the benefits of which do not
extend beyond that period.

Extraordinary Item: Gain or loss which arises from events or transactions that are distinct from ordinary activities of the enterprise and which are
both material and expected not to recur frequently or regularly. This would also include material adjustments necessitated by circumstances,
which, though related to previous periods, are determined in the current period.

Fictitious Assets: ltem grouped under assets in a balance sheet which has noreal value (e.g. the debit balance of the profit and loss statement).

First In, First Out (FIFO): Computation of the cost of items sold or consumed during a period as though they were sold or consumed in order of
their acquisition.

Fixed Assets: Assets held for the purpose of providing or producing goods or services and that is not held for resale in the normal course of
business

Fixed Cost: The cost of production which by its very nature remains relatively unaffected in a defined period of time by variations in the volume of
production.

Fundamental Accounting Assumptions: Basic accounting assumption which underline the preparation and presentation of financial
statements. They are going concern, consistency and accrual. Usually, they are not specifically stated because their acceptance and use are
assumed. Disclosure is necessary if they are not followed.

Inventory: Tangible property held for sale in the ordinary course of business, or in the process of production for such sale, or for consumption in
the production of goods or services for sale, including maintenance supplies and consumables other than machinery spares.

Investment: Expenditure on assets held to eam interest, income, profit or other benefits.



Materiality: An accounting concept according to which all relatively important and relevant items, i.e., items the knowledge of which might
influence the decisions of the user of the financial statements are disclosed in the financial statements.

Net Assets: The excess of the book value of assets (other than fictitious assets) of an enterprise over its liabilities. This is also referred to as net
worth or shareholders' funds.

Net Profit: The excess of revenue over expenses during a particular accounting period. When the result of this computation is negative, it is
referred to as netloss. The net profit may be shown before or after tax.

Net Realisable Value: The actual/estimated selling price of an asset in the ordinary course of the business less cost of completion and cost
necessarily to be incurred in order to make the sale.

Obsolescence: Diminution in the value of an asset by reason of its becoming out-of-date or less useful due to technological changes,
improvementin production methods, change in market demand for the product or service output of the asset, orlegal or other restrictions.

Prior Period Item: A material charge or credit which arises in the current period as a result of errors or omissions in the preparation of the
financial statements of one or more prior periods.

Profit and Loss Statement: A financial statement which presents the revenues and expenses of an enterprise for an accounting period and
shown the excess of revenues over expenses (or vice versa). ltis also known as profit and loss account.

Provision: An amount written off or retained by way of providing for depreciation or diminution in value of assets or retained by way of providing
forany known liability the amount of which cannot be determined with substantial accuracy.

Provisions for Doubtful Debts: A provision made for debts considered doubtful of recovery.

Straight Line Method: The method under which the periodic charge for depreciation is computed by dividing the depreciable amount of a
depreciable asset by the estimated number of years of its useful life.

Sundry Debtor: Person from whom amounts are due for goods sold or services rendered or in respect of contractual obligations. Also termed as
debtor, trade debtor, accountreceivable.

Surplus: Credit balance in the profit and loss statement after providing for proposed appropriations, e.g., dividend or reserves.

Useful life: Life which is either (i) the period over which a depreciable asset is expected to be used by the enterprise; or (i) the number of
production or similar units expected to be obtained from the use of the asset by the enterprise.

Wasting Asset: Natural resource which is subject to depletion through the process of extraction or use, e.g., mines, quarries.

Working Capital: The funds available for conducting day-to-day operations of an enterprise. Also represented by the excess of current assets
over current liabilities including short-term loans.

Work in Process: Work in Process includes all materials which have undergone manufacturing or processing operations, but upon which further
operations are necessary before the productis ready for sale.

Net Present Value: NPV is the present (discounted) value of future cash inflows minus the present value of the cash outflows.

Participating Interest: The share expressed as a percentage in the rights and obligations of each party to a Production Sharing Contract (PSC).



ChD & Baord of Diracioes’ during Dith Viehss Vishlsshen

Dear Bambers,

Kk ghess me immonsa plessins (o prasent, on behelf of the Board of
Dinsciors of your Company, the 17" Annual Raportand Audiiad Statemants
of Accounts for the year endad 31" March, 2010, togather with the Audtors'
Report and Commests on the Accounts by the Comptrolier and Audtior
General of India {C &AG).

Yaur Company cantinues i achisve excallencs in lie cone amsa of E&P
gphana bath In indla ag well a8 abraad, and also confinuss i win accoladas
from variaus quarksrs. Anance Asla, Honpkang has ranked ONGE as
Neamber = 1 Top Blus Chip Comperny of India for 2008 (Decamber 2009).
ONGC is rankad at Secand Position in Financial Express FESOQ listing of
Indian companies both in terme of Net Worth and Overal Gomposile
Renking (March 2008). Your Corngiany has bean ranked at 155™ position
in Foss Global 2000 lisl of wold's bigossl companias for 2010
{Aprl 2010), DNGC mtaine rumber ane rank among indian companies
and has bean ranked 95 ameng the Forbas Giobal 2000 biggest
companies as par profi.

FinanceAsla, Hongkong has
ranked ONGC as Number - 1
Top Biue Chip Company of
Indla for 2009. ONGC Is
ranked at Second Position in
Financial Express FES500
listing of Indian companies
both in terms of net worth and
overall composite ranking.



Physieal Parformanes:
20819

Exploration
In racant yeara, your Company
has infencified B eaploratory

eficris In domestie as wal
oversaes basing o kocats naw

accration. Dudng FY'1Q, your
Company made btwenty one
1) discovariss In demeatic
Moile operatsd by it - 14 In
prethon and T in offchors anes.
Out of 21 Secoviring 11 wers
new prospect dscoveriss amd
10were new pool discoveries,




- : " ONGC Ultimate Reserve Accretion Trend
Highest reserve accretion in last two

decades
ONGC accreted 82.98 Million Tonnes of Qil )
Equivalent (MTOE) of Ultimate Reserves (3P) Ultimate Reserves in 2009-10 highest in last two decades 83
in domestic operated fields - the highest in last 80 H
two decades. Total reserve accretion in 70 57 66 86 5 2
domestic basins has been 87.37 MTOE 60 57 | Bed (R0
[including 4.39 MTOE from ONGC's share in 50 L4 | 95 | 1]
Joint Ventures (JVs)]. Initial In-place reserve <] DS 4
accretion in domestic basins was 27342 = 40 |- - P o B R R R
MTOE including 22.82 MTOE from ONGC's 30 HHR—H——1HHHAHHH ===
sharein JVs. 20 WLIL uC: | ST
12

10 pHHAFHAHHEARAH R

Reserve Replacement Ratio (RRR) g - I HEPHAND)

Reserve Replacement Ratio (RRR) i.e. the
ratio of reserve accretion to the production of
ONGC in its own domestic fields in this fiscal
has been quite impressive at 1.74 for 3P
reserves; again the highest in the last two
decades. This is the 5" consecutive year
ONGC maintained RRR of more than 1 against 2,00
global feature of lower than 1 registered by 1.80
large number of oil companies. 160 RRR, 1.74 A

140
. : g+ 1.20 n
Oil & Gas production levels maintained

1.00 A
ONGC has maintained oil and gas production 0.80 -{ /\
levels despite global trend of declining 0.60 \ \
production from matured oil fields. During 0'40 &‘ ( \
FY'10, the combined Oil and Gas production of :

ONGC, including OVL and ONGC's share in 20
PSC-JVs, was 60.93 MTOE; marginally lower 0.00

Reserve Replacement Ratio (RRR)

d

as compared to 61.23 MTOE in FY'09. §833858885883885887%2
Production from overseas fields registered 5833885838385883885838
8.87 MTOE; the highest ever.
Largest oil & gas producer in the country Domestic Oi & Gas Production (MTOE)
Qil and gas production from domestic fields, g 5112 —— 5279 | 5206 5245 52.06
including ONGC's share in PSC JVs has been _| ! ' ! ' |_| |—| |_
52.06 MTOE during FY'10 against52.45 MTOE 5y —smmsnme Fan = [ ey N
during FY'09. ONGC accounted for 79% of
India's crude oil and 54% of natural gas = , 3 g \ — 15
production during FY"10. 257 ' ' ¥ b
184 ‘ 165~ i AT =

Highest-ever production from overseas
assets o
ONGC Videsh Limited (OVL), the flagship ' 4 G
wholly owned subsidiary for overseas

FY'06 FY'07 FY08 FY'09 FY10

HONGC (O) ®PSCV(OI) ®ONGC(Gas) ™ PSCV (Gas)

ONGCER



Overseas Oil & Gas Production

operations has now footprints across 15

countries with 39 projects. Since its first 10
hydrocarbon revenue from overseas in 2002- R 878
03 from Vietnam, this year OVL registered 8 it

highest-ever production of 8.87 MTOE of oil
andgas.

196 =i |
215
6
First oil from RJ-ON-90/1 25 e
Your Company holds 30% participating 4 ::: I
interest in RJ-ON-90/1 pre-NELP block
operated by Cairn Energy India Pty. Ltd. 9 |
(CEIL). Till date, 25 discoveries have been
made in the block with six major discoveries o

i.e., Mangala, Aishwariya, Raageshwari,

Saraswati, Bhagyam and Shakti. Out of these FY'04 FY'05 FY'06 FY'07 FY'08 FY'09 FY10
discoveries, Mangala commenced production = Oil (MMT) Gas (BCM)

from 24" August, 2009; and it was dedicated to

the nation by Hon'ble Prime Minister Dr.

Manmohan Singh on 29" August, 2009 at Barmer,

Rajasthan. Your Company is aggressively pursuing with the Government of India for reimbursement of royalty which it is paying on
behalf of the operator.

8.87

6.34

New Projects

During FY '10 the Board has approved development of various offshore marginal fields viz additional development of D-1 field (13.962
MMT oil by 2025) at an investment of ¥ 21,636.5 Million, development of North Tapti gas field (4.116 BCM gas by 2021) at an investment
of ¥ 7,557 Million and development of Cluster-7 fields (9.73 MMt of oil & condensate and 4.52 BCM gas by 2029) at an investment of
32,410 Million.

Your Company is currently implementing redevelopment projects in major fields of Western offshore at an estimated cost of ¥ 182 billion
which includes Mumbai High North redevelopment phase Il at¥ 71 billion, Mumbai High South redevelopment phase Il at ¥ 88 billion
and Heera & South Heera redevelopment at ¥ 23 billion. During FY'10, the following new facilities were completed to enhance
production:

+ Installation of 4 Well Platforms C-39A, C-24, C-39-1 and C-22, along with associated modification and pipelines under C-Series
development.

+ Installation of Process Platform BCPA-2 with 2™ stage booster compressors for Bassein field (10MMSCMD) and Vasai East process
facilities having liquid handling capacity of 12,000 bopd, Gas compression of 2.0 MMSCMD and water injection facility of 47,000
bwpd along with associated modifications under Vasai East development project.

» Three new smart well platforms ¥-15, ¥-16 and ¥-17 along with associated cables, pipelines and topside modification under
Mumbai High South Redevelopment Phase II.

During the fiscal 2009-10, your Company brought 5 new marginal fields to production. With this total, 50 such fields are now on stream
and these fields produced 2.0691 MTOE of oil and gas during 2009-10.

ONGC bags highest number of blocks in NELP-VIII

You would be pleased to note that in NELP-VIII bid round, ONGC in partnership with its consortia members, submitted the bids for 25
exploration blocks and won 17 of these. In the eight NELP rounds which have been rolled out so far, ONGC has won 50% of the blocks
i.e.,121 out of total 242 blocks awarded by the Govt. of India. Your Company now holds 80 NELP blocks (70 as operator) and 62
nomination blocks.

CBM production

Your Company is operating in 5 CBM Blocks i.e., Jharia, Bokaro, North Karanpura and South Karanpura Blocks in Jharkhand and
Raniganj Block in West Bengal. CBM production from Pilot Project at Parbatpur commenced from January, 2010. Final Development
Plan (FDP) for Jharia block has been submitted for approval of the Govemment.



Vahus Adidid Produchs

The Hazira Plant of your Company staried production of & new prxduct Propane, During FY™ 0, 1,318 MT of Propans was sold. During
FY'19, revenue from export of 1,588 MT of Kaphtha has been ¥ 45,770 milllon; the highest-aver bath In terms of quanity eported and
PyvanLs sarmed.

Altermate saurces of snegy

51 MW Wind power farma which your Comgany had set up near Bhw In Gujarat with an investrmernt of ¥ 3,080 milonin September, 2008

ke aeary aparafional. The sleciricity ganeratad i whested thraugh the Gujarat Stats Electicity Grid for capfive consumption by ONGC
atAnkieaivwar, Anmadabad, Maheana and Vadodara.

ONGC Enangy Cantra sat up by your Compeny Tor hollelc ressarch for new and siiamats shangy soLivse has baen pursuing a number
of nees projects . Tharme-chamical gensotion of nadrogen, Biosormesnsion of coalfol b methang ges, Unmium sgrontion, Sold
sbate lighting, Solar PY Eneigy Farm, ste.

SCOPE Gold Trophy for achlevements in C5R and RAD

You wil be deligited to know that your Cormparny recalwed the Gold Troplry for "SCOPE Mertiordous Awerd for Corporate Sockal
Rezponakbilly and Responsivenass for 2007-2008 and Gold Trophy for RED, Technelogy Devalopment and innavation for the year
Z008-79. The swards wers prasentad by H.E. tha Prealdent of India, Smi_ Pratibha Davisingh Pail to CMD, ONGC on Public Sscior Day
Le. on 10" Aprl, 2010 &t Vigyan Bhewan, New Delh.

A FEH & AFEH & 3

Celebrating the spirit & contribution
of F’ubhc E -~ A ISes

h-'i..r
2010

1 Qo ril. 201 G
Blmw B ow Del ,

/IS

Ho+

Me R.5. Shama, CHD, CNGE mogiving SCOPE metionisys s for Corponsls Siockal Reepongbilly &
200708 nndl Geoldl fmphy for AL & D Technology Devslopment and Innevation for fhe yser 2008-05 from H, E. The Presiden
of India, Gt Prafibha Dwd singh Patll on Public Sactor Dey



1. Financial Results

Despite volatile markets, your Company has earned a Profit After Tax of ¥167,676 million (% 161,263 million in 2008-09), up
3.98 %, which is incidentally the highest-ever.

During the year under review, your Company registered Gross revenue of ¥ 619,832 million (X 566,357 million in 2008-09), up
9.44%, by netting off the revenue from trading of products of Mangalore Refinery & Petrochemicals Limited (MRPL), a subsidiary of
your Company, amounting to T Nil (¥ 85,098 million in 2008-09).

Highlights:

Gross Revenue < 619,832 million
Profit after Tax (PAT) < 167,676 million
Contribution to Exchequer 280,988 million*
Return on Capital Employed 50.9%
Debt-Equity Ratio 0.00006:1
Earning Per Share (3) 78.39

Book Value Per Share (%) 404

*OID Cess, Excise duty, Royalty, Corporate and Dividend Distribution Tax and Dividend on Government shareholding.

Financial Results (X inmillion)
2009-10 2008-09

Gross Revenue 619,832 651,455

Gross Profit 396,054 378,292

Less:

Interest 686 1190

Exchange Variation (4,033) 3819

Depreciation 12,312 14,491

Amortisation 89,407 68,281

Depletion 45,302 42,148

Impairment (433) (3110)

Provision/Write Offs 2,974 11,666

Provision for Taxation (including deferred tax 82,163 228,378 78,544 217,029

liability of ¥ 11,160 million)

Profit After Tax 167,676 161,263

Appropriations Profit & Loss B/F - 1)

Interim Dividend 38,500 38,500

Proposed Final Dividend 32,083 29,944

Tax on Dividend 11,616 11,632

Transfer to General Reserve 85,477 81,188

Total 167,676 161,263

Previous year figures have been regrouped wherever necessary



Your Company paki an Imedm dividsnd of T 18 per share (180%), In Decarber, 2009, The Board of Dirackora have
recommandisd o finel dividend of € 15 par shans (150%) making the eognegstes dividend &t T 33 par sharm (330%) as
comparad tn T 32 par share (320%) pakd In 2006-08. The total dividand wil absorb ¥ 70,583 millon, beskdes € 11,618 millon
astaxon dvidend, which s Hstorically the highesl dividend payoutbythe Company.

3. Mansgoment Divcussion and Analysle Report

In terma of Clause 4TW)(F) of the Listing Agreamsant with the Stock Exchanges, & Management Discussion and Analysis
Raporihas bean included and forme partofthe Annual Report of the Company.



4. Production and Sales

Fighigha of production and askss of Crude O, Nsiural Gas and Vilue- added products:

Unk | Production Bales Velus [T million]
2000-10 | 200800 | 2000-10] 200899 | 2000-10 | 200800

Diract
Crude O GAT) | 2848 | tzraz| 23| zoea| w4sp0 | misor
Natural Gas (BCM) | "25.50 | =254 | 2080| 205 | 7nzer| ms5m
EihanalFropane pooMT | b5 | dor|  swa|  der| deaee| emm
LPG poMT | 08| 02|  vies| 1emm| 2me| 27m
Naphtha Q00OMT | 1302 | 1358 | 1368 | i545| 47197 | sad0
SKO pooMT | 185 | 56| 1es| 183| 3as5| 44w
[Dthers =gfy | 1340
Bub Total 61,95 | 554270

Traing
Molor Bpiit 0OOKL 035 2m 7| nos
SO [1.11],18 = 441 =1 1225
HSD 000KL 4.29 1742 168 | &1883
Sub Total 13| #5188
Totsl 52049 | 64T |

*  Includes .79 MMT (Previous year 1.85 MMT)from Jolnt Ventures.
*  Includes 249 BCM (Previous year 2 56 BCM) from Jolnt Venturas.
w gaaofaiechicty of T 131 millon (Previous year T 205 mBlon) regrouped i atherincome.

Al view of ONGC's onshors diilling loosSon

1 .




. Dil & Gas Reserves

Your Company has made voluntary disclosures in respect of Oil & Gas Reserves, conforming to SPE classification 1994 and
US Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB-69). ONGC has added 250.60 MTOE of oil and oil-equivalent gas
(O+OEG) initial inplace volume with 82.98 MTOE of O+OEG as the ultimate reserve component during FY '10. The ultimate
reserves accretion, including its share in joint ventures is 87.37 MTOE of O+OEG, which is the highest in last two decades.

Ultimate Reserve (3P) accretion O+OEG (in MTOE)
Year Domestic ONGC's Total OVl's Total
Assets sharein Domestic Sharein
Domestic Reserve Foreign
JVs Assets
1) 2) B)=(1)+(2) 4) (5)=(3)+(4)
2007-08 63.82 -0.34 63.48 46.73 110.21
2008-09 68.90 2.82 71.72 135.08 206.80
2009-10 82.98 4.39 87.37 0.35 87.72

. Statement of Reserve Recognition Accounting

The concept of Reserve Recognition Accounting attempts to recognize income at the point of discovery of reserves and seeks
to demonstrate the intrinsic strength of an organization with reference to its future earning capacity in terms of current prices
for income as well as expenditure. This information is based on the estimated net proved reserves (developed and
undeveloped) as determined by the Reserves Estimates Committee.

As per FASB-69 on disclosure about Oil and Gas producing activities, publicly traded enterprises that have significant Oil and
Gas producing acfivities, are to disclose with complete set of annual financial statements, the following supplemental
information:

a) Proved Oil and Gas reserve quantities

b) Capitalized costs relating to Oil and Gas producing activities

¢) Costincurred for property acquisition, exploration and development activities

d) Results of operations for Oil and Gas producing activities

e) Astandardized measure of discounted future net cash flows relating to proved Oil and Gas reserve quantities

Your Company has disclosed information in respect of (a) and (d) above in the Annual Financial Statements. Your Company
has made voluntary disclosure on standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows relating to proved oil and gas
reserve at Annexure-A to this report as Statement of Reserve Recognition Accounting (RRA).

. Financial Accounting

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and
in compliance with all applicable Accounting Standards (AS-1 to AS-29) and Successful Efforts Method as per the Guidance
Note on Accounting for QOil & Gas Producing Activities issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and
provisions of the CompaniesAct, 1956.

. Internal Control System

The Company has well established and efficient internal control system and procedures. Your Company has already
implemented SAP R/3 system for integration of various business processes across the organization. The system has now
been upgraded from earlier version of MySAP 4.6C to ECC 6.0. The Company also has well defined financial powers of
various executives in its Book of Delegated Powers (BDP). Integrated BDP has recently been revised to bring further
delegation. The Company has in-house Internal Audit Department commensurate with its size of operations. Audit
observations are periodically reviewed by the Audit & Ethics Committee of the Board and necessary directions are issued
wherever required.



9. Subsidiaries
() ONGC Videsh Limited (OVL)

e 1 ONGC Videsh Limited, the wholly-owned subsidiary of your Company for overseas E&P activities, registered
satisfactory performance during 2009-10. The company presently has participation in 40 projects in 15 countries.

E&P Global Footprint

40* Projects in 15 Countries 23 Exploration Dezelfgg:{ent -

%@2
Venezuela 1 DS
P Russia
Cuba 2
Colombia 5 ! Myanmar
Vietnam
Brazil 4
Libya 3
Iran
Nigeria 2 -
Nigeria JDZ 1 .
’ Iraq
K Syria
Sudan .
Egypt 2 -_ *40" Project is Sudan’s 741 km long completed Pipeline

The Big Deal

A consortium led by OVL signed a contract on 12" May, 2010 for 40% ownership in the company, formed for developing
Carabobo-1-Norte and Carabobo-1-Centro heavy oil blocks in Venezuela. The Corporaci'n Venezolana del Petr'leo ("CVP"), a
subsidiary of Petr'leos de Venezuela S.A. ("PDVSA"), Venezuela's state oil company, will hold the remaining 60% equity interest.
The members of the OVL's Consortium are: OVL (11%), Indian Oil Corporation Limited (3.5%), Oil India Limited (3.5%), Repsol
YPF (11.0%) and Petroliam Nasional Berhad ("PETRONAS") (11%). The company will build heavy oil production facilities,
upgrading facilities and associated infrastructure. The upstream production facilities are expected to produce around 400,000
barrels per day of extra heavy oil of which approximately 200,000 barrels per day will be upgraded into light crude oil in a facility to
be located in the Soledad area, Anzo'tegui State. The license term will be for 25 years with the potential for a 15 year extension.

Out of 39 projects, OVL is operator in 16 projects and joint operator in 6 projects. OVL is currently producing oil and gas from
Greater Nile Oil Project and Block 5Ain Sudan, Block 06.1 in Vietnam, Al Furat Project in Syria, Sakhalin-I Project and Imperial
Energy in Russia, Mansarovar Energy Project in Colombia and San Cristobal Project in Venezuela. Block BC-10 in Brazil
commenced production from 13"July, 2009. Block A-1 and A-3 in Myanmar and Carabobo Project in Venezuela are in
development phase. North Ramadan Block, NEMED Project in Egypt and Farsi Offshore Block in Iran have discoveries and
appraisal work is being carried out. Development for Abu Khashab and Rashid discoveries in Block-24, Syria has been approved
by the Syrian Government and further exploration work is ongoing in the block. OVL had completed the Product Pipeline Project
for Sudan Government and handed over the pipeline to itin October, 2005 and is currently under lease. The remaining projects
arein exploration phase.

During 2009-10, OVL's consolidated share in production of oil and oil equivalent gas (O+OEG), was 8.87 MMT. OVL's
consolidated gross revenue during 2009-10 was ¥ 153,828 million (X 184,235 million during 2008-09) down 16.5%. OVL's
consolidated Profit After Tax during 2009-10 was ¥ 20,896 million (X 28,067 million during 2008-09) down by 25.55%. The
reduction in Gross Revenue and Profit After Tax is mainly on account of fall in crude oil prices in the international markets
during 2009-10.



Diveat Subsidiaries of OVL:
4} ONGC Nile Ganga BV, (ONGEV):

onoo

ONGEY, o subsidiary of VL, i engaged in E&P activities in Sudan, Syria, Venszuela and Brezd, ONGEY holds 25%
Participating interset (P1)in Greater Nie Oil Projact (GNOP), Surden with ie:shars of ofl production of about 2,128 MMT
during 2008-10,

It hes 18.66% to 18.75% participalive Intsrsst n four Production Sharing Contracks (PSCs) InAl Furst Project {AFPC),
Syria with Hi share of ol and gas produclion of about 0.718 MMTOE during 2009-10.

ONGEV also holds 40% P! In San Cristobal Project In Veneauala wih s shars of oll production of about 0.704 MT
during 2009-10,

Further ONGBY has 1% P In BC-10 Praject In Offshors Brazl which has commenced production [n 2008-10
eantributing to OVL's shars of 0.152 MMt o during the yaar. The cumsnt ital production of the projact (& about 80,000
barmal ofoll par dey.

ONGEY slsa hess 100% Pl and is the operaker of eqlonrkry blocks BM-B-T3 and BM-ES-42 end holds 25% Pl in
sxploratory blocks Block BM-SEAL-4 and Block BM-BAR-1 all located in Deegrrerier Offshors, Brezd,

b}ONGC Narmeds Limited (ONL):

ONL, & wholy-owmed subsidary of OVL I engaged In EAP acthities In Nigeris-S80 Tomé 8. Prindpe, Jolnt
Dewslopment Zone (DZywh13_5% P In desp water sxploration Blode2.

mmummmnmm



) ONGC Amcon Alaknmnela Limiied (DAAL):

OAAL, & wholly-owned subsidiary of OV, holde
stake In E&P projects In
0M8C Amem | Colombla, through Manssrovar |
Memmmis | Engrgy Colombla Limlted
Umit | {(MECL), a 50:50 Joint venire
company with Sinopec of China
During 2008-10, DV1's shars of praduction in
MECL was about 0.403 MMT of o,

d} Jarpeno Limited:

Jarpano Limbied, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
VL Incorporsted In Cyprus,
Jamass | 8¢quired Imparlal Energy
Corporation pic., a UK Bsiad
Limitsd | ypgiream oll exploration and
poducion entity with s mein
setivition in Tomask region of Weelsm Sibecia in
Rusein, in January, 2009, During 200810, |
Imperial Energy’s production was about 0.543
MMTofoll.

Parinam in Progress - OVL and Imperial E
#) AB Btarticapitalet nr SE3E (names changad ta Carabobo Ona AB):
OWVL hiolds 11% in Caursbobo praject thaough & mbosd company AR ShuSaupiais re 5636 (e changad to Carabobo One AR

Jolnt Yenture of OVL.:
f} ONGC Mttal Enargy Limilad [OMEL)

@E)MEL  0VLeiong wih Ml Investments Serl (MIS) promoiad OMEL, a jolrt verture company Incorporaed n Cypns.
vttty OVL o MIS ok 8% iquity sheroe of GMEL i the a0 af AQ[OVL): 49{MIS) with balérscs 2% shewss heid by 8B
Capital Markets Lin. OMEL hoide 45.5% and 64.33% Pl inexplombion Blosks OPL 270 and OPL 285 mapactimly in Nigeia. OMEL also
holds 1.11% Class-C sharsa in ONGEVY exclusively for AFPG Syrian Assale; such investment being financed by Class-C Peference
Shares lssuad by OMELIn the ratio of 51:48 to OV and MIS respecively.

{8} Mamgstora Rafinery & Pelragiermicala {snited [HRPL

TR YourCompany continuse o hold 71 52% equity stakein ~ {(MRPL} MMT
MRPL, whih hes put n B commendsbie alHeiRd
panformence, despite dosntum during 2009-10. [e]| [wn]| [uvw] [z |

Highlights
« Rafinery cruds thuput-12 50 MMT.
« Turncwer-€ 360,808 millon,

Proft Afler Tax-% 11,124 milllon.

Kaaping in view ti= plans o make Invesimarsts in various projects, &

dividend of 12% has been recommendad by lis Board. MRPL has

puccesaiully completed the tumanound of the GMMTPA unit 8 par schedula and alae nevamp of Gas O Desulphursation unit. The
distiiets yield was higheetever 72.8% at an operating level of 12 5MMTPA. The doimeeic dspaichea wans higheet durng the FY 2008-
10. MRPL recslved the st parcel of "Mangala” crude from the Rajasthan oll feld of ONGC and Calm on 8 October, 2009, MRPL has
achleved "Excallent® performance results under the MOU with ONGC, i holding company. MRPL achloved i lowest ever snemgy
index [n term= of MBTLY BBL! MRGF {(MBN) of 5827 during the year. The sxcsllent operaling, producion and safely standams
mainiained by e Rafinery have anabled MRPL to achiews remarkable snerpy &aving and aleo an accidam-free year. ICRA hag
neaffirmad thelr [ssuarraling of IrAAR' io MRPL for wsaat cradR riak. CRISIL lsauad rating of'CrAAA" i MRPL (ndicating highwat safsty.




It bagged the following mwands and accredikations during the year:

+ Winner In the 'Most Safe Refinery’ In last thee vears and
runner up In 'Refineries’ categories of OISD awarda for the
year 200809,

v Jawaharial Nehru Candenary Award 2008-08 - Joint 18t Prize
In Spactic Energy Consumplion Parformanca amongst al
Refinanas in Pubdc Seclor.

* SuperstarAchiaver Auard - 2008 for best ecpaort parformance:
from Kenam Chamber of Commerce and alsa Stele Lvel

Bxport foverd fix the Yoo 200506 end 200807 from
Gavt. of Karmataka,

Direct Marketing

[ — 1 &Fy . Dinect markating sales of MRPL negldansd an overall growth of 3%
= covaring products Bliumen, Fumace OIl, Naphtha, Mbeed Xylana,
MRFL- Highest capacity UtiEzation amaongst Indlan Rednaries | gHe and Sidphar, with aakes of BOO TMT In 2008-10. MRPL Shel
Aviation Fusl Sarvices Privats Limitad {a Joint Vantura Company of
MRPLand Shal Glabal) hes mads good prograss In marketing of ATF

T domasdic wirlines: st Bangalans snd Hydemabad sitports and i [Raly to commance apanarion et Mangskne siraort shartly.

Implementation of tha Phasa || Rafinerny Project with a projoct cost of € 124,800 million, was an achedula during the year 2008-10. With
&view bo add valus o the propylens, Implameniation of Polypropylane unit al a cost of ¥ 18,030 millon has been appraved. A confract
for construction of |SBL facdity has been placed on EL for sscuficn under opan book seecution methed. Your Company has epproved
o wdend a loan fadity of T 50,000 millon for part inandng the projects, OIDB has also sancioned a loan of ¥ 2,000 milon for the
projacts.

0. Exgengrtion Inirespaect of Annwssl Repart of Subsld|srles and Consolidaty Finenclal Statement

In terme of epproval pranted by the Central Government under Section 212{B) of the Companies Act, 1856 copiee of the Balsnce
Sheots, Profit and Lose Accourris, Reports of the Board of the Direciors and Reports of the Audiions of the subsidiary companics
have net been atisched fo the Accourts of the Company. The Company will make thess documenia'detalls avaliable upon request
by any member of the Company interasied In obialning the same. Annual Reports of MRPL and OVL are avallable on webstie
wwaLmepl.co.in and www.ongeovidesh com respectively.

In accordance with the Accountng Standard (AS)-21 on "Conaoldated Finandal Siatements” raad with AS-23 on "Accourting for
inveaimants In Assoclates”™ and AS-27 on "Financial Reporting of Imenssts In Joint Vantures®, audiied Consolidated Financlal
Statements forthe year endad 31" March, 2010 of the Comparny and ks subsidiaries form partaf the Annual Report.

11. Jolnt ¥anturea! Associstes
(T) ONGC: Tripuira Power Company Limited [OTPC)

ONGC hess prostiotod QT with evisagod squity siake of S0% lang wilh Govted Triours (2.5%) 0nd ILFS (26%) b sebup T26.6
MW (J63.3.x 2} gew bawod Combined Cycie Power Part (CCPP) at Pletana in Tipura to moneiizs kn o gos
ETPL  seocto in Triurn. Vious iniages s gae supply by ONGC and power of-take by NE st hava boan
rcanmrevommyn 110, The JV comparty has al=o tied up delt for the project with Power Finence Comporation Limked, Bharst
Heavy Electricals Limited has been engaged as EPC agency for completion of Generation Project on turmkey

basts. The firstpliasa oftha projact el o b compleed by Dacarmber, 2011.

(1) ONGC Petro-additions Limited {OPaL )

Your Company has pramatad a.JV eompany “ONGC Patre-asditions Lim ted” (OPal) with 26% scuity stake along with GAIL [19%)
and Gurel Stets Petralsum Comporation Lid [GEPCL) {5%) to  Implamant & mags peirochemiad complex
Tl comprising of 1.1 MMTPA stfryisns Crackar and gicbal scale polymer unils within Dehei SEZ a5 o shap lowerds
dowmstrenm inbegrstion. AR major shbubory epprovale e Envirormme el Clessancs from MoEF, 8EZ Unit approval

@ aic. hava been obimined and major LSTK conracte relafing to sita infrestnechus development, dual feed cracker
OPAL contract, lechnolegy fcensor(s) for downeimeam polymer urite have been ewartded. Mfs EIL has been engeged as the
PMC of e prolect.




() Hangaiore Special Feonomic Zons Limbed (WS EZ)

DNGC with 26% aquity siaks in MSEZ along with KIADB (23%) and ILRFS-+{CCI (51%), Is promoting ancther SEZ
In coantal Mangalons. Minlsiry of Commanes & Industry has &wmally noliflsd to sat up a Pairg-chemical Bpechic
BEZ in 1453 acies of lind. MSEZ hiv aBolied requitis kind k ONGC Mangalons: Pelrachemical Lid, & compérty
promnsrisd by ONGEC, for seting up an sromatic based patrochamical unit. MEEZ haw signed & Co-dewlopsr
sgmamentwith Indan Sirategic Peircleun Reserves Limitsd (15PRL) to develop a free imde zona forwarahousing
of Sirateglc Crude Reserve. Resqtisment and Rehabi ktation work of Project Displaced Peopls Is In progress over
126 acres of land. Requistie Infrastruciurs llke water supply systam, pipe-line corrdor atc. |s undsr implemantation.

(i) ONGC Mangalore Petrochemicals Limiiad {OMPL)

gy ONGC hes promotad OMPLuith 46% sculty pariipation, aleng with MRPL {3%) for ssting Lp manufachiring facitias
for 0.52 MIMTPA Pans-Xyiane and 0.14 MMTFA Banzens from MRFL's sromadic sinsams In Mangalors SEZ as valus
@ Aedcition project. The profsct i under implemenbation. Contracs relating o projsct mansgement, tachnology [oansor
und site gradding heve boen swerdsed while LETK conirect for process peclages are undar inakzation, Debt syndication
SIS procees has been completed and Rupes e loan egresment with banken signed.

¥ ONGC TERI Blosech LimHad {OTEL)

OTEL k & Jolnt Yeniure company of ONGC, Incorporated on 26" March, 2007, with The Energy and Research
Inettute (TERI). The JV has bsen prometed for addressing the requirement of Bloramediation of olly shudges,
: Microblal Enhanced O Recovery, prevention of wax depealion bacteria in tubulare, flow axsurance of line pipes for
oSt EAP operations. Apart fom ONGC, OTBL (s banging contracts for appication of above bechnologles from other
campanies Tke Ollindla Limiiad, Rallways, Refinaries, private companiesete.

{vl) Petronet MHB Limited (PAEHBL)

PMHBL Is a JV company of ONGC (28,788%), HPCL (28.766%) and PIL (7.85&%). Balance 34.57% of equity = held by the leading
banks. it owns snd operaies a multiproduct plpeline to transport MRPL's products to himedand of
ﬂ Kamgtaka. Maintalning s maround trend, PRMHBL, as per unaudied esulis for the yaar 2008-10,
hasmadea net praft of ¥ 50millon ona throughput of 2.53 MMT againat Netprofttal 20 milllon with

Petronet MHB Limited -\ i o6 45MMT during the year 2008-00,

{vil) Petronet LNG Limied (PLL)

(ONGC has 12.5% aquity staka In PLL, Identical o similar staks by other Ol PSUs co-promotsra viz., IOCL, GAIL and
y- BPCL PLLhas stariwd commissloning of Dahe] LNG terminal of 10MMTPAcapachy and alao commencad consiruclon of
_/ LNG Recetving and Re-pasTication Terminal of5.0 MMTPA st Kochi. The tumover of PLL during 2008-10 was T 106,481
millon (previousysar? 84,287 milkon)and net proftwas 2 4,045 millon (prewious yeer ¥ 5,184 millon), PLL has declared

reTowT 3 chidand of 17.5%, Sama as the

=] ey ] m.m
{vill) Pawan Hars Hellcopters Limited (PHHL)
The Company haz 215% squly wiake In
PHHL with balance 78.5% equlty with
the Governmant _
pr- =, of Indla. PHHL
P Promy Hiodoesers L ind It one of Asla's ¥
Momemeedrmimts  |argest hellcopter
pperioes having 4 |
woll bulanced oparutional fiset of 36 helcopiens. &
It pmwides helicopler support for ONGC's
oifshom operadons. PHHL wes successful In
prowiding all the 12 Diauphin M and N3

Pawan Hena Hnlnupurnwdlnm



helcoptar fully compliant with AS-4 aa par the new contract with ONGC.  The net profit of PHHL for the year 2008-08 wae T 261 20
million end it paid w dividend af 10%. The-sccaunts of PHHL or 2008-10 are und e inslisefion.
{ix} Dahe] SEZ Limited (DSL)
mmwmmmuummmmlmmmmmﬂyludmmmmuw
SEZ at Daha) In coastal Gujerst over 1717 hectares of land through an SPY 'Dahe) Economic Zone
SEZ hag formally baen approved by Minisiry of Commenca & Industry and Gezetie notiflcation lsaued. TH:SE.
S A now daclared &8 Peiroleum, Chemical, Patrachemical Invesiment Region (PCPIR} by Governmant of Indla, la
&, operatianal einca September 2008, Enviroriment cisaranca from Ministry of Envirnmant & Forest (WoEF) was

A recetved on 17" March 204 0. About §0% of the saleabla land has been alicited to pmspective unk holders.

12. OtherProjects [Business Inliatives
() ©2-C3-CAExdraciion Plent;

ONGC |» satting up a C2-C3-C4 Exiracton Plant at Dahe using LNG from PLL a2 fead siock. The plant |= nearing mechanical
camplstion with oveml] progress of 85 24% e on 31% March, 2010.

{b) Purinershipsforgrowth
{l] ONGEled Consortium algns agreaments for sourcing LNG irom lran

ONGCIOVL, in associstion with Hindula Group and Petmnet LNG have emiemsd Into sgreemants with Iranlan authorifsaon 1*
Decamber, 2008 at New Delhl for partidpation In development of gaa felds and liquetaction facliies In Iran. Indan
participation would antite supply of LNG up to a minimim of & MM TRAon long term basle.

) MoUwith Mjs Sistema, Rusela

DVL antared Into & non-axclusive Mamerandum of Understanding (Mall) on 8" Dacamber, 2009 at Mascow wih Mfa

Skiama, a lsading diversiiod Industial groun of Russia i expiors the passibiiies of jointy iudying and partidipating In
atirective all end gas asseds In Russla and thind counries.

(W) MoUwith ENARSA, NOC of Argentina

OVL signed an Mol) with ENARSA, the netional oll company of Argentina for conperation in E&P ventures in Argenting, Indla
and other countriss on 14" Ockiber, 2000 In New Delhl n pragancs of H.E Dr. Cristing Famandaz s Kirchner, Presidant of
Arganiing and Hon'ble Prird Minisher of

Indie, Dx. Menmoban Singh. (S Exce“ency Cly. v

(W] Mol with Bharst Psiroleum
Corporation Limited {EFCL)

DNGC exacuied an Mol with BPCL
on 23" Februrry, 2010 for exploring
opportuntles In downatream gas
buelnees such as particlpation In
CGD nebworks, Iaying nalural gas
Mpalinea, markeling of nahural ges
and CNG comprassion for
developing CHG comdors acroes the
snta and nationsl highways and for
eotior ronrtually agreed busingss.
{v) Molwith GAL ndls Limited

The Mol executed with GAL for
mukial co-operation In the amas of
Nahural Gas Plpelnes, Transmission
end Mariesiing business has been
sxdended for two years wel 24*
July, 2009

Agresmertt signing bebesen CHD, CNGC and Minksler of O & gas Rapubiic of ren



(i} oLl with FIRG Technologies () Pte Lid, Singapors

ONGC and FMC Tachrislagies (S) Pis Ltd, Singapona signad an MaLl on 14" July , 2008 i New Dell to pursus collaboralian
and compedsnna snhancaent In-anss of despwabsr devalopmant.

ALRil LT

s
T
et

Signing Ceremony

i} signing batwenn QMGG & BPGL ke saploring apporiunities in dounstroost gas business

13. Information Technoiogy

i

Project IGE

Project ICE, the ERP based business portel of ONGC was upgraded from MySAP 4.8¢ to ECC B0 to leverage the new
functionakties of the |test ERP sysiem consisting of Producion Revenus Accounting (PRA), Gowmancs, Risk & Compllance
{GRC), Masier Data Managemant {MDM], Idantity Management (IDM), Occupation Health (CH), Moblle Assat Management.
Systam basad processes for Parformance Relsted Pay (PRP), Perqulaitea and Online Claime and re-imbursements heve now
been anablad In totakty.

E&P Disasbor Racovery Server

E&P Documnant Managamant Disastar Racovery Server setablished at Vadodara was Inauguratad on 10" Novemnbar, 2008, With
this, DNGC's afforts by craats an oniline Caniral Repeesiony of sl accumulabed indsllachyal scsads hag row been complaisd.

Heallth, Safely & Ervironment (HBE)

Your Company has implementsd globally mcognized QHSE management sysiems cormfoming fo requirements of 150 8001,
OHSAS 18001 and 190 14001 at ONGC faclliles and certiled by mputed certification agencles at all lts operational unka.
Survellance Audts for sustaining HSE accreditation was camiad out In 402 unbs during the year. Corporaie guidslines on incident
rapaciing, Investigation and montiorng of necommendat ons wae developad and implementad for mainiaining unHomnity through
out the ergantzation In Ene with international practics.

Corporata Disasher Managament Plan {CDMP) and guidalngs hava bean daveloped far uniform disastar management all across
ONEC. Your Company hess siso devalopad Occupations| Health phissical finess criberia fie amplopsss depiopd i affighon
operndions, Oecupeational Health (DH} module s niow been populided on SAP sysiem,
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Ringal Plamiation: Susteining fraglle ecosystem of Himalayas is ona of the objectives underiined (n National Acon Flan on
Cimate Changs launchad by Hon'bls Prime Minksiar. Ringal hae high carban ssquesiration patential, ks focder for musk desr and
has petential o provids smployment apportunity to lacal peopls. In the first phass, 338,000 Angal plants have heen plamied In
Joshimath and Kadamath fonast ansa In 125 haciams land during 2008-09. In the second phass, plantation of another 400,000
ringal saplings are ervisaged in 160 hactanss area of upper Himaleyes.

Mangrove Planiation: Mangrove plantation has been underiaken by ONGC along the Dhadar rver eshuary In Gandhar ama of
Gujarst to protect flooding ofwater and degeneration of nearby land areas. Mangrove plantstion on the shore line of Dhadar
River In Gandhar anaa has been intensified. One of the important componants of this project is spreading awaraness about
mangrove plantadon in urban and cosstal rural sreas of Gujarat and Maharastra.

Claan Development Machanism (COM)

DNQGC's 5" and 6 Clsan Devalapmant Machanism (COM) projects namaty - Enargy Eficlancy in Amine creulation pumps at
Hezira nnd 51 MW wind powsr profect st G, wela nagishenad with Lintisd Nations Framswork Comvantion on Climabs Changs
[UNFCCC) on 25" Sapt 2009 and 1 March 2010 respectivaly. The projects are sstimated to eam annual Cartfled Emission
Reduction {CER} of 85,762 and 4,043 respactivaly. Expected annual CERs aamed by ONGC Is ahout 210,000, In addition, bws
mona COM projacts, viz Gas Flaring Reduction at Jorhat and Graan Bullding praject at Dalhl have baan suceassiully valldabed
during theysar. The intal expacted CER2 fram thasa hwo projects will ba armdnd 28 000 par annum.

ONGC's fingt COM preoject, "Wests heat Racinasry Project st Mumbai High” hes been succegsTully wihisd and the Uinited Nadions
Fravrwick Cormmntian on Climads Changs (UNFCCC) issusd the frst setof Ceified Emissian Reduction (CERs) for him project
of 18" March 2010. With this Issuandcs, he decka ans clear for ONGC totredeand eam revanies from CDM projecis.

Hismimn Rpsomces

You am ewere thet your Company has vest pocl of skiled end talented professionals-the most valuable sssat for the compary,
Your Cormpany continued to extend several
waifare benefits to He employees and thelr
familea by way of comprehensive medical
cars, educatlon, houslng and gocial
sacurtty. During the year 2008-10, your
Company Implemented varous new and
revissd waltsrs policies for s smplcyess,
T3 employess wons rleasad undar the
Voluntary Ratirsment Schems during the
yea, Tha Human Resource valus of the
smployees based on "Lev end Schwarz"
medel ls endesed at Annaare B

PayRaviglon of Execitive

Minigry of Palralsum and Nelsl Gas
e Presidential Dirsclives to implament
revision of pay and aliowances of Board
leval and balow Board level @xecutimea In
youir Company dated, 24° Apd, 20086
Subsscuanily, revision of pay soslas for
sxecuives waf 1 January, 2007 and
revislon of panjuishes and alowances for
sxaculives w.e.f. 26* November, 2008 were
Implarnermied In wour Company In June, Schamatis pressniartion of fhe upcoming Green Buliding "Sublr Reha Bhuwr” at Detadun
2009 and February, 2010 reapectively.

Waga nevislon sfunionisad staff

The Uniens had simithed thir charber of demands in 2007 and & warking graup comprising reprsanbtives of Liniong end the
Merage ment was cormtibied. The-worddng group held thres msstings beforn pey revision guidsines for sesutives ware susd
by DPE. Thereafter, the Unioms submitied the muodified charter of demands in October, 2008. The
negotiations on the modified charker of demands heve started and two mestings of the working group fook place thersatfierwhes
lzsuea have been discumsad threadbare and certaln (2= es have baen clariled.
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Employes Welfars Trusts

YourCompany has established the folowing major Trusts for welfane of ha amplovess:

»  Ermployess Contribulary Providant Fund {ECPF} Trusl, menaging Provident Fund acenunts of smployees of your
Compay.

*  ThePost Reirement Beneftt Scheme (PRBS) Trustof your Company manages the pension scheme ofthe smployees.

+ TheComposks Social Securlty Schame (CS5S) formulaied by your Company provides an assured sx-gratia payment
In the avent of unforkinaie death or permanent disablltty of anemployea In service. Familles of decessed employeas
getafinanclal assistance under the schema ranging between¥ 1.5 millonto ¥ 2.0milllon.

+  ONGC Sshayog Trust hes been created forwelfars of secondary workioms or thelr helrs, who are In financlal disiress,
Graiuty Fund Trust has been created for payrment of gretulty with provision of Grabuity Rules.

*  YourCompany inplemented the Employess Pension Scheme (EPS1005), mirospectvely w.s.f. 16° Novernbar, 1885.

Your Company implemented 2 aingle Inlegraded searmiess computerised accoundng sysiem for all welfam trusts paraining
to Investments, accounts, setlement and conirbution els. Employes accounte are now malntalned on the new ayatem,
duly reconclied and updstied, and can ba viewed by the employaes themsaives on Company's Intranat. Almoat all payments
ans made o the mambers through e-paymantmachanism.

Irepleersertation OF Gowerrament Dinciives For Priority Section

Your Company complies with tha Government directives for Prionty Secticn of the scciety. Tha parcaniage of Schedulad
Casta {SC) and Bcheduled Triba {ST) employeas wane 15.80% and 8.53% respactively as on 15Apr, 2010.

Your Compeny |5 fully conmitiad for e waitare of SC and ST eoremunites. The folowing wedfliane sodivithes ans coartisd out
by your Cormpamy for their upftment inend eround its opendional amas;

Annusl componant plan:

An amount of ¥ 30 milon |a detrbuied fovarous work centraa of ONGC for iImplementation of welare schamea. Thisfund s
mspacia by et for providing help and suppart in anses liey Educsdtion and training, Community dewsdopment, Hoakh cams,
iz,




] Beholarehipbo 8C and 3T mertorkais studenis |

Your Company spent € 4,62 milion for mupporing 108 studenis of the 8C and BT community for  pursuing higher
profeasional coursas al diferent recogrized Instthirtes and univeralias.

=
V.
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Erlucalion ks & foom wea of OMECe CHR activlies:

18.  Industrial Relutions

Your Company fook struchined initialivea fo maintaln harmonlous Indusiral Relations In the organization. Pursuant o the
girikes resoriad fo by the afiice bearers of ASTO {Aasociation of Sclantific and Technieal Officers} In January, 2008, the
racognition to ABTO was withdrawn. A Cade of Conduet wias framad and adaptad far reguiaing the reations bebwean the
Officers’ Aspociafion and tha Manpgement of your Company; which iifscatia, lave down o framssork for bilateral resaiution
of all suss end dispuies. Furhar, & new policy on reeognition of Officens’ Axsocintion incarporsting the Code of Conguct
wia imsund with the mim o bring in reioms thmough sdminisiretive deciions,

14, Grisvance Managemant System

Your Company provides an sasly sccessible machanam to the employeea for nedreasal of thalr grievances, alther through

infornal or formal channeis. All ey axacutives of your Company have designated a publicizad time alet, thrice a wesk, io

et publie rapresantatives fior apeady redressal of thalr grisvances. Your Campany has alse approved eesalian of 3 ‘single
window front offica’ st all work-cenires. An officar not balow Chisd Managear lswel 15 nesponsihils for ensuring aceasaibity and
respongheansgs to public grisances.

20. Rightio Information Act, 2005 (RTIAct)

An slaborats mechanism has been sst up thmughout the omganisstion fo deal with the requests mesived undarthe RTIAct
During the year, 701 raquests wena recaived, out of which Information waa prosdded in nespect of 800 requeats and 2 cases
wara tranafemsd o other public authorties. 91 naquasts wane rajactad. 8 applcaiiona wena pendng for supply of Infrmation
azon 31" March, 2010 and thess have been prcessed later on. Furher, againet s fotsl of 152 appeals dealt with during the



iy

Cumophyiacal Subd peradewied carrying oul sunney work

ywar, 68 wers ejectad and the balance 54 appeals wers accepted and 30 appeals wers pending as on 31 “March, 201 0which
have been dealtwith lateron.

implamentation of Official Language Polley

During the year, a seres of Inftiafives ware undartaken for promotian and prapagalian of Rajphasha in affidal communication.
Literary works In officlal lnguage continusd i be Tnancially suppaortad by vour Company. In addition, il Induciess at the
exncutive kvl wate soqasad o the Official Languags Palicy of the Govt. of indim. Your Compary abo contribubed sudively in
pubbshing the blingual Petrolsum Terminology, an initistve of the Minirry of Peirobam and Natuml Gas and in effscie
implomentation of the Hind Teaching Scheme of Govt. of india at all its regianal work centres. Your company mcehed
appreciation from e Gowmment of Indlaforexcelent progress of Implementation of Officlal language directives,

Human Resourcs Development

32 978 ONGClans {as on 31* March, 2010) dedicated themsstves for the axcelent performance of your company during the
year. Your Company balleves (nand acts on the pramise that human caplial | the vital sounce of compediive Rdvantage.
Towand this end, your Company inftaled soveral path bsaking measures listed below fo foster development of lis
human capital,

Porormancs Bansgement Sysiom and Perfarmance Relsated Py

Your Cornpamy, in Ene with the DPE Guideines | devising a robust periormance management system which Is sffeciive In
ldandtiying and rewarding high perfommers. A= part of the process, the performance appralsal sysiern has boen cormplately
w-anabled. To strengthen transpanency in the mymem performanca ratings of the sxeculives have besn disclosad to them.
Incantiva payments for the year 2007-08 and 2008-08 wers made during tha vearto the executhves of your Company based
on tha Mol raling of the Compamy and the Individual's performance.



b. Training
During the year, ONGC conducied various tralning programmes for lis axecutivea and staif spanning 140,510 training man
days. His Excellency Dr. A.P.J. Abdul Kalam, Former President of india launched the Canire for Creative Leadership at ONGC
Acadesry, Dehradun an 30th May, 2008. 12 "Odantalian Programims on Craative Leadership” imvolving 308 officers have
been conductad at diTarant wark centres targating young comarata level officars thraugh rapulsd managamant instiutes of
the country such s indian Instibate of Manegement and Adminirsirstive Steff Collsge of iIndin, Hycsnatiad. In mddition,
laedanship devedopmant i the ks of @ continuing progrumme far s2niae officers trough Indien Schaol of Business,
Hyderabad,

e. Newinkisthves

* AnEmployss Engagement Survaywan camiad outinyour Company during the year wih the help of a globally renownad
conaultant in which over 7,000 amployeas particinated.

' Toambad tha gun-shishya sthee in yeur Campany, & total of 38 senicr vl exscufives wers Falned as '‘Coaches’ and 45
5 ‘Mantors’ during the yeer. Frash jpining inducises ars baing provided the guidence of such menions for heir seamiess
integration it your Company,

+ Your Company is utlizing Asscssmarnt and Development Corries as an evalusting ool (o ssscss poterial of midde lavel
managers and utlzing the aesessment &z Impart Adwanced Management Tralning to the high potental executives. During
the year, 240 DGtz wor assessed ulilzng this methodology.

Gaosglaniis; camying ool swsmia inkrposialion ot wericltion in Regionsl Computer Canirg, Channs



« Mult-Diaciplinary Team working, which la the easence of funclioning of your company, was sirengthenad during the vear
withfha aim to male it mone aflective and produclive by angaging globally reputed consuitants. Several recommendations
of the consultants haws bean Imphwmenisd with pramizing results and the offort k& an o mativale mon and mae

ernpioyees to adeptto thesa systems.
Ascolades

Consistent with the frend In preceding years, your Company, His various operating unlis and ks senlor menegement officlala
héve bean In recelpl of varous awards and recognibions. Detalls of such accoladea are placed af Annemime T,

Bports

Your Cormpany presenty has smund 170 sporisparsans, including 123 intemational level perkme s, on s mils wha
mpressnt the Company in diflerent garnes in addition fr-amund 140 sportepsrsona on schalarship. Your Company sponsamd
mega sporting evenls Tke 2nd ONGC Nehru Cup Imlemational Toumament 2009 and Yordd Snookeer Champlonship,
ONGClan Shil Panka| Advanl won his third Aslan Blllards #tie In Aprl, 2009 and created history by winning hia malden World
Professional Bilands Champlonship in 2009. ONGClana Ma. Sinimola Poulose and Shrl Gautam Gambhir wers confermed
with Arjuna Award in recognition of their achievemants in athletics and cricket respacively. Shrl Gautam Gambhir was alen
ranked No. 1 batsman InICG Teatworld rankings. Shrl Chetan Anand won tha Duich Open Grand Prix badminion Tournament
in Dctober, 2008and also the Bold medal in SAF Games heid 8t Dhaits, Banpladeshin Febary, 2010, 8hil Rupash Kumar
Tinished Funnars Up in Australls Open Grand Priv hadmindon Toumament hadd in July, 2008. Shil iC Saelidran wes the
mamber of the Chags iatim thed won Bronzs medal in World Team Champioreshia of Bunga in January, 2010, Ms. Konan
Humpywonthe 1“ piaca In Fida World Yoman's Grand PrixCycleavent at Turkey inMarch, 2010,

Your Campary malntained s supremacyin Peirolaum Sports Promation Board taumamants. During the year 2008-10, 1t has
aceumulaiad racard braaking 176 points way shead of athar membar campardes.

Yiomen Empovsrment

Yvomen smployees constted 6.1% of ONGC's workdorcs. Durng the yeer, programmes for empowsemernt and

development, Induding programme on gendsr sensitizalion was omgantzed. Your Company aclvely supported and
nominated Hs lady amployess for programmes omjanisad by "YWomen In Public Sector'{(WIPS) and Yomen In Leadarship

Corporsis Social Responsiblity (CSR)
During the year, your Company apenationalised the incresss in s commitmet from 0.75% &02% of net profit for i Conpareta
Social Responsibiities (C3R) and focurad on reaching out to the seciely though sustainable prolecte with acive
paricipation of the =takeholders, Twehes major focus areas of CSR activites wers kderiified. Your Company bs commitied to

t October
2l Lodhi

!

CHGCian Panke) Adven|, Werld Frofessional Eiiands Champlon(2008) recelring PSPE swend from Shri Kiurll Deom, Minksler of PRNG
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follow the Guidelines on CSRissued by the Department of Public Enterprises. Major CSR Projects launched during the year
are as follows:

Greening Inltlative of the Southern Ridge, New Delhl: The initiative envisages greening an approximate area of 1.5
8q.kms in and around the upcoming ONGC building
(Rajiv Gandhi Urja Bhavan) and TERI university
campus situated at Institutional Area, Vasant Kunj,
New Delhi.

« TERI-ONGC "Soldiers of the Earth" project: The
Soldiers of the Earth campaign is an all
encompassing, environmental awareness
generation programme. The campaign is aimed at
sensitizing children and young adults towards a
greenerfuture.

« Skill based vocational computer training: Setting
up and running of five centres named as Gandhi
Institute of Computer Education & Information
Technology at ONGC work cenfres at Dehradun,
Sibsagar, Mehsana, Karaikal and Rajahmundry, for
provision of free job/ entrepreneurship oriented
computer education to youth belonging to

marginalized sections of the society through institutes run by Bharatiya Vidya Bhavan.

'Asmita: Educating youth, rediscovering pride in India's heritage: Production of a series of 13 films of 45-minutes
duration each every year (for the next 5 years) on select topics of India's cultural heritage joinly with Surabhi Foundation and
TERIfor connecting the audience to India's cultural roots to evoke a sense of national pride.

'Ashadeep' - Girl child education programme: Aimed to ensure continued schooling of the girl students belonging to
economically weaker sections of society, with observable improved leaming levels of the support receiving students. Thisis a
unique and laudable initiative taken by ONGC Officers Mahila Samiti.

Multi-specialty hospitals: Two multi-specialty hospital on P-P-P model proposed at Sivasagar, Assam and Ankleshwar,
Gujarat.

Support to Hemophilia Federation (India): Providing support for education of children with Hemophilia. Hemophilia is a
genetically transmitted, life-long, life threatening bleeding disorder.

Mobile Medicare Units: Implementation of Mobile Medicare Unit Project through Help-Age India for community based health
care services to destitute older persons and other vulnerable citizens in 20 locations across the country.

Renewable energy for solar water pumping and home lighting: Providing lighting and water to poor households in Gujarat
and Tamil Nadu.

Mokshda Green Cremation System: Setting up energy efficient and environmental friendly green cremation system in
association with local municipal bodies at work centers of ONGC.

Conservation of ancient monuments: To support Archaeological Survey of India in its endeavour for the conservation and
development of the Ahom monuments at SivasagarAssam.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956, with respect to Directors' Responsibility
Staternent, itis hereby confirmed that;

(i) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed and there are no
material departures from the same;

(ii) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates

Director (Onshore) handing over ¥ One Crore cheque
to Andhra Pradesh CM, Mr. K. Rosaiah for flood relief work



that are reasonabla and prudant, so a8 10ghe a trus and tairviewofthe stals of alfalre of the Campany a8 at 31* March, 2010 and cftha
prafit of the Company fortha yearandad on that date;

(ig) Thee Direckans hive talosn proper and sulficiant o for the mearknancs of sdequabs accouiing records in aecordance with the
prewvisicns of the Compauties Act, 1958, for saiguanding the aessty of the Company and oy preventing dnd delseting fraud snd otfer

(W) The Diraclors have preparad the annual accours
oftha Comparmyen & "golng concem’ basls.

2%. Corporate Govemnanes

Your Company has taisn sinuciured initiafues
towards Camporats Govameancs end il pracices
ww valusd by the various stalsholders, The
pracices evohve round multi-levensd checke and
balances o ensure transparency.

In terms of Clauss 49 of the Listing Agreement, B
repoit on Corporste Govemancs for the year
ended 31.03.2010, supported by a cerificate
from the Companmy's Awditore confirming
compliance of candiions, forms part of this

Repait.

Guidelines of Depariment of Public Enbrprises
{PPE), Govemrmment of India, on Corporse
Govemance which wem arller voluniery, have
been mads mandatory from May, 2010, ONGC
- has implemented the DPFE guidelnes to the
Dr. AK Bulyan, Disster (HR), ONGC with Strl Mlind Do, Harfhis maximum extent poasible excapt with regard to

M of Parflarrond o the veugpeslion of be MA1 oty ot GT appolniment of requistis number of indepandant
Hompiini, Wumbal. Alsa presnt am Mrs Yanshatal Galiosd, Hon'be MoS Dirsciors, which Is belng folowed up with the
for Minciical Echcaiion, Giovi of bisharsshins arel Mrs Anry Shokher, MLA Minleiry of Petrolnum & Nalural Gas.

Yaur Campany has voluntarily gol its Secreterial
Compiance Audit conducted for the financial yearanded 31 Manch, 2010 from M2 AN. Kukreja & Co., Company Sacretaries
Imwhika-time practica: thelr neport forme part of this Annual Report.

In lines with glabal practiess, your Company has mada all information, nequined by Investors, avallable on the Campany's
corporats wahstis v angeindis convimvestsrcentsresp.

Apart from the mandatory misesurse mquirsd i be implermenisd as o part of Caporabs Governances, ONGE hes gans the
extre miler inthis regard for the benefitaf the stekeholders :

{a) Whistle Blowsr Policy - A Whislie Biower Policy has bean implamented a5 ¢ voluntery iniisdhes snd is funianal from 14
Dacamber, 2008, The policy snsunes that & genuing Whislls Blower is grantad dus pmbsction from any vickimizeon, The
Policy is evaiabla to all empkeyess of the Company and has been upiaaded on the intranet of the Company.

{b) Annual Reportonworking of the Audit & Ethics Committes : With a view i apprisa the Board of the workdng of the Audit &
Ethics Commitiea during tha yeer, an alaberate annual report on the working of ihe Audit £ Ethics Comimities for FY "10 has
bt praparad and will be put up to Board for k2 Information. This I In Bna Wwith the recommendation of the CEAG. Tha irst
Annual Report of theAudi & Ethies Cammittes for the FY 08 was compllsd and ap provad by the Commitise,

{c} HCA Yoluntery Guldslines on Corporsle Gevemancs : ONGE has implementsd e volumtery guidslines on Corporade
Governance lssued by Minlslry of Comporaie Aflalrs bo the axdent feaskle and within the competency dornain of the
managemant.

{d} Entampriss-wide Risk Bansgamaent (RN frameworic In reepanss i the iIncraasing nead for corporate govamance inthe
waka of sevaral corpanats disasiars and daclins In staksholdarconfidence, SEBI sat out nequiramesnts for Companiee, Lindes
Clauses 49 [of the Lsting agrsement), to craats an oversight mechanism to addness risks. Accordingly your Compeny has
devsioped & compnshensiny Enterprise-wide Risk Management (ERM) framéwork. Under the framesord Risk Ragister
pextfolio hes been compisd and an ERM Policy has been fined up, Risk Managemeant process on pilot scale has basn




inttisted in sbx reprocantative locations Le., Mumbal High, Rajahmundry and Assam Assats, Westemn Onshors Basin, Kashav
Do Matviya Instiuta of Patrolsum Exploration (KDMIPE] and Hazira Plant

Youwould be pleassad to know that your Comperry hes receissd NI commants from G K AG and Statutory Audilons for the yeer
2008-10. Thiw i the fourth tirme in @ row that the organtzedion has racsivid NI comments and sdctimeein (st seven yous.

2. Stetutory Disclosures

Saction 274{1)q] of the Companles Act, 1956 b not applicabls 1o the Govemment Companies. Your Directors have mada
racassary discineures, a8 nequired under various provisions of the Act and Clause 43of the Listing Agreament.

Particulars of Employess

In berme of the provisione of Section 21 7(2A] of tha Companiee Act, 1958, read with the Companies { Particu/ar of Employees)
Rulas, 1875, the names and other particulars of the smplayees ame setout in the anexurs to the Dinclon’ Repart. However,

ragard iothe provisions of saction 218(1) (b)) of the sald Act, the Annual Report sscluding the aforesald information b
baing sertt i all the membaers of the Compary and others entitied theredo. Any member interesried in obtalning such particulars
ey wite o the Company Sacnetary at the neqixdered offica of the Company.

3. Enarygy Caonsarvation

Thes infniriinn mquinsd undier Séclion 217{1) () of the Compéries Act, 1956, rad with the Companies [Disclosum of
Particulars in the Report of Board of Dirctors) Rules, 1008, s annexed as Annexure - D,

3. Audiors

The Stetutory Audtors of your Campany ans appoinied by the Compirolier & Auditor General of India {CEAG). Ws PSD &
Aasockaies, M's. Padmanabhan Ramanl & Ramanulam, Mis Singhl & Co., M Kalyaniwalka & Mistry and Mis Anun K. Agarwal
& Associstes, Chariersd Accountents wens appainted &5 joint Btehutery Audion; for the finencisl yser 2008-10. The
remunanstiian of the Sttutory Audibors for annual sudit sssignmer s hies beon Dosd st € 11,75 millon, Further o fes ranging
batween T 10,000 i T 40,000 for each Block
{depending upon the quantum of activity in the
Block} aggregating #o ¥ 2,08 million is being paid o
the Stehrory Awmikors for cerification of the
accaunts of Jolnt Venturs NELP Blacka. In addiian
¥ 0.75 milion k& baing pald kot certiicedon of
compliance of conditions of Corporate Governanca.
The above faes ame exclusive of applicable service
o and relmbursement of reascnabla traveling and

outof pockat expensas achualy incurmed,
31 Apdiicors’ Report on theAseounts

The comments of the CEAG form part of this Report
as Annexun - 'E'. There la no quallicadon In the
Audiors' Report and there are no supplementary
commants by CAAG under Saction 81%(d) of ha
Companles Act, 1955. Noles i fhe Accounis
rofsrmed o In the Audioee® Raport ame salf-

CMD § Dimctor [Olishors) velh viskting Sigritaies In an ofishors plaifomn w:ummm not eall for any furihar

3. CostAudit

Pursuart to the directons of the Central Govemnment for audlt of Cost Accounts, the proposal for appointrent of T firma of
Cost Accounter s 24 Cost Auditors for suditing the cost acecunts of your Company for the yeer anded 31° Merch, 2010 wes
approved by the Central Government and they heve eccordingly bean appointed.
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Directors

During the year under report, Shri S. Sundareshan on taking over the charge as Secretary in the Ministry of Petroleum &
Natural Gas (MoP&NG) submitted resignation from the Board of ONGC on 4" February, 2010. Subsequently, Shri Sudhir
Bhargava, Additional Secretary, MoP&NG, Government of India was appointed as Government director on the Board of
ONGC w.e.f 15" March, 2010. Your Directors place on record their deep appreciation for the valuable contributions made by
Shri S. Sundareshan during his tenure.

Dr. AK Balyan, Director (HR) on his appointment as MD & CEO of Petronet LNG Limited, resigned from the Board of ONGC
and was relieved on 15" July, 2010. Your Directors place on record their deep appreciation for the valuable contributions made
by Dr. AK Balyan during his tenure as Director (HR) and in various capacities in ONGC.

The strength of the Board of Directors of ONGC as on 31 July, 2010 was 12 Directors, comprising 6 Executive Directors
(Functional Directors including Chairman and Managing Director) and 6 Non-Executive Directors comprising 2 Government
nominees and 4 Independent Directors.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 255 and 256 of the Companies Act, 1956 and Clause 104(1) of the Articles of Association
of the Company, Shri A K Hazarika, Shri D K Pande and Shri D K Sarraf retire by rotation at the 17" Annual General Meeting
(AGM) and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

Shri Sudhir Bhargava, who was appointed as Additional Director after the last AGM, holds office up to the 17" AGM. The
Company has received notice in writing from a member pursuant to the provisions of Section 257 of the Companies Act, 1956,
proposing his candidature for appointmentas Director of the Company liable to retire by rotation.

Brief resume of the Directors seeking Appointment / Re-appointment, together with the nature of their expertise in specific
functional areas and names of the companies in which they hold the directorship, number of shares held and the membership/
chairmanship of committees of the Board, as stipulated under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges
are given in the notice convening the 17" AGM of the Company, and form part of the Annual Report.
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On behalf of the Board of Directors
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Place: New Delhi (R.S.Sharma)
Date: 2™ August, 2010 Chairman and Managing Director



ANNEXURE-A
STATEMENT OF RESERVE RECOGNITION ACCOUNTING

Standardised measure of Discounted Future Net Cash Flows relating to Proved Oil and Gas Reserve quantities as on 31 March, 2010.

 in million)
Particulars Gross Value as at Present value (Discounted at 10%) as at
31" March, 2010 31" March, 2009 31" March, 2010 31" March, 2009
REVENUES
OIL 7,867,192.91 7,020,106.35 3,746,236.98 3,424,402.41
GAS 2,113,383.30 1,214,415.98 966,613.81 612,658.72
Total Revenues 9,980,576.21 8,234,522.33 4,712,850.79 4,037,061.13
COSTS
Operating, Selling & General 4,113,636.85 3,408,278.12 1,920,003.22 1,671,945.92
Corporate Tax 1,512,940.18 987,826.53 714,667.98 478,461.15
Sub Total 5,626,577.03 4,396,104.65 2,634,671.20 2,150,407.07

Evaluated Cost of Acquisition of Assets,

Development and Abandonment

a) Assets 801,282.30 671,575.40 523,913.71 400,951.79

b) Development 221,268.30 357,388.54 159,131.27 244.656.30

¢) Abandonment 164,006.68 160,089.70 10,891.04 2,281.93

Sub Total 1,186,557.28 1,189,053.64 693,936.02 647,890.02

Total Cost 6,813,134.31 5,585,158.29 3,328,607.22 2,798,297.09

Net future earnings from Proved Reserves 3,167,441.90 2,649,364.04 1,384,243.57 1,238,764.04
Notes

1) The Revenues on account of crude oil have been worked out on the basis of average price for the year 2009-10. The average price for crude oil is net of
Subsidy Discount. The Revenue of the Gas has been worked out on the basis of latest Price fixed (US$ 4.2/mmbtu including royalty) by MoPNG vide order
dated 31 May, 2010.

2) Expenditure on Development, Acquisition of capital assets, Abandonment costs and Operating Expenditure have been considered at current costsi.e. ason
31.03.2010. Taxes and Levies have been considered at prevailing rates as on 31.03.2010. In computing future tax expenditure as on 31.03.2010, the Survey
& Dry Well expenditure have been excluded.

3) Thereserves have been estimated by ONGC's Reserve Estimates Committee following the standard international reservoir engineering practices.

4) Only Proved reserves have been considered. Probable or Possible reserves have not been considered. These reserves exclude ONGC's share of foreign
JVAssets.

5) Both revenues and costs have been discounted to present value using 10% discounting factor. The Net future eamings, therefore, represent the net
expected future cashinflows from production of recoverable reserves of crude oil and gas.

6) However, neither the estimated net reserves nor the related present value should be taken as a forecast of future cash flows or value of these reserves
because (a) future estimated production schedules used in the valuation process are subject to change, (b) up-gradation of Probable and Possible reserves
would significantly affect the gross and net present value of the expected future cash inflows, (c) future crude oil and natural gas prices are subjectfo change
and (d) future expenditure on production (operating), development, acquisition cost of capital assets, abandonment costs and rates of taxes and levies,
which maybe at variance fromthose assumed herein.



Employees as on 31" March, 2010

ANNEXURE-B 3

Employee Group Age Distribution Total
<3 | 31-40 | 41-50 | 51-60 2009-10 | 2008-09
(A) Technical
Executive 1290 1182 8216 8854 19542 19110
Non-Executive 124 544 1575 823 3066 3452
Total (A) 1414 1726 9791 9677 22608 22562
(B) Non-Technical
Executive 174 480 1602 2706 4942 4834
Non-Executive 46 659 2198 2373 5276 5639
Total (B) 220 1119 3800 5079 10218 10473
Grand Total (A+B) 1634 2845 13591 14756 32826 33035
Note: Whole time Directors excluded
Valuation as on 31" March, 2010 @ in millon)
Employee Group Age Distribution Total Value per Employee
<3| 3140 | 45| 5160 2009-10 | 2008-09
(A) Technical
Executive 37,389 31,039 | 150,096 82,588 301,112 15.4 13.5
Non-Executive 1,557 6,233 16,288 4,469 28,547 9.3 9.2
Total (A) 38,946 37,2712 | 166,384 87,057 329,659 14.6 12.9
(B) Non-Technical
Executive 4,923 11,703 27,225 23.104 66,955 13.5 11.8
Non-Executive 590 6,909 18,097 9,144 34,740 6.6 6.6
Total (B) 5513 18,612 45,322 32,248 101,695 10.0 9.0
Grand Total (A+B) 44,459 55,884 | 211,706 119,305 431,354 131 1.7

* Valuation based on mostwidely used "Lev & Schwartz" model.
* Aggregate future earnings during remaining employment period of employees, discounted @ 7% p.a., provides present

valuation.

» Future earning based on current emoluments with normal incremental profile.

HUMAN RESOURCE VALUE Efi:



ANNEXURE-C
RECOGNITIONS, AWARDS AND ACCREDITATIONS

International Rankings

1.

No. 3 E&P Company in the world

Ranked as number three E&P Company in the World and 26" among leading global energy maijors as per Platts Top 250
Global Energy company rankings 2009; based on assets, revenues, profits and Return on Invested Capital (ROIC)
(November, 2009).

No.24in PFC ENERGY 50
Ranked 24" among the Global publicly-listed energy companies as per “PFC Energy 50” list (January, 2010).
FinanceAsiaranks ONGC no. 1 among Indian Blue Chips.

Ranked number 1 Top Blue Chip of India in the Finance Asia 100 list for 2009 with the highest aggregate net profit (before
exceptional) over the period 2006-2008. ONGC has been ranked at 10" position in Asia and at 1* position among 19 Indian
Companies which are in the FA100 list on aggregate profit (December, 2009).

ONGC ranked at 155" position in Forbes Global 2000 list for 2010

ONGC has been ranked at 155" position in the Forbes Global 2000 list 2010 (April, 2010) of the world's biggest companies.
ONGC maintains number One rank among Indian companies and has been ranked 95" among the global 2000 biggest
companies as per profit (April, 2010).

Indian Rankings

5.

ONGC ranked at second position in FES00 list 2010

ONGC has been ranked at second position as per Financial Express's FE500, listing of Indian companies. ONGC stands at
second both in net worth and overall composite ranking based on parameters like top line growth, net worth, market cap etc
(March, 2009).

Business Today Ranks ONGC as Best Company to Work forin Core Sector

Business Today has ranked ONGC at top of Best Companies to Work for in Core sector. ONGC scores high at 13" place in
overall ranking amongst all the Indian Companies, including public and private (February, 2010).

Accreditation

Awards

{45

10.

Accreditation of Internal Audit Department

Quality Management System (QMS) of Internal Audit Department (IAD) of ONGC has been upgraded from ISO 9001:2000 to
ISO9001:2008 (November, 2009).

SCOPE Meritorious Awards

ONGC won the Gold Trophy for SCOPE Meritorious Award for Corporate Social Responsibility & Responsiveness for the year
2007-08 and Gold Trophy for R&D, Technology Development & Innovation for the year 2008-09. The awards were presented
by H.E. President of India, Smt. Pratibha Devisingh Patil to CMD on Public Sector Dayi.e., 10" April, 2010 atNew Delhi.

ONGC bags four National Safety Awards in Qil Mines Category

ONGC has bagged four National Safety Awards in Oil Mines Category for year 2007. This is fourth consecutive year that
ONGC has bagged these awards; instituted by the Ministry of Labour & Employment, Govt. of India to motivate, appreciate
and recognise the extraordinary performance in the area of mines safety. These awards were given away by
H.E. Mr.N. Hamid Ansari, Hon'ble Vice President of India at New Delhi on 23" October, 2009.

OISD Awards

ONGC and MRPL have won the following six ‘Oil Industry Safety Awards’ for the year 2008-09, instituted by Oil Industry Safety
Directorate (OISD), MoP&NG. Cauvery Asset has been declared as winner in the category Oil & Gas Assets (Onshore) on
safety standards.

1. HeeraProcessing plant has been adjudged as the best Offshore Production Platform under PSUs category on safety
standards.

2. Sagar Shakti has been adjudged as the best Offshore Drilling Rig, under PSU category on safety standards.



MRPL hag been ranked at number two in Refinarias calegon
MRPL hes alsc benn nrisd 85 the most selis refineeyin nst free years.
ONGC's Rajahmundry Assot has beon rated as the mest safe Onshore Oll & Gas Asset n st three years,

ONGCian Shil Bupeiyo Chowd by, Chief Enginear {Drilling), A=sam Assat has been salacted fora cash awand for hia
vahiatia contriturtion In the-ansa of safely.

= s o

Shil AL 5. Sharma, CLE, ONGE: recelming OF (ndustry Safely Assnd from Sl Murl Deom. Mirisler for Peimisum 5 Nelurl Gas, Govsmman of Inds

11. CHGC sweeps PSPE Awerds
QNG swapt thin year's Potroleum Sports Promotion Board Anrnal Avards, ONGC won the Petroleurn Minislers Trophy 7°
tims insuccession (Oclober, 2008),

1L Dalnlk Bhasksrindis Pride Avesrds for Excellence
DNGC bagged the covatad Gold Award In e O and Gas Category of e "Daink Bhaakar Indla Pride Awards for Excellence
In PSLIe" Institad by the Dainlk Brasicar Group {October, 2008),

13, Golden PsacockAwend for Corpantly Géanvernancs

OMGC has baan confermed with Golklen Peacock Award for Excellanca in Caparate Govemance for 2008 inefiuted by the
World Councll of Corporate Governancs, London {October, 2009).



14. ONGC bage Bost Overall Performance Award for-ofl and ges conservation programmes

OKGC bagged the Basl Overall Performance Award Inattirted by Petroleum Consarvaion Research Association (PCRA)
amangst the upstream Sachor O Companlas for the ol and gas conservation programmes during the year 2008 (January,
2010).

15
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17.

18

ONGC bage 5™ BML Munjal Award for Excellence in Loaming

& Dwveloprmatt

ONGG clinched 5" BML Munjal Awerd for Excelencs In Leaming
& Development In Publk: Sacter category, Instthuted In the name
of Dr. Bijmohan Lal Munjal (BML), Chalman, Hero Group
{Mardh, 2010).

DELI Award to OHNGEC

DNGE dlinchad twe DS1J - PSL awaards 2010, one for axeslsnt
Cvarall Pariormencs in The carlstiny of Heenry Waights and the
aihar for Highast Markst capiialisstion amongel PSU' in the
category of Woalth Bulders (Apiil, 2010}

ONGC gets Amlity Leadership for Business Excellencs for
levaraging T

ONGC has besn awanded Amity Leadership for Business
Excalancs award for lveraging IT In Of & Gas Sector Instiuted
by thes Aty Univsesity [y, 2010,

CRGC ecolven 'Delhi Green vwand

OMGC has been awarded the Dekhi Graen Award'as & partof the
reglonal axpelence serles hitistad by Planman Medi filed The

e MURLI D

EA Rl

Shil R4, Sharma, ChiD, ONGC mcelving Sth B Munjal
Aweard from Shil Kapll Sibal, Minister HRD

Sunday Indian Mega Excellence Awards 2009, Delhl and NCR {July, 2009).



18, Huzira Plant bags commondatian st the Cli- ITC Sustainebilty Awerds 2008

ONGC, Hazira Plant ecelved "Commendation for Strong Commiment” amang Independent units for the year 2008 et the Cll -
ITC Sustainability Avwards (November, 2009).

mnammwmhﬁumwﬂmmm
2. CBR Aavard for Cuuvery Asset
Cauvery Azzet, Karalkal of ONGC has been swarded ¥ 5 Lakh and Chation by the Gost. of Tamll Nadu for fis valuable
comribution tewands CHR during the year 2007-08.
Avrarde to Individuals
1. Bulsnesa Today ranis CHD, ONGE emong top ten Indlan CECs

Businesa Today in 7* Feb, 2010 edition has also ranked Mr. R.S Shama, CMD ONGC t 9" amongst tha top Ten Indisn CEOs,
under section CEO-Waich for the year 2009.

2. CHD-confermadwith “Amity Lasdarship Awand for Corponis Excalionca®
Mr. R.8. Sharma, CMD, ONGC hess bien canfemed 'Amily Leadershin Award for Corporate Excellance In the Oll & Ges
Indhusiry’ By Amity Busindes School (Seplermber, 2008).

3. Confederaiion ofindlan industry fellciixies R 3. Sharms, CHD, ONGC
Mr. R 5 Sharma, CMD, ONGC and Chalman, Cll Apex Councl of PSEs was fellolizted by Cll at a glitering function In New

Dedhi on Tuasday, May 11, 201 0. Mr. Sharma was fellcteted for hie outstanding contribution to the causa of PSEs. Deapla hia
cormmitments for the mast valushle PSE of Indla, Mr. Shama has always been kesn to addraes the |anger lasusa of the Indian

Indusiry in genaral and the Publie Sector In partieular.
4. FlireService Medal to OMNGClans

Three ONGClans, Mr Neera] Shamna, Chisf Manager (Fire Sarvices), Assam Asset, MrL.R. Duts, Fire Officer, Assam Asset

and Mr N.C. Das, Asst Chief Inspecior (Fire Services), Cachar Forsand Base wers besiowsd "Fire Service Medal for

Merkorious Servica” by the Government of indla on the occaslon of Independsnce Day 2009,




ANNEXURE-D

A. ENERGY CONSERVATION
The following measures wers taken towards snergy conservation during FY* 1.

212 energy audits wera condurisd during FY 10, Atthe samatime, 464 snergy audils sbeervartions wens neutralized.

Enesgy congarvation awananass and sfficlentusa of snergy by calsbrating OBCF-10.at all the locations of ONGC and camied

put diffanant acvities s eyels rally, LPQ Qulz programme, quiz, drawing, elogan, exeay compatition, Drivars awananass
programmas, Nuldosd Nedel:, sathiliticn, frea pollfion check up, street pley ot

Tralnings on Enargy conservation technlques were Imparied ai all locations of ONGE o creats swarsnese &8 part of energy
conssrvaion Total 18,350 amployess atiended thase iraining programime.

New energy sficlent light sources (ke GFL, scdium lights, T-5 Tube lights, etc., wers fitted In place of Ineffickert lights.

Calendars, stickans & Barature on "Enargy Corsarvation Techniques” undar ths campeign of "URLIA LIDAI" wane disirbusied
oy e emplyess and their fermilas for swaareness.

f. Aconfensnceon “Emenging Technologlea and lesusa In LET) Lampa®™ waa jointty held with UREDA.

Trimming/ siage blanking of lean amine charge pumps at Hazira Plant helped In saving to the tune of S Lace kKWH of snergy.
This projact s regletered with UNFCCC 238 CDM projact

Rplacad rons fan 15 years okd 80 dissal snginesin drilling rigs by energy siicient one and achisved fusl saving snd highar
rebabiity.

(ae flaring In ONGC has bean Brought down from 8% of production In 200102 to 2.79% In 2003-10, & reduction of 754
MMECM per annum over 2001-02, valuad atabaut T 5,500 millon el the gas rata of LS $4.2 MVBTU.

,,é*_'u o9 .

it
—

ONGC Greening IriTfJJ
forthe "

3, Dol addrsasing dhring ths DNGC Gresning Initaive for the Southem Ridge



The faliowing Initistives which wers teken seriler and
ar coniributing towsrds snnwsl savings

& Usaofwests hoot rcovary stpiatiomns, fge & plents
it Hemires & Linen Ror ol haating, warder purification &
bsum genenidion. :

b. Usa of enamy efficlent aquipment, devices such as §
trbo expanders at Hazra & Uran, compression

¢ Thermal energy cost reduction achisved by [
malrtenance of steam traps &t processing plants at
Hazkra & Uren.

d  Hemessed solar energy by using solar water heatery  Peneramb: view of ONGG Hezira Plant
and uze of phokovoliakc panels at varous locations at Dehradun, Uran, Unmanned platiorms In offshom, Rajshmundry,
CWS Barda Jodhpur.

5. Usa of Gas engines and gus turbines for powsr gansnrtion ot Regahmundry, Ceusry, Assam, Ankiestwar Asssts,
Hezira & Uran Plante & Platiormein offshors,

. Inberfusl subsithriion at Bokaro, Agartalla Rajshmundry & Karalkal and proper capachy ulllsstion of equipments.

g Canmled out Maintenance management contract for SRPe and achieved avallablity more fhan 29% and gained mom ol
produciion.

Impsct of messwures for mduction of snemgy consumption and conssquent impect on the cost of production of
goods.

Aborve msag e hiva mgulind N mducion of sgnificent queniiy of el congumption (HSD, Netural gas snd declricaly]
RESEARCHAND DEVELOPMENT

Specific aress In which RAD wes carried out

*  Development of repid technique for detection of passous hydocarbon cidizem T geo-microbial survey,

»  Development of the process for mass culivalian of eelacied Microalgea for hydrocarbon producion: A project In
eallabaration with Caniral Food Tachnalogy Resaarch Instiuts (CFTRI), Mysare haz been taken up.

*  |dentification of sultsble chemical additives for the flow azsurance problerm of heavy crude ol i3 and miigetion of parsfin/
aaphakenes depoaltion n wel condults and transportetion lines.

¢ Designing of polymer gl frmulstions far profis modificstion [ wedsr st — of jobs suiible Ty wmeting wabsr
preducion in oil & poe wellsinvarious Indan cil fiekds.

=  Analyaks of sub- surface samples Lo gersrata FVT parameders. Ressrvelr charactadzaion (In terms of pemnaabliby) of
ciffarant Indlan allias fakde.

*  Colaborathee work on MEOR applcaion in reservolrs with temperature sbove 90° C s In prognass and e Rald triad In
Nande| feld s planned.

¢ Optimisation of Gal Sysism for Profls modification & Waber shut-of iobe.

»  Estimaingfiood front movament ueing streamiine modaling.

* Highresolution selsmic survey (HRSS) for explorat on and development ofUCG,

»  Mathodalogy for procassing of Mull component and Long offset dete.

»  Salzmicimaging of Ol Production raie.

+  |mwligations on biogenic pas source and entrapment stylsa in Krishne-Godavari Basin for understanding en various
peochemical sapacts of the 2ourca of biogenic gea.

= Bimubalonsthdse for CEM sl oliation in Parbaipur biocskin Jeara.

*  Shalagas potential & prospectivity in indlan basins.
»  Basin Conternd gas Explamtion inlndiun basing.




Benglit dorived as areault of the sbovs RED

Halping in the planning ofexporatian activitles in tha Basin,

Analyais ime of detection of gaseous nydrocarbon b reduced to 3 days instead of 10 days, thus making the schnique
rapid and Increasing the efficiency.

Micxobial utiisation of crude of under anmsrabic condition is found & be sdremely slow, However the wells Vi # 7,
Virej 33, NG 69 and NG 64 can be telen up for MEOR by injecting only nutrients

The sturdas on the sourca of blogeni gas Indicats heiped In undarstanding e natums of organic malter In sediments
and s o gin and concentration.

The studies remuited In [dentification of rue ceygen index (Of) and etomic OFC s suliable geochemical prodas fo
quantify the genaration ofblegenic mathans.

Ensuring flow sesurance of oils and impreving i productivity.

Amasting excasshi water production and enhancament in ol productivity.

Thegensraied PYT daia (s usad n various reservolreng ineering calculation for opimal feld sxploltation.

Characterization of nssarvolr hateragenaily In famms of parmaabllly provices vakishls Informetion wseful in ths eontbed
offirthor Sold developrmant, profile modificetion, waber shaut-oif and siimulefion jobs.

The RAD camied out so far haa provided desp insight Into the 2hala gas hablisis, pincipies & practices, technological
applications In sxploration & production. Also, diract gas measurements nthe cored sections in shakes in different Indian
basing has provided te data on diffarent proparties [l gas conbenis, gas hoiding capacity of shalas, gas sahration
factors and gas delharabilty charactadsis; which has baaring on the progpeciivity of fha basin.

The R&D camied out was basin spedfic In the Cambay basin to camy cut studies & generate data to sssess the Basin
Canterad Gas BCGA prospactity In the Tankad Deprassion of fhe Cambay baain.

Sucrasaiul spplication of MEOR hes helped inimproving of mobility in exdremely viscous Charsded wel,

Optimisalian of Gel Systern has helped In improving well productivity through rigless jobe and hes given peeltive
nesponaas In kamma.of ol galn,

The sireamine modeling siLrdy was useful in proper placement of development welis In Kalol- VA

Thes sirudation of CBAM carvind ot for Parbedpur binck in Jhara hes helpad in placing the dewslapmant wells for
devaioprmar miaf 18w, lon of Perbatpur e oich amvisag sd ges production plabsau of 4.8~ B, laeidy m37d for 8 years,
The high resalistion selamic survey (HRSS) has helped in the sngineering dealgn of Vestan UCG pliot project

The procasaing of mull component and Long offse data |l benefiIn proper utlksation of mieclons caphured et longer
offsetand can help In deeper salsmic imaging Including 2ub-basalt Imaging.

Seisvic: imaging of Oil Production neks wil be tuits beneficialin producing ssate forwall mankaring and opimised wel
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3. Instiute of Drilling Technology - Speciiic arsss Inwhich R&D was camied out during 2009-109 & benedits derived as
& nax it of the ahove RAD

Development of Driling fiulds for Deepwater driling

Banwiit: In-house capabiifies in designing drlling fluids for deep water.
Faasiily studise ofron damaging HTHP pay 2ane dilingfiuld for HTHP wells
Banaftt: In-houre capability n deaigning NDDF upto 1500C.

Desigring of LTMO dilling luld for sub-hydrostati pay zone driling using {HGS-80{02) along with retum permeablity &
wellbore clean up iud|es

Bansfit: Formulstian forsub hydrostaiic resenar.

Formulation of speciications of HTHP 1uld loss contnal agant, Hostadrdll 4708 or aquivalant; HTHP defiocculant;
Pelyspersa XIIT or equivalent;

Baneftt: Qualily assurance of HTHP addiives for s procuremant

Blodegradablity of polymers ke PHPA, PAC{LVG), PAC(R), XCP elc and delemmination of thelr shelf e for
Improvernentof specifications

Baneiit: Optmal utiisalion of polymers in ollwell drlling,

Scraening of sutiahls blacide for Polymer mud IDT.RSD

Baneiit: Checking degradadon of polymer mud.

Formulation of vary low welght {cloaa fo Inpdrowiatic-1.05) driling fluld sysiems for driling large sections of shale and
reseroir sand altarstions without lsolation by casing

Banefit: Enhancemen of driling productivity thraugh application of ek mechanics principle.

Deign of allicats based drilling fluld for challanging wells i provide paune hols and maximum inhibiion [n wabsr basad
i syshems

Banaftt: Gaugad hole, Well bore stablity, Enhancernant of drilling productvity

Fleld trial of DT developad Amine (Choline Chioride} base High Perommance Water based mud sysiem

Banefit: Successfully field implemented in 2 wells of Ahmedebad aeset #LMHT & #LMHR with enhancement of ROP,
achieving near pauge hale saving In rig days.

Sticking sevarity reducion by spharical beads

Bunaitt: Minimising Inchiance of stuek up

Formulation of drilling fuld for Gandhar area of Anklestwar ssset.

Banefit: Enhancement of driling productivity thraugh application of ek mechanics principle.

Corrosively svaluation of Polyamine anhancad water bass mud system

Bunaiti: Minimising comosion In metalicmatarals.




Solutions to challenges faced in cementation of deep water wells

Benefits: In house capabilities in designing cement slurry for deep water.

Comprehensive study and designing of cement slurry for expandable liner cementationin MR
Benefits: Quality liner cementation job.

Field support services for providing cementation plan and cement slurry designs for all types of cementation on specific
requirement in i) MBP Basin, Kolkata; ii) CBM Development Project, Bokaro, iii) Frontier Basin, Dehradun, iv) OVL
Blocks

Benefits: Quality cementation jobs.

Analysis of cementation failure in ISC Well # SNIA at MehsanaAsset and suggesting remedial measures
Benefits: Rectification of cementing failure.

Study of Air Percussion Drilling of Top Hole Sections

Benefits: For faster drilling of Hard rock sections of the top hole section.

Study of Liner drilling and its application in ONGC fields

Benefits: To drill complicated depleted zones in faster manner.

Feasibility studies and Well planning for DHAB in Dhondharmukh area of A&AA Basin - to Probe the Hydrocarbon
Potential of Tura & Sylhet formations in environmentally fragile area.

Benefits: To save the environment and achieve our targets of Oil exploration.

Well Planning for OVL wells: Well Engineering, Mud Design and Cement slurry design of OVLBlock Wells
Well plan of B128-RB-1X ( for Vietnam)

Tentative casing seat selection & casing design for well BM-S-73 ( for Brazil)

Tentative casing seat selection & casing design for wells of N-34/N35 of Cuba offshore.

Benefits: To drill the wells in safe and fastmanner.

IOGPT, Navi Mumbai: Specific areas in which R&D carried out in 2009-10 and benefits derived as a result of

thisR&D

Deep Penetrating Acid System (DPRAS) & gelled acid in horizontal 08 wells of MH Asset: Realised Oil gain 781 (bopd)
Self Diverting Acid (SDA} in multilayered 08 wells of MH & N&H Asset: Realised Oil gain 1050 {bopd)

Multistage Acid Fracturingin 05 wells of N&H Asset: Realised Oil gain 740 (bopd)

Solvent Treatment jobs in 04 wells of N&H Asset: Realised Oil gain 521(bopd)

Visco Elastic Self Diverting Acid (VSDA) jobs design given for 03 of MH & 07 N & H Asset, Chemical procurement under
progress

Specialised bio polymer Water control jobs in Narimanam field. Substantial decrease in water reduction achieved.
Enzyme technology for mud cake removal in 03 Horizontal wells of MH Asset: Observed better productivity
Designed & implemented a new solvent system for Wax removal in ICG-ICP line successfully, Mumbai High Asset.

IOGPT developed formulation for scale removal in 03 wells of MH asset with realised Liquid gain of 963 BLPD and oil
gainof 129 BOPD

5. |EQT, Navi Mumbai: Specific areas in which R&D carried out in 2009-10 and benefits derived as a result of this R&D

Use of composite materials (water service, helideck, pumps,storage tanks, tubings, pipelines) for onshore and offshore
installations.

Benefits: To minimise life cycle costs

Developed Software based on the latest The Society of Naval Architects & Marine Engineers (SNAME) guidelines
(2005) for determining the Jack up leg penetration and possibility of Punch Through

Benefits: To calculate the bearing capacity of the spud cans and determine the susceptibility for punch through of
jack-uprigs.



Minimum facility platform for marginal fields

Benefits: To optimise platform cost for cost sensitive marginal fields
HAZOP/HAZID Study for CPF-Gandhar, Hazira and Uran plant
Benefits: Enhancement of safety and productivity

Material of construction for handling/injection of Acid Gas into B-193 reservoir of B&S asset, MOC for B-193-BPB
pipeline and impact of mixing of highly sour B-193 gas on Bassein (36" dia & 42' dia) pielines and air injection pilot
in Gamij field

Benefits: Optimisation of cost with better quality and without sacrificing HSE requirement

Future Plan of Action

Generation of PVT data for catering the needs of operational areas of ONGC. Ultimate objective is to develop basin-wise
applicable three dimensional model of permeability and storage capacity which can be useful for better understanding of
reservoir heterogeneity as well as for more realistic performance prediction through simulation studies.

For exploration and exploitation Shale gas based on the integrated analysis and finding, a Pilot project has been
approved by ONGC in Damodar Basin. An intemational agency with due expertise and experience in shale gas
exploitation has been hired as domain consultant.

As a result of the R&D work, prospective areas in the Tankari Depression has been narrowed down and drillable
locations are being proposed for testing the Basin Centered Gas for the first time in an Indian Basin.

Collaborative work on MEOR application in reservoirs with temperature above 96°C is in progress. Microbial system for
high temperature reservoirs (above 90°C) have been successfully tested in laboratory and their field trial is planned in
Nandej field.

Induction of Passive Seismic topmography technology through hiring of services as a pilot study in the NE area was
carried out in Sector V-C of Cachar. The results are under examination.

Recently, offshore seismic acquisition has been carried out using technology DISCover (Deep Interpolated Streamer
Coverage), which will give 3D seismic data with enhanced bandwidth, providing both high resolution and deep
penetration. In this method mid to high frequency data from shallow towed streamers and low frequency data from
deeper towed streamers are acquired simultaneously. This is expected to give improved imaging beneath highly
absorptive overburdens such as basalt and salt, or acquiring data suitable for inversion to absolute rock properties. The
data is acquired by M/s Western Geco in Western Offshore Basin on pilot scale and processing is in progress.

Jambusar area in South Cambay basin covering NW part of NELP-VI block CB-ONN-2004/3 identified for acquiring
Spectraseis data. Action has been initiated for confirming deliverables.

Negotiations for a collaborative project with IIT, Kharagpur on "Intelligent Seismic Data Analysis in general and
Intelligent Reservoir Characterisation™ are underway.

A collaborative project with Colorado School of Mines, USA on "time lapse AVO investigation in carbonates” is under
active consideration.

. Technology Absorption and Adaptation

Continuous Flow Isotope Ratio Mass Spectrometer (CF-IRMS)

Stable isotope ratio mass spectrometer is a dual inlet cum continuous flow isotope ratio mass spectrometer and is used
for stable isotopic ratio determination in oil/gas/rock samples. The instrument has a capability to study stable isotope
ratios of carbon, hydrogen, nitrogen and oxygen presentin natural gases, oils and sediments.

Pyrolysis-Gas Chromatography-Mass Spectrometry: Pyrolysis-GC-MS uses anaerobic thermal degradation to split
macromolecule into fragments separated and identified using GC/MS, thus yielding detailed structural information on
organic matter composition.

Dual Furnace Elemental Analyzer (Euro EA3000) for CHNS/O determination.

State-of-the-art X-ray Diffractometer was successfully installed and working satisfactorily in Sedimentology Div. of
KDMIPE in January, 2010.

State-of-the-art TIMS (Thermal lonisation Mass Spectrometer) was successfully installed and working satisfactorily in

ONGeC



Geo-chronology & Fission Track Div. of KDMIPE in October, 2009.
IES Basin Modelling System & Software installed in KDMIPE.
Corporate Licensing of Interpretation Software

The corporate licensing of PAN System and PANMESH software, Kingdom Suite interpretation software implemented
last year are completely absorbed in ONGC during this year.

The following new software has beeninducted under corporate licensing:
Open Detect s/w from M/s dGB Earth Sciences
Seismic Data Processing Software -Thrustline

Site specific licenses of Thrustline software for imaging in thrust fold areas and complex geology terrain from M/s
GEOTOMO for GEOPIC, Dehradun and RCC Jorhat inducted last year are being absorbed in ONGC.

High Pressure Air Injection Laboratory (HPAI) Set up: This process would be instrumental in identifying candidate
reservoirs for air injection as a part of EOR efforts and extending the heavy oil learning curve to the light/medium oil
system.

Fraca++: Studies for mapping and modelling fracture network has been taken up for Borholla Basement.

Rheological studies of fluid for characterization and rheological behaviour studies of EOR emulsion. This is being used
for viscosity and rheology measurements of crude oilin thermal tube experiments.

Integrated PVT Package from M/s Chandler Engineering, Houston, USA. The facility is regularly being used in PVT
sample studies for phase behaviour, molar composition and solid deposition studies for enhanced reservoir fluid
characterisation and thermodynamic evaluation in mercury-free environment.

Multi-Component Seismic Survey - 3D - 3C Multi component seismic API technology inducted through departmental
crew A&AABasin in 2007-08. Now, six of the new data acquisition systems have been procured along with digital multi-
component sensors, which are capable of carrying out multi-component survey. 3D-3C seismic data survey is being
carried outin Laplingaon area of A&AA Basin, Jorhat. The data is being acquired and processed in consultation with Dr.
Garota

New Data Acquisition System - 14 new state-of-the-art data acquisition system with 24 bit delta sigma technology has
been procured. These systems will be capable of mixed mode {Analog/ digital/ geophone/ hydrophone) operation with
high channel count to facilitate seismic data acquisition in logistically difficult areas as well as in geologically complex
areas with smaller bin size. Data acquired with the new digital system have shown remarkable improvement in the
imaging of the deeper events after processing.

. Collaborative projects with Foreign Institutes/Domain Experts/MoU.

Structural Modeling Projects by M/s Midland Valley Exploration

M/s MVE has been issued LOI to carry out "Long term consultancy services for three years on structural modeling”. The
scope of work involves three year consultancy services that include training and project work in the latest version of M/S
MVE software to a team of twenty executives from Basins & Institutes, in order to create domain experts in structural
modeling. Besides technology transfer nine projects will be carried out along with a team of ONGC geoscientists in order
toimpart with the knowledge of best practices in structural modeling.

Study of subsurface samples of Krishna-Godavari Basins with Prof. Dr. Gerta Keller, Princeton University,
Princeton, USA

As ajoint collaborative project between KDMIPE Dehradun and RGL, Chennai, in association with Prof. Dr. Gerta Keller,
Princeton University, Princeton, USA is under way. This study will lead to high resolution dating and intra-basinal
correlation of subsurface sections across K/T Boundary in KG Basin leading ultimately to better understanding of
geological history and possible causes of mass extinctions.

Interpretation of G&G Data of Mahanadi Basin in collaboration with Mr. C.D. Johnston an Independent seismic
interpreter & Integrator from Alberta, Canada.

Interpretation and integration of all seismic and other available G&G data of Mahanadi Basin covering approx.60,000
sq. km. so as to bring out Paleogeography, defined Petroleum System and also to identify prospective areas.



e rpretation of GRG datu In collaboration with Dr. Ben Law

For he purpass of viewing and evalugiing the potertial of besin-cembared ges accumulations and shele gas in the
erehom and ofshom basins of India.

Mr.Anthony Backedt was engaged a3 an-axpart for dilling of High prassure, High Temparaturs wallz In offshone ansas.
Collaborative Research Projact with IT-Kharagpur on "Estimation of IFetime & ifecydle cost of FRP plpes manufactumed
using various technologles for offshore & onahom applications.”

Collmboretion with DNV, Norway for qualficetion of new composite schnalogy for Pipes, Sionege tanks, Shafls and
risers, L NG siorage and trmnsport, Preesurs vessels, Steel stniciim repair without hat work

Collaboration with Mansenian Composihs Conter, Norvesy and NTHLU, Nonway for material eharactertzation far high
tsmpenatine parformancs compostis matadals
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9. Information Regarding Imported Technology imported during the |ast five years:

S. No.

Technology Imported

Year

"StrataBug" software for Bio-stratigraphy.

Log data processing software - GEOFRAME containing ELAN PLUS, dip-meter, image
processing and interpretation package along with hardware.

State of Art digital micro gravitymeter, Proton Precession magnetometer together with DGPS,
Total station and Auto level for topographical survey to meet the requirements of precision
GM survey.

ISO Prime GC-IRMS

Sun servers and work-stations for EPINET (Exploration & Production Information Network)
Suit of 2D/3D Move Software of Mid land valley

Three Numbers PC based software from Geographix.

Geosec2D Paradigm software installed in F15K server

Configured five sun blade 150 systems with PCI cards and installed windows XP so as to work
both as workstation and PC.

IBM P690(8CPU) Petrobank server upgraded to 32 CPU for supplementing seismic data
processing

3 No's of Mobile Processing Units (MPU) for reducing API cycle time.

PC based Seismic Interpretation system with matching hardware and software.

High temperature anaerobic bio-reactor.

Microscope with image analyser.

Refrigerated centrifuge.

Incubated shaker.

High temperature incubator.

High precision metering pump.

End Face grinder.

2005-06

(i)

Data Station (DASTA - 720)

GV Isoprime Continuous Flow Isotope Ratio Mass Spectrometry (CF-IRMS)

Varian CP3800 Natural Gas Analyzer

GC-MS-MS(Varian)

Latest releases of Landmark / Hampson Russell / Jason / GeoQuest Interpretation Software
installed as part of regular M&S.

Geo-Vision Centre (Virtual Reality Centre) with SGI Onyx 3900 Server (16 CPU, 64 GB RAM)
installed for 3 Pipe, Curved screen, immersive volume visualization using the software from
M/s Paradigm.

Petrel Suite of Software along with Interactive Petrophysics from M/s GeoQuest Systems
Installed.

Latest release of Solaris Operating System version 10 installed and configured for future
migration of Landmark Application Software.

Netvault Backup Software for Lanfree / SAN backup installed.

ZFS (Zeta Byte file system) was created on one SUN machine with Solaris 10 for performance
evaluation with respect to existing UFS file system.

Biglron Foundry Gigabit Ethernet switch upgraded to 120 gigabit fiber ports along with
redundant power module to provide seamless gigabit network connectivity to all servers and
clients throughout GEOPIC.

EPOS3SE upgraded to RFC (Rock & Fluid Canvas)

2006-07




S. No.

Technology Imported

Year

Q - Marine.

Sea bed logging.

GX Technology.

Digital Multilevel Veertical seismic profiling (VSP).

Air borne Electromagnetic Survey.

Multi Transient Electro Magnetic (MTEM) technique.
Virtual Drilling Technology.

(i)

Rapid Solvent Extraction Unit (Soxtherm System).

Petrobank Master Data Store (MDS), from M/S Halliburton Offshore Services Inc.- a multi-client
solution for the management of E&P technical data.

64 CPUs SGI ALTIX machine.

48 node IBM PC Cluster system with dual CPU per node equipped with Geocluster4.1
application software of M/S CGG.

272 node IBM PC Cluster system with dual CPU per node equipped with OMEGA application
software of M/S Western Geco

Corporate Licensing of Interpretation software from M/s Hampson Russel, M/s Landmark,
M/s Geoquest and M/s Paradigm.

CGG Geocluster application software for processing.

WGC Omega: application software for processing.

StatMod MC and EarthMod FT modules added to Fugro-Jason's MyBench software suite.
LWD / Geosteering with Laterolog tool.

Compact combo LWD tool.

FPWD - Formation Pressure While Drilling tool.

"Air Injection Laboratory" for identifying candidate reservoirs for air injection as a part of
EOR efforts.

Cluster Computing capabilities have been established, which will reduce significant run-time
of various G&G applications and reservoir simulation processes.

Four licenses for G&G modules (OpenWorks-2, SeisWorks-1 and StratWorks-1 of

M/s Landmark Graphic Corporation).

Three licenses for Reservoir Simulation (Model Builder-3 of M/s Computer Modeling

Group Limited).

PC Cluster technology, both Hardware and Software, for seismic data processing.

3D - 3C Multi-Component Seismic Survey.

Four numbers of state-of-the-art multi component digital VSP equipment.

14 new state-of-art data acquisition system with 24 bit delta sigma technology.

2007-08

Latest releases of Landmark/Hampson Russell/Jason/GeoQuest/Paradigm/Midland Valley /
GOCAD Interpretation Software installed as part of regular M&S.

Corporate licensing of existing Petral and Geoframe suit of interpretation software from

M/s Schlumberger

Induction of Basin modeling software "Petromod" from M/s IES Germany and pore pressure
prediction software "Drill works Predict” from M/S Knowledge systems

Thrustline software for imaging in thrust fold areas and complex geology terrain from

M/s GEOTOMO.

FASTVEL software for automatic residual move out application from M/s PARADIGM.
Procured two nos. of Precision Air Conditioner (18 TR & 9 TR) of Emersion make from OES
M/S WIPRO Ltd.

2008-09




S. No. Technology Imported Year
* 125 TB and 50 TB of SATA based Storage System is being provided for PC Cluster of OMEGA
and CGG Applications Software.
*» Procured 100 Nos of 3592 magnetic media.
* Up gradation of Processing LAN from 100 Mbps to Gigabit LAN.
+ State-of-the-art LTO-4 Tape Library has been procured and commissioned.
+ High end Workstations (22 Nos) inducted for interpretation and Processing.
* Long Term Technical Services by M/s Midland Valley Exploration (MVE), U.K. for
Structural Modeling
+ |ES Basin Modeling Technology
» STAR Structural Analogues for Reservoirs, UK
+ State-of-the-art automatic fission track dating system in Geochronology and fission track division.
* Probe-Global E&P database from Petroconsultant S.A.
» Magnetotelluric System (MT)
* Integrated PVT Package from M/s Chandler Engineering, Houston, USA.
v) + Latest releases of Landmark / Hampson Russell / Jason / GeoQuest / Paradigm / Midland 2009-10
Valley / GOCAD/ DrillWorks/ Petromod/ Kingdom suite/ OpendTect/ PANSYSTEM &
PANMESH Interpretation Software installed as part of regular M&S.
» Unlimited site specific license of PANSYSTEM s/w for all ONGC offices within corporate deal
and 3 licenses of PANMESH s/w under corporate license from M/s EPS.
» 100% Corporate licensing of Geoframe/ Petrel s/w from M/s GeoQuest and finalisation of its
corporate AMC.
» 100% corporate licensing of Paradigm interpretation s/w and finalisation of its corporate AMC.
* RokDoc software (1D / 2D / 3D / Chronoseis) from M/s ICON SCIENCE has been inducted in
GEOPIC.
+ |ES Basin Modeling Technology
» Auto Counting FT system.
+ Landmark’s R5000 software was successfully installed in Linux Based workstation.
* Pipe conveyed logging system.
B Has the technology been fully absorbed? Yes
C If not fully absorbed, areas where this has not taken place, reasons thereof,
and future plans of action Not applicable
10. Expenditure on Research & Development & in million)
2009-10 2008-09
Capital 213.67 500.60
Recurring 1,985.78 1,574.44
Total 2,199.45 2,075.04
Total R&D Expenditure as a percentage of Total Turnover 0.35% 0.32%
11. Information on Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo & in million)
2009-10 2008-09
Foreign Exchange Eamnings 45,870.97 34,324 .54
Foreign Exchange Outgo 147,775.81 115,602.49
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ANNEXURE-E

Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 619 (4) of the Companies Act, 1956 on the accounts
of Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited for the year ended 31 March 2010

The preparation of financial statements of Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited for the year ended 31*March 2010 in accordance
with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 1956 is the responsibility of the Management of the
Company. The Statutory Auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 619(2) of the Companies Act,
1956 are responsible for expressing opinion on these financial statements under section 227 of the Companies Act, 1956 based on
independent audit in accordance with the auditing and assurance standards prescribed by their professional body the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. This is stated to have been done vide their Audit Report dated 28" May 2010.

I, on the behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India have conducted a supplementary audit under section 619 (3) (b) of the
Companies Act, 1956 of the financial statements of Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited for the year ended 31* March 2010. On the
basis of my audit nothing significant has come to my knowledge which would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to Statutory
Auditors' report under section 619(4) of the Companies Act, 1956.

Forand behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India

Sd/-
Sarit Jafa
Place: Mumbai Principal Director of Commercial Audit
Date: 25" June 2010 & ex-officio Member, Audit Board Il Mumbai.
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Management Discussion and Analysis Report _

1. The Economy

Global aconomy contirues i ba under shadow of one of the warst
global econpmic dowrum, Dubal debace, then economic burmell In
Grosce and new doubls about the finencial health of certain other
countries In the Europaan Unlon bears sestimony to the fact that all Is
alill nort weel with the finengial heatth of many countrise,

Glokal sconommy shrunk by 0,0% In 2009 on accountof 3.2% dedline In
advancad aconamiaz; Eunapa balng the worst affected with a decline
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Striking an optimistic note in July, 2010, IMF raised its 2010
world growth forecast to 4.6% and boasted estimates for the
US and China. Indiais projected to grow at 9.5%. However, IMF
warned that 'risks have risen sharply” and Europe has to
quickly resolve debt problems and restore confidence in banks.

During the fiscal 2009-10 Gross Domestic Product (GDP) in
India registered a growth of 7.4% against 6.7% during 2008-09.

Helped by timely and appropriate measures taken by the
government in the form of fiscal and monetary stimulus, the
Indian economy kept up momentum despite weak recoveries in
advanced economies.

2.0il & Gas Industry & developments
Oil consumption

Global crude oil consumption declined by 1.4% in 2009; from
85.04 million barrels per day (mb/d) in 2008 to 84.04 mb/d in
2009. Consumption declined in OECD countries by 4.3%. USA
and Japan, the two leading economies of the world, registered a
decline of 4.2% and 9.3% respectively. In contrast, non-OECD
countries registered 2.3% increase in crude oil consumption led
by countries like China and India.

Oil consumption is also increasing in large number of developing
nations in the Middle East, Latin America and Africa which may

% Change in gas consumption in 2009 over 2008
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25.5% respectively. A significant development in India was

commencement of new supplies from the East coast.
Demand pulls & crude oil price volatility

Sustained increase in crude oil demand up to 2007 (CAGR of
1.5% during 1997-2007; CAGR of 3.3% in case of non-OECD
countries) coupled with perceived supply constraints,
complexities in the oil market and resultant inter-plays at
commodity exchanges resulted in high volatility in crude oil
prices.

India: Real GDP Growth (%)
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be maintained in near future based on growth patterns. As global
economy gains momentum crude oil consumption is bound to
increase. In short-term, crude oil demand is projected to be 84-
86 mb/d in 2010 and 86-87 mb/din 2011.

Natural gas consumption

Natural gas consumption also declined in OECD countries by
3.3% in 2009 (from 1,488.1 BCM in 2008 fo 1,439.1 BCM in
2009). China and India registered an increase of 9.1% and

Crude Oil prices: Dated Brent (US$/bbl)
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The upward journey of price started in 2004 and peaked to US$
147/bbl in July, 2008. Thereafter there was a free fall to
US$35/bbl in December 2008. The volatility proved beyond
doubt that factors other than fundamentals had taken the
driver's seat.

Demand shrinkage and collapse of oil prices forced OPEC to cut
supplies by 4.2 mb/d in late 2008. As a result, oil prices started
increasing since January, 2009 to hover in the range of US$ 75-
85 perbarrel.

Though this price band is perceived to be in 'goldilocks range' —
comfortable for producers as well as consumers — the volatility
still exists. Dated Brent touched US$ 88/bbl in the first week of
May, 2010 and within two weeks the prices fell below US$ 70/bbl
due to economic turmoil in Euro-zone; inching up intermittently
thereafter.

Natural Gas Price: Henry Hub (US $/mmBtu)
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The gas price (Henry hub) also followed volatility of oil price curve. It increased to US$ 12.68/mmBtu in June, 2008 only to crash to US$
1.88/mmBtu in September, 2009; currently hovering around US$ 4.70/mmBtu.

Prices to remain volatile as fundamentals have not changed

World over oil field depletion, declining discovery rates, insufficient new projects and waning investment in E&P projects is a real

concem which may bring in complications for the industry in
future.

Field depletion

During the period 2000-2009, in Non-OPEC countries {other
than Former Soviet Union (FSU) countries} crude oil production
declined by 6.3%. In OECD countries oil production declined by
15%. Arresting decline in these fields is the biggest challenge for
the industry which requires systematic technology interventions
and capital infusion.

Declining discoveries
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== Non-OPEC(excluding FSU) - OECD

Declining discoveries

Since 2004 more than 2,000 discoveries have been reported
from different parts of the world (Source: GlobalData), except a
few large discoveries in the Gulf of Mexico, most of the
discoveries are small. Alarge number of these discoveries are in
deepwater and ultra deepwater locations for which technology
and investment remains a challenge. The mean field size post
1995 has decreased in most of the regions except those in few
African and FSU countries (Former Soviet Union) where
exploratory efforts were mobilized during last decade.
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Oil & Gas Investments Oil industry investment (billion US$)

In high oil price regime, the industry attracted huge investments.
Total investment in the sector doubled in just four yearsi.e., US$ 1000
428 billion in 2005 to US$ 864 billion in 2008 (Source:
GlobalData). The industry leaped forward even to take risky

projects in the challenging geographical location and 600
unconventional sources. However, in volatile market conditions
majority of the companies revisited their capital expenditure 400 1
plans, many projects were slashed and cautious approach 200 -
became the strategy the world over. As aresultinvestment during o
1 I I I I

2009 declined by 19% compared to 2008 (Source: GlobalData).
In case the prices remain low it will discourage the industry from 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
making big moves. M Upstream Sector M Downstream Sector

800

Bio-fuels

In recent years, bio-fuel has emerged as a preferred cost-
effective substitute. Global ethanol production increased by 50
158% in last six years {from 14.9 in 2004 to 34.4 million tonnes of

oil equivalent (mtoe) in 2009}; mainly due to increase in 40
production in USA and Brazil, which account for about 87% of the
global ethanol production. During the period 2004-2009, ethanol

production in USA and Brazil increased by 216% and 78% 20 |
respectively (Source: BP Statistical Review 2010). However, —
ethanol as a partial substitute may pose a big question mark over 10

global food security. o

Ethanol production (mtoe)
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Shale gas revolution

In a short span of time, the Shale gas revolution in USA has changed the basics of gas business. Shale gas now accounts for 20% ofthe
gas production in USA which is expected to increase to 50% of the supply by 2035. However, attendant environmental concerns still
remain unresolved.

The'Game changer’

The British Petroleum (BP) operated Deepwater Horizon rig disaster, in the Gulf of Mexico, is going to change the oil game by raising
grave concemns about offshore drilling. Tougher restrictive regulations may shortly be in place.

Consumption of Petroleum Products (MMT)

3.Indian Oil & Gas Industry

150
Increasing consumption of petroleum products

R % ' g = QOil and natural gas consumption in India posted robust growth
i 1o — s during the recent years i.e. at a Compounded Annual Growth
% 90 — 3 g Rate (CAGR) of 5.1% in last 5 years (FY'06 to FY"10).
=1 & Consumption of most of the products increased substantially

70 — 2 except Naphtha and Fuel oil which were substituted by new gas

50 - B 0 supplies.
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Crude oil production

During FY'10, domestic crude oil production has been 33.51
MMT (ONGC's share 26.46 MMT) almost same the same level as
during FY'09. Production levels could be maintained because of
systematic technology and capital infusion in old and matured
fields and bringing new discovered fields to production. RJ-ON-
90/1 block, in which your Company has 30% participative
interest, commenced production from 24" August, 2009.
Presently it is producing more than 1,05,000 bopd. The peak
production from the field is expected to be around 210,000 bopd
by Q4 of FY"12.

Crude Oil Price (US $/bbl)
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Crude oil price (Indian basket) and under-recoveries

During FY'10, average crude oil price for the Indian basket has
been US$ 69.76/bbl against US$ 83.57/bbl during FY'09.
Though the oil prices increased at a staggering CAGR of 20.8%
during the period FY'05 to FY’09, the Indian basket prices of four
sensitive petroleum products i.e., HSD, MS, LPG & SKO were
controlled by the government to make these products available
tothe consumers at affordable prices.

ONGC's average gross crude price in FY'10 has been US$
71.65/bbl (against US$ 86.15/bbl in FY'09); however, the net
crude price realization to ONGC has been US$ 55.94/bbl
(against US$ 47.70/bbl in FY'09) after sharing under-recoveries
of US$ 15.71/bbl to Oil Marketing Companies (OMCs) as per the
government directives. ONGC's share of under-recoveries
during FY'10 has been ¥ 115.54 billion (previous year
T 282.25billion).
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Natural Gas production

During FY'10 domestic natural gas production has been 47.51
BCM - the highest-ever (ONGC’s share 25.59 BCM). Major
upside came from the new production from D-6 field of Reliance
Industries Ltd. (RIL) in the East Coast which commenced
production from 1* April, 2009.

Share of natural gas to increase in the Indian Energy
basket

Compared to world primary energy basket, Indian scenario is
slightly different. In India, Coal remains the dominant fuel with a
share of 52% (against 29% in world) in energy basket followed
by Qil with a share of 32% (against 35% in the world).

During the year 2009, share of natural gas in Indian energy
basket increased to 10% (against 8% in 2008). However, it
remains much lower than global average share 0f 24%.

Big impetus for gas business

The gas business in India got big impetus with two remarkable
decisions. Hon'ble Supreme Court of India upheld the decision

Petroleum products price revised but under-recoveries to
stay

Government of India decontrolled the price of Motor Sprit (MS)
on 25" June, 2010. At the same time, prices for HSD, LPG and
SKO were also hiked. The price hike may help in reducing under-
recoveries to some extent; however, it does not ensure wiping
out the subsidies as per present policies. During the first quarter
of FY'11, the upstream and mid-stream companies ONGC, OIL,
and GAIL shared ¥ 66,907 million as under recoveries; ONGC
accounting for more than 82% (¥ 55,155 million).

India: Natural Gas Production (BCM)
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of the Government to fix a price of US$ 4.2/mmbtu for D-6 gas. Subsequently, the Government enhanced the price of APM
(Administered Price Mechanism) gas, produced by ONGC and OIL from nominated blocks, from around US$ 1.79/mmbtu to US$
4.2/mmbtu (including royalty). This will help in wiping out the under-recoveries in gas business and incentivize investment.

4. Operational performance

Your Company has been able to maintain oil and gas production levels in recent years through two pronged strategy; optimizing
production from existing old fields and bringing new fields to stream. Oil and gas production profile from domestic as well as overseas

assets during last five years are as below:



O and gas production F¥™Mo Fre FY"is FYo? FY' Bl
Crude Oll Production {MIT) 3195 338 458 nm .5
ONGC 24.87 oo 595 20,05 2440
JV Share 1.70 1.76 1.88 1.54 1.1
ovL &.48 B.55 B.24 580 d4.58
Matural Gas Production (BCRE} rss 27R5 2rm Ir.o4 275
ONGC 2311 248 233 244 257
J¥ Share 240 295 79 243 243
ovL 238 222 1.88 2.15 1.75

Accelerated and |msnsive sxploration campalgn Inkiated by your Company helped In accreting geod quantity of of and gas reserves

which halpadin Improving position ofthe proved rsarvss (1F).

Proved Reserves (MTOE} Fris FY'e FY'08 Fray Fris
Estimated Net Proved O+0EG Reserves P20 B49.53 425.05 $38.08 2405
ONGC 7373 T20.18 224 688.72 #6036
JV share 3980 39.92 41.78 45.50 47.86
ovL 18599 12023 161.08 13479 20684
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5. Financial performance

ONGC (Stand alone)

& in million)
Particulars FY'10 FY'09 % Increase/(Decrease)
Income:
Crude Oil 445,053 391,718 13.62
Natural Gas 73,797 75,528 (2.29)
Value Added Products 83,212 172,247 (51.69)
Total Sales 602,062 639,493 (5.85)
Other Income 16,590 10,190 62.81
Gross Margin 396,054 378,292 470
EBIDTA 375,588 319,684 17.49
PAT 167,676 161,263 3.98
EPS 78.39 75.40 3.98
Dividend per share 33 32 3.13
Net Worth 864,413 780,848 10.70
% Return on net worth 19.40 20.65
Capital Employed 738,013 640,583 15.21
% Return on capital employed 50.89 49.91
Capital Expenditure 235,590 218,200 7.97
ONGCGroup & in million)
Particulars FY'10 FY'09 % increase/(Decrease)
Sales:
Crude Oil 527,312 491,127 7.37
Natural Gas 81,405 82,835 (1.73)
Value Added Products 452,998 519,978 (12.88)
Total Sales 1,061,715 1,093,940 (2.95)
Other Income 20,343 15,125 34.50
Gross Margin 489,453 492,546 (0.63)
EBIDTA 475,374 433,792 9.59
PAT 194,035 197,953 (1.98)
EPS 90.72 92.55 (1.98)
Net Worth 1,005,653 915,729 9.82
% Return on net worth 19.29 21.62
Capital Employed 869,009 752,781 15.44
% Return on capital employed 54.70 57.60

Note: Segmentinformation as per Accounting Standard (AS)- 17, is detailed elsewhere in the report.



6. Opportunities & Threats

In recent years India has emerged as one of the most vibrant energy markets in the world. Demand for all forms of energy registered
robust growth and is going to sustain with fast growing Indian economy. This provides an opportunity to your Company to meaningfully
integrate in the entire energy value-chain to leverage business opportunities.

Presently, more than 33% of the sedimentary basins in India are either unexplored or poorly explored. Yet-to-find (YTF) hydrocarbons
may be located in these areas which may throw up opportunities for the companies who are able to take lead in these frontier areas.

Government of India is now looking for Open Acreage Licensing Policy (OALP), an operator friendly flexible system. Your Company will
have opportunity to leverage its vast exploration data base to its advantage.

Improving recovery factor of the existing matured fields provides enormous opportunity in terms of production upside to your Company.
These established fields have significant scope in terms of brown-field development leveraging superior technology. The Improved Oil
Recovery (IOR) and Enhanced Oil Recovery (EOR) techniques which your Company has mastered over the years provide good
opportunity for association and growth in global oil business as number of operators or countries are looking for such know-how
and skills.

Presently, more than 90% of the global oil and gas reserves are conirolled by the National Oil Companies (NOCs) in various countries.
Establishing meaningful relation with the NOCs provides opportunity for growth.

Commercialization of new sources of energy like CBM, UCG, Shale gas, etc., has substantial upside for growth. At the same time
altemate sources of energy have also enormous potential. Early lead in cost effective commercialization of these sources through
innovative technologies and solutions is an opportunity.

Hydrocarbon exploration is now being principally focused in frontier areas like - deeper pays, deepwater, ultra-deepwater and high risk
stratigraphic traps. These so called ‘invisible frontiers' are becoming an increasingly important target. Regional or 'new geology' will
once again become critical as it was in the initial wildcatting days.

Likely strict regulations for offshore E&P operations may emerge as one of the biggest threats for E&P operations globally.

7.Risks and Concerns
E&P business due to inherent uncertainties has always been highly risky.

New technology and solutions for new plays would require concerted efforts with substantial investment; however, volatile price regime
is emerging as a drag for the industry where focus is more on reducing costs all the while responsibly addressing infrastructure and
environmentalissues.

Depleting fields in most of the matured basins is a concern for the industry; however, designed solutions in present market conditions
and uncertainties appear to be elusive. This may have directimpact on future supplies.

As far as India is concerned, seventy eight percent of the offshore acreage is in deepwater and ultra-deepwater. The success in deep
waters especially in the East Coast has opened up vast area for active exploration; however, capital and technology intensive
exploration drive can only unleash potential from these deeper challenges.

Sharing of under-recoveries on adhoc basis remains a concem for your Company. Besides, there always remains a concern for Health,
Safety and Environment owing to very nature of E&P operation and geographical location of its operation like high seas.

8. Strategic business pursuits

Your Company, keeping in view the dynamics of the industry and opportunities in the energy sector, has well defined its strategies for
sustaining growth. Basic premise for the strategy evolves round - creating energy and value assets on continuous basis for sustained
growth. The strategic pursuits of your Company are:



Intensive exploration to locate new oil & gas assets.

Expeditious development of discoveries.

Arresting decline from the matured fields.

Leverage its position as a favoured partner globally for overseas energy projects.
Developing new sources of energy like— CBM, UCG, Shale gas, etc.

Establish alternate energy as commercially viable option.

Value-multiplication through integration in hydrocarbon and energy value-chains.

@ -~ o o 0 T

Intensive exploration

Your Company has intensified exploratory efforts in recent ONGC: Reserve Accretion trend
years to locate new oil and gas assets and accrete more and
more reserves. During last 5 years (FY'06 to FY'10) your 90 1.8
Company acquired 126,222 Line Kilometer (LKM) of 2D and 8 - 176
111,923 Square Kilometer (Sq.Km) of 3D Seismic data and " 154
drilled 525 numbers of exploratory wells in domestic basins. :E ] I ::ﬁ -
These exploratory inputs helped your Company to accrete 40 088 £
more than one billion tonnes of in-place hydrocarbon reserves 30 - 0.68
in domestic basins. The average Reserve Replacement Ratio a e
(RRR) in last five years has been 1.39 (with 3P reserves) which 12 ] I 32[2)
implies that your Company accreted more reserve than it CRYos FYor FYos FYos FYl0
prodiced. T OroEG producion GTOE)
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Expeditious Development of Discoveries

During the period 2002-2010 your Company made 134 discoveries (84 onland and 50 offshore). Out of these 134 discoveries, 58
discoveries (56 onshore & 2 offshore) have already been put on production. Seven discoveries will commence production during the
current fiscal i.e, FY"11. Systematic efforts are on to bring balance discoveries to stream. Most of these discoveries are in offshore
(including deepwater) and few in Tripura which are linked with commissioning of 726.6 MW Power Plant, for which lead time for creating
required infrastructure is generally more. However, most of the shallow water discoveries will be on stream by 2012-13.

Arresting Decline

Prudent reservoir management is an established practice in your Company. Systematic interventions are made on continuous basis to
maintain the health of the reservoirs. Since 2001, your Company has taken up 21 IOR/ EOR and redevelopment schemes in 15 major
fields to arrest natural decline. Outof these 21 schemes, 14 schemes have already been completed. So far your Company has invested
¥ 209.44 billion in these schemes and will be investing ancther
¥ 156 billion in ongoing 7 schemes. These schemes helped
your Company to maintain production levels by arresting
decline in the major fields and improving recovery factor. The

OVL: Production profile

cumulative oil gain from these schemes has been more than 56 Brazil (MTOE)
MMT; 7.97 MMT during FY"10. At the same time recovery factor Colombia
of these major fields also improved from 28% in FY'01 to 33.5% Venezuela —
inFY'10. G |
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itself as a favoured partner in global E&P business. ONGC Videsh Ltd. (OVL), the flagship wholly owned subsidiary for overseas
operations, has footprints across 15 countries with 40 projects. During FY"0, it sourced 8.87 MTOE of O+OEG; the highest-ever.
Production came from 9 producing assets in seven countries.

New sources of energy

Your Company is aggressively pursuing technology intensive solutions to leverage potential of new sources of energy like — Coal Bed
Methane (CBM), Under Ground Coal Gasification (UCG), Shale Gas, etc.

a. Coal Bed Methane (CBM)

Your Company is pursuing CBM exploration in five blocks i.e., Jharia, Bokaro, North Karanpura, Raniganj and South Karanpura. Your
Company has submitted Final Development Plan (FDP) for approval to the Government of India for Parbatpur area in Jharia Block with
estimated in-place reserve of 17.72 BCM. However, CBM production from Pilot Project at Parbatpur, Jharia, Jharkhand commenced in
January 2010. Your Company has also taken up a collaborative research project with University of New South Wales, Australia for
reservoir characterization and rock in-situ stress and natural fracture characterization in Bokaro, North Karanpura and Jharia blocks.

b. Underground Ceal Gasification (UCG)

Your Company has identified Vastan Mine block in Gujarat for UCG Pilot Project with estimated investment of US$ 15.32 million.
Environmental clearance has been obtained from the Ministry of Environment & Forest for pursuing the pilot project. Request has also
been submitted for award of the Minning Lease (ML) for the Vastan mine block.

c. Shale Gas Exploration

Your Company launched an integrated R&D pilot project for shale gas exploration on 23" April, 2010 in Damodar Basin, Jharkhand, the
first of its kind in the country.

Alternate sources of energy
After successful commissioning of a 50 MW wind farm in Gujarat, your Company is planning for another 100 MW wind farm. Further,
feasibility of setting up a 10 MW grid-connected Solar Photo Voltaic (PV) project is being studied.

ONGC Energy Centre, a dedicated centre, created by your Company for holistic research and development of energy sources beyond
hydrocarbon and conventional sources has taken up several projects such as - Thermo-chemical Reactor for hydrogen generation, Bio-
conversion of Coal/ Oil to methane, Solar Thermal Engine, LED project, Uranium exploration, etc.

9. Value-multiplication and integration projects
Refining

Mangalore Refinery & Petrochemicals Ltd (MRPL), subsidiary of your Company, increased its nameplate capacity to 11.82 MMTPA
from 9.69 MMTPA. The refining capacity of the MRPL is being enhanced to 15 MMTPA,; the project is on track and is expected to be
completed by 2012.

Petrochemicals

The two petrochemical plants ONGC Petro-additions Limited (OPaL) and ONGC Mangalore Petrochemicals Limited (OMPL) promoted
by your Company are progressing well and are expected to become operational in 2012 and 2013 respectively. These projects have
basically been promoted for value-multiplication of in-house produced Naphtha at Uran, Hazira, and Mangalore and C2-C3
components at C2-C3 extraction plant at Dahe;j.

Power
726.6 MW (363.3 x 2) gas based Combined Cycle Power Plant (CCPP) being set up by ONGC Tripura Power Company Ltd. (OTPC), an

ONGC



SPV promoted by your Company, at Pallatana, Tripura aims to monetize its idle gas assets in the state of Tripura. This plant is scheduled
to be operationalin 2011-12.

10. Outlook

Exploration acreage

Your Company has been awarded 17 NELP blocks (including 4 as non-operator) in NELP VIII round of bidding for which the contracts
were signed on 30" June, 2010. Including these, your Company holds Petroleum Exploration License (PEL) for 93 NELP blocks (10 as
non-operator). In addition, it holds 62 PEL nomination blocks and 320 Petroleum Mining Lease (PML). Your Company endeavours to
convert most of the PEL areas into PML to have sufficiently large portfolio of E&P assets.

Exploration programme

In first three years (FY'08, FY'09 & FY'10) of Xl plan period itself, your Company over achieved 2D seismic survey targets (110,275 LK
against Xl target of 54,359 LK) and achieved 89% (67,886 sq km against XI plan target of 76,398) of 3D seismic survey target. Total
1,023 wells (Exploratory wells: 332 & Development wells: 691) were drilled during the period (62% of the Xl plan target of 1,651 wells).
Your Company accreted 718 MToE of O+OEG in-place hydrocarbon in first three years of plan against XI Plan target of 1,000 MToE.
With the present deployment of 120 drilling rigs (78 owned and 42 charter-hired) your Company plans to drill 728 wells (Exploratory: 254
& Development: 474), including 30 deepwater wells, during balance two years of the plan period (FY"10 & FY"11).

New field development

Your Company has taken up a number of new offshore fields for development with envisaged investment of ¥ 181,060 million. Notable
among these projects are: C-Series, G-1 & GS-15, B-22, B-193, B-46, D-1, North Tapti and Cluster-7. C-series field has already
commenced production and other fields will be on stream from 2011-12 and have potential to provide substantial upside to O+OEG
production starting from 2011-12.  Expeditious development of Daman fields — Daman (Main), Daman (North), B-23 & B-24, is also

being taken up.

Your Company discovered natural gas in NELP-1 block KG-
DWN-98/2. The block is currently under appraisal stage and is
divided into two discovery area Northem Discovery Area (NDA)
consisting of discoveries like — Padmavati, Kanakdurga,
Annapurna, N-1, D/KT, U, A, W and E in the water depth of 594
to 1,283 meters and Southern Discovery Area (SDA) consisting
of UD-1 discovery in ultra-deepwater at a water depth of 2,841
meters. Field Development Plans (FDP) shall be in place after
appraisal of discoveries. However, your Company has already
submitted request for Declaration of Commerciality (DOC) to
DGH forNDAon 16" July, 2010.

Plan expenditure

During the year FY'11, your Company has earmarked a budget
of ¥ 265,230 million for domestic operations; about 9.3% for
seismic survey; 31.9% for exploratory drilling; 13.7% for
development drilling; 36.8% for capital projects and purchases;
5% for domestic E&P JVs and balance 3.2% is for R&D and
integration projects.

In first three years of XI Plan period, plan expenditure for
domestic operations has been ¥ 630,701 million against total
plan outlay of ¥ 759,838 million (i.e., 83% of the total plan outlay
for Xl plan).

ONGC: Plan expenditure R billion)

265

218 236

179 177
FY’ 08 FY'11
(Budget
Extimate)
M XI Plan Actual
ONGC: Capex components R billion)
Seismic Exploratory  Development Capital
survey drilling drilling projects

120
100 -

60

j —
» ‘
0 _

M FY'08 W FYo9 Fy'10

|
80 |
|
|

|
|
|
I
IIII

M FY'11 Estimated)




About 56% (X 256 billion) of the XI Plan outlay of ¥ 453 billion for OVL has already been invested towards overseas E&P operations and
acquisitions in the first three years of the plan period. OVL's plan expenditure during two terminal years of XI plan will be more guided by
acquisition of new E&P projects for which OVL s aggressively scouting for.

Overseas E&P

Presently (as on 31* March, 2010), OVL has reserve base of 356.78 MTOE (2P reserves) which translates to R/P ratio (Reserve to
Production ratio) of more than 40 years at present production level (i.e., 8.87 during FY'10). Participation in Carabobo projectis going to
enhance 2P reserves of OVLby 45 MMT.

As expected, production from three major assets - GNOP (Sudan) and Sakhalin-1 (Russia) - have entered into decline phase; however,
OVL recorded highest-ever O+OEG production in FY'10 due fo contribution from the new assets like BC-10 (Brazil), Imperial Energy
(Russia), etc. Production from Imperial Energy fields in Russia was enhanced to 16,700 barrels of oil per day (bopd) from 6,000 bopd at
the time of acquisition in January 2009.

BC-10 deepwater field in Brazil commenced production from 12" July 2009 and is currently producing about 72,500 bopd. Blocks A1
and A3in Myanmar, in which OVL has 20% stake, are expected to commence production from mid-2013. First oil from Carabobo project
is expected to flow in 2012-13 with estimated peak production of 400,000 barrels of extra heavy oil per day in 2014-15 (OVL's share
44,000 bopd).

11. Internal Control Systems

Over the years your Company has developed robust internal control systems for all gamuts of its operations. A dedicated group -
Performance Management and Benchmarking Group (PMBG) - monitors performance of all the business units on continuous basis.
Besides technical and quality monitoring teams at business unit level continuously monitors technology and field operations. Internal
audit is conducted in-house as well as through outsourcing in certain areas requiring specialization. Statutory auditors are appointed
by Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG) for fixed tenures. Oil Industry Safety Directorate (OISD) conducts safety
audits periodically.

Your Company revised the Book of Delegated Powers (BDP) in 2009 for financial and administrative delegations with focus on fiscal and
administrative discipline and decenfralization of certain powers. All fransactions in the company are carried out on SAP R/3 ERP based
business portal which was upgraded from mySAP 4.6¢ to ECC 6.0 to leverage the new functionalities of the latest ERP system
consisting of Production Revenue Accounting (PRA), Governance, Risk & Compliance (GRC), Master Data Management (MDM),
Identity Management (IDM), Occupation Health (OH), Mobile Asset Management (MAM).

Your Company has institutionalized Invoice Monitoring System (IMS) and all payments are made electronically through a time-bound
monitored process. Even all payments to the employees are now system based including Performance Related Pay (PRP), Perks and
other claims and re-imbursements.

Audit & Ethics committee of the Board oversees the functioning of Internal Audit and control systems. Your Company implemented
Whistle Blower policy w.e.f. from 1* December 2009. The Company is in the process of formulating a fraud prevention policy.

ONGC: Attrition (No. of Officers)

12. Human Resource Development 50 |

Your Company is priviledged to have experienced pool of 00 | sa2

technical and professional manpower who dedicate 2

themselves for excellence. ONGC, recognized as the best 300

company to work in core sector in India (Business Today; 7th 188

Feb 2010 edition), kept its promise to strengthen its HR el 150

activities through innovative initiatives. 100 |69 57

Some of the significant initiatives towards human resource I l | \ I l

development have been: Coaching & Mentoring scheme, AL ¥ et T i
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Business Games, Employee Engagement Survey, HR Audit,
Assessment Development Centre (ADC), etc. Structured



13. Corporats Governance

Initlafves have been taken to Instiutionallze Mulll Disclpiinary
Team [MDT) concapt throughout the ongenization for is
core acthvities.

Your Company has been abla bo contaln atirtion In racant years
dus o preactve managerial Interverions and policles. During
the yeer FY'10, 57 sastulivess it the orgenizetion compensd &
160 during FY'09 and 328 during FY'\08.

Baginning 2010, mora than 1,500 peopiewil bs supsranruating
every year. Kesping this in view your Company has aba irmed
1D longam necrulimant plan for acoslerabid (ncixction and
training of manpower for core EAP activilea eneuring avallablity
oftalant.

Thus initiertives takosn by your Compenny are deleilad in the Camonts Govemance report, & partal e Anrusl repart.

14. Corporate Soclal Responsibility (CSR)

Initiartiven taken by your Compeny frwands C3R ar detailod in Directors’ Report.

15. Gautlonary Statament

Statements In the Management Discusslon and Analysis and Direclors Report describing the Company’s objeclives, projections and
salimales, ane forwand-oaking statements and prograssive within the meaning of applicahls ks and reguistions. Actusl resuits rey
vary from those expressed or implled, depending upon econamic condiions, Government Policles and other Incldantal fackors.
Rewisr amcautionsd not to place undus rekanca on tha forsad leoking staiements.
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In compliance with Clauss 48 of e Listing Agresmant with ths Stock Exehangss, gulideines on Comparate Gavemance issued by the
Depariment of Public Enterprisas (DPE} and some of the bast practices follwed glabaly on Comarate Govemancs, the Corporate
Gornancs of the Company is lad by strong emphasis on humen values, individual dignity and adharence & hansst, sthicsl and
professional conduct.

ONGC is commitied ta achieving highest |ewel of ranepamncy, opermess and accountabifly and faimess in all amas of operation,
meeting the aspirations of al s stakeholders with pimary cbjeciive of snhancing shareholders value, fmely and balanced disciesurs of
gl metarial Information to all the siakehoklers and profection of thekr interest.

The Company has put In place a8 sound system of Imlemal control to miflgate the risks and comply with the laws of land, nies &
reguistions n irus latker and spir with & view bo provide overalght and guidancs to managamant in strateqy implementation.

1. CORPORATE QOVERNANCE RECOGNTIONS
In recognition of smel lsnce in Corporaie Govemancs, the fol owing accol ndes have been canfemsd opn ONGC in recen] years:
) ICSINetional Awardfor Excallonce In Comporate Governance-2003'- by the Institirte of Compary Secretaries of indls;
iy 'SCOPEMertiordous Award for Corporate Govermance 2008-0T" by the Standing Conferance on the Public Enterprises;
() Galden Peacock Awardfor Exoellence In Corporate Govemance' by the Inattiute of Directors In the yeara 2002, 2006 and 2008;

v} Golden Peacock GiahalAwand for Corporata Govamnance by Wordd Councl for Comporate Govemancs, LK In the years 2005,
2007, 2008 and 200
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Golden Peacock Award' for Excellence in Corporate Social Responsibility in Emerging Economies - 2008 by World Council
for Corporate Governance, U.K.in 2006.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
COMPOSITION, MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

The Company is managed by a Board of Directors, which formulates strategies, policies and reviews its performance
periodically. The Chairman & Managing Director (CMD) and six Whole-Time Directors viz. Director (Human Resource),
Director (Onshore), Director (Exploration), Director (Technology & Field Services), Director (Finance) and Director (Offshore)
manage the business of the Company under the overall supervision, control and guidance of the Board.

COMPOSITION

The Board of Directors has an adequate combination of Executive (Functional) and Non-executive Directors. As on 31st
March, 2010, the Board had 13 members, comprising 7 Functional Directors (including the Chairman & Managing Director)
and 6 Non-executive Directors (comprising 2 part-time official nominee Directors and 4 part-time non-official Directors)
nominated by the Government of India. To share the global experience and business strategies, Managing Director, ONGC
Videsh Limited is a permanentinvitee to the meetings of the Board.

Board/ Committee Meetings and Procedures
Institutionalised decision making process

With a view to institutionalize all corporate affairs and set up systems and procedures for advance planning for matters
requiring discussion/ decisions by the Board, the Company has defined guidelines for the meetings of the Board of Directors
and Committees thereof. These guidelines seek to systematize the decision making process at the meetings of Board/
Committees, in an informed and efficient manner. Company's guidelines relating to Board Meetings are applicable to
Committee Meetings as far as practicable.

Scheduling and selection of Agenda Items for Board/ Committee Meetings

The meetings are convened by giving appropriate advance notice after obtaining approval of the Chairman of the Board/
Committee. To address specific urgent need, meetings are also being called at a shorter notice. In case of exigencies or
urgency, resolutions are passed by circulation.

Detailed agenda containing the management reports and other explanatory statements are circulated in advance in the
defined agenda format amongst the members for facilitating meaningful, informed and focused decisions at the meetings.
Where it is not practicable to circulate any document or the agenda is of confidential nature, the same is tabled with the
approval of CMD. Sensitive subject matters are discussed at the meeting without written material being circulated. In special
and exceptional circumstances, additional or supplemental item(s) on the agenda are permitted.

The agenda papers are prepared by the concerned officials, sponsored by the concerned functional Directors and approved
by the CMD. Duly approved agenda papers are circulated amongst the members of the Board/ Committee by the Company
Secretary or by the convener of the Committee.

The meetings of the Board/ Committees are generally held at the Company's Registered Office in New Delhi.

The Board/ Committee is given presentations covering Finance, Production, Operations, Major Business Segments, Human
Resources, Marketing, Joint Venture Operations.

The members of the Board/ Committee have complete access to all information of the Company and are also free to
recommend inclusion of any matterin agenda for discussion. Senior officials are called to provide additional inputs to the items
being discussed by the Board/Committee, as and when necessary.

Each Committee has the authority to engage outside experts, advisors and counsels to the extent it considers appropriate to
assist the Committee in its work.

Recording minutes of proceedings at the Board /Commitee Meetings

Minutes of the proceedings of each Board/Committee meeting are recorded. Draft minutes are circulated amongst all
members of the Board/Committee for their critical appreciation and comments. The comments are incorporated in the
minutes, which are finally approved by the Chairman of the Board/Committee. These minutes are confirmed in the next Board/
Committee Meeting. Minutes of the meetings of the Committees are also noted by the Board in its next meeting. The finalized
minutes are entered in the Minutes Book.



{D) Follow-up machaniam

The guidednse for the Board! Commities msalings prondde for an eflective post-mesting fol ow-up, nsvisw and reporting
procass for tha adian taken an dedslonaindructions/dnactians of the Baard and Cammittea. A par tha Boand's decigion, the
Corngany Sacrwlary inlimates e Action Paints erising from delibaration during the meeting to the Functional Direclors who in
furm provide updetes to be epprised to ths Breud on the e of their responsibiities in the ned meeting. Functional Dinssdors
submit follow-up Action Takan Repart (ATR) once in a quarier.

E) Compliance

Functional Direciors ans reeponaible to enaune adhenence to all the applicable previsions of law, rules, guideiines atc. A
Cuariatty Compliance Raport (collectad from all work caniras) confiming adhersnce o all e applicable lavws, nies,
guicislires and intermal netructions! manuale, Induding on Carporabs Govemancs, & reviewsd by the Audk & Eihles
Comnmitee snd the Boand.

{F) Training snd Evalustion of non-sxecutive Board members

The non-axecutive Board members are eminent personalkies having wide experience In the fleld of business, aducation,
Industry, commerce and adminiairation. Thelr presanca on the Board has been advardageous and fruliid In taking businesa
decisions. Dataled presentafion on the business module, perfomance, plans ste of ONGC are mads to the non-aecutve
Board mambaers, on their induction an the Board of ONGC. They are nominetad by the Company for suliable programmee/
garinars from ima & ime. inaddfion, at e Boand! Committesd athar mastings, detalad presantations ans mads by ssniar
ecacutivesy professional sl consuitants an business retated lesies, sk assassment, impact of reguistory chanpes on siraisgy
ak: Tha Company has not adaplad any machanism for evalusting individusl paciarmence of non-eacuties Board mambers.
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2.4 BOARD MEETINGS

During the year 2009-10, thirteen Board meetings were held on April 2, May 5, June 6 & 24, July 23, August 28, September 23,
October 29, November 27, December 18, 2009 and January 21, February 22 and March 25, 2010.

The minimum and maximum interval between any two Board meetings was 17 days and 35 days respectively.
Attendance:

Names & Designation No. of Board | Whether Ason 31.03.2010
Board |meetings| attended No. of other No. of Committee
meetings | attended | lastAGM Directorships # memberships*
held (23.09.09)
during the
year

Listed Others | Chairman LMember

a) Executive Directors

ShriR.S. Sharma 13 13 Yes 1 5 Nil Nil
Chairman & Managing Director

Dr.A.K. Balyan 13 12 No 2 6 Nil 1

Director (Human Resources)

ShriA.K. Hazarika 13 12 Yes Nil 3 Nil Nil
Director (Onshore)

ShriD.K. Pande 13 12 Yes Nil 1 Nil 1

Director (Exploration)

ShriU.N.Bose 13 12 Yes 1 1 Nil 1

Director (T&FS)

ShriD.K. Sarraf 13 13 Yes Nil 4 Nil 4
Director (Finance)

Shri Sudhir Vasudeva 13 13 Yes 1 2 Nil 2
Director (Offshore)

b) Non-Executive Directors

(i) Part-time Official Directors- Govt. nominees.

ShriS. Sundareshan 11 10 No 2 1 Nil Nil
Addl. Secretary, MOP&NG
{upto04.02.2010)

Smt. L.M. Vas 13 7 Yes Nil Nil Nil Nil
Addl Sectretary, MoF

Shri Sudhir Bhargava 1 1 NA 2 Nil Nil Nil
Addl. Secretary, MOP&NG
(from 15.03.2010)

(i) Part-time Independent Directors

Dr.R K.Pachauri 4 1 NA 1 Nil Nil 3
(upto 25.06.2009)

ShriV.P.Singh 4 4 NA 2 Nil Nil 3
(upt0 25.06.2009)

ShriPK.Choudhury 4 3 NA 2 6 3 5
(upt0 25.06.2009)
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Dr. Bakul H. Dholakia 4 2 NA 2 1 2 5
(upto 25.06.2009)
Smt. Chanda Kochhar 3 1 NA 1 4 1 1
(upto 23.06.2009)
Shri 8.S. Rajsekar 13 12 Yes 1 1 Nil 4
Shri S. Balachandran 13 13 Yes 2 2 2 4
Shri Santosh Nautiyal 13 13 Yes 1 1 Nil 1
SmtAnita Das 8 8 Yes Nil Nil Nil 2
(from 05.08.2009)

# Does notinclude directorships of foreign companies, Section 25 companies and private limited companies.

* Chairmanship/ Membership of the Audit Committee and Shareholders'/ Investors' Grievance Committee of public limited
companies (including ONGC).

Notes: (I) The Company beinga PSU, all Directors are appointed/ nominated by the President of India;
(i) Directorsare notinter-se related to other Directors;
(iii) Directors do not have any pecuniary relationships or transactions with the Company;
(iv) The Directorships/Committee memberships are based on the latest disclosure received;
(v} None of the Director is a member of more than 10 Committees or Chairman of more than 5 Committees, across
allthe companies in which he is a Director.
STRATEGY MEET

The Company has a practice of periodic retreats where all members of the Board and senior officials of the Ministry of
Petroleum & Natural Gas discuss issues of Corporate Strategy and Policy. The 8" Strategy Meet was held on 1% November,
2009 at New Delhi

CONCLAVE

To have the benefit of cumulative knowledge and experience of the elders of the ONGC family, an assembly of the past and
present members of the erstwhile Oil & Natural Gas Commission and Board is organized every year. The 8" Conclave was
held on 22-23 November, 2008 at Thiruvananthapuram, Kerala.

VICHAR VISHLESHAN
The Key Executives in-charge of Assets, Basins, Plants, Services and Institutes meet periodically with CMD and the

Functional Directors to review performance and to formulate future plans. During the year under review, 9" 'Key Executive
Meet' (Vichar Vishleshan) was held atLonavalaon 16" and 17" January, 2010.

RESUME OF DIRECTORS PROPOSED TO BE RE-APPOINTED

The brief resume of Directors retiring by rotation and Additional Director seeking appointment including nature of their
experience in specific functional areas, names of companies in which they hold directorship and membership/ chairmanship
of Board / Committee is appended to the notice calling the Annual General Meeting.

BOARD COMMITTEES
The Company has the following Committees of the Board:
AUDIT & ETHICS COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of the Audit & Ethics Committee are in accordance with Section 292A of the Companies Act, 1956,
Guidelines set out in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement and the Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public
Sector Enterprises issued by the Department of Public Enterprises in May 2010.

Composition

The Committee is headed under the stewardship of Shri S.Balachandran, an Independent non-executive Director w.e.f.
11.11.2008. Shri S. Balachandran is a B.Sc Gold medalist and an M.Sc. First class. He joined Indian Railway Accounts
Service in 1971. He served in the Senior Management level in Indian Railway Finance Corporation Limited including as its
Managing Director. He worked as Under Secretary and Deputy Secretary of UPSC and Joint Director of C&AG. All members



of the Commitiee hewe requiste financlal and management experience and have held senlor poakions i other reputed
organtzations.

Direcior {Financa), Chisf-Corporaie Finance and Chiel imemal Audlt are the psrmanent inviees. Repressnintives of
Siatidory Audinm and Cost Audtiors ars Imvdied o attend and participats in the meatings. Funetional Dhrectors, Exaeuihes of
Financs and oiher depariments ars invited on nesd basls.

TheChalrman of theAudit & Ethics Commithee was pregant at the lastAGM of fhe Company.

Company Sacratery aclts s the Secrwbary to the Commitie,
Role of Audt & Ethice Commiline
Thes rols of the Audit & Fthies Commilhes includes the following:

] Cwarsight of the Company’s financial reparting process and e disclasune of s finandal Infemation to ansure thal the
financial statamants ars cormect, suificlant and cradibis.

fi) Recommanding totha Boand, tha foostion of audit fises of e Statiiony Auditors.
() Approval of peyrnent i statubory euditons for amy other services rendensd by the stedubory sudiens.

Y] Reviewing, with the management, the annual fnancial stetemenis before submission to the Board for approval, with particular
referenca bo;

* matiera nequired o be included |n the Directors' Responslb My Staternent to beIncluded In the Board's repaort In femns of

Clausa (2AA}of Saction 21 7 ofthe Companlas Act, 1956;

changea, lf amy, In accounting pollcles and practices and reasons for the same;

major aceounting eniries oy eel males bassd on the axanciss of jud gemeniby meEnagement;

significant adjustmants mada n the financial ataternants arising out of auditndings:

compiance with listing and other lagal requiremanis ralating b financal siatamente:

ciscioaure o any relatad party fransactions; and

qualfieations In the draft sudi report.

{v] Reviewing, with the managamant, thequarksry finenciel steterments befions submission (o the Baand for approvel.

vl Reviewing, with the management, the staternent of ussafapplication of funds raleed through an lsaue (public lasus, nghts
leaus, prefarendal lssua, sic), e elelemant of funds utibed for puposes ofher than thesa atated in the offer

documentieepaciusmolics and the rapert submitsd by the mankoring agsncy monitoring the itisation of pracssds of 4
pubBeorrights Baua, and making apnropriats racamman tations b the Board to take up bape In this matiar.

Malrtsnanos work In progrss In ONGE Group Galhering Siafon
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T3 rycipvay fm FICC] mwerd from S Pransh Muichsripa, Hon'bis Union Firmnoy Winkgis:
(v1) Revissing, withthe managemant, parformancs of sta daryand Intsmal sudibors. adedquacyof the Intamal control systsms.
{ul) Rsviewing the adaquacy of inlemal audt function, if any, Including the structura of tha imamal audit department, siafing and
sanlority of the official haading the departrment, reporting struchura coverage and frequency of Imtemal audit.
i) Dincussionwithirfemal audiors any significant findings and follow up thereon.
¥} Reviewing the findnpe of any inbemal ineetigations by fhe Intsmal sudioes Inds matiwes whans thans (& suspectsd raud or
Imagguiartty or a falurs of Inkemal control systems of e rebaial nsturs and raporing ths matber o ths Boand.

{d) Discusalon with stahriory sudlors before the audt commences, about the nature and acops of audt as well a3 post-audt
discueaion bo aacertaln any anea of concam.

() To look ko the masons for subsiantial defaulis in the payment & the deposkors, shamholders {in case of non-payment of
deciared dividends} and cradiiors.

{xit) To rervierwr (s fiunclioning of the Whistis Blowsr Machanism.

v} Discusalon with the audtors periodically about inbernal control eysterns, the scopa of audit incduding the oheervations of the
audiors and revtew the hal™ysarly and annual financlal stabsments before submission (o the Board and also snaiine
complanca afintsmal cantral systems.

o) To review the Audit paras refarmed to AREC Iy tha Irternal Audit { Board and for Govt of Indla and o provida lis suggestona /
guldance /commants on the lasuss refemed to it

(i) Tomview the financial sislements and the imesiments mede by the unlisted subsidary company.
(o) Tocamy it ary othar functions a2 b martianed inthe Terms of Refersnce.
Annual Report on the weorking of the Audit & Ethica Commitiee

Inomder iz pessnl & comprehenstve view of the working of the AGEC of ONGC, the First Annual Report on the working of the
ASEC for the year 2008-03 was complled and reviewed by he AGEC.,

The aforamantionad report brietiy pives & background ahout the conglitution, the legal fremenrc, teems of reksrence, iams
considerad by ASEG and details of mejor cbsarvalions | supgestions of the Commitks during the yeer and action telen
thareon,

Aupdit & Ethles Commitbes Mestings

During the year 2003-10, slwen mesdings of Audk & Ethics Commitiea wana hald an Apil 1, May 5, June 24, July 23, August
28, Cetobar 29, November 24, 2009 and Januery 21, February 22 and March 3 £25,2010.



Attendance:

Members No. of meetings Meetings
held during the tenure attended

Shri P.K.Choudhury, Chairman {upto 25.06.2009) 3 2

Dr. Bakul H.Dholakia (upto 25.06.2009) 3 2

Dr. R.K. Pachauri (upto 25.06.2009) 3 0

Shri V.P.Singh (upto 25.06.2009) 3 3

Shri S. Balachandran " 1

Shri Santosh Nautiyal 1 1"

Shri S.S.Rajsekar 8 7

SmtAnita Das (from 28.08.2009) 6 5

Permanent Invitees:

Shri D.K. Sarraf, Director (Finance) " 1

Shri S. Dhandapani, Chief - Corporate Finance 11 10

Shri Pradeep Prasad, Chief - Internal Audit 1 10

7.2 REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

1.21

The Remuneration Committee of ONGC considers various aspects of remuneration payable to Executive and Non-Executive
Directors. Further, in terms of DPE Guidelines the Remuneration Committee decides the annual bonus/variable pay pool and
policy forits distribution across the executives and non unionized supervisors, within the prescribed limits.

The Committee is headed by Smt Anita Das, an Independent Director w.e.f. 27" November, 2009. Prior to this date, Shri S
Sundareshan was the Chairman of the Committee. Shri Santosh Nautiyal, independent Director, Shri A.K. Balyan Director
(HR) and Shri D.K.Sarraf, Director (Finance) are the members of the Committee.

ONGC being a Government Company, terms and conditions of appointment and remuneration of Executive (whole-time
functional) Directors are determined by the Govemment through administrative ministry, the Ministry of Petroleum & Natural
Gas. Non-executive part-time official Directors do not draw any remuneration. Non-executive part-time non-official Directors
are paid sitting fees of ¥ 20,000 for each Board/ Committee meeting attended by them.

One meeting of the above Committee was held on 1* December, 2009. Allmembers were present.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
Remuneration of Directors for the year ended 31* March, 2010 was as follows:

a) Executive Directors @& in million)
Sl. Noj Names Salary Other | Performance | Contribution | Provision |Grand Term
Including | benefits | Incentives |to PF & other| for Leave, | Total Upto
DA & perks Funds Gratuity
& PRBS
as perAS-15
1. ShriR.S. Sharma 240 0.61 2.32 0.22 0.07 5.62 | 31.01.2011
2. Dr.A.K.Balyan 243 0.32 2.00 0.22 0.08 5.05| 31.07.2011
4. ShriA K. Hazarika 2.29 0.24 2.00 0.21 0.08 4.82 | 30.09.2012
5. ShriD.K.Pande 2.30 0.52 2.00 0.22 0.07 5.11| 22.09.2010
6. ShriU.N.Bose 247 0.32 2.00 0.22 0.07 5.08 | 26.09.2010
7. ShriD.K Sarraf 2.34 0.41 1.89 0.22 0.07 4.93] 26.12.2012
8. Shri Sudhir Vasudeva 2.07 0.20 1.25 0.15 0.07 3.74 | 31.01.2014

Note: * Notice period of 3 months or salary in lieu thereof is required for severance of service.
* Performance Related Pay of Functional Directors (including CMD) is paid as per D.P.E. norms.



(b)Non-Executive Directors (Part-time non-official)

Non-Executive non-official Directors were paid sitting fees at the rate of ¥ 20,000 for attending each meeting of the Board/
Committees thereof. Details of sitting fees paid during the year under review are as follows:

Names Sitting fees (X in million)
Shri V.P.Singh(upto 25.06.2009) 0.28
ShriP.K.Choudhury (upto 25.06.2009) 0.18
Dr.R.K.Pachauri (upto 25.06.2009) 0.02
Dr. Bakul H. Dholakia (upto 25.06.2009) 0.12
Smt. Chanda Kochhar (upto 23.06.2009) Nil
ShriS.S. Rajsekar 0.76
ShriS. Balachandran 1.04
Shri Santosh Nautiyal 0.88
SmtAnita Das (from 05.08.2009) 0.52
Total 3.80

7.2.2 STOCKOPTIONS

The Company has notissued any Stock Options toits Directors/ Employees.

7.2.3 EQUITY SHARES HELD BY DIRECTORS

Except as stated hereunder, none of the Directors, hold any Equity Shares in the Company as per the declarations made by
themto the Company:

Name of Directors No. of Shares held
ShriR.S.Sharma 1,075
Dr.A.K.Balyan 600
ShriA K. Hazarika 1,160
ShriD.K. Pande 1,350
ShriU.N.Bose 298
ShriD.K.Sarraf 798
Shri Sudhir Vasudeva 1,363
ShriV.P.Singh (upto 25.06.2009) 100
Shri Sudhir Bhargava 90

7.3 SHAREHOLDERS'/INVESTORS' GRIEVANCES COMMITTEE

The Shareholders'/ Investors' Grievances Committee specifically looks into redressing of Shareholders' and Investors'
complaints/ grievances pertaining to transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual reports, dividend payments, issue
of duplicate certificates and other miscellaneous complaints. The Committee oversees and reviews performance of the
Registrar and Transfer Agent and recommends measures for overall improvement in the quality of investor services. The
Committee also monitors implementation and compliance of Company's Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading in
ONGC's securities.

The Committee is headed by Smt Anita Das, an Independent Director. Shri S.S. Rajsekar, Shri S. Balachandran, Shri A.K.
Balyan Director (HR) and Shri D.K. Sarraf, Director (Finance) are the Members of the Committee. Shri P.K. Choudhury and
Shri R.K. Pachauri were also members of the Committee upto 25.06.2009. The Company Secretary acts as a Convener to the
Committee.

During the year 2009-10, four meetings were held on April 02, July 23, December 18, 2009 and March 25, 2010. The
attendance particulars are as under:;



Members Meetings held during Meetings
the tenure attended
Shri P.K. Choudhury {upto 25.06.2009) 1 1
Dr.R.K.Pachauri (upto 25.06.2009) 1 0
SmtAnita Das (from 28.08.2009) 2 2
ShriS.S. Rajsekar 4 4
ShriS. Balachandran 4 4
Dr.A.K.Balyan 4 4
ShriD. K. Sarraf 4 4

7341 REDRESSAL OF INVESTORS' GRIEVANCE

The Company addresses all complaints, suggestions and grievances of the investors expeditiously and usually resolves the
issues within 7 days exceptin case of dispute over facts or other legal constraints.

Except for the complaints pertaining to 'Offer for Sale' by Government of India, the Company received 7 shareholders'
complaints from Stock Exchanges/ SEBI which inter-alia includes non-receipt of dividend/ annual report, issue of Bonus
Shares, payment for fraction Bonus Shares etc. The complaints were duly attended to and the Company/ RTA have furnished
necessary documents/information to the shareholders. As far as the Investors’ Grievances on "ONGC Offer for Sale-2004" is
concemed, considerable progress has been made by constantinteraction with SEBI and MCS.

No request for share transfer is pending beyond 30 days except those that are disputed or sub-judice. All requests for de-
materialization of shares are likewise processed and confirmation communicated to investors and Depository Participants
within 10 working days.

The total number of complaints/ queries/ correspondence received and replied/ attended to the satisfaction of the
shareholders was 2140. 3 complaints were pending as on 31* March, 2010, which have since been settled.

7.3.2  SETTLEMENT OF GRIEVANCES

Investors may register their complaints in the manner stated below
Sl.No.| Nature of Complaint Contact Office

1 . | Complaint regarding allocation of | Shri Aniruddha Mitra, Director
Shares, Refund order under Offer | MCS Limited, F-65 Okhla Industrial
for Sale, 2004 by Govt. of India Area, Phase-|,

Delhi- 110020

Actionto be taken

Application giving details of
Application No, No. of shares applied,
No. of Shares allotted, DP ID, Client
ID, Nature of complaint, Applicant

Phone Nos.011-41406149,51-52 .
e-mail: admin@mcsdel.com.

Name(s) Applicant Name(s)
and complete postal address.

Dividend from financial years
2002-03 (final) to 2009-10
(interim) and all matters
pertaining to Bonus Shares and
shares held in Physical mode

ForPhysical Shares-

Change of address, status, Bank
account, mandate, ECS mandate
etc.

M/s Karvy Computershare Private Ltd.,
Plot No.17-24, Viital Rao Nagar
Madhapur, Hyderabad - 500081
Phone Nos. 040- 23420815-819.
Fax No: 040- 23420814.
e-mail: mailmanager@karvy.com

OR

M/s Karvy Computershare Private Ltd.
105-108 Arunachal Building,

Ist floor,19, Barakhambha Road,

New Delhi-110001,

Phone Nos. 011-41036370 (tele-fax) &
43528522

e-mail: delhi@karvy.com

Letter on plain paper stating the
nature of complaint, Folio/DPID/Client
ID No; lodging of original shares
and other documents/instruments
as the case may be.

Members are requested to apply for
renewal or issue of duplicate
dividend warrants for the final
Dividend 2002-03 before 30"
September, 2010. The unpaid
dividend amount for the year
2002-03 will be transferred by the
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Gompany o the iInvestor
Education & Pretection Fund
{(EEPF) setup by Govi. of india
andno claimwilllle againat
IEPF or agalnat the Company.
3. | For Demaiied Shanss- Concermad Dapoatory Az per instructions of DP
Changs of addmes, etatus, Participant {DF)
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124, Indira Chele, Now Dadnd-110001 D Mo, Nama and atdness.
Prons: 011-23301280 & 23301267
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2-mai; secroiarist@ongenin

INVESTOR RELATIONS CELL

In lina with glabal practicee, the Company Is commitiad o maintain, the highest standands of Corporats Govemance,
meinfrging e mlalionslip batwedn the Company snd its Sharshalkides. Temebor Service Gendar® with infirmation
frequently required by Investors and enalysis Is avallable on the Compary's corpomate webske waw.ongeindin.com. This
wobslte provides updates on financlal statements, iveskor-elled mmmis and presantalions, ennual reports, dividend
Imfomnation and sharehol ding patkem, media raleases, compary overview and report on Corporate Govermanca elc.

A Core Team compriaing of senior, axparenced officials, headed by Diraclor (Finance] have been assigned the
regponaiiites for up-keeping the sald link. Besides, the sald team I alao Insirumental In maintaining cloas Iialson and 1o
ghans Information through parindic meets including tele-confarancing In Indla and abroad, reguiar press mests with
invstment bankers, ressarch anslysts, the medie, irstiutional Investars elc. The Campany & commitied 1o ks such olher
khaps s mary ba nocessary i fulfl tha epactations of the slekeholdars.

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
The tamne of eference of Humen Resource Management Commiites include conalderation of all lesues! areas conceming

Human Resource Planning & Managemant, HR. polcles and Inkatives and Promotions for the post of Group Genaral
Managar and Exacuive Dinsciorand appeals of officera In temms of CDEA Rulee of ONGC.

Dr. Balal. H. Dhalalda was the Chalmnan of b Committes upte 26.08 2008, Shrl 5.5. Rajsskar bacama Chaiman of the
Committss war. 25.08 2000, 8hrl 3. Balachandran, Shr R.2. Sharma (CMD) and sl Functional Dirsciors ane ather mambars
i the Commitise. Dimctor (HR) i e Mamban-Cormsnsr of the Cammitiss.

During the year 2008-10, five mestings were held onAugust 11, Novemnber 24, Decamber 31, 2008 and January 21, March
25, 2010. These mestings wers attended by the membears of the CGommittes, a8 under

Gampihysicials camying out prsessing in workokstion
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1.5 PROJECTAPPRAISAL COMMITTEE

The Project Appraisal Committee examines and makes recommendations to the Board on projects/ capital investment
exceeding T 250 Crore. Proposals upto ¥ 250 Crore are appraised in-house, while the proposals exceeding ¥ 250 Crore are
first appraised by Financial Institutions and thereafter considered by the Project Appraisal Committee who recommends the
proposal to the Board with their views. The Project Appraisal Committee also monitors IOR/ EOR Schemes.

Shri V.P. Singh was the Chairman of the Committee upto 25.06.2009. Shri Santosh Nautiyal, Independent Director became
Chairman of the Committee w.e.f 28.08.2009. Shri S. Balachandran, Shri S.S. Rajsekar, Smt Anita Das, Shri Sudhir
Vasudeva, Shri S. Sundareshan (upto 04.02.2010), Shri D.K. Sarraf & concerned Functional Directors are the members of the
Comnmittee. Director (Offshore) is the Member-Convener of the Committee.

During the year 2009-10, ten meetings were held on April 1, May 5 & 27, June 6, July 9, August 8, September 22, November

27,2009 and January 8, March 19, 2010. These meetings were attended by the members of the Committee, as under:

Members Meetings held Meetings
during the tenure attended
Shri V.P.Singh, Chairman (upto 25.06.2009) 4 4
Shri Santosh Nautiyal Chairman (from 28.08.2009) 10 10
Shri P.K.Choudhury {(upto 25.06.2009) 4 2
Shri S. Balachandran 10 10
Shri S. Sundareshan (upto 04.02.2010) 9 8
ShriS.S. Rajsekar (from 28.08.2009) 4 3
SmtAnita Das ( from 28.08.2009) 4 4
Shri Sudhir Vasudeva 10 10
ShriD.K.Sarraf 10 9
Dr.A.K.Balyan* 3 3
ShriA.K.Hazarika* 1 1
ShriD.K.Pande* 2 2
ShriU.N.Bose * 3 3

* These Directors attended the meetings as member concerning the Projects of their responsibilities.



7.6 HEALTH, SAFETY & ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE

The terms of reference includes review of policy, processes and systems on Health, Safety, Environment and Ecology aspects.
Shri S.S Rajsekar, an Independent Director is the Chairman of the Committee. Director (Onshore) acts as a Member-
Convener.

Shri Santosh Nautiyal, Shri R.S. Sharma (CMD), Shri S. Sundareshan (upto 04.02.2010) and all Functional Directors are
members of the Committee.

During the year 2009-10, two meetings were held on February 22 and March 25, 2010. These meetings were attended by the
members of the Committee, as under:

Members Meetings held Meetings
during the tenure attended
Dr. RK Pachauri, Chairman (upto 25.06.2009) 0 0
Shri S. S.Rajsekar, Chairman (from 28.08.2009) 2 2
ShriS. Sundareshan (upto 04.02.2010) 0 0
Shri Santosh Nautiyal 2 2
ShriR.S. Sharma 2 1
Dr.AK.Balyan 2 2
ShriA.K.Hazarika 2 2
ShriD.K.Pande 2 1
ShriU.N.Bose 2 2
ShriD.K.Sarraf 2 2
Shri Sudhir Vasudeva 2 2

7.7 FINANACIALMANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Mandate of the Committee includes looking into the matters pertaining to Budget, Delegation of Powers (Empowerment),
Commercial Issues, Forex and Treasury Management, Investments, Risk Management, Capital Structure, Issue of Securities,
Shortand Long Term Loans, periodical Performance Review of subsidiaries.

Dr. Bakul. H. Dholakia was the Chairman of the Committee upto 25.06.2009. Shri S. Balachandran, Independent Director
became Chairman w.e.f28.08.2009.

Shri Santosh Nautiyal, Smt Anita Das, Shri D.K. Sarraf and concerned Functional Directors are the members. Shri V.P.Singh
and Shri P.K.Choudhury, Independent Directors were members upto 25.06.2009. Director (Finance) is the Member -Convener.

During the year 2009-10, four meetings of the Committee were held on April 2, August 28, October 27 and November, 26, 2009.
These meetings were attended by the members of the Committee, as under:

Members Meetings held Meetings
during the tenure attended
Dr. Bakul H. Dholakia, Chairman (upto 25.06.2009) 1 1

Shri S. Balachandran, Chairman (from 28.08.2009) 4 4
ShriV.P.Singh (upto 25.06.2009) 1 1
Shri P. K .Choudhury (upto 25.06.2009) 1 1
Shri Santosh Nautiyal 2 2
SmtAnita Das 2 2
ShriD.K.Sarraf 4 4
Shri Sudhir Vasudeva* 1 1

*Attended the meetings as member concerning the Projects of his responsibilities.



7.8

COD FORREDRESSAL OF GRIEVANCES OF THE PARTIES

Comnmittee of Directors (COD) for Redressal of Grievances of the parties has been constituted to review the grievances of the
parties for suitable Redressal.

Shri V.P. Singh was the Chairman of the Committee upto 25.06.2009. Shri Santosh Nautiyal, an Independent Director became
Chairman of the Committee w.e.f. 28.08.2009. Other members of the Committee are Shri S.S. Rajsekar, Shri S. Balachandran
(w.e.f28.08.2009), Smt Anita Das, Shri A.K. Hazarika, Shri U.N. Bose, Shri D.K. Sarraf and concemed Functional Directors.
Director (T&FS) is the Member-Convener of the Committee. Shri R.K. Pachauri and Dr. Bakul. H. Dholakia were members upto
25.06.2009.

During the year 2009-10, five meetings of the committee were held on April 1, August 11, September 22, December 18, 2009
and March 25, 2010. These meetings were attended by the members of the Committee, as under:

Members Meetings held Meetings
during the tenure attended
ShriV.P. Singh, Chairman (upto 25.06.2009) 1 1

Shri Santosh Nautiyal, Chairman (from 28.08.2009)
Dr. R K. Pachauri (upto 25.06.2009)

Dr. Bakul H. Dholakia (upto 25.06.2009)

ShriS.S. Rajsekar

ShriS. Balachandran {w.e.f28.08.09)

SmtAnita Das (w.e.f28.08.09)

ShriA K. Hazarika

ShriD K. Pande*

ShriU.N.Bose

ShriD.K. Sarraf

ShriA K. Balyan*

Shri Sudhir Vasudeva* 3
*These Directors attended the meetings as member concerning the Projects of their responsibilities.
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7.9 OTHER FUNCTIONAL COMMITTEES

8.1

Apart from the above, the board constitutes, from time to time, functional committees with specific terms of reference as it may
deem fit. Meetings of such committees are held as and when the need for discussing the matter concerning the purpose arises.
Time schedule for holding the meetings of such committees are finalized in consultation with the committee members.

. CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS OF THE BOARD AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Company is committed to conducting business in accordance with the highest standards of business ethics and complying
with applicable laws, rules and regulations. A code of conduct, evolved in line with the industry practices was adopted by the
Board on the recommendations of Audit and Ethics Committee. A copy of the Code has been placed on the Company's website
www.ongcindia.com.

All members of the Board and senior management i.e. 'Key Executives' have confirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct
for the year under review. Adeclaration signed by Chairman & Managing Director is given below:

"| hereby confirm that the Company has obtained from the members of the Board and senior management (Key Executives),
affirmation that they have complied with the Code of Conduct for Directors and senior management in respect of the financial
year 2009-10."

ONGC'S CODE ON INSIDER TRADING

In pursuance of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992, the Board has
approved the "The Code of Intemal Procedures and Conduct in dealing with the Securities of ONGC". The objective of the
Code is to prevent purchase and/ or sale of shares of the Company by an Insider on the basis of unpublished price sensitive
information. Under this Code, Insiders (Directors, Advisors, Key Executives, Designated Employees and other concerned
persons) are prohibited to deal in the Company's shares and derivatives thereof during the closure of Trading Window and
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other specified period(s). To deal in securities, beyond specified limit, permission of Compliance Officer is required. All Insiders
are also required to disclose related information periodically as definedin the Code.

CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION

In terms of revised Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the certification by the CEO/ CFO on the financial statements and
internal controls relating to financial reporting for the year 2009-10 was submitted to the Board on 28" May, 2010

FINANCE MANUAL

With the approval of Executive Committee, Finance Manual has been issued on 4" June, 2009. ONGC Finance Manual is a
compendium based on the existing practices and systems, comprehensively covering various finance activities such as
accounting, budgeting, costing, pre-audit, treasury management etc. This manual will provide the users with existing practices,
processes, finance policies & procedures, and will guide Finance officers while ensuring consistency and uniformity across
locations in terms of processes and methodologies followed. The detailed documented guidelines/policies of Finance function
in ONGC would also be of great help for new incumbents’ and Finance officers on transfers. The knowledge documented would
also enlighten outside agencies like Statutory Auditors, Government Auditors associated with ONGC in the years to come.

SUBSIDIARY MONITORING FRAMEWORK

The Company has two direct subsidiary companies, Mangalore Refinery and Petrochemicals Ltd. (MRPL, listed, material) and
ONGC Videsh Ltd. (OVL, unlisted, non-material). The list of subsidiaries of MRPL and OVL is given in the consolidated
accounts of ONGC which forms part of the Annual Report. All subsidiaries of the Company are Board managed with their
Boards having the rights and obligations to manage such companies in the best interest of their stakeholders. As a majority
shareholder, the Company nominates its representatives on the Boards of subsidiary companies and monitors the
performance of such companies periodically.

Performance of the listed and unlisted subsidiary companies is reviewed by the Audit and Ethics Committee and the Board as
under:

Financial Statements of the subsidiary companies, are reviewed by the Audit and Ethics Committee;

Minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors of the subsidiaries, alongwith gist thereof, are placed before the Company's
Board, periodically;

Astatement of all significant transactions and arrangements entered into by the subsidiary companies are also reviewed by the
Company.

The Company does not have any material unlisted subsidiary companies in terms of the clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.
COMPLIANCE OFFICER

The Company Secretary has been nominated as the Compliance Officer. The Company Secretary is primarily responsible to
ensure compliance with applicable statutory requirements and is the interface between the management and the regulatory
authorities for governance matters.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS

Location, date and time of the AGMs held during the preceding 3 years are as under:
Year Location Date Time (IST)
2006-07 | Siri Fort Auditorium, Khel Gaon, August Kranti Marg, New Delhi- 110049 19.09.2007 | 10.30 a.m.
2007-08 | Siri Fort Auditorium, Khel Gaon, August Kranti Marg, New Delhi- 110049 19.09.2008 | 10.00 a.m.
2008-09 | Siri Fort Auditorium, Khel Gaon, August Kranti Marg, New Delhi- 110049 23.09.2009 | 10.00 a.m.

There were no special resolutions passed by the Company at the last 3 AGMs. No special resolution was passed last year
through postal ballot. No special resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot.

DISCLOSURES
MATERIAL CONTRACTS/RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company has not entered into any material financial or commercial transactions with the Directors or the Management or
their relatives or the companies and firms, etc., in which they are either directly or through their relatives interested as Directors



and/or Partners except with certain PSUs, where the Directors are Directors without the required shareholdings. The Company
has obtained declarations from all concerned in this regard, which were noted by the Board.

Transactions with related parties are disclosed in Note No. 22 of Schedule 27 to the Accounts. Being a State Enterprise, no
disclosure has been made in respect of the transactions with State Enterprises, including subsidiary companies, in line with
Accounting Standard-18 on Related Party Transactions.

13.2 COMPLIANCES

The Company has complied with applicable rules and the requirement of regulatory authorities on capital market and no
penalties or strictures were imposed on the Company during last three years.

Allretums/ reports were filed within stipulated time with stock exchanges/ other authorities.

14. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION
* Quarterly/ Annual Results: The Company regularly intimates un-audited as well as audited financial results to the Stock
Exchanges, immediately after these are approved. These financial results are normally published in the leading English and

vemnacular dailies having wide circulation across the country. The results are also displayed on the web site of the Company
www.ongcindia.com. The results are not sentindividually to the shareholders.

» News Release, Presentation etc.: The official news releases, detailed presentations made to media, institutional investors,
financial analysts etc. are displayed on the Company's website www.ongcindia.com.

» Website: The Company's website www.ongcindia.com contains separate dedicated section 'Investor Relations' where the
shareholders information is available. Full Annual Report, Shareholding Pattern and Corporate Governance Report etc. is also
available on the web-site in a user-friendly manner.

+ Annual Report: Annual Report containing inter-alia, Audited Accounts, Consolidated Financial Statements, Directors'
Report, Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) Report, Auditors’ Report, Corporate Governance Report including
Information for the Shareholders and other importantinformation is circulated to the members and others entitled thereto.

15. SHAREHOLDERS'INFORMATION
15.1 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Date ; 23" September, 2010
Time ; 10:00Hrs
Venue 3 Siri Fort Auditorium, Khel Gaon,

August Kranti Marg, New Delhi-110049.
15.2 FINANCIAL CALENDER

Adoption of Quarterly Results for the Quarter ending Upto

June 30,2010 15" August, 2010
September 30,2010 15" November, 2010
December 31,2010 15" February, 2011
March 31,2011(audited) 30™ May, 2011

15.3 BOOK CLOSURE PERIOD

The Book Closure period is from Tuesday, the 14" September, 2010 to Thursday, the 23" September, 2010 (both days inclusive)
for the payment of Final Dividend.

15.4 DIVIDEND PAYMENT DATE
Final Dividend would be paid on 28" September, 2010.

ONGC



15.5 LISTING ON STOCK EXCHANGES:
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15.8.1 STOCKMARKET DATA

01-Jan-07

01-Apr-07
01-Jul-07

01-Oct-07

Share Price adjusted (pre Bonus) === BSE Sensex

01-Apr-08
01-Jul-08

01-Jan-08

01-Oct-08
01-Jan-09
01-Apr-09

01-Jul-09

01-Oct-09
01-Jan-10
01-Apr-10

22,504

20,254

18,004

15,753

13,503

11,252

BSE Sensex

9,002

- 6,751

4,501

Month Bombay Stock Exchange National Stock Exchange
HighR) [ Low(R) Volume HighR) | Low() Volume
Apr'09 922.50 752.50 | 6,571,018 922.50 751.20 | 35,014,418
May'09 1,218.95 802.00 | 10,137,492 | 1220.00 802.35 | 55,140,323
Jun'09 1,203.00 971.25 | 7,282,015 | 1220.00 964.00 | 47,689,096
Jul'09 1,176.90 965.10 | 12,080,715 1177.70 963.00 | 52,467,831
Aug'09 1,229.80 | 1,109.05| 6,243,215 | 1230.00 | 1108.10 | 34,888,834
Sep'09 1,213.00 | 1,135.40 | 5483649 | 1214.25 934.25 | 28,607,955
Oct'09 1,273.50 | 1,101.25| 3,043,249 | 1277.65| 1126.30 | 20,547,687
Nov'09 1,227.35 | 1,109.05 | 3,030,289 1211.80 | 1105.20 | 19,321,542
Dec'09 1,217.00 | 1,155.00 | 1,893,858 | 1217.00 | 1152.75| 13,553,010
Jan'10 1,245.90 | 1,082.00 | 2,812,041 1246.75 | 1075.00 | 17,777,969
Feb'10 1,155.00 | 1,066.35 | 2,103,812 1155.00 | 1036.75 | 12,902,959
Mar'10 1,135.85 | 1,046.00 | 3,191,404 1138.60 | 1045.15| 19,311,176

Source: Web-sites of BSE and NSE



15.8.2 PERFORMANCE IN COMPARISON TO BROAD BASED INDICES FOR 2009-10

ONGC Share price performance: ONGC vs BSE sensex (2009-10)
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16. SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM

Karvy Computershare Private Ltd. (Karvy) are the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent for physical shares. Karvy is also the
depository interface of the Company with both National Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and Central Depository Services
(India) Ltd. (CDSL)

With a view to expedite the process of transfer of shares which are received in physical form, the Board had constituted an
Officers Committee which usually meets once in a fortnight to consider and approve the shares received for transfer,
transmission, re-materialization and dematerialization etc. and 23 meetings of the aforesaid Committee were held during
2009-10. The shares received in physical form are transferred expeditiously, provided the documents are complete and the
share transfer is not under any dispute. The Minutes of the Officers Committee are placed to the Shareholders'/ Investors'
Grievance Committee. Asummary of transfer/ transmission of securities so approved by the Officers Committee are placed at
Board Meetings. The share certificates duly endorsed are sent to the shareholders by RTA. Confirmation in respect to the
requests for dematerialization of shares is sent to the respective depositories i.e. NSDL and CDSL, expeditiously.

Pursuant to the Clause 47-C of the Listing Agreement, certificates on quarterly basis confirming due compliance of share
transfer formalities by the Company, certificate for timely dematerialization of the shares as per SEBI (Depositories and
Participants) Regulations, 1996 are sent to the stock exchanges.

In addition, as a part of the capital integrity audit, a Secretarial Audit Report for reconciliation of the share capital confirming that
the total issued capital of the Company is in agreement with the total number of shares in physical form and the total number of
dematerialized shares held with NSDL and CDSL, is placed before the Board on a quarterly basis. A copy of the Audit Report is
submitted to the stock exchanges.
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The total number of transfer deeds processed and shares transferred during the last three years are as under:

Years No. of transfer No. of shares
deeds processed transferred
2009-10 175 16,575
2008-09 420 17,944
2007-08 561 25,023
17. SHAREHOLDING PATTERNAS ON 31“MARCH, 2010
Category No. of Percentage of
Shares held Shareholding
President of India 1,585,740,673 74.14
Banks, Financial Institutions and Insurance Companies 122,789,667 5.74
Foreign Institutional Investors 89,101,089 417
Mutual Funds & UTI 47,279,827 2.21
NRls 885,465 0.04
Bodies Corporate:
» Government Companies 215,881,124 10.09
*Others 40,937,851 1.91
Employees 2,048,738 0.10
Public 34,208,096 1.60
Total 2,138,872,530 100.00
TOP 10 SHAREHOLDERS AS ON 31*MARCH, 2010
S.No | Name No. of % of total
Shares held Shareholding
1 President of India 1,585,740,673 7414
2 Indian Qil Corporation Limited 164,480,857 7.69
3 Life Insurance Corporation Of India 110,999,015 5.18
4 GAIL (India) Limited 51,400,267 2.40
5 ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Company Limited 15,383,813 0.72
6 Franklin Templeton Investment Funds 11,859,660 0.55
7 BajajAllianz Life Insurance Company Limited 4,697,488 0.22
8 PCA India Infrastructure Equity Open Limited 4,139,716 0.19
9 HDFC Standard Life Insurance Company Limited 3,696,587 0.17
10 Abu Dhabi InvestmentAuthority - Gulab 3,541,251 0.17




17.2 DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING BY SIZEAS ON 31" MARCH, 2010

Category Numberof | % ofShareholders Total number % of Share holding
(no. of shares) Shareholders of Shares
1 - 500 378,464 95.82 21,853,106 1.04
501 - 1000 12,321 3.12 9,312,114 0.45
1001 - 2000 2,835 0.72 3,603,569 0.17
2001 - 3000 248 0.06 617,284 0.03
3001 - 4000 140 0.04 493,996 0.02
4001 - 5000 68 0.02 309,265 0.02
5001 - 10000 199 0.05 1,431,028 0.07
10001 & Above 684 0.17 2,101,252,168 98.21
Total 394,959 100.00 2,138,872,530 100.00
17.3 GEOGRAPHICAL DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDERS AS ON 31* MARCH, 2010
S.No City Shareholders Shareholding
Nos % age No of shares %age
of holding |
1 Ahmedabad 26,934 6.82 2,820,727 0.13
2 Bengaluru 16,536 419 1,111,492 0.05
3 Chennai 15,442 3.91 3,802,174 0.18
4 Guwahati 6,385 1.62 1,533,797 0.07
5 Hyderabad 8,592 2.18 6,23,419 0.03
6 Kolkata 25,714 6.51 3,356,036 0.16
7 Mumbai 98,159 24.85 469,296,365 21.94
8 New Delhi 29,634 7.50 1,640,601,087 76.70
9 Pune 8,658 219 557,563 0.03
10 Vadodara 16,923 4.28 3,103,247 0.15
" Others 141,982 35.95 12,066,623 0.56
Total 394,959 100.00 2,138,872,530 100.00

17.4

History of Paid-up Equity Share Capital (Face value of T 10 each)

Year No.ofShares | Cumulative| Details

1993-94 10 10| Initial Subscription to the Memorandum of Association on 23" June, 1993

1993-94 342,853,716 | 342,853,726| Issuedtothe Presidentof Indiaon 1% February, 1994 on transfer of
Undertaking of Oil and Natural Gas Commission in terms of Oiland
Natural Gas Commission (Transfer of Undertaking and Repeal) Act, 1993

1994-95 6,639,300 | 349,493,026| Issued to the Employees ata premium of ¥ 260 per Share

1995-96 1,076,440,966 | 1,425,933,992| Issue of Bonus Shares inratio of 3.08: 1 on 24" April, 1995 by Capitalization
of General Reserve (Includes 600 shares issued to employees in 1995 to 96
and bonus shares thereon.

2006-07 (-)18,972 | 1,425,915,020| Forfeiture of Shares on 12" April, 2006

712,957,510 | 2,138,872,530| Issue of Bonus Shares inratio of 1:2 on 8" November, 2006 by

Capitalization of General Reserve.

Ason31* - [2,138,872,530

March, 2010




18. CORPORATE BENEFITS

DIVIDEND HISTORY
Years Interim / Final Rate PerShare Amount
% ) (X in million)
2005-06 Interim 250 25 35,648.35
Final 200 20 28,518.68
2006-07 Interim 180 18 38,499.66
Final 130 13 27,805.31
2007-08 Interim 180 18 38,499.66
Final 140 14 28,944.22
2008-09 Interim 180 18 38,499.66
Final 140 14 29,944.22
2009-10 Interim 180 18 38,499.66
Final (Proposed) 150 15 32,083.09

19. TRANSFER OF UNPAID/ UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND AMOUNT TO INVESTOR EDUCATION & PROTECTION FUND (IEPF)

During the year under report, an amount of ¥ 3,744,255 and ¥ 3,888,213 pertaining to unpaid dividend for the financial year

2001-02 and 2002-03 (Interim) respectively was transferred to the Investor Education & Protection Fund (IEPF) set up by the

Central Government. This is in accordance with the sections 205A and 205C of the Companies Act, 1956 requiring transfer of
dividend remaining unclaimed and unpaid for a period of 7 years from the due date to the IEPF.

Unclaimed final dividend for the year 2002-03 (Final) is due for transfer to IEPF on or before 28" October, 2010. Al
Shareholders, whose dividend is unpaid, are requested to lodge their claim with M/s Karvy, the RTA by submitting an application
before 30" September, 2010 since no claim will lie against the Company or the IEPF once the dividend amount is deposited in

IEPF

Members who have not encashed their dividend warrants within their validity period may write to the Company at its Registered
office or M/s Karvy, the RTA, for revalidating or obtaining duplicate warrant.

Given below are the proposed dates for transfer of the unclaimed dividend to IEPF by the Company during this and next

calendar year:

Financial Year Date of Declaration Proposed Date for transfer to [EPF*
2002-03 - Final 29.09.2003 28.10.2010
2003-04 - Interim 04.02.2004 03.03.2011

Final 29.09.2004 28.10.2011
*Indicative dates, actual dates may vary

20. DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES AND LIQUIDITY

Description No. of Shareholders Shares % to Equity
CDSL 71,094 252,428,921 11.80
NSDL 316,694 327,817,869 15.33
PHYSICAL 7,171 1,558,625,740 72.87
Total 394,959 2,138,872,530 100.00

The shares of the Company are in compulsory dematerialized segment and are available for trading in depository system of
both National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited. As on 31* March, 2010,

553,131,857 Equity shares forming 25.86% of divested shareholding, stood dematerialized.



21. OUTSTANDING GDRs/ADRs/WARRANTS OR CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENT
No GDRs, ADRs, Warrants or Convertible Instruments have beenissued by the Company.

22. ASSETS/BASINS/PLANTS/INSTITUTES

ASSETS

Mumbai High Asset, Mumbai

Neelam & Heera Asset, Mumbai

Bassein & Satellite Asset, Mumbai

Ahmedabad Asset, Ahmedabad

AnkleshwarAsset, Ankleshwar

MehsanaAsset, Mehsana

Rajahmundry Asset, Rajahmundry

10. Karaikal Asset, Karaikal

11. AssamAsset, Nazira

12. TripuraAsset, Agartala

13. Eastern offshore Asset, Kakinada, Andhra Pradesh

BASINS

Western Offshore Basin, Mumbai

Western Onshore Basin, Vadodara

KG-PG Basin, Chennai

Cauvery Basin, Chennai

Assam & Assam-Arakan Basin, Jorhat

MBA Basin and CBM Development Project, Kolkata/Bokaro

Frontier Basin, Dehradun

PLANTS

Uran Plant, Uran

Hazira Plant, Hazira

C2-C3-C4 Plant, Dahej, Gujarat

INSTITUTES

Keshava Deva Malaviya Institute of Petroleum Exploration (KDMIPE), Dehradun

Institute of Drilling Technology (IDT), Dehradun

Institute of Reservoir Studies, (IRS), Ahmedabad

Institute of Oil & Gas Production Technology, (IOGPT), Navi Mumbai

Institute of Engineering & Ocean Technology, (IEOT), Navi Mumbai

Geo-data Processing & Interpretation Center (GEOPIC), Dehradun

ONGC Academy, Dehradun

Institute of Petroleum Safety, Health & Environment Management, (IPSHEM), Goa

Institute of Biotechnology & Geotectonics Studies (INBIGS), Jorhat

10. School of Maintenance Practices (SMP), Vadodara
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23.

24,

25.

26.

21.

28.

29.

11. Centre for Excellence in Well Logging (CEWL), Vadodara

12. Regional Training Institutes, (RTls) Navi Mumbai, Chennai, Sibasagarand Vadodara.
INVESTOR SERVICES AND ADDRESSES FOR SHAREHOLDERS' CORRESPONDENCE
These have been givenat 7.3 above.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The framework for risk assessment and minimisation there to has been evaluated and further improvements, if any, suggested
by experts shall be launched.

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATEFROM THE AUDITORS

Certificate from the Auditors of the Company, confirming compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated
under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, is annexed to the Directors' Report forming part of the Annual Report. The Certificate
has also been forwarded to the stock exchanges where the securities of the Company are listed.

ADOPTION OF NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS OF CLAUSE 49

The following non-mandatory requirements have beenimplemented and reflected elsewhere in this report;

The Company has constituted a Remuneration Committee (Refer para7.2).

Shareholders' Rights - Communication of financial results (Refer para 14)

Audit Qualifications - the Company is in the regime of unqualified financial statements.

Training of Board members and mechanism for evaluation of non-executive Board members {Refer para 2.3(f)}

During the year, the Company has putin place a comprehensive Whistle Blower Policy which has been hosted on the intranet
of ONGC.

The said policy provides an opportunity to the employees to raise concerns and to access in good faith the Audit & Ethics
Comnmittee, to the highest possible standards of ethical, moral and legal business conduct. The Policy ensures an open
communication, in case employees observe unethical and improper practices or any other wrongful conduct in the Company
and provides necessary safeguards for protection of employees from reprisals or victimization and to prohibit managerial
personnel from taking any adverse personnel action against those employees.

GUIDELINES ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE BY DPE

In May, 2010, the Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) has notified mandatory Guidelines on Corporate Governance, 2010
for Central Public Sector Enterprises. The Board of Directors of ONGC have adopted these guidelines as the Board approved
policy on Corporate Governance. .

No items of expenditure have been debited in books of accounts, which are not for the purpose of business. No expenses, which
are personal in nature, have been incurred for the Board of Directors and top management.

Administrative Expenses

The administrative and Office expenses is 5.22% of total expenses (excluding the purchases of MRPL Products) in 2009-10 as
against 4.67% in 2008-09.However, the administrative and office expenses is 5.21 % of total expenses (including the
purchases of MRPL Products) in 2009-10 as against 3.79 % during the previous year.

SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT

Secretarial Compliance Report confirming compliance to the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 1956, Listing Agreement,
SEBI guidelines and all other related rules and regulations relating to capital market, though not mandatory, obtained from a
practicing Company Secretary, was noted by the Board and forms part of the Directors' Report.

FEE TOSTATUTORY AUDITORS

The fee paid/ payable to the Statutory Auditors for the year is Rs 14.58 million (previous year ¥ 12.75 million) including
T 0.75million (previous year 0.75 million) as fee for Certification of Corporate Governance Report, ¥ 3 million (previous year
¥ 2.4 million) for Limited review report and ¥ 2.08 million (previous year ¥ 1.60 million) for NELP Certification plus applicable
service tax and reasonable travelling and out of pocket expenses actually incurred / reimbursable.



AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE
OF CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To
The Members
Oil And Natural Gas Corporation Ltd.

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Goverance by Oil And Natural Gas Corporation Limited for the year ended 31*
March, 2010, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement entered info by the Company with the Stock Exchanges.

The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination as carried out in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance (as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing agreement) issued by The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and was limited to review the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company, for ensuring the
compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of an opinion on financial statements of the
Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company, except that the Board
of Directors does not comprise of the required number of independent directors and non-executive directors as per the terms of provisions of
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Clause 49 of the above
mentioned Listing Agreement.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Kalyaniwalla & Mistry For Arun K. Agarwal & Associates For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No : 104607W) (Firm Regn. No : 003917N) (Firm Regn. No : 302049E)
(Ermin K. Irani) (Arun Agarwal) (B.K.Sipani)

Partner (Mem. No. 35646) Partner (Mem. No. 82899) Partner (Mem. No. 88926)
For P.S.D. & Associates For Padmanabhan Ramani & Ramanujam

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

(Firm Regn. No : 004501C) (Firm Regn. No : 002510S)

(Prakash Sharma) (G Vivekananthan)

Partner (Mem. No. 72332) Partner (Mem. No. 28339)

New Delhi

29" July, 2010



SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The Board of Directors,

Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Ltd
Regd. Office: Jeevan Bharti, Tower I,
124, Indira Chowk,

New Delhi-110001.

We have examined the registers, records and documents of Qil and Natural Gas Corporation Ltd. (the Company) for the financial year ended on
31.3.2010 according to the provisions of:

The CompaniesAct, 1956 and Rules made under the Act;

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Byelaws framed under the Act;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 1997;
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;

The Equity Listing Agreement with the Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. and the National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. and

Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises as stipulated in the O.M.No. 18(8)/2005-GM dated 14" May, 2010 of
the Ministry of Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises, Govenment of India (“the DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance”).

Based on our examination and verification of records produced to us and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
Company, in our opinion, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act”) and Rules made under the Act
and the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company with regard to:

(a) Maintenance of statutory registers and documents and making necessary entries therein;

(b) Filing of the requisite forms and returns with the Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi and Haryana within the time prescribed under the Act
and the Rules made thereunder.

(¢) Service of documents by the Company on its members and the Registrar of Companies.

(d) Closure of Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company from 15" September 2009 to 23" September 2009 (both days
inclusive).

(e) Notice of Board Meetings and Committee meetings of Directors;

(fy Convening and holding of the meetings of Directors and Committees of Directors including passing of resolutions by circulation;
(g) The 16" Annual General Meeting held on 23" September 2009.

(h) Minutes of proceedings of General Meeting and meetings of Board and its committees.

(i) Constitution of Board of Directors and appointment, retirement and re-appointment of directors;

(i) Appointmentof Chairman and Managing Director, Whole Time Directors and non-executive Directors and their remuneration.

(k) The Directors disclosed their interests and concerns in contracts and arrangements, shareholdings and directorships in other companies
and interests in other entities and their disclosures have been noted and recorded by the Board.

(I) Transfers and transmission of shares and issue and delivery of original and duplicate certificates of shares; dematerialization/
rematerialization of shares;

(m) Declaration and payment of dividend including interim dividend;

(n) Transferof certain amounts as required under the Act to the Investor Education and Protection Fund;



o) Investment of Company's funds including inter corporate loans and investments.
p) Appointmentand remuneration of Auditors.

(

(

(q) Appointmentof CostAuditors under Section 233B of the Act.

() The Company made application to the Central Government seeking exemption from provisions of Section 212(1) of the Act in relation fo its
gﬁg.iizaor{ocl;ompanies for the year 2009-10. Approval of Central Government has been received vide letter No.47/506/2010-CL-lll dated

(s) The Company wherever necessary has kept in abeyance rights to dividend declared at the Annual General Meeting held on 23" September,
2009 and interim dividend declared on 18.12.2009, pending registration of transfer of shares in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

t) The Company has notinvited/accepted any deposits falling within the purview of Section 58A of the Act during the financial year.
u) The Company has not made any secured borrowings during the financial year ended on 31" March, 2010.

v) The Company has notbought back any shares during the financial year.

(
(
(
(w) The Company has not altered any provisions of its Memorandum of Association or Articles of Association during the financial year.

(x) The Company has created a trust, namely, the ONGC Employees Contributory Provident Fund Trust for its employees. The Company has
deposited both the employees' and employer's contribution with the above Trust within the prescribed time pursuant to Section 418 of the Act.

(y) The Company has substantially observed the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, although
recommendatory in nature.

(z) There was no prosecution initiated against or show cause notice received by the Company and no fines or any other punishment was
imposed on the Company, its Directors and officers during the financial year for any offences under the Act.

2. We further report that the Company has complied with the provisions of the Depositories Act, 1996 and Regulations framed there-under with
regard to dematerialisation/rematerialisation of securities and reconciliation of records of dematerialized securities with all securities issued
by the Company.

3. Wefurtherreport that:

(i) The Company has complied with the requirements of Equity Listing Agreements entered into with the Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd and the
National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. except that the Board of Directors does not comprise of the required number of independent and non-
executive directors as per clause 49(I)(A) of the Listing Agreements.

(i) The Company has complied with the provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 1997 with regard to disclosures and maintenance of records required under the Regulations.

(iii) The Company has complied with the provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992
with regard to disclosures and maintenance of records required under the Regulations.

4. Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to explanations given to us by the management, we certify that, except the
composition of the Board of Directors with regard to independent Directors, and appointment of one independent Director on the Boards of its
subsidiary companies, the Company has complied with the DPE guidelines on Corporate Governance.

For A. N. Kukreja & Co.
Company Secretaries.

(A. N. Kukreja)
Proprietor
CP No.2318
New Delhi
20" July, 2010.






(US$ in million)
As on 31.03.2010 For the year 2009-10
SrNo | Name of Subsidiary Company (@) (b) (c) (d) (e) ] (@ (h)
Details of Investment
except in case of A
co | s | 0, | 2 SRS | | i | P

subsidiaries)
1 | ONGC Videsh Ltd
2 | Mangalore Refinery & Petrochemicals Limited
3 | ONGC Nile Ganga B.V.* 0.10 | 2,042.96 | 2,664.72 | 621.66 - 1,814.85 650.23 229.49
4 | ONGC Narmada Limited 0.16 (11.54) 20.75 3213 - - (247) -
5 | ONGC Amazon Alaknanda Limited* 437.50 217.50 697.79 42.79 - 139.06 72.66 15.35
6 | ONGC Do Brasil Explorancao Petrolifera Ltda |  0.00 - 0.00 - - - - -
7 | ONGC Campos Ltda. 185.16 {46.25) 702.37 | 563.46 - 31.16 (1.67) (18.03)
8 | ONGC Nile Ganga (Cyprus) Ltd. 0.00 123.79 123.91 0.13 - - 1.12 0.11
9 | ONGC Nile Ganga (San Cristobal) B.V.* 0.07 347.52 481.30 | 133.71 - 299.60 187.84 92.60
10 | Jarpeno Limited 019 | 1,927.38 | 3,251.71 | 1,324.14 - - 5.23 0.04
11 | Imperial Energy Corporation Plc. 5.07 934.23 940.31 1.01 - - 21.24 0.31
12 | Imperial Energy Limited - 11.93 11.93 - - - (7.12) -
13 | Rus Imperial Corporation plc. 0.59 - 0.59 - - - - -
14 | Imperial Energy Finance (Jersey) Limited - - - - - - - -
15 | Biancus Holdings Limited - 18.37 | 1,173.02 | 1,154.65 - - 1.07 0.16
16 | Rus Imperial Limited - - - - - - - -
17 | Imperial Energy Tomsk Limited - (4.64) 11.16 15.80 - - (0.61) -
18 | Imperial Energy (Cyprus) Limited 0.03 23.25 185.04 161.76 - - (6.60) -
19 | Imperial Energy Nord Limited 0.03 104.53 313.01 208.45 - - (7.09) -
20 | Imperial Energy Gas Limited - (0.17) - 0.17 - - (0.03) -
21 | Nefsilius Holdings Limited - (0.11) 1.01 1.12 - - (0.04) -
22 | RKImperial Energy Kostanai Limited - (0.09) - 0.09 - - (0.02) -
23 | Imperial Frac Services (Cyprus) Limited - (0.14) - 0.14 - - (0.03) -
24 | Freshspring Investments Limited - 0.11) - 0.11 - - (0.02) -
25 | Redcliffe Holdings Limited - (2.40) 37.33 39.73 - - (1.09) -
26 | San Agio Investments Limited - (5.87) 29.91 35.78 - - (7.711) 0.32
27 | Imperial Energy Kostanai Limited - 11.35 11.35 - - - (0.04) -
28 | 00O Sibinterneft - (12.55) 11.09 23.64 - - (4.81) -
29 | 000 Allianceneftegaz - 9.67 34858 | 338.91 - 141.07 (35.58) -
30 | OOO Nord Imperial - (26.42) 703.86 | 730.28 - 31.60 (108.32) -
31 | OO0 Imperial Energy - - - - - - - -
32 | 00O Imperial Energy Tomsk Gas - (0.23) 0.04 0.27 - - (0.05) -
33 | 00O Stratum - (0.01) - 0.01 - - - -
34 | 00O Imperial Trans Service - 0.77 299 222 - - 0.01 -
35 | 00O Rus Imperial Group - 10.07 77.88 67.81 - - 7.08 -
36 | TOO Sevkazgra - - - - - - - -
37 | AB Startkapitalet nr 5636*

(Name changed to Carabobo One AB) 0.01 (0.01) 0.03 0.03 - - (0.01) -

38 | Petro Carabobo Ganga B.V. 0.02 (0.01) 0.02 0.01 - - (0.01)

*including figures in respect of Subsidiaries & JV Companies.

Exchange Rate

As on 31.03.2010

Average Rate for 2009-10

Note:-

1 US$ =T 45.1300

1US$ =T 47.4433

In view of exemption granted by the Central Govemment under Section 212(8) of the Companies Act, 1956, copies of the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account, Report of Directors and Auditors of the
Subsidiary are not attached to the Balance Sheet of the Company. The annual accounts of the subsidiary and the related detailed information will be made available to the holding company and subsidiary
investors, seeking such information at any point of time. The same are also available for inspection by any investor at the Registered Office of the Company as well as at the Registered Office of the
Subsidiary. The details of the accounts of individual subsidiary are available at www.ongcindia.com.



DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

X in million)
As on 31.03.2010 For the year 2009-10
0] ) (@ (b) (© (d) (e) @ (9) {h) 0] ()]
Details of Investment
Profit after | Proposed d Total Total (except in case of Profit before | Provision for| Profitafter | Proposed
Taxation Divi?iend L Mg Assets | Liabilities 's“l}’:sslg:;’gs')" the Tumover | .yation Taxation Taxation Divi%end
10,000.00 49,485.41 284,984.79 | 225,499.38 1,359.84 48,357.27| 18,940.30 7,229.02 11,711.28 -
17,618.50 38,347.02 145,828.27 | 89,862.75 16,236.62 318,851.74| 16,918.45 5,794.68 11,123.77 |2,103.13
420.74 - 451 92,198.78 120,258.81 | 28,055.52 - 86,102.47| 30,849.06 10,887.76 19,961.29 -
(2.47) - 7.22 (520.80) 936.45 1,450.03 - - (117.32) - (117.32) -
57.31 - 19,744.38 9,815.78 31,491.26 1,931.11 - 6,597.47 3,447.23 728.25 2,718.98 -
- - 0.02 - 0.02 - - - - - - -
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1.01 - 0.09 5,586.51 5,592.24 5.64 - - 53.14 5.22 47.92 -
95.24 - 3.16 15,683.58 21,721.07 6,034.33 - 14,214.01 8,911.75 4,393.25 4,518.50 -
5.19 - 857 86,982.66 146,749.67 | 59,758.44 - - 248.13 1.90 246.23 -
20.93 - 228.81 42,161.80 42,436.19 45.58 - - 1,007.70 14.71 992.99 -
(7.12) - - 538.40 538.40 - - || (337.80) - | (33780) -
- - 26.63 - 26.63 - - - - - - -
0.91 - - 829.04 52,938.39 | 52,109.35 - - 50.76 7.59 43.17 -
(0.61) - - (209.40) 503.65 713.05 - - (28.94) - (28.94) -
(6.60) - 1.35 1,049.27 8,350.86 7,300.23 - - (313.13) - (313.13) -
(7.09) - 1.35 4,717.44 14,126.14 9,407.35 - - (336.37) - (336.37) -
(0.03) - . (7.67) - 767 - ) - (1.42) -
(0.04) - 1 (4.96) 4558 50.55 - L (90 - (1.90) -
(0.02) - - (4.06) - 4.06 - - (0.95) - (0.95) -
(0.03) : £ (6.32) - 6.32 - NPT - (1.42) -
(0.02) ] . (4.96) - 496 - | (09 - (0.95) -
(1.09) - .| (10831) | 168470 | 1,793.01 - N ) - (51.71) -
(8.03) - - (284.91) 1,349.84 | 161475 - - (365.79) 15.18 (380.97) -
(0.04) ; ! 51223 512.23 - - | 90 - (1.90) -
(481) : .| (566.38) 50049 | 1,066.87 - || (22820) - | (22820 -
(35.58) - - 436.41 15,731.42 | 15,295.01 - 6,692.83| (1,688.03) - (1,688.03) -
(108.32) - | (1,19233) | 3176520 | 32,957.54 - 1499.21| (5139.06) - | (5.139.06) -
(0.05) - ) (10.38) 1.81 12.19 - 1 e - (2.37) -
- - L (0.45) ] 045 - - ] - - -
0.01 - - 34.75 134.94 100.19 - - 047 - 047 -
7.08 - - 454.46 3,514.72 3,060.27 - - 335.90 - 335.90 -
(0.01) L 0.45 (0.45) 135 135 - 1 03 - (0.36) -
(0.01) 0.90 (0.45) 0.90 045 ’ 1 (039 - (0.38) -




To

AUDITORS' REPORT

The Members Of Oil And Natural Gas Corporation Limited

1.

5.

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of OIL AND NATURAL GAS CORPORATION LIMITED (the Company) as at
31" March, 2010, the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date, annexed thereto in
which are incorporated the Company's share in the total value of assets, liabilities, expenditure and income of 124 blocks under
New Exploration Licensing Policy (NELPs)/ Joint Venture (JVs) accounts for exploration and production out of which 70 NELP/ JV
accounts have been audited by one of the firms of statutory auditors, 47 NELPs /JVs accounts have been certified by other firms of
Chartered Accountants and 7 NELP/JVs are as certified by the management (Refer Note 24.3.1 and 24.3.2 of Schedule 27 of the
financial statements). These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amount and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have placed reliance on technical/ commercial evaluation by the management in respect of categorization of wells as
exploratory, development and producing, allocation of costincurred on them, depletion of producing properties / impairment on the
basis of the proved developed hydrocarbons reserves, liability for abandonment costs, liability under NELP and nominated blocks
for under performance against agreed Minimum Work Programme and allocation of depreciation on process platforms to
transportation and facilities.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003 (as amended) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of
Section 227(4A) of the Companies Act, 1956, we enclose in the Annexure (read with paragraph 1 above) a statement on the matters
specified in paragraph 4 and 5 of the said Order.

Further to our comments referred to in paragraph 4 above we report as follows:

5.1. We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the

purposes of our audit;

5.2. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our examination

of those books;

5.3. The Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books

of account;

5.4. In our opinion, the Profit and Loss Account, the Balance Sheet and the Cash Flow Statement comply with the accounting standards

referred toin sub-section (3C) of Section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956.

5.5. Disclosure in terms of clause (g) of sub-section (1) of section 274 of the Companies Act, 1956 is not required as per notification

number GSR 829(E) dated October 21, 2003 issued by the Department of Company Affairs.



5.6. Without qualifying our opinion we invite attention to Note no. 2.1 t0 2.3 of Schedule 27 in respect of recognition of sales revenue of
crude oil and natural gas and Note no. 13 of Schedule 27 regarding certain observations made by auditors of a Jointly Controlled
assets- Panna Mukta & Tapti, impact of which is not ascertainable, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the said accounts read with notes to account, give the information required by the Companies Act,

1956 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in

India:

Inthe case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31" March, 2010;
Inthe case of the Profit & Loss Account, of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date; and
Inthe case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows of the Company for the year ended on that date.

ForArun K. Agarwal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn. No: 003917N)

(Rajesh Surolia)
Partner (Mem. No. 88008)

For Kalyaniwalla & Mistry
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn. No: 104607W)

(Ermin K. Irani)
Partner (Mem.No.35646)

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn. No: 302049E)

(B. K. Sipani)
Partner (Mem. No. 88926)

For Padmanabhan Ramani & Ramanujam
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn. No: 002510S)

(K.R.Ganesh)
Partner (Mem. No 22439)

ForP.S.D. & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn. No: 004501C)

(Prakash Sharma)
Partner (Mem. No. 72332)

New Delhi
28" May, 2010



ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS' REPORT

1. a) The Company has generally maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation of

b)

Y
~—

b

~—

o
~

D
~—

a

~—

(=2
~—

2]
~—

fixed assets.

As per information and explanations given to us, the fixed assets, other than those which are underground/ submerged/ under
joint venture / assets held by employees, having substantial value have been physically verified by the management in phased
manner, which in our opinion is reasonable, having regard to the size of the company and nature of its assets. The reconciliation
of physically verified assets with the book records is in progress. Discrepancies noticed on physical verification and
consequential adjustments are carried out on completion of reconciliation. According to the information and explanations given
by the management and in our opinion, the same is not material.

The Company has not disposed off a substantial part of fixed assets during the year.

The inventory has been physically verified in a phased manner (excluding inventory lying with third parties, at some of the site-
locations, inventory with joint ventures and material in transit) during the year by the management. In our opinion, the frequency
of verification is reasonable.

In our opinion, the procedures of physical verification of inventory followed by the management are generally reasonable and
adequate in relation to the size of the Company and nature ofits business.

The Company has generally maintained proper records of inventory except for recording of consumption at a few of its site-
locations. In our opinion the discrepancies noticed on physical verification between the physical stock and book records were not
material having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its business. In cases where discrepancies noticed on physical
verification have been identified with inventory records, necessary adjustments have been carried out in the books. In respect of
cases where the reconciliation is not complete, the management has stated that the same would be adjusted in due course.

The Company has granted secured loans to seven parties covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the
Companies Act, 1956. The amount outstanding at the year end is ¥ 0.56 million and the maximum amount outstanding at any
time during the year was ¥ 3.58 million.

The rate of interestand other terms and conditions of the loans granted are not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.
The payment of principal amount and interest are regular.

There is no overdue amount in respect of loans granted to the parties listed in the register maintained under section 301 of the
CompaniesAct, 1956.

The Company has not taken any loans, secured or unsecured, from companies, firms or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 and consequently , the requirements of clause (jii)(f) and (iii)(g) of
paragraph 4 of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003 are not applicable.

In our opinion, and according fo the information and explanations given fo us, the internal control procedures are generally
adequate and commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business with regard to purchases of inventory,
fixed assets and sale of goods and services. During the course of our audit we have not observed any continuing failure to correct
major weaknesses in internal controls.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no contract or arrangement that needs to be
enteredin the register required to be maintained pursuance of section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4 (v) (b) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003 is not applicable to the company.
The Company has notaccepted any deposits from the public.
The Company has anintemal audit system, which in our opinion is commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account relating to materials, labour and other items of costs maintained by the Company
pursuant to the Rule made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 209 (1)(d) of the
Companies Act, 1956 and we are of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed accounts and records have been made and
maintained.

The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund,
Investor Education and Protection Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Wealth Tax, Custom
Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it. There are no such material outstanding statutory dues
accrued in accounts as of the last date of the financial year concerned for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.



10.
1.

Further, since the Central Government has ill date not prescribed the amount of cess payable under section 441 A of the
Companies Act, 1956, we are not in a position to comment upon the regularity or otherwise of the Company in depositing the

same.
b) Accordingtothe information and explanations given to us, the disputed statutory dues are as under:
Name of the Nature of Amount Period to which Forumwhere
Statute the dues (TInMillion) | theamountrelates dispute
(financial year) is pending
Income taxAct, 1961 Income Tax 5,280.79 1994-95t02009-10 Revisionary Authority
1,386.69 2005-06t02009-10 Appellate Authority
65.78 2000-01t02009-10 High Court
8,997.01 1991-92102009-10 Supreme Court
Total 15,730.27
Central Excise Act 1944 Central Excise duty/ 4.54 2005-06t02009-10 Commissioner
Interest/Penalty 15.18 2006-07 t0 2007-08 CBE&C
1185.89 2002-03t02009-10 CESTAT
147.32 1980-81 0 2006-07 High Court
Total 1,352.93
The CustomsAct, 1962 Customs Duty/ 1,133.02 1998-99 10 2009-10 Asst. Commissioner
Penalty/ 10.00 2007-08 CESTAT
Interest 1,437 47 1995-96 to 1996-97 Ministry of Finance
Total 2580.49
Oilfields (Regulation & Royalty/ 18,849.79 1992-93 10 2009-10 Dept. of Geology
DevelopmentAct, 1948)/ Surface rent/ and Mining,
AP Mines and Geology Act Interest/ A.P.High Court
Penalty
AP Mineral BearingLands Cess 1,171.84 2004-05t02009-10 Dept. of Geology
(Infrastructure) Cess andMining,
A.P.High Court
Oil Industries Cess/Interest 7.72 2004-05t02009-10 Commissioner
(Development)Act,1974 7.07 2002-03 to 2004-05 CESTAT
8.61 2001-02t0 2003-04 High Court
Total 23.40
Central Sales TaxAct 1956 Salestax/ 13,257.25 1978-79102009-10 Demand Notice
and respective States' Turnover Tax/ 5.69 Deputy Commissioner
Sales TaxAct Penalty/ 1,092.02 2001-02 t0 2008-07 Joint Commissioner
Interest 6.99 1992-93 t0 2002-03 CT-Appeals
8,732.35 2004-05 t02005-06 Tribunal
0.35 2006-07 High Court
Total 23,094.65
Municipal Corporation Octroi Duty 66.89 1978-79102009-10 Supreme Court
of MumbaiAct
(Octroi Rules, 1965)
Assam Specified Land Taxon Crude oil and 2,274.50 2004-05t02009-10 Guwahati High Court
TaxationAct Natural Gas

The Company does not have accumulated losses at the end of the current financial year and has notincurred cash losses either

during the year or during the immediately preceding financial year.
The Company has notissued any debentures and has not defaulted in repayment of dues to financial institutions or banks.



12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.
19.
20.
21.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted loans and advance soon
the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other securities.

The Company is not a chit fund or a nidhi mutual benefit fund/ society. Accordingly, the provision of clause (xiii) of paragraph 4 of the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003 are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not dealing or trading in shares,
securities, debentures and other investments.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the terms and conditions on which the Company has
given guarantees for loans taken by others from banks or financial institutions are not prima facie prejudicial to the interest of the
Company, since these guarantees are given for the subsidiary companies promoted by the Company.

In our opinion, the term loans have been applied for the purpose for which they were raised.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we
report that no funds raised on short terms basis have been used forlong term investment.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares during the year.
The Company has notissued any debentures.
The Company has not raised any money by way of public issue during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud on or by the company has been noticed or reported during the
year.

ForArun K. Agarwal & Associates For Singhi & Co. ForP.S.D. & Associates
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn. No: 003917N) (Firm Regn. No: 302049E) (Firm Regn. No: 004501C)
(Rajesh Surolia) (B. K. Sipani) (Prakash Sharma)
Partner (Mem. No. 88008) Partner (Mem. No. 88926) Partner (Mem. No. 72332)
For Kalyaniwalla & Mistry For Padmanabhan Ramani & Ramanujam

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

(Firm Regn. No: 104607W) (Firm Regn. No: 002510S)

(ErminK. Irani) (K.R. Ganesh)

Partner (Mem.No.35646) Partner (Mem. No 22439)

New Delhi

28" May, 2010
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OIL AND NATURAL GAS CORPORATION LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31" MARCH, 2010

 in million)
Schedule As at As at
31" March, 31"March,
2010 2009
SOURCES OF FUNDS
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
Share Capital 1 21,388.87 21,388.87
Reserves and Surplus 2 851,437.15 765,965.28
872,826.02 787,354.15
LOAN FUNDS
Unsecured Loans 3 49.75 267.35
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (NET) 89,182.13 78,022.35
LIABILITY FOR ABANDONMENT COST 164,006.68 160,089.65
TOTAL 1,126,064.58 1,025,733.50
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
FIXED ASSETS 4
Gross Block 715,537.79 613,556.05
Less: Depreciation and Impairment 559,052.77 509.412.32
NET BLOCK 156,485.02 104,143.73
CAPITAL WORKS-IN-PROGRESS 5 102,413.54 116,964.57
258,898.56 221,108.30
PRODUCING PROPERTIES 6
Gross Cost 843,112.16 757,297.13
Less: Depletion and Impairment 440,290.04 395,717.19
NET PRODUCING PROPERTIES 402,822.12 361,579.94
EXPLORATORY/DEVELOPMENT WELLS-IN-PROGRESS 7 55,496.83 50,687.37
INVESTMENTS 8 57,720.33 50,903.21
CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES
Inventories 9 46,785.72 40,606.71
Sundry Debtors 10 30,586.37 40,838.04
Cash and Bank Balances 11A 108,279.29 121,405.48
Deposit with Scheduled Bank Under Site Restoration Fund Scheme 11B 74,031.06 69,556.64
Other Current Assets 12 6,333.05 13,548.86
Loans and Advances 13 271,697.74 260,043.83
537,713.23 545,999.56
LESS: CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
Current Liabilities 14 120,875.63 140,252.80
Provisions 15 74,124.02 70,798.18
194,999.65 211,050.98
NET CURRENT ASSETS 342,713.58 334,948.58
MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE 16 8,413.16 6,506.10
(To the extent not written off or adjusted)
TOTAL 1,126,064.58 1,025,733.50
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 26
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS 27

Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet

For and On behalf of the Board

(N. K. Sinha) (D. K. Sarraf) (R. S. Sharma)

Company Secretary Director (Finance) Chairman & Managing Director
In terms of our report of even date attached

For Arun K. Agarwal & Associates For Singhi & Co. For P.S.D & Associates
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

(Rajesh Surolia) (B. K. Sipani) (Prakash Sharma)

Partner (Mem. No. 88008)
For Kalyaniwalla & Mistry

Partner (Mem. No. 88926)
For Padmanabhan Ramani & Ramanujam

Partner (Mem. No. 72332)

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(Emin K. Irani) (K. R. Ganesh)

Partner (Mem.No. 35646) Partner (Mem. No.22439 )
New Delhi

May 28, 2010



OIL AND NATURAL GAS CORPORATION LIMITED T
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2010  Eief

(X in million)
Schedule 2009-10 2008-09
INCOME
Gross Sales 17 602,048.19 639,477.08
Less Excise Duty 2,185.42 3,494.11
Net Sales 599,862.77 635,982.97
Other Income 18 41,866.86 53,122.72
641,729.63 689,105.69
EXPENDITURE
(Increase)/ Decrease in stock 19 (1,180.38) (811.02)
Purchases 139.31 85,166.03
Production, Transportation, Selling and Distribution Expenditure 20 243,199.46 232,438.87
Depreciation, Depletion, Amortisation and Impairment 21 146,431.88 119,541.97
Financing Costs 22 144.23 1,189.17
Provisions and Write-offs 23 2,974.01 11,665.77
Adjustments relating to Prior Period (Net) 24 182.69 765.31
391,891.20 449,956.10
Profit before Tax and Extraordinary items 249,838.43 239,149.59
Extraordinary items - 657.73
Profit before Tax 249,838.43 239,807.32
Provision for Taxation
- Current Tax (including Wealth Tax ¥ 22.50 million, Previous year ¥ 20.00 million) 71,202.50 79,070.00
- Earlier years (199.41) (5,540.19)
- Deferred Tax 11,159.78 4,314.36
- Fringe Benefit Tax - 700.00
Profit after Taxation 167,675.56 161,263.15
Surplus at the beginning 0.13 0.95
BALANCE AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION 167,675.69 161,264.10
APPROPRIATIONS
Proposed Dividend 32,083.09 29,944.22
Interim Dividend 38,499.71 38,499.71
Tax on Dividend 11,615.61 11,632.04
Transfer to General Reserve 85,477.00 81,188.00
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 0.28 0.13
167,675.69 161,264.10
Earnings per Equity Share - Basic and Diluted (3) 25
(Face Value ¥ 10/-Per Share)
- before Extraordinary items (net of tax) 7839 75.19
- after Extraordinary items 7839 7540
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 26
NOTES TOACCOUNTS 27
Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Profit & Loss Account.
For and On behalf of the Board
{N. K. Sinha) (D.K. Sarraf) (R. S. Sharma)
Company Secretary Director (Finance) Chairman & Managing Director
In terms of our report of even date attached
For Arun K. Agarwal & Associates For Singhi & Co. For P.S.D & Associates
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(Rajesh Surolia) (B. K. Sipani) (Prakash Sharma)
Partner (Mem. No. 88008) Partner (Mem. No. 88926) Partner (Mem. No. 72332)
For Kalyaniwalla & Mistry For Padmanabhan Ramani & Ramanujam
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(Ermin K. Irani) (K. R. Ganesh)
Partner (Mem.No. 35646) Partner (Mem. No.22439 )
New Delhi
May 28, 2010



SCHEDULE-1 & in million)

As at As at
31*March, 31* March,
2010 2009
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised:
15000,000,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each 150,000.00 150,000.00
Issued and Subscribed:
2138,891,502 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each 21,388.92 21,388.92
Paid up:
2138,872,530 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each 21,388.73 21,388.73
Add: Shares forfeited 0.14 0.14
TOTAL _21,388.87 _21,388.87

Notes : The above includes:
(i) 342,853,716 Equity Shares issued as fully paid up to the President of India without payment being received in cash in terms of
Oil and Natural Gas Commission (Transfer of Undertaking and Repeal) Act, 1993.
(ii) 1,789,397,876 Equity Shares issued as fully paid up by way of bonus shares by capitalisation of General Reserve and Securities

Premium.

SCHEDULE-2 @& in million)

As at As at
31*March, 31% March,

2010 2009

RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Capital Reserve * 159.44 159.44

(As per last year Balance Sheet)

Deferred Government Grant

a) Opening Balance 44.73 51.75

b) Less: Deduction during the year ** 5.28 7.02
39.45 44.73

Securities Premium Account 168.12 168.12

(As per last year Balance Sheet)

Insurance Reserve 2,500.00 2,500.00

(As per last year Balance Sheet)

General Reserve

a) Opening Balance 763,092.86 681,904.86

b) Add: Transferred from Profit and Loss Account 85477.00 81,188.00

848,569.86 763,092.86
Profit and Loss Account 0.28 0.13
TOTAL 851,437.15 765,965.28

* Represents assessed value of assets received as gift
**Represents the amount equivalent to Depreciation transferred to Profit & Loss Account

once



SCHEDULE-3 @ in million)
As at As at
31" March, 31*March,
2010 2009
UNSECURED LOANS
Long Term

Foreign Currency Loans:

- From Banks 49.75 267.35
TOTAL 49.75 267.
Repayable within one year .75 213.85
SCHEDULE - 4
FIXED ASSETS @ in million)

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT NET BLOCK

As at| Additions | Deletions/ As at Upto For the Year Deletions/| Upto As at As at
1% April, 2009 during | Adjustments 31 31 Impairment Adjustments 31" 31" 31
the year | during the March, March, | Deprecia- during March, March, March,
year 2010 2009 tion Charged | Reversed the year 2010 2010 2009

Land
i)Freehold 2,134.16 129.68 452 | 2,259.32 19.67 0.00 037 412 2,07 13.85  2,24547 | 2,114.48
ii)Leasehold 5,601.39 9.76 0.02 | 5611.13 306.31 51.53 0.00 0.00 0.71) 35855 | 5,252.58 | 5,295.08
Buildings and Bunk Houses [ 11,811.15 862.08 (26.77) | 12,700.00 [ 6,638.29 407.18 367 83.60 (36.24)] 7,001.78 | 5,698.22 | 5,172.86
Railway Sidings 89.95 0.00 0.00 89.95 82.06 1.10 0.00 0.00 0.00 83.16 6.79 7.89
Plant and Machinery 578,989.25 | 99,949.50 3,348.93 |675,589.82 | 491,089.10 | 50,807.06 22843 86.93 2,891.95|539,145.71 | 136,444.11 | 87,900.15
Fumiture & Fittings 4821.74| 3,360.02 4831 | 8,13345| 3,350.81 661.36 1.08 494 69.01( 3,939.30 | 4,194.15 | 1,470.93
Vehicles, Survey Ships, 5,367.16 55.59 20.30 | 540245 ( 4547.27 247.35 0.02 2.21 2116 4,7711.27 631.18 819.89

Crew Boats and Helicopters

608,814.80 |104,366.63 | 3,395.31 |709,786.12 | 506,033.51 | 52,175.58 | 233.57 181.80 2,947.24/565,313.62 | 154,472.50 | 102,781.29

Intangibles-Software 474125 1,012.09 167 | 5,751.67 | 3,378.81 362.00 0.01 0.00 1.67| 3,739.15( 2,012.52 | 1,362.44
TOTAL 613,556.05 |105,378.72 | 3,396.98 |715,537.79 | 509,412.32 | 52,537.58 233.58 181.80 2,943.91| 559,052.77 | 156,485.02 (104,143.73
Previous Year 574,637.76 | 42,092.72 | 3,174.43 |613,556.05 | 469,457.68 | 43,613.11 135.99 | 1,053.56 2,740.90|509,412.32 (104,143.73 -
The above includes

the Corporation's

Share in Joint

Venture Assets 31,032.55| 3,868.97 195.83 | 34,705.69 | 23557.07| 2.901.22 0.00 0.00 64.47( 26,393.82 | 8,311.87 -
Previous year 29,788.08 | 1441.24 196.77 | 31,032.55 | 19,859.27| 3,863.13 28.61 0.00 193.94| 23,557.07 | 7,475.48

Notes:

1. Land includes lands in respect of certain projects for which execution of lease/conveyance deeds are in process.

2. Registration of title deeds in respect of certain Buildings is pending execution.

3. Depreciation for the year includes ¥ 110.99 million taken to prior period (Previous year ¥ 56.90 million).

4. Depreciation on Intangibles-Software for the year is after reducing ¥ 424.55 million being amount written back on recomputation (Refer Note 6 of Schedule 27).
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SCHEDULE-5

 in million)
As at As at
31* March, 31% March,
2010 2009
CAPITAL WORKS-IN-PROGRESS
Buildings 776.45 266.61
Plant and Machinery 100,692.79 115,105.37
Advances for Capital Works and Progress Payments 20.12 119.17
Capital Stores (including in transit) 1,457.20 1,847.39
Less: Provision for Non-Moving Iltems 43.26 141.11
1,413.94 1,706.28
TOTAL 102,903.30 117,197.43
Less: Impairment
Opening Balance 232.86 405.15
Provided for the year 364.17 143.63
Transfer to Fixed Assets (61.64) (276.64)
Wirite back of Impairment (45.63) (39.28)
TOTAL 489.76 232.86
NET CAPITAL WORKS-IN-PROGRESS 102,413.54 116,964.57
SCHEDULE - 6 o
( in million)
As at As at
31* March, 31*March,
2010 2009
PRODUCING PROPERTIES
Gross Cost
Opening Balance 757,297.13 657,547.27
Transfer from Exploratory Wells-in-Progress 1,720.38 2,260.44
Transfer from Development Wells-in-Progress 52,128.45 42,916.86
Depreciation on Facilities 29,119.11 19,251.65
Increase/(Decrease) in estimated Abandonment costs 2,847.09 35,320.91
TOTAL 843,112.16 757,297.13
Less: Depletion & Impairment
Opening Balance 395,717.19 355,673.65
Depletion for the year 45,301.63 42,147.91
Transfer of Impairment from Development Wells in Progress 17.96 98.61
Impairment provided for the year 11.50 893.97
Wirite back of Impairment (758.24) (3,096.95)
TOTAL 440,290.04 395,717.19
NET PRODUCING PROPERTIES 402,822.12 361,579.94



SCHEDULE -7
& in million)
As at As at
31" March, 31" March,
2010 2009
A) EXPLORATORY WELLS-IN-PROGRESS
Gross Cost
Opening Balance 40,193.57 31,884.70
Expenditure during the year 68,801.85 40,959.23
Less : Sale proceeds of Oil and Gas (Net of levies) 3843 a3
68,763.42 40,911.92
Depreciation during the year 4,841.63 3,005.45
113,798.62 75,802.07
Less:
Transfer to Producing Properties 1,720.38 2,260.44
Wells written off during the year 65,028.68 33,019.92
Other adjustments (43.03) 328.14
66,706.03 35,608.50
47,092.59 40,193.57
Less : Provision for Dry Wells (Refer Note 8 of Sch-27) 9,383.67 8,465.19
EXPLORATORY WELLS-IN-PROGRESS 37,708.92 31,728.38
B) DEVELOPMENT WELLS-IN-PROGRESS
Opening Balance 19,026.48 13,408.31
Expenditure during the year 45,965.55 43,361.42
Depreciation during the year 4,979.20 5,173.61
Less: Transfer to Producing Properties 52,128.45 42,916.86
TOTAL 17,842.78 19,026.48
Less: Impairment
Opening Balance 67.49 260.22
Transfer to Producing Properties (17.96) (98.61)
Provision for the year 5.83 67.00
Write back during the year (0.49) (161.12)
TOTAL 54.87 67.49
NET DEVELOPMENT WELLS-IN-PROGRESS 17,787.91 18,958.99
EXPLORATORY/DEVELOPMENT WELLS-IN-PROGRESS (A+B) 55,496.83 50,687.37

oncc ES



SCHEDULE - 8 (% in million)
No.of  Face Value As at As at
Shares/  perShare/ 31" March, 31" March,
Bonds/Units Bond/Unit 2010 2009
(in %)
INVESTMENTS (AT COST)
LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS
(Fully Paid Up, uniess otherwise stated)
A. TRADE INVESTMENTS
1. Equity Shares (Quoted)
i) Indian Oil Corporation Limited 212,906,190 10  13,720.49 13,720.49
(Includes 106,453,095 bonus shares received during the year) (106,453,095)
ii) GAIL (India) Limited 61,259,323 10 2,451.06 2,451.06
iiiy Mangalore Refinery and Petrochemicals Ltd.(Subsidiary) 1,255,354,097 10  10,405.73 10,405.73
iv) Petronet LNG Limited 93,750,000 10 987.50 987.50
2. Equity Shares (Unquoted)
i) Pawan Hans Helicopter Limited 24,500 10,000 245.00 245,00
ii) Petronet MHB Limited 157,841,000 10 1,578.41 1,578.41
iii) Oil Spill Response Limited 100 * 0.01 0.01
iv) In wholly owned subsidiary ONGC-Videsh Ltd. 100,000,000 100  10,000.00 10,000.00
v) Mangalore SEZ Limited 13,000,000 10 130.00 130.00
vi) ONGC Mangalore Petrochemicals Ltd. 23,000 10 0.23 0.23
vii} ONGC Petro Additions Limited 20,967 10 0.21 0.21
viii) ONGC Teri Biotech Limited 24,990 10 0.25 0.25
ix) ONGC Tripura Power Company Ltd.
- Fully Paid 52,000 10 0.52 0.52
- Partly Paid (¥ 5 per share) 267,438,000 10 1,337.19 1,337.19
x) Dahej SEZ Limited 24,800 10 0.25 -
)
3. 0Oil Companies Govt. of India Special Bonds (Unquoted)
i) 7% Government of India Special Bonds 2012 851,907 10,000 8,519.07 8,519.07
ii) 8.40% Qil Companies' Govermment of India Special Bonds 2025 197,370 10,000 1,973.70 1,973.70
TOTAL TRADE INVESTMENTS 51,349.62 51,349.37
Less: Provision for Dimunition (Petronet MHB Ltd.) 446.66 446.66
50,902.96 50,902.71
B. NON-TRADE INVESTMENTS (Unquoted)
12% UP State Development Loan-2011 1 500,000 0.50 0.50
CURRENT INVESTMENTS
NON-TRADE INVESTMENTS
Mutual Funds (Unquoted)
i) UTI Liquid Cash Plan 5,003,216 5,100.51 -
()
i) UTI Treasury Advantage Fund 1,715,997 1,716.36 -
)
TOTAL CURRENT INVESTMENTS 6,816.87 0.00
GRAND TOTAL 57,720.33 50,903.21
Total Quoted Investments 27,564.78 27,564.78
Total Unquoted Investments 30,155.55  23,338.43
57,720.33 50,903.21
Total Market value of Quoted Investments 190,907.75  111.439.51

once

* GBP one each, total value X 6,885/-
Figures in parenthesis relate to previous year.




SCHEDULE -9 { in million)
As at As at
31" March, 31" March,
2010 2009
INVENTORIES
Finished Goods (Including Carbon Credits) 6,768.09 5,587.71
Raw Materials-Condensate 5.47 19.52
Stores and spare parts
- on hand 40,195.55 34,252.58
- in fransit {including inter-project transfers) 3,439.01 4,209.66
43,634.56 38,462.24
Less: Provision for Non-Moving Inventories and Materials in transit 3,734.49 3,601.55
39,900.07 34,860.69
Unservicable Items 112.09 138.79
TOTAL 46,785.72 40,606.71
SCHEDULE-10 ® in million)
As at As at
31" March, 31*March,
2010 2009
SUNDRY DEBTORS
(Unsecured, Considered Good unless otherwise stated)
Debts - Outstanding for a period exceeding six months :
- Considered Good 1,346.60 1,324.25
- Considered Doubtful 2,789.13 3,131.81
4,135.73 4,456.06
Other Debts :
- Considered Good 29,239.77 39,513.79
- Considered Doubtful 4.04 0.15
29,243.81 39,513.94
Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts 2,793.17 3,131.96
TOTAL -30,586.37 40,838.04

onsciEs
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SCHEDULE-11 & in million)
Asat Asat
31" March, 31* March,
2010 2009
A) CASHANDBANKBALANCES
Cashbalance onhand 8.36 9.70
Balances with Scheduled Banks in:
CurrentAccounts 2,664.43 1,247.48
Fixed Deposits 105,450.76 119,790.71
Balances with Non-Scheduled Banks in:
CurrentAccountwith Citi Bank- London 108.82 241.79
(Maximum balance outstanding atany time during the year
¥241.79 million Previous year ¥465.73 million)
CurrentAccountwith Barclays Bank- London 46.92 115.80
(Maximum balance outstanding at any time during the year
¥ 196.46 million Previous year ¥ 308.15 million)
TOTAL 108,279.29 121,405.48
B) DEPOSITWITH SCHEDULED BANK UNDER SITE RESTORATION FUND SCHEME* 74,031.06 69,556.64
* Deposited u/s 33ABA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and can be withdrawn only for the purposes specified inthe Scheme.
SCHEDULE-12 ®'in million)
As at As at
31" March, 31" March,
2010 2009
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
(Unsecured, Considered Good unless otherwise stated)
Interest Accrued On
- Investments 37.85 37.98
- Deposits with Banks/PSUs 3,288.57 7,987.27
- Others
- Considered Good 2,978.08 5,491.21
- Considered Doubtful 24.20 1.32
3,002.28 5,492.53
Less: Provision 24.20 1.32
2,978.08 5,491.21
Other Accounts pending adjustment
- Considered Good 28.55 3240
- Considered Doubtful _R9919 _872.49
927.74 904.89
Less: Provision for Doubtful Accounts _B899.19 _872.49
__28.55 _ 3240
TOTAL 6,333.05 13,548.86



SCHEDULE-13 @& in million)
As at As at
31" March, 31" March,
2010 2009
LOANS AND ADVANCES
Loans fo Public Sector Undertakings and Other Bodies Corporate 1,024.51 1,345.11
Loans and Advances to Subsidiaries 173,873.79 168,495.38
Advances against Equity pending allotment 13,453.64 7,469.89
Loans and Advances to Employees* 8,994.93 11,967.53
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received 37,985.30 22,094.60
Recoverable from Petroleum Planning & Analysis Cell (PPAC) 6.36 6.36
Insurance Claims 33.82 11.05
Deposits:
a) With Customs/Port Trusts etc. 43.35 31.67
b) With Public Sector Undertakings 15,000.00 20,000.00
¢) Others 6,625.89 5,956.86
257,041.59 237,378.45
Less : Provision for Doubtful Claims/Advances 5,902.03 4,431.32
251,139.56 232,947.13
Income Tax :

Advance payment of Income Tax 317,358.80 252,776.37

(Including Advance payment of Wealth Tax ¥ 35.29 million Previous year ¥ 31.38 million)
Less: Provision 296,800.62 225,679.67
(Including provision for Wealth Tax ¥ 62.50 million Previous year ¥ 60.00 million) 20,558.18 27,096.70
TOTAL 271,697.74 260,043.83

Particulars of loans and advances:

Secured 6,378.44 5,898.86
Unsecured - Considered Good 265,319.30 254,144 .97
- Considered Doubtful 5,902.03 4431.32
277,599.77 264,475.15
Less : Provision for Doubtful Loans & Advances 5,902.03 4431.32
TOTAL 271,697.74 260,043.83

* Loans and advances to employees include an amount of ¥ 0.56 million (Previous Year ¥ 3.58 million) outstanding from whole time Directors.
Maximum amount outstanding during the year 3.58 million{Previous YearZ 3.96 million).

=] pi=1=4 137]
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SCHEDULE - 14

 in million)

As at As at
31"March, 31" March,
2010 2009
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Sundry Creditors for Supplies/Works
- Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises 10.21 6.34
- Subsidiaries 0.00 4,562.75
- Others 63,915.39 64,652.01
Liability for Royalty/Cess/Sales tax etc. 10,735.93 10,797.21
Liability for Gratuity 302.99 10,101.90
Deposits from Suppliers, Contractors 4,992.24 6,414.69
Other Liabilities 40,741.72 43,561.70
Unclaimed Dividend * 177.15 156.20
TOTAL 120,875.63 140,252.80
* No amount is due for payment to Investor Education and Protection Fund
SCHEDULE - 15 & in million)
As at As at
31" March, 31*March,
2010 2009
PROVISIONS
Leave 13,934.10 13,426.64
Post Retirement Medical & Terminal Benefits 14,719.48 13,209.26
Others 8,058.75 9,129.04
Proposed Dividend 32,083.09 29,944.22
Tax on Proposed Dividend 5,328.60 5,089.02
TOTAL 74,124.02 70,798.18
SCHEDULE - 16 @& in million)
As at As at
31" March, 31" March,
2010 2009
MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE
(to the extent not written off or adjusted)
Deferred Revenue Expenditure
Dry Docking Charges 6,612.99 4,529.70
Mobilisation Charges 1,800.17 1,976.40
TOTAL 8,413.16 6,506.10



SCHEDULE - 17  in million)
For the For the
Year 2009-10 Year 2008-09
SALES
Own Products 617,335.70 575,104.58
Less :
Transfer to Exploratory Wells in Progress 52.70 67.07
Government of India’s (Gol's) share in Profit Petroleum 15,418.29 20,757.99
15,470.99 20,825.06
601,864.71 554,279.52
Traded Products 183.48 85,197.56
TOTAL 602,048.19 639,477.08
SCHEDULE-18  in million)
For the For the
Year 2009-10 Year 2008-09
OTHER INCOME
Contractual Short Lifted Gas Receipts 26.88 189.67
Pipeline Transportation Receipts 1,078.02 2,329.18
Surplus from Gas Pool Account 4,415.79 -
Other Contractual Receipts 1,575.63 1,411.68
Income from Trade Investments :
Dividend on Long term Investments
- From subsidiaries 1,506.42 1,506.42
- Others 1,293.26 1,216.19
2,799.68 2,7122.61
Interest on Long Term Investments 762.13 1,372.55
3,561.81 4,095.16
Income from Non Trade Investments :
Dividend on Current Investments 463.52 23347
Interest on Long Term Investments 0.06 0.06
Interest Income on :
Deposits with Banks/PSUs 11,542.79 22,271.69
(Tax deducted at source ¥ 1,907.47 million. Previous year ¥ 4,948.08 million)
Loans and Advances to Subsidiaries
(Tax deducted at source ¥ 149.47 million Previous year ¥ 1,734.43 million) 880.27 7,654.13
Loans and Advances to Employees 312.38 304.67
Income Tax Refund 291 791.08
Site Restoration Fund Deposit 4,267.83 5,503.72
Delayed Payment from Customers and Others 493.59 650.34
(Tax deducted at source ¥ 50.98 million Previous year X 26.19 million) =~ = R
17,499.77 37,175.63
Excess Provisions written back 633.90 714.46
Liabilities no longer required written back 913.03 1,456.76
Exchange Gain (Net) 4,032.94 -
Miscellaneous Receipts 7,665.51 5,516.65
TOTAL 41,866.86 53,122.72
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SCHEDULE-19 @& in million)
For the For the
Year 2009-10 Year 2008-09

(INCREASE)/DECREASE IN STOCK
Closing Stock - Finished Goods 6,767.53 5,587.71
- Carbon Credits 0.56 -
Opening Stock - Finished Goods 5,587.71 4,776.69
- Carbon Credits - -
NET (INCREASE)/DECREASE IN STOCK (1,180.38) (811.02)
SCHEDULE-20 & in million)
For the For the
Year 2009-10 Year 2008-09

PRODUCTION, TRANSPORTATION, SELLING

AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENDITURE
Royalty 54,899.51 44,906.57
Cess 54,538.03 55,788.35
Natural Calamity Contingent Duty 1,061.67 1,081.40
Excise Duty on stock (Net) 0.22 (108.39)
Sales Tax 2,989.58 6,925.78
Service Tax 212.75 256.52
Education cess 1,718.99 1,795.54
Octroi and Port Trust Charges 4,484.28 4,129.85
Staff Expenditure 11,074.85 8,886.34
Workover Operations 31,172.60 26,226.11
Water Injection, Desalting and Demulsification 11,037.73 8,608.44
Consumption of Raw Materials, Stores and Spares 5,703.12 7,681.49
Pollution Control 4,376.50 3,748.73
Transport Expenses 3,235.67 3,070.62
Insurance 974.46 816.56
Power and Fuel 1,163.41 1,408.46
Repairs and Maintenance 5,682.10 5,601.94
Contractual payments including Hire charges efc. 6,410.32 6,371.54
Other Production Expenditure 3,684.78 5,277.22
Transportation and Freight of Products 7,975.10 6,962.66
Research and Development 1,985.78 1,574.44
General Administrative Expenses 20,430.78 17,033.62
Exchange Loss (Net) - 3,819.04
Other Expenditure 8,387.23 10,576.04
TOTAL 243,199.46 232,438.87

Note: The above expenses have been classified in accordance with Part Il of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956

and exhibited in note 27.7 of Schedule 27.



SCHEDULE-21 @& in million)
For the For the
Year 2009-10 Year 2008-09
DEPRECIATION, DEPLETION, AMORTISATION
AND IMPAIRMENT
Survey 23,524.49 32,560.64
Wells written off 65,837.75 33,509.44
Depletion 45,301.63 42,147.91
Depreciation 52,426.59 43,556.21
Less : Allocated to :
Survey 1,181.07 1,554.72
Exploratory Drilling 4,841.63 3,005.45
Development Drilling 4,979.20 5,173.61
Depreciation on Facilities 29,119.11 19,251.65
Others 104.85 136.48
40,225.86 29,121.91
12,200.73 14,434.30
Impairment Loss
During the year 553.44 1,240.59
Less: Reversal during the year 986.16 4,350.91
(432.72) (3,110.32)
TOTAL 146,431.88 119,541.97
SCHEDULE-22 @& in million)
For the For the
Year 2009-10 Year 2008-09
FINANCING COSTS
INTEREST
i) On Fixed Loans
Foreign Currency Loans 5.33 9.97
ii) On Cash Credit 11.75 57.13
iy Others 127.15 1,122.07
TOTAL 144.23 1,189.17



SCHEDULE-23 @ in million)
For the For the
Year 2009-10 Year 2008-09
PROVISIONS AND WRITE-OFFS
PROVISIONS
For Doubtful Debts 12.87 155.72
For Doubtful Claims/Advances 1,845.73 2,154.78
For Non-Moving Inventory 61.06 41.54
For Others 93.20 8,778.72
Sub-Total 2,012.86 11,130.76
WRITE-OFFS
Disposal/Condemnation of Fixed Assets (Net) 61.88 87.61
Claims/Advances 42.90 7.60
Less! Provision - 4,70
42.90 2.90
Inventory 105.03 22517
Bad debts 224.97 -
Less: Provision 207.80 s
1717
Others 73417 219.33
Sub-Total 961.15 535.01
TOTAL 2,974.01 11,665.77
SCHEDULE-24 @& in million)
For the For the
Year 2009-10 Year 2008-09
ADJUSTMENTS RELATING TO PRIOR PERIOD (NET)
A. EXPENDITURE
Statutory levies * (32.18) 0.23
Other production, selling & distribution expenditure * (188.55) (1955.39)
Interest -Others 542.24 0.45
Survey (64.40) (120.96)
Dry Wells 109.40 2331.94
Depreciation 110.99 56.90
Sub-Total _471.50 31347
B. INCOME
Sales 13.29 (189.51)
Interest -Others 0.07 -
Other Income 281.45 (262.63)
Sub-Total 294.81 (452.14)
TOTAL 182.69 765.31

* The above expenses have been classified in accordance with Part Il of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956 and exhibited in note 27.7 of Schedule 27.



SCHEDULE-25 @& in million)
For the For the
Year 2009-10 Year 2008-09
EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE
A) Net Profit after Tax 167,675.56 161,263.15
Less:
B) Extraordinary items - 657.73
C) Tax impact on Extraordinary items - (223.56)
D) Net Profit before Extraordinary items (net of tax) 167,675.56 160,828.98
E) Number of Shares 2,138,872,530 2,138,872,530
(Amountin)
Basic & Diluted earnings per equity share
- Before extraordinary items (net of tax)- (D/E) 78.39 75.19
- After extraordinary items- (A/E) 78.39 75.40
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

SCHEDULE-26

1.

4.2

6.2

6.3
6.3.1

6.3.2

6.3.3

6.4
6.4.1

6.4.2

Accounting Conventions

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis in accordance with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), applying the Successful Efforts Method as per the Guidance Note on Accounting for
Oil and Gas Producing Activities issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and Accounting Standards issued
under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 and provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions which affect the reported amount of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses of the reporting period. The difference between the actual results and estimates are
recognized in the period in which the results are known or materialized.

Government Grants

Government grants for acquisition of fixed assets are initially treated as Capital Reserve and are subsequently recognized as
income in the Profit & Loss Account on a systematic basis over the useful life of the assets in the proportion in which
depreciation on those assets is charged.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Fixed assets received as
donations/gifts are capitalised at assessed values with corresponding credit taken to Capital Reserve.

All costs relating to acquisition of fixed assets till the time of bringing the assets to working condition for intending use are
capitalised.

Intangible Assets

Costs incurred onintangible assets, resulting in future economic benefits are capitalized as intangible assets.
Exploration, Development and Production Costs

Acquisition Cost

Acquisition cost of an oil and gas property in exploration/development stage is taken to acquisition cost under the respective
category. Such costs are capitalized by transferring to Producing Property when it is ready to commence commercial
production. In case of abandonment, such costs are expensed. Acquisition cost of a producing oil and gas property is
capitalized as Producing Property.

Survey Cost

Cost of Survey and prospecting activities conducted in the search of oil and gas are expensed in the year in which these are
incurred.

Exploratory/ Development Wells in Progress

All acquisition costs, exploration costs involved in drilling and equipping exploratory and appraisal wells, cost of drilling
exploratory type stratigraphic test wells are initially capitalised as Exploratory Wells in Progress till the time these are either
transferred to Producing Properties on completion as per policy no. 6.4.1 or expensed in the year when determined fo be dry
orof no further use, as the case may be.

Allwells under "Exploratory Wells in Progress" which are more than two years old from the date of completion of drilling are
charged to Profit and Loss Account except those wells where it could be reasonably demonstrated that the well has proved
reserves and the development of the field in which the wells are located has been planned.

All costs relating to Development Wells are initially capitalized as Development Wells in Progress and transferred to
Producing Properties on completion as per policy no. 6.4.

Producing Properties

Producing Properties are created in respect of an areaffield having proved developed oil and gas reserves, when the well in
the areaffield is ready to commence commercial production.

Cost of temporary occupation of land, successful exploratory wells, all development wells, depreciation on related equipment,
facilities and estimated future abandonment costs are capitalised and reflected as Producing Properties.



6.5

6.6

6.7

6.7.1
6.7.2
6.7.3

8.2

9.1

9.2

9.3

Depletion of Producing Properties

Producing Properties are depleted using the ‘Unit of Production Method'. The rate of depletion is computed with reference to
an area covered by individual lease/licence/asset/amortization base by considering the proved developed reserves and
related capital costs incurred including estimated future abandonment costs. In case of acquisition, cost of Producing
Properties is depleted by considering the proved reserves. These reserves are estimated annually by the Reserve Estimates
Committee of the Company, which follows the International Reservoir Engineering Procedures.

Production Costs

Production costs include pre-well head and post well head expenses including depreciation and applicable operating costs of
support equipment and facilities.

Side tracking
The cost of abandoned portion of side tracked exploratory wells is charged to Profit and Loss Account as dry wells.
The cost of abandoned portion of side tracked development wells is considered as part of cost of development wells.

The cost of sidetracking in respect of existing producing wells is capitalized if it increases the proved developed reserves
otherwise, charged to Profit and Loss Account as workover expenditure.

Impairment

Producing Properties, Development Wells in Progress (DWIP) and Fixed Assets (including Capital Works in Progress) of a
"Cash Generating Unit" (CGU) are reviewed for impairment at each Balance Sheet date. In case, events and circumstances
indicate any impairment, recoverable amount of these assets is determined. An impairment loss is recognized, whenever the
carrying amount of such assets exceeds the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is its 'value in use' or 'net selling
price' (if determinable) whichever is higher. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows from the use of assets
and from its disposal at the end of its useful life are discounted to their present value at appropriate rate.

An impairment loss is reversed if there is change in the recoverable amount and such loss either no longer exists or has

decreased. Impairmentloss/ reversal thereof is adjusted to the carrying value of the respective assets, which in case of CGU,
is allocated to its assets on a pro-rata basis. Subsequent to impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying value
ofthe assets over the remaining useful life.

Abandonment Cost

The full eventual estimated liability towards costs relating to dismantling, abandoning and restoring offshore well sites and
allied facilities are recagnized in respective assets when the well is complete / facilities are installed.

The full eventual estimated liability towards costs relating to dismantling, abandoning and restoring onshore well sites are
recognized when the well is complete. Cost relating to dismantling, abandoning and restoring its allied facilities are
accounted for in the year in which such costs are incurred as the salvage value is expected to take care of the abandonment
costs. The abandonment cost on dry well is charged to Profit and Loss Account.

Liability for abandonment cost is updated based on the technical assessment available at current costs with the Company.
Joint Ventures

The Company has Joint Ventures in the nature of Production Sharing Contracts (PSC) with the Government of India and
various bodies corporate for exploration, development and production activities.

The income, expenditure, assets and liabilities of the Jointly Controlled Assets are merged on line by line basis according to
the participating interest with the similar items in the Financial Statements of the Company and adjusted for depreciation,
depletion, survey, dry wells, abandonment, impairment and sidetracking in accordance with the accounting policies of the
Company.

Consideration for the right to participate in operations recoverable from new Joint Venture Partners are :

1. Reduced from respective capitalized cost wherever applicable

2. Reduced from current expenditure to the extentitrelates to current year.

3. Balanceis considered as miscellaneous receipts.

The hydrocarbon reserves in such areas are taken in proportion to the participating interest of the Company.



10.

1,

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4
12.

12.1
12.2
12.3

124

13.
13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5
13.6
14,

Investments

Long-term investments are valued at cost. Provision is made for any diminution, other than temporary, in the value of such
investments.

Current Investments are valued atlower of cost and fair value.
Inventories

Finished goods (other than Sulphur) and stock in pipelines/tanks and carbon credits are valued at Cost or net realisable value
whichever is lower. Cost of Finished goods is determined on absorption costing method. Sulphur is valued at net realisable
value. The value of inventories includes excise duty, royalty (wherever applicable) but excludes cess.

Crude oil in unfinished condition in flow lines upto Group Gathering Stations/platform and Natural Gas in Pipelines are not
valued.

Inventory of stores and spare parts is valued at Weighted Average Cost or Net Realisable Value whichever is lower.
Provisions are made for obsolete and non moving inventories.

Unserviceable items, when determined, are valued at estimated Net Realizable Value.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from sale of products is recognized on transfer of custody to customers.

Sale of crude oil and gas produced from Exploratory Wells in Progress is deducted from expenditure on such wells.

Sales are inclusive of all statutory levies except Value Added Tax (VAT). Any retrospective revision in prices is accounted forin
the year of such revision.

Revenuein respect of the following is recognized when there is reasonable certainty regarding ultimate collection:
a. Short-lifted quantity of gas.

b. Gas pipeline transportation charges and statutory duties thereon.

¢. Reimbursable subsidies and grants.

d. Interestondelayed realization from customers.

e. Liquidated damages from contractors/suppliers.

Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided for under the written down value method in accordance with the rates specified in
Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956.

Depreciation on additions/deletions during the year is provided on pro rata basis with reference to the date of
additions/deletions exceptitems of Plant and Machinery used in wells with 100% rate of depreciation and low value items not
exceeding ¥ 5000/-which are fully depreciated at the time of addition.

Depreciation on subsequent expenditure on fixed assets arising on account of capital improvement or other factors, is
provided for prospectively.

Depreciation on refurbished/revamped assets which are capitalized separately is provided for over the reassessed useful life
atrates which are not less than the rates specified in Schedule XIV to the CompaniesAct, 1956.

Depreciation on fixed assets (including support equipment and facilities) used for exploration, drilling activities and on related
equipment and facilities is initially capitalised as part of exploration cost, development cost or producing properties and
expensed/depleted as stated in policy 6 above.

Leasehold land is amortized over the lease period except perpetual leases.
Intangible assets are amortized over the useful life not exceeding five years from the date of capitalization.
Foreign Exchange Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted for at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. Foreign
currency monetary assets and liabilities at the year end are translated using mean exchange rate prevailing on the last day of
the financial year. The loss or gain thereon and also the exchange differences on settlement of the foreign currency
transactions during the year are recognized as income or expense and adjusted to the profit and loss account except where
such liabilities and /or transactions relate to fixed assets/ projects and these were incurred/ entered into before 1.4.2004 in
which case, these are adjusted to the cost of respective fixed assets.
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Employee Benefits

All short term employee benefits are recognized at their undiscounted amount in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

Employee Benefit under defined contribution plans comprising provident fund etc. is recognized based on the undiscounted
obligations of the company to contribute to the plan. The same is paid to a fund administered through a separate trust.

Employee benefits under defined benefit plans comprising of gratuity, leave encashment, compensated absences, post
retirement medical benefits and other terminal benefits are recognized based on the present value of defined benefit
obligation, which is computed on the basis of actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Actuarial Liability in
excess of respective plan assets is recognized during the year.

Liability for gratuity as per actuarial valuation is funded with a separate trust.

Voluntary Retirement Scheme

Expenditure on Voluntary Retirement Scheme (VRS) is charged to Profitand Loss Account when incurred.
General Administrative Expenses

General administrative expenses which are identifiable to Assets, Basins & Services are allocated to activities and the
balance are charged to Profit and Loss Account. Such expenses at Headquarters are charged to Profit and Loss Account.

Insurance claims
The company accounts forinsurance claims as under :-

In case of total loss of asset by transferring, either the carrying cost of the relevant asset or insurance value (subject to
deductibles), whichever is lower under the head "Claims Recoverable-Insurance" on intimation to Insurer. In case insurance
claimis less than carrying cost, the difference is charged to Profitand Loss Account.

In case of partial or other losses, expenditure incurred/payments made to put such assets back into use, to meet third party or
other liabilities (less policy deductibles) if any, are accounted for as "Claims Recoverable-Insurance”. Insurance Policy
deductibles are expensed in the year the corresponding expenditure is incurred.

As and when claims are finally received from insurer, the difference, if any, between Claims Recoverable-Insurance and
claims received s adjusted to Profitand Loss Account.

Research Expenditure
Revenue expenses on Research are charged to Profit and Loss Account, when incurred.
Taxes onincome

Provision for current tax is made as per the provisions of the Income TaxAct, 1961. Deferred Tax Liability / Asset resulting from
'timing difference’ between book and taxable profit is accounted for considering the tax rate and laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted as on the Balance Sheet date. Deferred Tax Asset is recognized and carried forward only to the
extent that there is virtual certainty that the asset will be realized in future.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing Cost specifically identified to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets is capitalized as part of such
assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for intended use. All other
borrowing costs are charged to Profitand Loss Account.

Rig Days Costs

Rig movement costs are booked to the next location planned for drilling. Abnormal Rig days costs are considered as
unallocable and charged to Profit and Loss Account.

Deferred Revenue Expenditure

Dry docking charges of Rigs/ Multipurpose Supply Vessels (MSVs), Geo Technical Vessels (GTVs), Well Stimulation Vessels,
Offshore Supply Vessels (OSVs), Rig/equipment mobilization expenses and other related expenditure are considered as
deferred expenditure and amortized over the period of use not exceeding five years.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a present obligation as a
result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources. Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor
disclosed in the financial statements. Contingent liabilities are disclosed by way of notes to accounts.
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5.1

5.2

In terms of the decision of Government of India (Gol), the Company has shared under-recoveries of Oil Marketing
Companies (OMCs) for the year 2009-10 by allowing discount in the prices of Crude Oil, PDS Kerosene and domestic LPG
based on provisional rates of discount communicated by Petroleum Planning and Analysis Cell, Ministry of Petroleum &
Natural Gas (MoP&NG). The Company does not foresee any materialimpact on finalization of discount rates.

The impactof discountis as under:

(X in million)

Decreasein Forthe yearended

2009-10 2008-09
Gross Revenue 115,543.07 282,252.09
Less: Value Added Tax (VAT) 2,760.27 7,373.66
SalesRevenue 112,782.80 274,878.43
Less: Statutory Levies 13,534.06 35,549.26
Profit Before Tax 99,248.74 239,329.17

Sales revenue in respect of Crude Qil is based on the pricing formula agreed with the customers for the period from
01.04.2002 to 31.03.2004. Pending finalization of fresh Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)/Crude Oil Sale Agreement
(COSA) with the customers, the same pricing formula has been provisionally adopted from 01.04.2004 onwards. However,
for Crude Oil produced in Assam, benchmark price revised by MoP&NG w.e.f. 01.04.2008 has been adopted.

Sales revenue in respect of Natural Gas under Administered Price Mechanism (APM) is based on the gas prices fixed on
provisional basis as per directives dated 20.06.2005 and 05.06.2006 of the Gol, MoOP&NG.

Adjustments, if any, on account of Para 2.1 and 2.2 above shall be carried out on finalization of agreements/ receipt of
government directives. However, the Company does not foresee any material impact on current year's results.

MoP&NG vide letters dated 15.03.10 and 09.04.10 have directed GAIL (India) Limited (GAIL) that difference between
consumer price and producer price revised vide MoP&NG letter dated 5" June, 2006 for APM gas being supplied to City Gas
Distribution Projects and small consumers having allocations up to 0.05 MMSCMD should be transferred by GAIL from
surplus in Gas Pool Account to the producers. Accordingly, an amount of ¥ 4,415.79 million on account of above for the period
from 06.06.06 to 31.03.10 has been recognised during the current year.

The MOU for trading in products of Mangalore Refinery and Petrochemicals Limited (MRPL), a subsidiary of the Company,
expired on 31st March, 2009, and accordingly no trading activity of their products was carried out during the year. Sales
revenue and Purchases on account of trading of such products in the previous year was ¥ 85,098.15 million and
< 85,073.62 million respectively.

During the year, the Company has changed its accounting policy on abandonment cost and started providing the full eventual
estimated liability towards costs relating to dismantling, abandoning and restoring of onshore well sites. Such cost of onshore
well site has been capitalized to Producing Property/Development Wells in Progress /Exploratory Wells in Progress when
completed and in case of dry wells it is charged to Profit & Loss account. This has resulted in increase in Producing Property
by ¥ 8,353.36 million, Exploratory Wells in Progress by ¥ 166.64 million and Development Wells in Progress by ¥ 102.57
million with corresponding increase in abandonment liability by ¥ 8,622.57 million. This has also resulted in increase in
Depletion cost by ¥ 403.72 million and cost of dry wells by ¥ 88.50 million with corresponding decrease in profit before tax by
< 492.22 million.

Further, in case of offshore wells, upto the previous year the Company was providing full eventual estimated liability towards
costs relating to dismantling, abandoning and restoring of offshore wells/facilities that were forming part of producing
properties. However, during the current year, the Company started providing such liability in respect of wells completed and
facilities capitalized also whether they are transferred to Producing Property or not. This has resulted in increase in
'Development Wells in Progress' by ¥ 305.52 million and corresponding increase in abandonment liability by a similar
amount. This has noimpact on profit before tax.
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During the year, the Company changed its accounting policy of amortising intangible assets from Written Down Value Method
@ 40% to Straight Line Method over the useful life not exceeding a period of 5 years in order to systematically amortize its
intangible assets. This has resulted in decrease in Depreciation, Depletion, Amortisation and Impairment by ¥ 424.55 million,
consequently activity cost decreased by 3.22 million and Profit before taxincreased by X 421.33 million.

In Ravva Joint Venture, the demand towards additional profit petroleum raised by Gol, based on the decision of the Malaysian
High Court, was disputed by the Operator M/s. Cairn Energy India Limited, due to difference in interpretation of provision of
Production Sharing Contract (PSC) in respect of computation of Post Tax Rate of Return (PTRR). The Company is not a party
fo the dispute but agreed to abide by the decision applicable to the Operator. As the dispute between the Operator and Gol
was not resolved, the Company made a provision in Financial Year 2008-09 amounting to ¥ 5,771.14 million ( USD 113.82
million) on account of additional profit petroleum and ¥ 2,829.86 million (USD 54.88 million) towards interest thereon totaling
to¥ 8,601.00 million (USD 168.70 million) as an abundant precaution. Gol has recovered such amount subsequently.

The appellate authority of Honorable Malaysian High Court of Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia has set aside the decision of the
Malaysian High Court and the decision of arbitral tribunal in favour of Operator was restored on 15th September 2009. Gol
has filed an appeal in the Federal Court of Malaysia against such restoration.

An additional interest of ¥ 65.41 million (USD 1.45 million) has been provided during the year. Pending final outcome of this
appeal, the provision is retained at ¥ 7,679.21 million (USD 170.15 million) net of reversal of ¥ 987.20 million towards
exchange gain during the year.

The Company acquired 90% Participating Interest in Exploration Block KG-DWN-98/2 from M/s Caim Energy India Ltd. in
2004-05 for a lump sum consideration of ¥ 3,711.22 million which was capitalized under Exploratory Wells in Progress as per
Accounting Policy No. 6.3. Subsequent exploratory drilling costs of wells in this block were capitalized as Exploratory Wells in
Progress. Initial-in-Place-Reserves have been established in this block and a conceptual development plan is also under
preparation. This being deep water block, needs more time for completion of appraisal programme. However, the Company
as an abundant precaution made a provision of ¥ 6,104.80 million and ¥ 2,360.39 million in respect of above costs in 2007-08
and 2008-09 respectively. Since there is no significant change in status of this block during the current year, the expenditure
amountingto ¥ 918.48 million on the wells completed upto 31st March 2008, being more than two years old is provided for in
the currentyear.

As per the Production Sharing Contracts signed by the Company with the Gol, the Company is required to complete Minimum
Work Programme (MWP) within stipulated time. In case of delay in completion of the MWP, Liquidated Damages {LD) is
payable for extension of time to complete MWP. Further, in case the Company does not complete MWP or surrender the block
without completing the MWP, the estimated cost of completing balance work programme is required to be paid to the Gol. LD
amounting to ¥ (-)78.41 million net of reversal (Previous year ¥ 563.28 million) and cost of unfinished MWP ¥ 3,148.58
million (Previous year ¥ 1,439.51 million) paid/payable to the Gol is included in survey and wells written off expenditure in
Schedule 21.

In respect of 16 (Previous year 16) Deepwater NELP Blocks, company's share in LD and MWP amounting to ¥ 12,037.37
million (Previous year < 6,229.03 million) and ¥ 33,024.85 million (Previous year ¥ 13,075.42 million) respectively has not
been provided for, since the rig moratorium proposal is under consideration of Gol as per the letter dated 18.08.2008 from
Director General of Hydrocarbons (DGH). Out of the above, MWP amounting to ¥ 1,770.62 million (Previous year Nil) has
already been completed during the year and balance amounting to ¥ 31,254.23 million (Previous year< 13,075.42 million) is
included in Capital Commitment (Note No 27.1.2).

The Finance (No. 2) Act, 2009 has specified the definition of “undertaking” for the purpose of claiming tax holiday under
section 80-1B(9) of Income Tax Act, 1961 to be ‘all blocks licensed under a single contract retrospectively whereas the
company had earlier considered each ‘well’ as an “undertaking”.Since the amendment still requires clarity on various issues
and also considering the advice of legal experts, the company continued to make provision fortax without considering
the benefit u/s 80-1B(9).

The Jharia CBM Block was awarded by Gol to ONGC-CIL consortium on nomination basis for exploration and exploitation of
Coal Bed Methane (CBM) gas. Ministry of Coal (MoC) later awarded a coal mining block to the private company which
overlapped with a part of the Company's CBM Block. It was decided by the MoC and MoP&NG that such area of exploratory
wells drilled by the Company are excluded from the mining area to the private company. These well sites are permanently
acquired by the Company and the titles are in the name of the Company. Pending resolution and receipt of equitable land for
future exploration activities in consideration of the overlapped area, amounting to ¥ 1.54 million incurred on exploratory wells
is shown under Exploratory Wells in Progress.
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In case of Jointly Controlled Assets - Panna Mukta & Tapti ( ONGC Share - 40%), where Block's auditors have opined
regarding non ascertainment and adjustment of certain observations raised by auditors appointed by Director General
Hydrocarbon (DGH) under Production Sharing Contract for the period 1994 to 2007 in respect of cost and profit petroleum
share. Pending resolution of such issues, no adjustment has been made in the accounts of the operator. The amount of
liability arising out of such observations has not been quantified and impact of the same on Company's accounts is
unascertainable.

Pending finalization, the Company provided liability for pay revision in respect of unionized category of employees amounting
to ¥ 1,910.00 million during the year (till 31.03.2010F 4,100.00 million) and is allocated to activities as per the policy of the
company.

Details of purchase and sale/ redemption of Current Investments during the year:

Particulars UTI Liquid Cash Plan UTI Treasury Advantage Fund
No of Units @ Amount (X in million) No of Units @ Amount (X in million)
$1019.4457 $1000.2141

Opening Balance - = 5 .

) ) ) )

Purchases 468,866,246.935 477,983.68 193,059,225.362 193,100.55
(363,040,424.811) (370,100.00) ¢) )

Dividend Reinvested 1,08,501.298 110.61 3,52,837.098 352.91
(229,014.778) (233.47) ) ()

Redemption 463,971,531.839 472,993.78 191,696,065.044 191,737.10
(363,269,439.589) (370,333.47) () ()

Closing Balance 5,003,216.394 5,100.51 1,715,997.416 1,716.36

0 @) @) W)

The Company changed the rate of depreciation on all Trunk Pipelines and Onshore Flow Lines (assets below ground) from
27.82% to 100% based on technical assessment by the management during 2005-06. The Company made a reference tothe
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) during 2006-07 for confirmation of the rate of depreciation. Pending confirmation by the
MCA, Company continues to charge depreciation at 100% on such assets.

The Company has a system of physical verification of Inventory, Fixed Assets and Capital Stores in a phased manner at
regularintervals. Adjustment of differences, if any, will be accounted for after examination of these differences.

Some balances of Debtors, Creditors and Loans & Advances are subject to confirmation/ reconciliation. Adjustments, if any,
will be accounted for on receipt/ confirmation of the same after examination.

Disclosure under the Revised Accounting Standard -15 on "Employee Benefits”

Brief Description: Ageneral description of the type of Defined Benefit Plans is as follows:

Earned Leave (EL) Benefit

Accrual - 30 days per year

Encashment while in service - 75% of Earned Leave balance subject to a maximum of 90 days per calendar year
Encashment on retirement - maximum 300 days

Good Health Reward (Half pay leave)

Accrual - 20 days per year

Encashment while in service - Nil

Encashment on retirement - 50% of Half Pay Leave balance.



19.1.3

19.1.4

19.1.5

19.2

19.3

Gratuity

15 days salary for every completed year of service. Vesting period is 5 years and the paymentis restricted to ¥ 1.00 million.
Post Retirement Medical Benefits -

Upon payment of one time prescribed contribution by the employees, full medical benefits on superannuation and on
voluntary retirement subject to the completion of minimum 20 years of service and 50 years of age.

Terminal Benefits

At the time of superannuation, employees are entitled to settle at a place of their choice and they are eligible for Transfer
Traveling Allowance. Employees are gifted a silver plaque also, depending upon their level.

The amounts recognized in financial statements for defined contribution plans are as under:

(X in million)
Defined Contribution Plans Amountrecognised Contribution for
during the year Key Management
Personnel
Contributory Provident Fund 2864.09 1.38
{1,702.90) (0.69)
Employee Pension Scheme-95 206.27 0.03
(209.29) (0.04)
Composite Social Security Scheme 209.06 0.05
(212.24) (0.05)
The amounts recognized in the balance sheet for postemployment benefit plans are as under:
( in million)
SINo.| Particulars Gratuity Leave | PostRetirement Terminal
Medical Benefits Benefits
1 Present Value of Funded Obligation 17,772.42 - - -
(17,423.08) () ) W)
2 Fair Value of Plan Assets 17,469.42 - - -
(8,133.78) @) ) ()
3 Present Value of Unfunded Obligation - 13,740.85 14,077.09 642.39
() | (13,235.47) (12,728.86) (480.40)
4, Unrecognised Past Service Cost - - - -
() 0) ) ()
5 Net Liability 302.99 13,740.85 14,077.09 642.39
(9,289.30) | (13,235.47) (12,728.86) (480.40)
6 Liability for Retired employees - 193.25 - -
(812.60) (191.17) () ()
7 Total Provision 302.99 13,934.10 14,077.09 642.39
(10,101.90) | (13,426.64) (12,728.86) (480.40)




19.4 The amountsincludedin the fair value of plan assets of gratuity fund are as follows:

 in million)
Defined Contribution Plan During the year
Reporting Enterprise's own financial instruments Nil
(Nily
Any Property occupied by, or other assets used Nil
by the reporting enterprise. (Ni)
19.5 Reconciliation showing the movements during the period in the net liability recognised in the balance sheet:
& in million)
SINo.| Particulars Gratuity Leave | PostRetirement Terminal
Medical Benefits Benefits
1. Opening defined benefit obligation 17,423.08 13,235.47 12,728.86 480.40
(16,318.38) (10,861.95) (10,699.42) (435.14)
2, Current Service Cost 732.74 594.44 281.44 26.58
(736.47) (-189.29) (263.29) (20.40)
3. Past Service Cost - - - -
) ) ) )
4, Interest Cost 1,306.73 992.65 954.66 36.03
(1,142.29) (705.92) (748.96) (30.46)
5. Actuarial losses (gains) (502.66) 1,876.44 3,075.28 130.05
(-468.44) (2,984.68) (1,430.71) (7.16)
6. Exchange differences on foreign plans - - = =
) ) ) )
7. Benefits paid 1,187 47 2,958.17 2963.16 30.66
(305.61) (1,127.79) (413.52) (12.76)
8. Closing defined benefit obligation 17,772.42 13,740.84 14,077.09 642.39
(17,423.08) (13,235.47) (12,728.86) (480.40)




19.6

19.7

The total amount recognized in the financial statements before allocation is as follows:  in million)
SINo.| Particulars Gratuity Leave | PostRetirement | Terminal
Medical Benefits | Benefits
1. Current Service Cost 732.74 594.43 281.44 26.57
(736.47) (588.21) (263.29) | (20.40)
2. Interest on Obligation 1,306.73 992.65 954.66 36.03
(1,142.29) (705.91) (748.96) | (30.46)
3. Expected return on plan assets 1,451.37 - - -
(630.24) () () ()
4 Netactuarial Losses/(Gains) (284.77) 1,876.44 3,075.28 | 130.05
recognisedin year (-468.44) | (2,984.68) (1,430.71) (7.16)
5. Past Service Cost - - - -
) () () )
6. Losses (Gains) on curtailments and settlement - - - -
() () () ()
7. Totalincluded in ‘'employee benefit expense'. 303.34 3,463.54 4311.39 192.65
(780.08) | (4,278.80) (2,442.96) | (58.02)
8. Actual return on plan assets 1,233.47 - - -
(630.08) () () )
Investments of Gratuity Trust
Particulars % of Investment as at
Asat31.03.10 As at 31.03.09
Central Govt. Securities 30.56 46.60
State Govt. Securities 14.24 19.52
PSU Bonds 29.99 33.88
Treasury Bills 1.43 -
Insurance Investment 23.40 -
Equity Mutual Fund 0.38 -
Total 100.00 100.00
Principal actuarial assumption at the balance sheet date (expressed as weighted averages):
(X in million)
SINo.| Particulars Gratuity Leave | PostRetirement | Terminal
Medical Benefits | Benefits
1. Discountrate 7.5% 1.5% 7.5% 7.5%
(7%) (7%) (7%) (7%)
2. Expected return on plan assets 8.33%
(8.09%) NA NA NA
3. Annual increase in costs NA NA 5% 5%
(5%) (5%)
4, Annual Increase in Salary 5% 5%
(5%) (5%) NA NA

Note : Figures in parenthesis represent last year's figure.



20. Disclosure under Accounting Standard -16 on "Borrowing Costs”

The Company did not incur any borrowing cost for any qualifying asset. No borrowing cost is capitalised during the year
(previous year Nil).

21. Disclosure under Accounting Standard -17 on "Segment Reporting”

The segment information is presented under the notes to accounts of the Consolidated Financial Statements as required
under the standard.

22. Disclosure under Accounting Standard -18 on "Related Party Disclosure”
221 Name of related parties and description of relationship:
22.1.1 JointVentures/Jointly Controlled Entities

Sl.No Name Relationship
i) Ravva Joint Venture
ii) CY-0S-90/1(PY3) Joint Venture
i) Panna, Mukia & Tapti Joint Venture
iv) CB-0S-1 Joint Venture
V) CB-0S-2 Joint Venture
vi) GK-0SJ-3 Joint Venture
vii) RJ-ON-90/1 Joint Venture
viii) RJ-ONN-2003/1 Joint Venture
ix) KK-DWN-2004/1 Joint Venture
X) ONGC Mangalore Petrochemicals Limited Joint Controlled Entity
Xi) Petronet LNG Limited Joint Controlled Entity
xii) ONGC TeriBiotech Limited Joint Controlled Entity
Xiii) Mangalore SEZ Limited Joint Controlled Entity
xiv) ONGC Petro Additions Limited Joint Controlled Entity
Xxv) ONGC Tripura Power Co. Limited Joint Controlled Entity
xvi) Dahej SEZ Limited Joint Controlled Entity

221.2 KeyManagementPersonnel:
Whole-time Functional Directors:
i) ShriR.S. Sharma, Chairman and Managing Director
i) Dr.A.K.Balyan
iy ShriA.K. Hazarika
iv) ShriU.N.Bose
v) Shri D.K.Pande
vi) ShriD.K.Sarraf
vii) Shri Sudhir Vasudeva



22.2 Details of Transactions

22.21 JointVentures/ Jointly Controlled Entities  in million)
Details 2009-10 2008-09
Services Received from :
a)Ravva 60.40 78.59
b) ONGC Teri Biotech Limited 151.26 -
Services Providedto :
a)Rawva 11.19 10.52
b) Panna Mukta & Tapti 2,329.66 4,126.80
¢) ONGC PetroAdditions Limited 162.54 295.72
d) Petronet LNG Limited 3.57 0.76
€) Mangalore SEZ Limited 1.80 -
f) ONGC Tripura Power Co. Limited 3.94 -
Purchase of Condensate (Panna Mukta & Tapti) 4,584.91 8,273.69
Advance:

a) ONGC PetroAdditions Limited 4,560.00 3,290.00

b) ONGC Mangalore Petrochemicals Limited 1424.00 945.77

Amount Receivable :

a) Panna Mukta & Tapti 2,009.68 2,998.74

b) ONGC Petro Additions Limited 138.99 9.10

¢) ONGC Tripura Power Co. Limited 0.95 -

d) Petronet LNG Limited 0.60 -

Amount Payable :

a) Panna Mukta & Tapti 67.96 -

b) ONGC Teri Biotech Limited 31.26 -

Advance outstanding :

a) ONGC PetroAdditions Limited 7,850.00 3,290.00

b) ONGC Tripura Power Co. Limited 1,233.87 1,233.87

¢) ONGC Mangalore Petrochemicals Limited 4,369.77 2,945.77

d) Dahej SEZ Limited - 0.25

22.2.2 KeyManagementPersonnel
 in million)

Particulars 2009-10 2008-09
Remuneration to Directors 34.35 17.94
Amount Receivable 0.56 3.58
Amount Payable 3.58 1.23




23.

Disclosure under Accounting Standard -22 on "Accounting for Taxes on Income”

The Company has Net Deferred Tax Liability as at 31* March, 2010 of ¥ 89,182.13 million (Previous year ¥ 78,022.35
million). The break up of Deferred Tax Liability is as under:

& in million)
Particulars As at 31.03.2010 As at 31.03.2009
(i) Liabilities
Depletion of Producing Properties 133,460.20 122,470.73
Depreciation Allocated to Wells in Progress and 7,038.26 5,294.21
expenses relatingto NELP blocks
Deferred Revenue Expenditure written off 2,794.64 2,211.42
Development Wells-in-Progress 5,908.70 6,444.16
Others 2,367.89 1,969.65
Total (i) 151,569.69 138,390.17
(ii) Assets
Depreciation 4,677.42 5,021.17
Dry wells written off 13,298.28 6,474.70
Provision for Non Moving Inventories 1,285.75 1,324.95
Provision for Doubtful Debts/Claims/ 3,229.18 2,887.20
Advances/ Interest
Provision forAbandonment 28,882.40 29,888.16
Provision for Leave Encashment 4,628.56 4,563.72
Provision toward Additional Profit Petroleum & 2,550.84 2,923.48
interest-Ravva
Statutory duties unpaid u/s 43B 424.44 633.31
Others 3,410.69 6,651.13
Total (ii) 62,387.56 60,367.82
Deferred Tax Liability (Net)( i - ii) 89,182.13 78,022.35
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Disclosure under Accounting Standard - 27 on Financial Reporting of Interest in Joint Ventures:

Jointly Controlled Assets

In respect of certain blocks, the Company's Joint Ventures (JV) with certain bodies corporate have entered into Production
Sharing Contracts (PSCs) with Gol. Details of these blocks and JVs as on 31.03.2010 are as under:

Sl.No Blocks | Company's PI*
A Jointly Operated JVs
1 Panna, Mukta and Tapti | 40% (40%)
B Non-Operated JVs
2 Rawva 40% (40%)
3 CY-0S-90/1 (PY3) 40% (40%)
4 RJ-ON-90/1 30% (30%)
5 CB-0S/2 -Exploration Phase 25%(25%)
CB-08/2 -Development Phase 50% (50%)
6 CB-ON/7 -Development Phase*™ 30% (30%)
7 CB-ON/3 - Development Phase** 30% (30%)
8 GK-0SJ-3 25% (25%)
9 RJ-ONN-2002/1 40% (40%)
10 AA-ONN-2002/3 70% (70%)
1 AN-DWN-2003/2 45%(45%)
12 KG-ONN-2003/1 51% (51%)
13 RJ-ONN-2003/1 36%(36%)
14 PR-OSN-2004/1 35% (35%)
15 CB-ON/2- Development phase** 30% (Nil)
16 RJ-ONN-2005/3 40%(Nil)
17 AA-ONJ/2 40% (40%)
c ONGC Operated JVs
18 CB-0S/1 Exploration Phase 32.89%(32.89%)
CB-0S/1 DevelopmentPhase** 55.26% (32.89%)
19 KG-DWN-98/2 65% (65%)
20 KG-DWN-08/4 55% (55%)
21 MN-DWN-98/3 60% (60%)
22 VN-ONN-2003/1** 100% (51%)
23 MN-OSN-2000/2 40% (40%)
24 CY-DWN-2001/1 45% (55%)
25 AA-ONN-2001/2 80% (80%)
26 AA-ONN-2001/3 85% (85%)
27 KK-DWN-2002/2 80% (80%)
28 KK-DWN-2002/3 80% (80%)
29 KG-DWN-2002/1 70% (70%)
30 MN-DWN-2002/1 36% (36%)
31 CY-ONN-2002/2 60% (60%)
32 CB-ONN-2002/1** 100% (70%)
33 AA-ONN-2002/4 90% (90%)




34 MN-DWN-2002/2 75% (75%)
35 GS-OSN-2003/1 51% (51%)
36 KK-DWN-2004/1 45% (45%)
37 CY-DWN-2004/1 70% (70%)
38 CY-DWN-2004/2 70% (70%)
39 CY-DWN-2004/3 70% (70%)
40 CY-DWN-2004/4 70% (70%)
41 CY-PR-DWN-2004/1 70% (70%)
42 CY-PR-DWN-2004/2 70% (70%)
43 KG-DWN-2004/1 70% (70%)
44 KG-DWN-2004/2 60% (60%)
45 KG-DWN-2004/3 70% (70%)
46 KG-DWN-2004/5 50% (50%)
47 KG-DWN-2004/6 60% (60%)
48 KG-OSN-2004/1 55% (55%)
49 CB-ONN-2004/1 50% (50%)
50 CB-ONN-2004/2 50% (50%)
51 CB-ONN-2004/3 40% (40%)
52 CB-ONN-2004/4 50% (50%)
53 CY-ONN-2004/1 80% (80%)
54 CY-ONN-2004/2 80% (80%)
55 MB-OSN-2005-1 80% (80%)
56 MB-OSN-2005-5 70% (70%)
57 MB-OSN-2005-6 80% (80%)
58 AN-DWN-2005/1 90% (90% )
59 KG-DWN-2005/1 70% (70%)
60 KK-DWN-2005/2 90% (90%)
61 KG-OSN-2005/1 60% (60%)
62 KG-OSN-2005/2 80% (80%)
63 Raniganj 74% (74%)
64 Jharia 90% (90%)
65 NK-CBM-2001/1 80% (80%)
66 BK-CBM-2001/1 80% (80%)
67 CB-ONN-2005/4 51% (Nil)
68 CB-ONN-2005/10 51% (Nil)
69 PR-ONN-2005/1 80% (Nil)
70 WB-ONN-2005/4 75% (Nil)
4l AA-ONN-2005/1 60% (Nil)
72 GV-ONN-2005/3 80% (Nil)
73 HF-ONN-2001/1 65% (100%)
74 CB-ONN-2001/1** 100% (70%)

* Pl - Participating Interest

**Approval towards assignment of Pl is awaited from Gol
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24.3.1

24.3.2

24.4

List of the blocks surrendered during the year are given below:

SI.No. |JointVentures/PSCs Company's PI*
1 WB-OSN-2000/1 85%
2 GV-ONN-2003/1 51%
3 RJ-ONN-2001/1 30%
4 KK-OSN-2001/2 100%
5 KK-OSN-2001/3 100%
*PI - Participating Interest
The Financial position of the JVINELP blocks are as under: @ in million)
No. of JVs/ Assets | Liabilities Income | Expenditure Profit/(-)
NELP Blocks Loss before tax
NELP Block-100% PI* 19 1,822.27 165.89 0.11 7,149.44 -7,149.33
(19) | (1,126.02) (638.60) (0.08) | (13,668.21) (-13,668.13)
Blocks with other partners 74 | 90,350.03 | 29,287.34 | 51,148.14 39,842.90 11,305.24
(67) | (67,655.63) | (32,876.06) | (49,971.59) | (40,258.55) (9,713.04)
Surrendered till date 31 219.26 | 6,184.08 0.28 5,616.40 -5,616.12
(26) (155.22) | (1,902.51) (0.10)| (3,147.64) (-3147.54)
Total 124 | 92,391.56 | 35,637.31 | 51,148.53 52,608.74 -1,460.21
(112) | (68,936.87) | (35,417.17) | (49,971.77) | (57,074.40) (-7,102.63)

The financial statements of 117 (Previous year 93) out of 124 (Previous year 112) JVS/NELP as per para no. 24.3 have been
incorporated in the accounts to the extent of Company's participating interest in assets, liabilities, income, expenditure and
profit/(loss) before tax on the basis of statements certified in accordance with production sharing contract and the same has
been adjusted for changes as per accounting policy No. 9.1 in Schedule-26.

In respect of balance 7 (Previous year 19) JVs/NELP assets, liabilities, income and expenditure amounting to ¥ 69.80 million
{Previous year ¥ 32.93 million), ¥ 143.98 million (Previous year ¥ 921.25 million), ¥ 152.55 million (Previous year ¥ 0.06
million) and ¥ 812.85 million (Previous year I 478.69 million) respectively have been incorporated on the basis of uncertified
statements prepared under the production sharing contracts and the same has been adjusted for changes as per accounting
policy No. 9.1 in Schedule-26.

Inrespectof Farm Out agreements, where necessary approval from Central Government has been obtained during the year,
asumof¥ 1,196.19 million (Previous year¥ 4,979.55 million) has been considered recoverable from the farmers towards the
share of expenditure incurred from the effective date of the farm out agreement and has been credited to Miscellaneous
Receipts amounting to ¥ 1,049.66 million (Previous year ¥ 4,976.82 million) in respect of earlier years and the balance
current year expenditure has been credited to respective natural heads.
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2451 Company has ownership interestin following Jointly Controlled Entities:

Jointly Controlled Entities:

Name Country of Ownership Interest (%)
Incorporation As at Asat
31.03.2010 31.03.2009
Petronet LNG Limited India 12.50 12.50
Petronet MHB Limited India 28.77 28.77
Mangalore SEZ Limited India 26.00 26.00
ONGC Mangalore Petrochemicals Limited India 46.00 46.00
ONGC Petro Additions Limited India 41.93 41.93
ONGC Tripura Power Co. Limited India 49.52 49.52
ONGC Teri Biotech Limited India 49.98 49.98
Dahej SEZ Limited India 49.60 -

245.2 The Company's share in assets, liabilities, income, expenses, contingent liabilities and capital commitments of Jointly
Controlled Entities {excluding for Dahej SEZ Limited for which Financials Statements have notbeen received):

& in million)
Description Asat31.03.2010 Asat31.03.2009
i) Assets
Long term assets 25,391.73 14,263.76
Investments 748.38 699.43
Current assets 3,585.24 3,311.73
ii) | Liabilities
Currentliabilities and provisions 5,132.17 2,768.57
Other liabilities 12,195.27 6,730.55
iy | Deferredtaxliabilities 243.45 154.42
iv) | Income 13,686.42 10,864.63
v) Expenses 12,874.03 9,850.47
vi) | Contingentliabilities 1,815.24 2,196.99
vii) | Capital commitments 46,051.70 36,235.60

245.3 The Company has given an undertaking to Power Finance Corporation (PFC), for an additional funding up to ¥ 2,234.00
million in respect of ONGC Tripura Power Co. Limited (OTPC) for cost overrun, if any.

25
25.1

25.2

Disclosure under Accounting Standard - 28 on "Impairment of Assets”

The Company is engaged mainly in the business of oil and gas exploration and production where each cost centre used for
depreciation (depletion) purposes is identified as independent Cash Generating Unit (CGU) for assessing the impairment in
Producing Properties and fixed assets etc. on the basis of 'value in use'. The Company has tested all its CGUs for impairment
as on 31.03.2010 by applying discount rates of 17.31% (Previous year 16.61 %) for Rupee transactions and 13.07 %
(Previous year 13.40 %} for crude oil and value added products revenue measured in USD as on 31.03.2010.

During the year ¥ 553.45 million (Previous year ¥ 1,240.59 million) was provided as an additional impairment loss in respect
of certain CGUs. Further, impairment loss to the extent of ¥ 986.17 million (Previous year ¥ 4,350.91 million) has been
reversedin respectof DVP Jorhatand Ratna CGUs due toincreased sale price and accretionin reserves.



26 Disclosure under Accounting Standard - 29 on "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”
Movement in Provisions - Others
For Court cases, arbitration and others, where the timing of expected outflows is upon settlement of the proceedings:

 in million)

Particulars 2008-10 2008-09
Opening Balance 9,129.04 490.38
Add: Provision made during the year 93.20 8,778.72
Less: Provision written back/ reclassified/ (1,163.49) (140.06)
reduction during the year

Closing Balance 8,058.75 9,129.04

27 Disclosures under Schedule Vi to the Companies Act, 1956:

271 Capital Commitment not provided for:

27.1.1  Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account:-
i) Inrespectof Company-X 184,507.29 million (Previous year ¥ 112,871.64 million).
i)  InrespectofJoint Ventures - ¥ 194.47 million (Previous year< 3,026.16 million).

27.1.2 Estimated amount of Minimum Work Programme (MWP) committed under various 'Production Sharing Confracts' with
Government of India/ Nominated Blocks:

i) In respect of NELP blocks in which the Company has 100% participating interest - ¥ 33,419.14 million (Previous year
T 21,016.72 million).

i)  Inrespectof Nominated Blocks ¥ 1,128.13 million (Previous year Nil).
i)  Inrespectof NELP blocks in Joint Ventures - ¥ 87,076.90 million (Previous year 51,675.97 million).



27.2  Contingent Liabilities:
Claims against the Company/ disputed demands not acknowledged as debt:-

( in million}
Asat Asat
31.03.2010 31.03.2009
| In respect of Company
i. Income Tax 15,721.36 20,723.73
ii. Excise Duty 2,372.44 1,648.95
iii. Custom Duty 1,447.47 1,447 47
iv. Royalty 18,849.79 360.39
v. Cess 12.76 492
vi AP Mineral Bearing Lands (Infrastructure) Cess 1,171.84 922.92
vii. Sales Tax 20,135.52 7,271.46
viii. Octroi 66.89 66.89
ix. Specified Land Tax (Assam) 2,274.50 1,646.06
x. Claims of contractors in Arbitration / Court 21,262.90 62,796.57
xi. Others 17,317.84 5,038.78
Sub Total (A) 100,633.31 101,928.14
Il Inrespect of Joint Ventures

i. Income Tax 8.91 8.91
ii. ExciseDuty 322.42 -
jii. Custom Duty 3,457.89 3,262.74
iv. Royalty - 12.39
v. Cess 10.64 10.64
vi. SalesTax 2,959.13 2,941.15
vii. Claims of contractors in Arbitration/Court 740.73 471.74
viii. Others 4,898.72 550.41
Sub Total (B) 12,398.44 7257.98
TOTAL (A+B) 113,031.75 109,186.12

The above claims / demands are at various stages of appeal and in the opinion of the Company are not tenable.
27.3 Bank Guarantees given by the Company:

i) ¥ 3,426.38 million (Previous year¥ 1,542.65 million) including ¥ 1,142.37 million (Previous year< 1,495.11 million) for NELP
Blocks where the Company has 100% participating interest.

ii) InrespectofJoint Ventures -¥ 7,082.46 million (Previous yearX 4,947.94 million).

jii) Out of total Bank Guarantees of ONGC an amount of X 7,044.00 million (Previous year ¥ 4,544.32 million) has been
provided in respect of MWP committed under various 'Production Sharing Contracts' with Government of India and
Nominated Blocks which is also included in Capital Commitments under para27.1.2.

27.4 Corporate Guarantees executed by the Company on behalf of its wholly owned subsidiary, ONGC Videsh Limited
(OVL)and ONGC Nile Ganga BV (wholly owned subsidiary of OVL):



27.41 Guarantees executed for financial obligations:
i) Amountof Guarantee¥ 38,043.51 million (Previous year¥ 57,062.28 million).
ii) Amount Outstanding ¥ 34,932.70 million (Previous year< 56,447.65 million).
27.4.2 Performance Guarantees executed under the contracts:

Guarantee in respect of Sakhalin Project in favour of Exxonneftgas Ltd., M/s. Roseneft-S, SMNG-S and RN-Astra towards
performance of Company's obligation under Joint Operating Agreement without any financial ceiling.

275 Corporate Guarantees executed by the Company on behalf of its subsidiary, MRPL.:
i) Amount of Guarantee ¥ 16,246.80 million (Previous year¥ 18,356.40 million).
ii) Amount Outstanding ¥ 4,828.91 million (Previous year¥ 3,295.49 million).

276  Uncalled liability on partly paid shares is ¥ 1,337.19 million (Previous Year X 1,337.19 million) against which advance paid
¥1,233.87 million (Previous Year¥ 1,233.87 million).

27.7  Details of Expenditure
Details of expenditure incurred on natural heads and its allocation:

& in million)
2009-10 2008-09
Manpower Cost
(a) Salaries, Wages, Ex-gratia etc. 44,906.49 34,366.17
(b) Contribution to Provident and other funds 3,279.42 212473
(c) Provision for gratuity (497.01) 1,112.92
(d) Provision for leave 3,458.56 3,577.40
(e) Provision for Post Retirement Medical &
Terminal Benefits 1,506.64 2,027.89
(f) Staff welfare expenses _ 453715 _4,186.82
Sub Total: 57,191.25 _47,395.93
Consumption of Raw materials, Stores and Spares 24,179.46 23,889.07
Cess 54,547.67 55,788.33
Natural Calamity Contingent Duty 1,061.86 1,081.40
Excise Duty 2,184.11 3,382.86
Royalty 54,867.27 44,930.67
Sales Tax 2,990.02 6,926.28
Octroi/BPT 4,966.61 4,464.74
Service Tax 225.01 293.43
Education cess 1,711.65 1,798.34
Rent 1,370.29 1,317.22
Rates and taxes 547.32 476.98
Hire charges of equipments and vehicles 112,624.66 83,664.85
Power, fuel and water charges 2,603.81 2,707.88
Contractual drilling, logging, workover etc. 115,529.46 69,970.28
Contractual security 2,586.76 1,751.16




Repairs to building

Repairs to plant and machinery
Otherrepairs

Insurance

Expenditure on Tour/ Travel
Contribution

Miscellaneous expenditure
Exchange Variation

Less:

Allocated to exploration, development drilling,

capital jobs, recoverables etc.

Excise duty adjusted against sales revenue

Prior Period Adjustment

1,253.18 628.83
1,693.49 1,787.86
3,495.34 3,607.14
2,382.00 1,890.72
2,638.31 2,81547
666.99 746.93
8,901.93 9,961.23

- 3,819.04
46021845  375096.64
215,054.30 141,118.82
2,185.42 3,494.11
(220.73) (1,955.16)

Production, Transportation, Selling and

Distribution Expenditure 243,199.46 2,32,438.87
27.8  Quantitative Details
2781 Sales
2009-10 2008-09
Particulars Unit Quantity Value (X in million) Quantity Value (X in million)
Crude Oil* MT 22,331,012 | 454,867.46 = | 22,879,209 | 407,901.68 -
Less: From Exploratory areas | - 2,870 42.43 - 4,099 63.51 -
Less: Government of India's - - 9,785.35 | 445,039.68 - | 15,930.69 | 391,907.48
share in Profit Petroleum
Natural Gas* 000M® | 20,598,972 | 79,440.41 - 20,534,094 | 80,358.44 -
Less: From Exploratory areas 3,056 10.27 - 1,072 3.56 -
Less: Government of India's - - 5,632.94 | 73,797.20 - | 4,827.30 | 75,527.58
share in Profit Petroleum
Liquified Petroleum Gas MT 1,107,556 -| 21,923.69 | 1,029,220 - | 22,752.31
Naphtha MT 1,598,430 -| 47,137.36 | 1,544,868 - | 48,406.27
Ethane/Propane MT 533,383 -| 10,248.63 496,603 - 9,889.55
Superior Kerosene Oil MT 165,542 - 3,255.42 152,836 - 4,448.38
Superior Kerosene Oil - KL - - - 440,772 - | 12,253.13
(Trading)
LSHS MT 15,908 - 411.09 23,457 - 653.91
HSD MT - - - 1,090 - 27.44
HSDincl. ULSHSD(Trading) | KL 4,289 - 155.97 | 1,742,039 - | 61,882.54
Motor Spirit (Trading) KL 548 - 26.97 272,689 - | 11,061.54
Aviation Turbine Fuel (ATF) MT 1,718 - 51.72 15,377 - 665.87
Others - - - 0.46 - - 1.08
Total - - - | 602,048.19 - - | 639,477.08

*Quantity includes share from Joint Ventures




27.8.2

Opening and Closing Stock of goods produced:

2009-10 2008-09
Particulars Unit Quantity Value Quantity Value @
inmillion) in million)

Opening stock
Crude Oil MT 974,231 5,062.67 920,280 4,217.23
Liquefied Petroleum Gas MT 7437 30.65 7,633 30.08
Naphtha MT 117,353 403.14 108,292 461.34
Ethane/Propane MT 841 6.67 766 5.67
Superior Kerosene Ol MT 9,107 39.05 5,632 22.10
Aviation Turbine Fuel MT 1,136 6.32 859 5.58
Low Sulphur Heavy Stock MT 166 1.09 122 1.80
High Speed Diesel MT 4,121 35.7 3,122 29.84
High Speed Diesel * KL 54 1.29 48 1.45
Motor Spirit* KL 14 0.43 6 0.25
Others 0.69 1.35

5,587.71 4,776.69
Closing stock
Crude Oll MT 1,025,390 6,244.55 974,231 5,062.67
Liquefied Petroleum Gas MT 7,061 32.90 7437 30.65
Naphtha MT 110,614 418.23 117,353 403.14
Ethane/Propane MT 838 7.00 841 6.67
Superior Kerosene Oil MT 8,540 32.11 9,107 39.05
Aviation Turbine Fuel MT 915 5.03 1,136 6.32
Low Sulphur Heavy Stock MT 644 5.92 166 1.09
High Speed Diesel MT 1,855 19.03 4,121 35.71
Propane MT 82 0.13 - -
High Speed Diesel * KL 52 1.64 54 1.29
Motor Spirit* KL 13 0.55 14 0.43
Carbon Credits Units 10,508 0.56 - -
Others 0.44 0.69

6,768.09 5,587.71
* Purchased for frading



27.8.3 Licensed Capacity, Installed Capacity and Actual Production (Capacity as certified by the Management):

2009-10 2008-09
Products Unit Installed Actual Installed Actual
Capacity Production Capacity Production
perannum Quantity perannum Quantity
Crude Ol MT NA 26,464,102 NA 27,127,596
Natural Gas 000 M* NA 25,594,428 NA 25,435,844
Liquified Petroleum Gas MT 1,158,000 1,104,948 1,158,000 1,026,319
Ethane/Propane MT 570,000 534,964 570,000 496,663
Naphtha MT 1,502,878 1,591,750 1,468,228 1,653,018
SKO MT 314,300 164,974 304,400 156,302
ATF MT 7,860 21,464
LSHS MT 16,270 16,386 16,270 23,501
HSD MT 42,637 35,726 42,637 36,186
LDO MT 4,950 158 - -
Notes:
1. Licensed Capacity is not applicable for Crude Oil & Natural Gas.
2. Productionincludesinternal consumption and intermediary losses.
3. Production of 28,835 MT Crude Oil and 1,268 TM’ Natural Gas is included being the difference between 30%
participating interest and 23.55% entitlement interestin JV Block RJ ON 90/1.
4. Crude Oilincludes condensate 1.958 MMT (Previous year 2.006 MMT).
27.8.4 Purchases:
2009-10 2008-09
Products Unit Quantity Value® Quantity Value®
in million) in million)
Superior Kerosene Oil KL - 0.12 440,772 12,248.73
HSD KL 4,280 119.24 98,410 3,729.69
ULSHSD KL - - 16.43,636 58,133.71
Motor Spirit KL 550 19.54 2,72,690 11,053.63
Others - 0.42 - 0.27
Total 139.32 85,166.03




27.8.5 Raw Material Consumed:

2009-10 2008-09
Unit Quantity Value at cost Quantity Value at cost
 in million) % in million)
(For production of
Liquified Petroleum Gas,
Ethane/Propane, Naphtha,
Superior Kerosene Oil, Low
Sulphur High Stock, Aviation
Turbine Fuel and High
Speed Diesel)
Out of own production:
Crude Qil MT 118,167 585.22 139,641 623.60
Natural Gas oooM* 830,668 3,150.97 771,412 3,000.13
Gas Equivalent Condensate 000M?® 496,881 916.93 568,571 992.89
Purchases :
Gas Equivalent Condensate MT 112,116 2,766.01 162,941 4,983.87
27.9 Consumption of Raw Materials, Stores and Spare Parts:
2009-10 2008-09
Amount % Amount %
(X in million) (X in million)
Imported 4,867.53 20.14 4,205.42 17.60
Indigenous 19,311.93 79.86 19,683.65 82.40
Total 24,179.46 100.00 23,889.07 100.00
27.10 ValueofIimportson CIF Basis:
 in million)
2009-10 2008-09
Capital items * 55,433.81 30,581.09
Stores and Spare Parts 7,548.87 7,875.45
Total 62,982.68 38,456.54
*Includes stage payments made against capital works.
27.11  Expenditure in Foreign Currency:
 in million)
2009-10 2008-09
Interest 5.33 9.97
Services 102,562.41 90,660.55
Others 37,278.43 35,881.71
Total 139,846.17 126,552.23

oncc i



27.12  Earningsin Foreign Currency:

X in million)
2009-10 2008-09
Services 27.25 472
FOB value of Sales 45,832.44 34,246.68
Others 11.28 73.14
Total 45,870.97 34,324 54
27.13 Managerial Remuneration (included in 27.7 above):
 in million)
AMOUNT PAID OR PAYABLE TO DIRECTORS 2009-10 2008-09
Remuneration to Functional Directors:
Salaries and Allowances 16.29 7.83
Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 1.46 0.77
Performance Related Payments/ Incentives 13.46 2.95
Other Benefits and Perquisites* 2.62 1.92
Leave Encashment and Gratuity on retirement of Directors - 1.62
Provision for Leave, Gratuity and Post Retirement 0.52 2.85
Benefits as perrevised AS-15
Sub total 34.35 17.94
Independent Directors:
Sitting Fees 3.70 3.52
Total 38.05 2146

#includes adhoc advance paid on account of pay revision due from 01.01.2007.

* does not include cost of medical treatment availed from the Company’s own medical facilities as the amount is not

determinable.
27.14 AUDITORS'REMUNERATION (includedin 27.7 above):

(X in million)
2009-10 2008-09
Audit Fees 717 747
For Certification work etc. 5.79 5.29
Travelling and Out of Pocket Expenses 13.41 15.09
Total 26.37 21.55




28.
28.1

28.2

Disclosure under Guidance Note on "0il & Gas Producing Activities” (approved by Reserve Estimates Committee):

Company's share of Proved Reserves on the geographical basis is as under:

Crude Oil Gas Total Qil Equivalent
(MMT)* (Billion Cubic Meter) (MTOE)*
Details
As at As at As at As at As at As at
31.03.10 | 31.03.09 | 31.03.10 | 31.03.09 31.03.10 31.03.09
Offshore | Opening 222.710 | 226420 | 196.712 198.011 419.422 424 431
Addition 19.620 14.910 33.624 18.221 53.244 33.131
Production 18.060 18.620 19.819 19.520 37.879 38.140
Closing 224260 | 222710 | 210.517 196.712 434.777 419.422
Onshore | Opening 191.760 | 190.340 | 148.125 149.206 339.885 339.546
Addition 5.810 8.990 9.678 4627 15.488 13.617
Production 1.660 7.570 5.576 5.708 13.236 13.278
Closing 189.900 | 191.760 | 152.227 148.125 342.127 339.885
Total Opening 414.470 | 416.760 | 344.837 347.217 759.307 763.977
Addition 25.430 23.900 43.302 22.848 68.732 46.748
Production 25.73 26.19 25.395 25.228 51.125 51.418
Closing 414.150 41447 | 362.744 344,837 776.894 759.307

Company’s share of Proved Developed Reserves on the geographical basis is as under:

Crude Oil Gas Total Oil Equivalent
(MMT)* (Billion Cubic Meter) (MTOE)**
Details
Asat As at As at As at As at As at
31.03.10 | 31.03.09 | 31.03.10 | 31.03.09 31.03.10 31.03.09
Offshore | Opening 176.440 | 182.900 | 126.770 122.892 303.210 305.792
Addition 15.060 12.160 22.910 23.398 37.970 35.558
Production 18.060 18.620 19.819 19.520 37.879 38.140
Closing 173.440 | 176440 | 129.860 126.770 303.300 303.210
Onshore | Opening 148.490 | 148.140 | 111.069 112.317 259.559 260.457
Addition 5.39 8.580 5.644 4.961 11.034 13.541
Production 7.61 8.230 5.535 6.209 13.145 14.439
Closing 146.26 | 148490 | 111.178 111.069 257.438 259.559
Total Opening 324,930 | 331.040 | 237.839 235.209 562.769 566.249
Addition 20.450 20.740 28.554 28.359 49.004 49,099
Production 25.670 26.850 25.354 25.729 51.024 52.579
Closing 319.710 | 324.930 | 241.039 237.839 560.749 562.769

* Crude Qil includes oil condensate and does not include 0.940 MMT (previous year 0.842 MMT) of Condensate due to line

condensation and 198.6 MMM’ (previous year 159 MMM®) of CSU off gas.

** MTOE denotes "Million Tonne Oil Equivalent” and for calculating Oil equivalent of Gas, 1000 M* of Gas has been taken to
be equal to 1 MT of Crude Gil.

Variations in totals, if any, are due to intemal summation and rounding off.

onsc i)
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Disclosure pursuantto the clause 32 of the Listing Agreement:

X in million)
Particulars Outstanding Maximum Outstanding Maximum
as at Amount ason Amount
31.03.2010 Outstanding 31.03.2009 Outstanding
during during
the year the year
2009-10 2008-09
a)Loans to Subsidiaries*
i) ONGC Videsh Limited (OVL)* 162,722.58 162,722.58 153,064.77 154,035.12
ii) Mangalore Refinery & 10,800.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 15,000.00
Petrochemicals Limited
(MRPL)
b)ToAssociates Nil Nil Nil Nil
c) Where there is no repayment
schedule
ONGC Videsh Limited (OVL) 162,722.58 162,722.58 153,064.77 154,035.12
d) Having repayment schedule of
beyond sevenyears:
toemployees 6378.44 6378.44 5,898.86 6,449.64
e) Where nointerest orinterest
below Section 372A of
CompaniesAct
ONGC Videsh Limited (OVL) 162,722.58 162,722.58 153,064.77 154,035.12
f) In the nature of loans to Firms/
companies in which directors Nil Nil Nil Nil
areinterested
*Excludes Current account transactions
g) Investments by the ONGC Videsh Limited (OVL), loanee:
Name of Subsidiary As at 31" March 2010 As at 31st March, 2009
No. of Shares Zinmillion No. of Shares <inmillion
a) ONGC Nile Ganga BV
ClassA 40 8,462.12 40 8,536.32
ClassB 100 21,155.29 100 21,340.82
ClassC 880 234.25 5,500 1,377.86
b) ONGC Narmada Limited
Equity Shares 20,000,000 6.94 20,000,000 6.94
¢) ONGC AmazonAlaknanda Ltd.
Equity Shares 12000 0.56 12000 0.56
Preference Shares 437,488,000 20.190.07 437,488,000 20,190.07
d) Jarpeno Limited, Cyprus
Equity Shares 1,350 0.06 1,000 0.06
| Preference Shares 192210 |  86,744.37 Nil Nil |
e) Carabobo one AB Ltd. 1000 0.76 Nil Nil
Notes:

Loan to OVL is repayable within a notice period of minimum one year and carries no interest during the year 2009-10 and
2010-11. During the previous year, rate of interest was 6% per annum.
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Loan to MRPL carries interest @ 7% per annum and is repayable at quarterly intervals. In view of the prepayment of loan
installments by MRPL, balance loan is repayable over a period of 3 years in quarterly installments, commencing from FY
2011-12. However, Company can recall this loan on a notice period of 90 days and MRPL can also prepay whole or part of the

loan, as pertheir convenience.

The Company has not advanced any money to its employees for the purposes of investment in the securities of the Company.
Disclosure under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006:

Company had sought confirmation from the vendors whether they fall in the category of Micro, Small or Medium Enterprises.
Based on the information available, the required disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises DevelopmentAct,

2006 is given below:
 in million)
Particulars 2009-10 | 2008-09
a) Principal amountremaining unpaid but not due as at yearend 10.21 6.34

b) Interestduethereonasatyearend

appointed day during the year

c) Interestpaid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
DevelopmentAct, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises DevelopmentAct, 2006

d) Interestdue and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under

e) Interestaccrued and remaining unpaid as atyearend

when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise

f) Furtherinterestremaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date

Disclosure on Foreign currency exposures at year end that have not been hedged by derivative instrument or

otherwise are given below:

(Figures in million)

Particulars Asat31.03.10 Asat 31.03.09
Amountin Equivalent Amountin Equivalent
Foreign (4 Foreign L4
Currency Currency
Loans Japanese Yen 102.97 49.75 514.54 267.35
Import Creditors
Australian Dollar - - 0.1 3.75
Euros 28.48 1722.11 3.84 258.27
British Pound 1.67 113.50 0.95 69.16
Japanese Yen 413.29 199.64 134.75 70.13
Norwegian Kroner 4.61 34.711 0.00 0.00
Singapore Dollar 0.09 2.79 0.00 0.05
Canadian Dollar 0.04 1.98 0.00 0.00
United States Dollar 758.34 34,220.66 395.49 19,937.79
Total 36,295.39 20,339.15
Export Receivables
United States Dollar 68.25 3079.78 - -

Previous year's figures have been regrouped/ reclassified, wherever necessary, to conform to current year's

classification.

Figures in parenthesis as given in these Notes to Accounts relate to previous year.



CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31° MARCH, 2010

& in million)
Year Ended Year Ended
31" March, 2010 31* March, 2009
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net Profit before tax and extraordinary items 249,838.43 239,149.59
Adjustments For:

Prior Period ltems 182.69 765.32
Reoouped Costs (Represented by Deprecition, Depletion and Amortisation)

Gross Amount 146,431.88 119,541.97
Actual expenditure (88,181.19) (55,605.73)

Non-cash Recouped Costs 58,250.69 63,936.24

-Interest on Borrowings 144.23 1,189.17

- Foreign Exchange Loss/{Gain) (1,948.82) 2,193.99

- Provision for Leave Encashment 507.46 2,465.06

- Provision for AS-15 Benefits 1,510.22 2,074.71

- Other Provision and Write offs 2,340.11 10,951.31

-Interest Income (18,261.96) (38,548.24)

- Excess Liability written Back (913.03) (1,456.76)

- Deferred Government Grant (5.29) (7.02)

- Dividend Income (3,263,20) 38,543.10 (2,956.08) 40,607.70
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 288,381.53 279,757.29
Adjustments for:-

- Debtors 10,573.29 2,646.61
- Loans and Advances (13,664.46) (13,150.71)

- Other Current Assets (22.85) 86.35
- Deferred Revenue Expenditure (2,641.23) 13.59
- Inventories (6,417.00) (5,684.41)

- Trade Payable and Other Liabilities (16,443.72)  (28,615.97 23,325.60 7,237.03
Cash generated from Operations 259,765.56 286,994.32
Direct Taxes Paid (Net of tax refund) 55,813.76) (63,558.50)
Cash Flow before prior period 203,951.80 223,435.82
Prior period items (Cash items) (71.70) (708.42)
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities ‘A’ 203,880.10 222,727.40

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of Fixed Assets (Net) (90,495.70) (88,013.20)
Exploratory and Development Drilling (49,080.08) (59,345.39)
Purchase of Investments (12,800.87) (5,391.06)
Sale of Investments - 9,556.37
Loans and advances to Subsidiary (5,378.41) (40,739.90)
Loans to Public Sector Undertakings and
Other Bodies Corporate 320.60 670.83
Deposit with Public Sector Undertakings 5,000.00 (20,000.00)
Dividend Received from Subsidiary 1,506.42 1,506.42
Dividend Received from Associates 24.50 -
Dividend Received from Others 1,732.28 1,449.66
Extraordinary Item-Insurance Claims Received - 657.73
Tax paid on Excess of insurance Claim over book value - (223.56)

once



(X in million)
Year Ended Year Ended
31% March, 2010 31* March, 2009
Interest Received 25,451.04 38,286.57
Tax paid on Interest Income (8,650.81 (13,013.61)
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities 'B' (132,371.03) (174,599.14)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings (217.60) (102.07)
Dividend Paid (68,422.98) (68,419.41)
Tax on Dividend (11,376.03) (11,632.04)
Interest Paid (144.23 (1,189.17)
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities 'C' (80,160.84 (81,342.69)
Net increase/(decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (8,651.77) (33,214.43)
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 1% April, 2009 (Opening Balance) 190,962.12 224,176.55
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 31% March, 2010 (Closing Balance) 182,310.35 190,962.12

Notes;

1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in the Accounting Standard-3 on
Cash Flow Statements issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

2. Adjustments have not been made to "Purchase of Fixed Assets” (Investing Activities), on account of increase/decrease in Capital
Creditors. The impact of the above is not readily ascertainable.

3. Cash and Cash equivalents represent:- & in million)
2009-10 2008-09

a) Cash and Bank Balances 108,279.29 121,405.48

b) Deposits with Bank under Site Restoration Fund Scheme * 74,031.06 69,556.64

Total 182,310.35 190,962.12

4. Brackets indicate cash outflow/ deduction.

5. Previous year figures have been re-grouped/re-classified wherever necessary to confirm to the current years presentation.

*Deposited u/s 33 ABA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and can be withdrawn only for the purposes specified in the scheme.

(N. K. Sinha)
Company Secretary

For and On behalf of the Board

(D.K. Sarraf)
Director (Finance)

(R.S.Sharma)

Chairman & Managing Director

In terms of our report of even date attached

For Arun K. Agarwal & Associates
Chartered Accountants

(Rajesh Surolia)
Partner (Mem. No. 88008)

For Kalyaniwalla & Mistry
Chartered Accountants

(ErminK. Irani)
Partner (Mem.No. 35646)

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(B. K. Sipani)
Partner (Mem. No. 88926)

For P.S.D & Associates
Chartered Accountants

(Prakash Sharma)
Partner (Mem. No. 72332)

For Padmanabhan Ramani & Ramanujam

Chartered Accountants

(K.R.Ganesh)
Partner (Mem. No.22439)

New Delhi
May 28, 2010
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BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COMPANY'S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE

I Registration Details

Registration No. 55-54155
Balance Sheet Date 31-03-2010
II. Capital Raised during the year (Amount in ¥ Thousands)
Public Issue
Bonus Issue

State Code

lil. Position of Mobilisation and Deployment of funds{Amount in ¥ Thousands)

Total Liabilities
1321064230

Source of Funds Paid-up Capital
21388873
Secured Loans
Deferred Tax Liability
89182124
Current Liability
194999651
Net fixed Assets
717217514
Current Assets
537713231

Accumulated Losses

Application of Funds

IV. Performance of Company ( Amount In ¥ Thousands )

Tumover(Gross Revenue)

641729649
Profit /{Loss) Before Tax
249838428
Earning per Share in¥
78.39

V. Generic Name of Three Principal Products / Services of Company (as per monetary terms)

Item Code No.
Product Description
Item Code No.
Product Description
Item Code No.
Product Description

(N. K. Sinha}
Company Secretary

(D.K. Sarraf)
Director(Finance)

Place: New Delhi
Dated: May 28, 2010

27090000
Crude Oil
27112100
Natural Gas
27111900

Liquified Petroleum Gas

85

Right Issue
Private Placement

(Issued to employees only)

Total Assets
1321064230

Reserves & Surplus
851437160
Unsecured Loans
49746
Liability For Abandonment Cost
164006676

Investments
57720330
Misc. Expenditure
8413155

Total Expenditure
391891221
Profit /(Loss) After Tax
167675560
Dividend Rate %
330%

(R.S. Sharma)
Chairman & Managing Director



STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 212 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956,

Sl. No. | Name of the Subsidiary 1. The Financial Year of | 2. Date from which it | 3. (a) Number of shares held by Oil and Natural Gas
the Subsidiary ends on | became Subsidiary: | Corporation Limited alongwith its nominees in the
Subsidiary at the end of the financial year of the Subsidiary™
1 | ONGC Videsh Limited 31"March, 2010 1* February,1994 10,00,00,000 Equity shares of ¥ 100 each
2 | Mangalore Refineryand Petrochemicals Limited 31*March, 2010 30" March, 2003 1,25,53,54,097 Equityshares of¥ 10 each
3 | ONGCNile GangaB.V. 31* December, 2009 12" March, 2003 40Class “A” & 100 Class “B” shares of Euro 453.78 each &880 Class
"C" Shares of Euro 1 each directly, rest 720 Class "C” shares are held by
OMEL which is JV Company of OVL & Mittal Investment Sarl (MIS)
4 | ONGC Narmada Limited 31*March, 2010 7" December, 2005 20 million shares of one Naira each
5 | ONGCAmazonAlaknanda Limited™** 31*March, 2010 8" August, 2006 12,000 Equity & 437,488,000 Preference shares of one USD each
6 | ONGC Do Brasil Explorancao PetroliferaLtda. 31" December, 2009 7" July, 2006 1,000 quotas of BRL 1 each
7 | ONGC Campos Ltda. 31* December, 2009 16" March, 2007 329,769,113 quotas of BRL 1 each
8 | ONGCNile Ganga (Cyprus)Ltd. 31* December, 2009 26" November, 2007 | 222,826 Shares 0of0.01 USD each
9 | ONGC Nile Ganga (San Cristobal) B.V. 31" December, 2009 29" February, 2008 54,000 shares of Euro 1 each
10 | JarpenoLimited 31* December, 2009 12" August, 2008 1,350 Equity shares of 1 EUR each & 192,210 Optionally
Convertible Redeemable Preference shares of USD 1each
11 | Imperial Energy Corporation Plc. 31*March, 2010 13" January, 2009 104,607,145 shares of 0.025 GBP each
12 | Imperial Energy Limited 31%March, 2010 13" January, 2009 2shareof 1 GBP
13 | RusImperial Corporation plc. 31* March, 2010 13" January, 2009 30,000,001 shares of 0.05 GBP each
14 | Imperial Energy Finance (Jersey) Limited 31"March, 2010 13" January, 2009 2 NoPar Value shares
15 | Biancus Holdings Limited 31* December, 2009 13" January, 2009 1,000 shares of 1.71 EUR each
16 | RusImperial Limited 31"March, 2010 13" January, 2009 99 shares of 1 GBP each
17 | Imperial Energy Tomsk Limited 31* December, 2009 13" January, 2009 1,000 shares of 1.71 EUR each
18 | Imperial Energy (Cyprus) Limited 31*December, 2009 13" January, 2009 11,000 shares of 1.71 EUReach
19 | Imperial Energy Nord Limited 31" December, 2009 13" January, 2009 11,000 shares of 1.71 EUR each
20 | Imperial Energy Gas Limited 31* December, 2009 13" January, 2009 2,000 shares of 1 EUR each
21 | Nefsilius Holdings Limited 31" December, 2009 13" January, 2009 1,000 shares of 1.71 EUR each
22 | RKImperial Energy Kostanai Limited 31" December, 2009 13" January, 2009 1,000 shares of 1.71 EUR each
23 | Imperial Frac Services (Cyprus) Limited 31" December, 2009 13" January, 2009 1,000 shares of 1.71 EUR each
24 | Freshspring Investments Limited 31 December, 2009 13" January, 2009 1,000 sharesof 1.71 EUR each
25 | Redcliffe Holdings Limited 31*December, 2009 13" January, 2009 1,000 shares of 1.71 EUR each
26 | SanAgio Investments Limited 31" December, 2009 13" January, 2009 1,000 shares of 1.71 EUR each
27 | Imperial Energy Kostanai Limited 31*March, 2010 13" January, 2009 2share of 1 GBP
28 | 00O Sibintemeft 31" December, 2009 13" January, 2009 full charter capital 100,000 RUR
29 | OOOAllianceneftegaz 31" December, 2009 13" January, 2009 full charter capital 50,000 RUR
30 | OOO Nord Imperial 31" December, 2009 13" January, 2009 full charter capital 100,000 RUR
31 | 00O Imperial Energy 31° December, 2009 13" January, 2009 full charter capital 10,000 RUR
32 | 00O Imperial Energy Tomsk Gas 31* December, 2009 13" January, 2009 full charter capital 10,000 RUR
33 | 00O Stratum 31" December, 2009 13" January, 2009 full charter capital 100,000 RUR
34 | OO0 Imperial Trans Service 31* December, 2009 13" January, 2009 full charter capital 100,000 RUR
35 | OO0 Rus Imperial Group 31" December, 2009 13" January, 2009 full charter capital 100,000 RUR
36 | TOO Sevkazgra 31* December, 2009 13" January, 2009 full charter capital 1,701,235,780 tenge
37 | AB Startkapitaletnr5636 31*March 2010 25" February, 2010 1000 ordinary shares of 100 SEKeach
(Name changed to Carabobo One AB Ltd.)
38 | PetroCarabobo GangaB.V. 31%December 2010* 26" February, 2010 18,000 shares of 1 Euroeach

* The first financial year as subsidiary would end on 31st December, 2010

**Includes shares held through subsidiaries also.

***At the closing rate of exchange, there is a Foreign Exchange Translation Reserve of ¥ 11,314.90 million, which has not been adjusted.

***|ncluding figures in respect of JV Companies.
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RELATING TO COMPANY’S INTEREST IN THE SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

3. (b) Extent of interest of 4. The net aggregate amount of the Subsidiary’s Profit/(Loss) so far it concemns the members of the Holding Company:
I;Ift’lt(’l::gﬁﬁ:rr::‘i’aalnz:atr% et:g 4. (a) Not dealt within the Holding Company’s accounts 4. (b) Dealt within the Holding Company’s accounts:
Subsidiary 4. (a) (i) For the period 1st April, |4. (a) (ii) For the previous| 4. (b) (i) For the period | 4. (b) (ii) For the previous period (s)
2009 to 31" March, 2010 |period (s) of the Subsidiary since| 1st April, 2009 to 31" | of the Subsidiary since it became
R in million)*** it became the Holding Company's| March, 2010 ® in million) | the Holding Company's Subsidiary
Subsidiary X in million):  in million):
100% 11711.28 4412517 0 1050
71.63% 7967.75 27314.98 1506.42 46448
ClassA&B 100% 11710.27 47405.20 - 14098.77
Class C77.491%
100% -117.32 -400.35 - -
100% 2718.98 7054.25 - -
100% 0.00 0.00 - -
100% 776.17 -2467.02 - -
100% 47.92 -1.79 - -
100% 4518.50 2814.85 - -
100% 246.28 -76.24 - -
100% 992.66 161.59 - -
100% -337.75 -102.40 - -
100% 0.00 -0.05 - -
100% -0.19 -0.05 - -
100% 43.03 100.05 - -
100% 0.00 -0.02 - -
85% -29.18 .95 - -
100% -313.22 -34.61 - -
100% -336.33 -52.12 - -
100% -1.23 -0.19 - -
100% -1.99 -0.10 - -
100% -1.00 0.1 - -
100% -1.42 -0.18 - -
100% -1.14 -0.32 - -
100% -51.86 -71.35 - -
100% -380.78 27.35 - -
100% -2.09 -0.51 - -
55.9% (Net Interest47.5%) -228.01 -79.85 - -
100% -1687.84 -1695.40 - -
100% -5138.87 -3817.57 - -
100% 0.00 0.00 - -
95% -2.61 -1.66 - -
100% -0.14 -0.05 - -
100% 0.62 -5.06 - -
100% 335.66 -492.86 - -
100% 0.00 -0.34 - -
100% 0.02 - - -
100% (0.38) - - :
{N K Sinha) (D K Sarraf) (R. 8. Sharma)
Company Secretary Director (Finance) Chairman & Managing Director
Place: New Delhi

Dated: May 28, 2010
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2009-10 2008-09 2007-08
R inmillion unless otherwise stated)

FINANCIAL

Income from Operations (Gross) 1,085,787 1,105,621 1,036,483
Statutory Levies 213,391 229,963 240,025
Operating Expenses 407,693 430,150 374,072
Exchange Loss/(Gain) (10,671) 11,716 1,018
Profit Before Interest Depreciation & Tax (PBIDT) 475,374 433,792 421,368
Recouped Costs 187,391 155,705 139,533
Operating Income (PBIT) 287,983 278,087 281,835
Interest(Net) (16,431) (32,950) (27,375)
Profit before Tax and Extraordinary ltems 304,414 311,037 309,210
Extraordinary Items- Excess of Insurance Claims over BV 0 658 0
Profit before Tax 304,414 311,695 309,210
Corporate Tax 107,138 110,094 106,999
Profit after Tax 197,276 201,601 202,211
Share in Associates for the year 78 99 21
Profit relating to minority 3,319 3,747 3,509
Group Profit after Tax 194,035 197,953 198,723
Dividend 70,583 68,444 68,444
Tax on Dividend 11,992 12,017 12,014
Share Capital 21,389 21,389 21,535
Net Worth (Equity) 1,005,653 915,729 774127
Borrowings 51,769 13,091 9,427
Working Capital 192,787 172,257 240,202
Capital Employed 869,009 752,781 693,329
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE RATIOS

PBIDT to Turnover (%) 438 39.2 40.7
PBDT to Turnover (%) 45.3 422 433
Profit Margin(%)- incl. extraordinary items 17.9 17.9 19.2
ROCE(PBIDT to Capital Employed) (%) 54.7 57.6 60.8
Net Profit to Equity (%)- incl. extraordinary items 19.3 216 257
BALANCE SHEET RATIOS

Current Ratio 1.38:1 1.31:1 1.75:1
Debt Equity Ratio 0.05 0.01 0.01
Debtors Turnover Ratio{Days) 24 24 25
PER SHARE DATA

Earning Per Share (%)- before extraordinary items 90.72 92.35 92.91
Earning Per Share ()- after extraordinary items 90.72 92.55 92.91
Dividend (%) 330 320 320
Book Value Per Share®)* 470 428 362

*Post Bonus in 2006-07
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el
ONGC GROUP PERFORMANCE AT A GLANCE

2006-07 2005-06 2004-05 2003-04 2002-03 2001-02
898,872 755,854 630,663 465,200 355,082 238,679
216,411 175,823 155,922 118,979 93,177 50,742
307,502 255,258 186,967 130,374 72,330 49,161
(2,675) (463) 203 61 356 118
377,634 325,236 287,571 206,786 189,219 129,658
124,154 103,549 73,940 65,797 41,681 38,743
253,480 221,687 213,631 140,989 147,538 90,915
(19,241) (11,715) (10,991) (7,772) (12,671) (7,894)
272,721 233,402 224,622 148,761 160,209 98,809
4,751 6,405 0 0 0 0
21T AT2 239,807 224,622 148,761 160,209 98,809
98,454 84,932 79416 53,880 55,785 36,593
179,018 154,875 145,206 94,881 104,424 62216
102 107 114 156 (8) 0
1,424 1,006 1,930 1,234 (259) 0
177,696 153,976 143,390 93,803 104,675 62,216
66,305 64,167 57,535 34,222 42,778 19,963
10,383 9,172 8,156 4,385 2,375 0
21,416 14,259 14,259 14,259 14,259 14,259
661,994 564,017 480,583 407,397 356,388 296,357
12,964 22,342 23,870 29,073 55,527 32,644
202,408 173,164 135,348 107,709 91,928 95,400
618,263 513,037 430,333 405,765 389,478 311,787
420 430 4556 445 533 54.3
42 446 473 46.1 56.9 57.6
19.8 204 27 202 295 26.1
61.1 63.4 66.8 51.0 4856 416
26.8 273 298 230 204 21.0
1.79:1 1.97:1 1.74:1 1.67:1 1.82:1 2.39:1
0.02 0.04 0.05 0.07 0.16 0.11

20 21 27 23 44 3
81.61 105.00 100.56 65.78 73.41 4363
83.08 107.98 100.56 65.78 7341 4363
310 450 400 240 300 140
310 306 337 286 250 208



2009-10 2008-09 2007-08

{inmillion)

REVENUES

Sales

Crude Oil 527,312 491,127 543,631
Natural Gas 81,405 82,835 78,560
LPG 21,924 22,752 20,169
Naptha/Aromatic Rich Naptha 47,137 48,406 43,848
Ethane/Propane 10,249 9,890 9,291
Superior Kerosene Oil 3,255 16,701 10,775
HSD 156 61,910 48,621
Motor Spirit 27 11,062 9,159
Others 370,250 349,257 254,297
Price Revision Arrears 0 0 0
Sub- Total 1,061,715 1,093,940 1,018,351
Pipeline Revenue 3,126 5,267 4,644
Other Receipts 17,217 9,858 12,387
Accretion / (Decretion) in stock 3,729 (3,444) 1,101
Total Revenues 1,085,787 1,105,621 1,036,483
COST & EXPENSES

Operating, Selling & General

(a) Royalties 103,561 111,574 121,057
(b) Cess/ Excise Duty 98,831 103,571 108,838
(c) Natural Calamity Contingent Duty - Crude Oil 1,062 1,081 1,127
(d) Sales Tax 3,734 7,823 2,947
(e) Education Cess* 1,719 1,784 1,861
(f) Octroi & Port Trust Charges 4,484 4,130 4,195
Sub-total (a to f) 213,391 229,963 240,025
Pipeline Operations (Excluding Depreciation) 11,967 10,725 10,343
Other Operating Costs 395,726 419,425 363,729
Exchange Loss/(Gain) (10,671) 11,716 1,018
Recouped Costs

(a) Depletion 62,242 55,883 49,259
(b) Depreciation 20,767 21,822 27,874
(c) Amortisation 104,815 81,110 62,837
(d) Impairment (433) (3,110) (437)
Sub-Total {a to d) 187,391 155,705 139,533
Total Cost & Expenses 797,804 827,534 754,648
Operating Income Before Interest &Tax 287,983 278,087 281,835
Interest

-Payments 5,564 2,386 1,135
-Receipts 21,995 35,336 28,510
Net (16,431) (32,950) (27,375)
Profit before Tax and Extraordinary ltems 304,414 311,037 309,210
Extraordinary Items- Excess of Insurance Claims over book value 0 658 0
Profit before Tax 304,414 311,695 309,210
Corporate Tax ( Net) 107,138 110,094 106,999
Profit after Tax 197,276 201,601 202,211
Share in Associates for the year 78 99 21
Profit relating to minority 3,319 3,747 3,509
Group Profit after Tax 194,035 197,953 198,723
Profit & Loss Account Balance b/f 93,335 58,990 28,795
Adjustments (21) (107) 0
Dividend 70,583 68,444 68,444
Tax on Dividend 11,992 12,017 12,014
Retained Earnings For The Year 204,774 176,375 147,060

*upto 2005-06, education cess is included in respective heads of levies.
onGe



STATEMENT OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS OF ONGC GROUP

2006-07 2005-06 2004-05 2003-04 2002-03 2001-02
475,295 382,311 209,765 222,347 245,049 137,155
80,117 73,383 57,759 53,508 50,858 49,446
14,867 16,279 12,066 16,352 19,087 11473
37,907 35,679 29,260 22538 22,035 18,782
9,095 7,401 5,705 4,779 5,837 4,082
15,754 10,605 16,896 2,658 3,189 1,731
42,037 23,403 29,277 85 80 0
4,530 3,797 6,846 0 0 0
183,064 188,892 164,217 127,037 1,748 725
11 156 584 3,461 1,568 5017
862,677 741,906 622,375 452.765 349 451 228411
3,351 3,214 23 2 478 3,966
23,029 11,279 6,989 11,028 6,268 6,300
9,815 (545) 1276 1,383 (1,115) 2
898,872 755,854 630,663 465,200 355,082 238,679
104,558 85,242 65,692 44,740 30,762 25,141
100,160 76,755 68,556 58,647 47,057 25,660
1,149 1,080 1,138 1,117 98 0
6,009 10,299 17,405 12,239 12,572 7,714
1,303 0 0 0 0 0
3,232 2,447 3,131 2,236 2,688 1,227
216,411 175,823 155,922 118,979 93,177 59,742
9,122 7,732 10,320 6,095 5,500 4,951
298,380 247,526 176,647 133,279 66,830 44,210
(2,675) (463) 203 61 356 118
46,439 34,318 27,802 25,748 17,637 15,961
29,060 28,556 10,223 10,758 7,651 8,288
46925 41,001 35,774 29,129 16,231 14,247
1,730 (326) 141 162 162 247
124,154 103,549 73,040 65,797 41,681 38,743
645,302 534,167 417,032 324,211 207,544 147,764
253,480 221,687 213,631 140,989 147,538 90,915
1,906 1,597 1,644 3,785 1,183 2,493
21,147 13,312 12,635 11,557 13,854 10,387
(19,241) (11,715) (10,991) 7.772) (12,671) (7,894)
272,721 233,402 224,622 148,761 160,209 98,809
4,751 6,405 0 0 0 0
277 472 239,807 224,622 148,761 160,209 98,809
98,454 84,932 79,416 53,880 55,785 36,593
179,018 154,875 145,206 94,881 104,424 62,216
102 107 114 156 (8) 0
1,424 1,006 1,930 1,234 (259) 0
177,696 153,976 143,390 93,803 104,675 62,216
8,848 1 1 0 58 (179)

0 0 0 0 0 0
66,305 64,167 57,535 34,222 42,778 19,963
10,383 9172 8.156 4,385 2,375 0
109,856 80,638 77,700 55,196 59,580 42,074




2009-10 2008-09 2007-08
R inmillion)
RESOURCES
A. Own
1. Net Worth
(a) Equity
i) Share Capital 21,389 21,389 21,535
i) Reserves & Surplus 992,677 900,846 759,331
Sub-Total 1,014,066 922 235 780866
(b) Less Deferred Revenue Expenditure 8,413 6,506 6,739
Net Worth 1,005,653 915,729 774127
2. Long Term Liabilities
Net Deferred Tax Liability 102,912 92,231 87,376
Total Own Funds (1+2) 1,108,565 1,007,960 861,503
B. Minority Interest 16,432 14,113 11,448
C. Outside
1. Unsecured Loans
a) Indian Loans 34,550 6,015 2,079
b) Foreign Loans 10,260 1,492 1,458
Total Unsecured Loans 44,810 7,507 3,537
2. Secured Loans 6,959 5,584 5,890
Total Outside Resources 51,769 13,091 9,427
TOTAL RESOURCES ( A+ B+C) 1,176,766 1,035,164 882,378
DISPOSITION OF RESOURCES
A. Goodwill on consolidation 95,385 114,039 25,777
B. Block Capital
1. Fixed Assets 243,762 184,956 193,961
2. Producing Properties (Net) 511,665 452,980 362,714
Less: Libility for Abandonment Cost 174,590 171,451 129,325
Total Block Capital 580,837 466,485 427,350
C. Working Capital
a) Current Assets
i) Inventories 82,400 65,424 72,985
i) Debtors (Net of Provision) 71,424 71,814 70,469
iii) Cash & Bank Balances 149,704 156,331 186,525
iv) Deposit with Bank Under Site Restoration Fund Scheme# 74,138 69,624 64,034
v) Loans & Advances and Others 127,998 143,953 81,332
Sub-Total 505,664 507,146 475,345
Less:
(b) Current Liabilities and Provisions
and Short Term Loans 312,877 334,889 235,143
Working Capital 192,787 172,257 240,202
D. CAPITAL EMPLOYED 869,009 752,781 693,329
E. INVESTMENTS 51,593 34,803 44,821
F. CAPITAL WORKS IN PROGRESS 176,039 165,222 86,351
G. EXPLORATORY/DEVELOPMENT WELLS IN PROGRESS 80,125 82,358 57,877
TOTAL DISPOSITION 1,176,766 1,035,164 882,378

# Excluded for Current Ratio.



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF ONGC GROUP

2006-07 2005-06 2004-05 2003-04 2002-03 2001-02
21,416 14,259 14,259 14,259 14,259 14,259
645,719 553,421 471,941 399,158 344,433 284,289
667,135 567,680 486,200 413417 358,692 208,548

5,141 3,663 5,617 6,020 2,304 2,191
661,994 564,017 480,583 407,397 356,388 296,357
81,119 71,633 57,894 54,250 47,116 53,471
743,113 635,650 538477 461,647 403,504 349,828

8,321 7,230 6,204 4274 5,029 0

1,881 1,745 1,643 1,541 5,729 1,658

4,526 13,181 11,718 8431 5,488 30,986

6,407 14,926 13,361 9,972 11,217 32,644

6,557 7416 10,509 19,101 44,310 0
12,964 22,342 23,870 29,073 55,627 32,644
764,398 665,222 568,551 494,994 464,060 382472
30,616 17,103 13,683 14,591 12,790 0
185,355 138,806 116,689 117,049 119,932 56,013
351,741 312,639 245,554 246,708 190,493 166,913
151,857 128,675 80,941 80,292 25,665 6,539
385,239 322,770 281,302 283,465 284,760 216,387
58,744 49,432 43,730 35,529 25,635 14,526
48,167 44,271 47,091 29,310 42,843 22,514
150,653 45,721 66,035 64,564 40,035 50,845
56,103 45,336 36,180 31,682 24,781 6,350
74,738 120,683 77,192 60,835 40,456 65,315
388,405 305,443 270,228 221,920 173,750 159,550
185,997 132,279 134,880 114,211 81,822 64,150
202,408 173,164 135,348 107,709 91,928 95,400
618,263 513,037 430,333 405,765 389,478 311,787
35,832 35,579 26,555 30,307 30,603 30,232
64,055 76,292 87,775 13,520 9,338 6,903
46,248 40,314 23,888 45,402 34,641 33,550
764,398 665,222 568,551 494,994 464,060 382,472




Auditors’ Report

Report of the Auditors to the Board of Directors of Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited on the Consolidated Financial
Statements of Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited, its Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates

We have audited the attached Consolidated Balance Sheet of Qil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited (“the Company”), and its
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates (hereinafter referred to as “Group”), as at March 31, 2010 and the Consolidated Profitand
Loss Account and Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date and annexed thereto. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the management of the Company and have been prepared by the management on the basis of
separate financial statements and other financial information regarding components. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

1.

We conducted our auditin accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with anidentified financial reporting framework and are free of material misstatements. An audit includes, examining
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides areasonable basis for our opinion.

We report that the consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the Company’s management in accordance with the
requirements of Accounting Standard (AS) 21- 'Consolidated Financial Statements', and Accounting Standard (AS) 23-
‘Accounting for Investment in Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements' and Accounting Standard (AS) 27-'Financial
Reporting of Interests in Joint Ventures'.

These financial statements include Company's share in the total value of assets, liabilities, expenditure, income and net profit of
124 NELPs / Joint Ventures (JVs) accounts for exploration and production out of which 70 NELPs / Joint Venture accounts have
been audited by one of the firms of Statutory Auditors, 47 NELPs / JVs accounts have been certified by other firms of Chartered
Accountants and 7 NELPs/JV have been certified by the management, as detailed in Note no. 29.1.3 and 29.1.4 of Schedule 27.

We did notaudit the financial statements of the following Joint Venture companies:

® in million)

Name of Joint Venture Company's share of Total Assets Company's share of Total Revenue
Petronet LNG Ltd. 7,451.80 13,433.65
Petronet MHB Ltd. 1,319.31 199.02
ONGC Petro Additions Ltd. 13,465.72 -
Mangalore SEZ Ltd. 1,341.97 1.72
ONGC Mangalore Petrochemicals Ltd. 2,498.68 4.84
ONGC Teri Biotech Ltd. 75.52 38.25
ONGC Tripura Power Company Limited 3,572.35 8.94
(consolidated financial statements)

These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and in our opinion, so
far as it relates to the amounts included in respect of these Joint Venture companies is based solely on the report of those
auditors.

We did not audit the consolidated financial statements of Mangalore Refinery and Petrochemicals Limited, a subsidiary, whose
financial statements reflect total assets of T 145,817.29 million as at March 31, 2010 and total revenues of ¥ 328,738.97 million
and net cash flow amounting to ¥ 1,937.49 million for the year ended on that date. These financial statements have been audited
by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and in our opinion, so far as it relates to the amounts included in respect
ofthis subsidiary is based solely on the report of those auditors.



6. Wedid not audit the consolidated financial statements of ONGC Videsh Limited (OVL), a subsidiary, whose financial statements
reflect total assets of T 388,212.48 million as at March 31, 2010 and total revenues of ¥ 153,828.01 million and net cash flow
amounting to ¥ 600.23 million for the year ended on that date. These consolidated financial statements of OVL have been
audited by other auditors whose consolidated report has been furnished to us, and in our opinion, so far as it relates to the
amounts included in respect of the above is based solely on the report of those auditors. These consolidated financial
statements of OVL comprise of:

(a) Consolidated financial statements of the following subsidiaries / Joint Venture Companies which are prepared under respective
local laws / Production Sharing Contract/ Joint Operating Agreement.

(i) Subsidiaries audited as per Indian GAAP by local firm of auditors:

(% in million)
Particulars Total Asset | Total Liability | Revenue Expenditure
ONGC Nile Ganga BV 1,21,456.22 29,253.31 |(89,693.88 69,838.78
Jarpeno Ltd. 1,00,914.56 24496.29 | 8,711.85 18,259.05
(ii) Subsidiary audited as per US GAAP by local firm of auditors:

{ in million)
Particulars Total Asset | Total Liability | Revenue Expenditure
ONGC Amazon Alaknanda Ltd. 31,491.39 1,930.94 | 7,104.97 4,394.63
(iii) Subsidiary financial statements certified by local firm of auditors for which audit report was not issued:

& in million)
Particulars Total Asset | Total Liability | Revenue Expenditure
ONGC Narmada Ltd. 936.55 1,450.11 8.88 126.20
(iv) Subsidiary unaudited, as certified by the Management:

& in million)
Particulars Total Asset | Total Liability | Revenue Expenditure
Carabobo One AB Ltd. 1.72 144 0.02 0.39
{v) Joint Venture Company audited as per IFRS as adopted by European union by local firm of auditors:

& in million)
Particulars Total Asset | Total Liability | Revenue Expenditure
ONGC Mittal Energy Ltd. 5,328.58 6,068.10 61.57 1,372.99

In respect of:

(i) ltem no. (i), (ii) and (v) above so far it relates to amounts included, is based solely on the report of the other auditors and

(ii) ltem no. (iii) and (iv) above so far it relates to amounts included, we do not express any opinion on the same and also do not
have responsibility forimpact, if any, in the consolidated financial statements.

(b) Company's share of Assets, Liabilities, Revenues and Expenditure in the Joint Ventures of OVL include 27 projects held in the
books of the respective Subsidiary/Joint Venture as mentioned in 6(a) above and 9 projects which have been certified under
respective local laws / Production Sharing Contract/ Joint Operating Agreement by local audit firm and 7 projects have been

certified by the management as detailed in Note no. 29.2 of Schedule 27.



7.

8.

9.

10.

For the purpose of considering the investment in Pawan Hans Helicopters Ltd, an associate in the consolidated financial
statements, the share of profit for the year ended 31" March, 2010, amounting to ¥ 75.31 million based on unaudited accounts and
differential profit of ¥ 2.82 million for FY 2008-09 based on audited accounts (X 54.09 million) and unaudited accounts X 51.27
million) has been considered in the current year due to the reasons explained in Note 4.2 of Schedule 27. We did not audit the
financial statements of this associate, and in our opinion, so far as it relates to the amounts included in respect of this associate, is
based solely on the financial statements certified by the management.

We have placed reliance on technical / commercial evaluation by the management in respect of categorization of wells as
exploratory, development and producing, allocation of cost incurred on them, depletion of producing properties / impairment on the
basis of proved developed hydrocarbon reserves, liability for abandonment costs, liabilities under NELP for under performance
against Minimum Work Programme and allocation of depreciation on process platforms to transportation and facilities.

Without qualifying our opinion attention is invited to:

(a) Note No.3 of Schedule 27 in the Notes to Account for not consolidating the company's interest in Dahez SEZ Limited, A Joint
Venture entity, due to the reasons stated therein.

(b) Note7.1to7.3 of Schedule 27 in respect of recognition of Sales Revenue of crude oil and natural gas.

(c) Note No.19 of Schedule 27 in the Notes to Account, regarding certain observations made by auditors of a Jointly Controlled
assets-Panna Mukta & Tapti, impactof which is not ascertainable and

(d) Note No. 32.4 of Schedule-27 regarding non-availability of head-wise expense details as required by Schedule VI to the
Companies Act, 1956.

We report that on the basis of information and explanation given to us and on the consideration of the separate audit reports on
individual audited financial statements of the Company, its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates and certification of
management in respect of unaudited accounts referred to in Para 3 and 6 above, we are of the opinion that the consolidated financial
statements read with notes to account give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India:

(a) inthe case ofthe Consolidated Balance Sheet of the state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2010; and
(b) inthe case ofthe Consolidated Profit and Loss Account of the results of the Group for the year ended on that date; and
(¢) inthe case ofthe Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows of the Group for the year ended on that date.

ForArun K. Agarwal & Associates ForSinghi& Co. ForP.S.D. & Associates
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn. No: 003917N) (Firm Regn. No: 302049E) (Firm Regn. No: 004501C)
(Rajesh Surolia) (B. K. Sipani) (Prakash Sharma)
Partner (Mem. No. 88008) Partner (Mem. No. 88926) Partner (Mem. No.72332)
For Kalyaniwalla & Mistry For Padmanabhan Ramani & Ramanujam

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

(Firm Regn. No: 104607W) (Firm Regn. No: 002510S)

(Ermin K. Irani) (K.R.Ganesh)

Partner (Mem.No.35646) Partner (Mem. No 22439)

New Delhi

28" May, 2010
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31" MARCH, 2010

 in million)
Schedule As at As at
31st March, 31st March,
2010 2009
SOURCES OF FUNDS
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
Share Capital 1 21,388.87 21,388.87
Reserves and Surplus 2 992,677.54 900,846.13
1,014,066.41 922,235.00
MINORITY INTEREST 16,431.64 14,113.51
LOAN FUNDS
Secured Loans 3 6,959.27 5,583.83
Unsecured Loans 4 55,709.98 62,669.25 60,007.47
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY 103,076.90 92,416.81
LIABILITY FOR ABANDONMENT COST 174,590.37 171,451.24
TOTAL 1,370,834.57 1,265,807.86
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
GOODWILL ON CONSOLIDATION
Gross 110,742.82 124,603.65
Less: Amortisation 15,357.36 10,564.74
NET 95,385.46 114,038.91
FIXED ASSETS 5
Gross Block 901,926.40 784,247.57
Less: Depreciation and Impairment 658,164.47 589,291.73
NET BLOCK 243,761.93 184,955.84
CAPITAL WORKS-IN-PROGRESS (NET) 6 176,039.21 165,221.80
419,801.14 350,177.64
PRODUCING PROPERTIES 7
Gross Cost 1,031,074.13 913,234.25
Less: Depletion and Impairment 519,409.15 460,253.83
NET PRODUCING PROPERTIES 511,664.98 452,980.42
EXPLORATORY/DEVELOPMENT WELLS -IN-PROGRESS (NET) 8 80,124.91 82,358.51
INVESTMENTS 51,593.14 34,803.47
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 164.69 185.98
CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES
Inventories 9 82,400.07 65,423.89
Sundry Debtors 10 71,423.52 71,813.51
Cash and Bank Balances 11A 149,703.83 156,331.20
Deposit with Bank Under Site Restoration Fund Scheme 11B 74,138.43 69,624.35
Other Current Assets 12 7,430.89 11,309.10
Loans and Advances 13 120,566.90 132,644.25
505,663.64 507,146.30
LESS: CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
Current Liabilities 14 226,818.90 210,526.96
Provisions 15 75,157.73 71,862.63
301,976.63 282,389.59
NET CURRENT ASSET 203,687.01 224,756.71
MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE 16 8,413.24 6,506.22
(To the extent not written off or adjusted)
TOTAL 1,370,834.57 1,265,807.86
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 26
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 27
Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet
For and On behalf of the Board
(N. K. Sinha) (D.K. Sarraf) (R.S.Shamma)
Company Secretary Director (Finance) Chairman & Managing Director
In terms of our report of even date attached
For Arun K. Agarwal & Associates For Singhi & Co. For P.S.D & Associates
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(Rajesh Surolia) (B. K. Sipani) (Prakash Sharma)

Partner (Mem. No. 88008)
For Kalyaniwalla & Mistry

Partner (Mem. No. 88926)
For Padmanabhan Ramani & Ramanujam

Partner (Mem. No. 72332)

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(Ermin K. Irani) (K. R. Ganesh)

Partner (Mem.No. 35646) Partner (Mem. No.22439 )
New Delhi

May 28, 2010

ancGe



CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2010

(X in million)
Schedule 2009-10 2008-09
INCOME
Gross Sales 17 1,061,688.44 1,094,129.42
Less : Excise Duty 44,142,717 48,245.55
Net Sales 1,017,545.67 1,045,883.87
Other Income 18 52,727.60 §0,721.47
1,070,273.27 1,096,605.34
EXPENDITURE
Decrease/(Increase) in stocks 19 (3,728.81) 3,444.04
Purchases 37.92 0.25
Production, Transportation, Selling and Distribution Expenditure 20 571,745.36 610,190.77
Depreciation, Depletion, Amortisation and Impairment 21 187,188.30 154,303.84
Financing Costs 22 5,021.90 2,385.07
Provisions and Write-offs (Net) 23 5,995.57 15,349.95
Adjustments relating to Prior Period (Net) 24 (400.61) (105.75)
765,859.63 785,568.17
Profit before Tax and Extraordinary items 304,413.64 311,037.17
Extraordinary ltems - 657.73
Profit before Tax 304,413.64 311,694.90
Provision for Taxation
- Current Tax (including Wealth Tax ¥ 25.79 million Previous year ¥ 39.17 million) 95,756.65 110,335.27
- For Earlier years (176.45) (4,463.88)
- Deferred Tax 11,557.72 3,500.97
- Fringe Benefit Tax - 721.07
Profit after Taxation 197,275.12 201,601.47
Add: Share of Profit/(Loss) in Associate 78.13 98.83
Less: Share of Profit/(Loss)- Minority Interest 3,318.52 3,746.86
Group Profit after Tax 194,035.33 197,953.44
Surplus at the beginning 93,335.23 58,989.56
Adjustment due to Change in holding (21.32) (107.30)
BALANCE AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION 287,349.24 256,835.70
APPROPRIATIONS
Proposed Dividend on Preference Shares 0.01 0.01
Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares 32,083.09 29,944 22
Capital Redemption Reserve - 0.10
Tax on Proposed Dividend 5,705.15 5,474.39
Interim Dividend 38,499.71 38,499.71
Tax on Interim Dividend 6,287.01 6,543.02
Transfer to General Reserve 87,242.72 83,039.02
Transfer to Debenture Redumption Reserve 1,154.19 -
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 116,377.36 93,335.23
287,349.24 256,835.70
Earnings per Equity Share - Basic and Diluted ) 25
(Face Value ¥ 10/-Per Share)
- before extraordinary items (net of tax) 90.72 92.35
- after extraordinary items 90.72 92.55
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 26
NOTES TO THEACCOUNTS 27
Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Profit & Loss Account
For and On behalf of the Board
(N. K. Sinha) (D. K. Sarraf) (R. S.Shamma)
Company Secretary Director (Finance) Chairman & Managing Director
In terms of our report of even date attached
For Arun K. Agarwal & Associates For Singhi & Co. For P.S.D & Associates
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
{Rajesh Surolia) (B. K. Sipani) {Prakash Sharma)
Partner (Mem. No. 88008) Partner (Mem. No. 88926) Partner (Mem. No. 72332)
For Kalyaniwalla & Mistry For Padmanabhan Ramani & Ramanujam
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
{(Ermin K. Irani) (K. R. Ganesh)
Partner (Mem.No. 35646) Partner (Mem. No.22439 )
New Delhi
May 28, 2010
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Schedule to the Consolidated Balance Sheet

SCHEDULE~ @ in million)
As at As at
31st March, 31st March,
2010 2009
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised:
15000,000,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each 150,000.00 150,000.00
Issued and Subscribed:
2138,891,502 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each 21,388.92 21,388.92
Paid up:
2138,872,530 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each 21,388.73 21,388.73
Add: Share forfeited 0.14 0.14
21,388.87 21,388.87
TOTAL 21,388.87 21,388.87

Notes : The above includes:
(i) 342,853,716 Equity Shares issued as fully paid up to the President of India without payment being received in cash in terms of Oil and Natural Gas Commission
(Transfer of Undertaking and Repeal) Act, 1993.
(ii)1,789,397,876 Equity Shares issued as fully paid up by way of bonus shares by capitalisation of General Reserve and Securities Premium.



Schedule to the Consolidated Balance Sheet

SCHEDULE-2 @ in million)
As at As at
31st March, 31st March,
2010 2009
RESERVES AND SURPLUS
Capital Reserve *
a) Opening Balance 1,103.02 931.18
b) Addition/(deduction) during the year ** (87.96) 1,015.06 171.84 1,103.02
Deferred Government Grant
a) Opening Balance 4473 51.75
b) Deduction during the year *** 5.28 7.02
39.45 44.73
Securities Premium Account 312.45 312.45
Capital Redemption Reserve 0.09 0.10
Insurance Reserve 2,500.00 2,500.00
General Reserve
a) Opening Balance 788,151.50 705,112.48
b) Transferred from Profit and Loss Account 87,242.72 83,039,02
875,394.22 788,151.50
Foreign Exchange Translation Reserve (4,115.28) 15,399.10
Debenture Redumption Reserve
a) Opening Balance 0.00
b) Transferred from Profit and Loss Account 1,154.19 1,154.19 0.00
Profit and Loss Account 116,377.36 93,335.23
TOTAL 992,677.54 900,846.13

Note: Includes X (-) 380.82 million share of jointly controlled entities. (Previous year ¥ 435.08 million)

* Includes ¥ 159.44 million being assesed value of assets received as gift.

** Includes Capital Reserve on Consolidation ¥ 4.18 million (Previous year X 4.18 million)

*** Represents the amount equivalent to Depreciation for the year transferred to Profit and Loss Account.
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Schedule to the Consolidated Balance Sheet
SCHEDULE-3

X in million)
As at As at
31st March, 31st March,
2010 2009
SECURED LOANS
(a) Foreign Currency Term Loans
- From Banks - 914.75
(b) RupeeTerm Loans
- From Banks 3,334.26 3,560.45
- From Financial Institutions 372.13 -
- From Others 1,009.62 4,716.01 1,062.07
(c) Working Capital facilities
- Rupee Loans from Banks 2,243.26 46.56
TOTAL 6,959.27 5,583.83
Note: Includes ¥ 3,537.92 million share of jointly controlled entities. (Previous year ¥ 3,194.43 million)
SCHEDULE-4 (% in million)
As at As at
31st March, 31st March,
2010 2009
UNSECURED LOANS
(a) LongTerm
Foreign Currency Loans:
- From Banks/Financial Institutions 9,325.80 267.35
Sales Tax Deferment Loan 2,742.62 2,478.64
(b) Non-Recourse deferred credit
( Foreign Currency Loan) 934.26 1,225.36
(in respect of Joint Venture)
(c) Shortterm loan-Commercial Paper 10,900.00 52,500.00
(d) OtherLoans 8,407.30 3,536.12
{e) Non Convertible Redeemable Bonds 23,400.00 -
TOTAL 55,709.98 60,007.47
Repayable within one year 19,360.74 56,419.51

Note: Includes ¥ 14,188.35 million share of jointly controlled entities. (Previous year ¥ 9,815.60 million)
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Schedule to the Consolidated Balance Sheet

SCHEDULE-5
Fixed Assets @ in million)
GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT NET BLOCK
Asat | Addtions | Deleions/|  Asat Upto R Deletions/ Upto| Asat Asat
PARTICULARS 1stApril, | during the |adjustments 31st | 31st March . Impairment Adjustments | 31st March 3Mst 31st
2009 year | during the March, 2009 |Depreciation Charged Reversad during the 2010 | March, March,
year 2010 year 2010 2009
Land
i) Freehold 2,230.64 130.39 452 | 2,356.51 19.67 - 0.37 4.12 207 1385 | 234266 221097
ii) Leasehold 8,479.61 1,180.76 (4.17)| 9,664.54 309.75 54.19 - - (0.71) 364.65 | 9,299.89| 8,169.86
Buildings and Bunk Houses | 20,507.20| 1,679.13 137.65 | 22,048.68 | 7,794.40 769.16 3.67 83.60 (20.29) | 8,503.92 | 13,544.76 @ 12,712.80
Railway Sidings 134.62 - - 134.62 82.62 1.20 - - - 83.82 50.80 52.00
Plant and Machinery
i) Owned 723919.04 | 116,762.02| (1,067.77) | 841,748.83 | 570,921.98 | 61,129.23 22843 86.93 | (1,808.67) | 634,001.38 | 207,747.45 152,997.06
ii) Taken on Lease 428.13 - - 42813 - - - - - - 42813 42813
Furniture and Fittings 16,79245| 362263 7,791.51 | 12,623.57 | 11,402.72 | (5594.39) 1.08 494 7414 | 573033 | 6,893.24| 538973
Vehicles,Survey Ships,
Crew Boats,Aircrafts
and Helicopters 6,639.89 216.26 7403 | 6,78212 | 5,183.85 374.82 0.02 2.21 6126 | 549522 | 1,286.90 1,456.04
77913158 | 123,591.19| 6,935.77 | 895,787.00 | 595,714.99 | 56,734.21 23357 181.80 | (1,692.20) | 654,193.17 | 241,593.83 | 183,416.59
Intangibles 511599 | 1,025.07 166 | 6,139.40 | 3,576.74 396.22 0.01 - 167| 3971.30 | 2168.10 1,539.25
TOTAL 784,247.57 | 124,616.26| 6,937.43 | 801,926.40 | 599,291.73 | 57,130.43 23358 181.80 | (1,690.53) | 658,164.47 | 243,761.93 | 184,955.84
Previous year 736,384.96 | 46,425.86| (1,436.75) | 784,247.57 | 542,423.94 | 57,208.88 13599 | 1,053.56 (576.48 | 599,291.73 | 184,955.84
The above includes the
Corporation’s share in
Joint Venture Assets 119,279.17 | 19,241.31| 3,453.49 | 135,066.99 | 73,878.86 | 9,778.28 - - 1,972.36 | 81,684.78 | 53,382.21
Previous year 110,836.18| 4,457.89| (3,985.10) | 119,279.17 | 57,593.17 | 13,182.69 28.61 - | (3074.39) | 73,878.86 | 45,400.31
Notes:

1. Additions to Plant and Machinery are net of ¥ (-) 3,122.02 million on account of foreign cumrency translation adjustment during the year (Previous year ¥ 4,756.66 million).
2. Land includes land in respect of a certain projects for which execution of lease/conveyance deeds are in process.

3. Registration of fitle deeds in respect of certain Buildings is pending execution.

4. Plant & Machinery-owned includes an amount of ¥ 782.98 million (Previous year ¥ 782.98 million) being MRPL's share of an asset jointly owned with another company.
5.
6
7
8

Net Fixed Assets include ¥ 6,741.12 million share of jointly controlled entities (Previous year T 3,920.95 million).

. Depreciation for the year includes ¥ 119.66 million taken to prior period (Previous year ¥ 150.62 million).
. Plant & Machinery includes Jetty & Trestle (Gross block of T 45,437.82 million). As per the agreement, ownership of assets will be transferred to the Gujarat Maritime Board in the year 2035.
. Depreciation on intangible software for the year is after reducing T 424.55 million being amount written back on recomputation (Refer Note 10 of Schedule 27).
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Schedule to the Consolidated Balance Sheet

SCHEDULE-6 @ in million)
As at As at

31st March, 31st March,

2010 2009

CAPITAL WORKS-IN-PROGRESS

Buildings 776.45 266.61
Plant and Machinery 117,253.46 119,496.68
Overseas Projects 33,029.36 29,286.46
Advances for Capital Works and Progress Payments 12,026.79 741397
Capital Stores (including in transit) 1,457.20 1,847.39
Less: Provision for Non Moving Items 43.26 1,413.94 141.11
Others 12,028.97 7,284.66
TOTAL 176,528.97 165,454.66
Less : Impairment

Opening balance 232.86 405.15
Impairment provided for the year 364.17 143.63
Transfer to Fixed Assets (61.64) (276.64)
Reversed during the year (45.63) (39.28)
TOTAL 489.76 232.86
NET CAPITAL WORKS- IN- PROGRESS 176,039.21 165,221.80

Note: Includes ¥ 21,413.91 million share of jointly controlled entities.(Previous year T 14,148.92 million)

SCHEDULE-7 ( in million)
- As at As at
31st March, 31st March,
2010 2009
PRODUCING PROPERTIES
Gross Cost
Opening Balance 913,234.25 758,543.99
Acquisition Cost 698.97 2,019.05
Expenditure during the year 10,876.01 7,671.43
Depreciation on facilities 29,119.11 19,251.65
Transfer from Exploratory Wells-in-Progress 16,218.44 2,700.48
Transfer from Development Wells-in-Progress 63,862.33 54,842.96
Increase / (Decrease) in estimated Abondonment Cost 2,951.59 37,845.56
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments (9,467.40) 12,052.11
Other Adjustments 3,580.83 18,307.02
Total (Gross) 1,031,074.13 913,234.25
Less: Depletion & Impairment
Opening Balance 460,253.83 395,829.94
Depletion for the Year 62,242.14 55,883.07
Transfer of Impairment from Development Wells in Progress 17.96 98.61
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments (5,361.49) 6,863.62
Impairment provided for the year 11.50 893.97
Write back / Reversed during the year (758.24) (3,096.95)
Other Adjustments 3,003.45 3,781.57
Total 519,409.15 460,253.83
NET PRODUCING PROPERTIES 511,664.98 452,980.42

Note: Includes NIL share of jointly controlled entities (Previous year NIL)
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Schedule to the Consolidated Balance Sheet

SCHEDULE-8 @ in million)
As at As at
31st March, 31st March,
2010 2009
EXPLORATORY/DEVELOPMENT WELLS -IN-PROGRESS
A) EXPLORATORY WELLS-IN-PROGRESS
Gross Cost
Opening Balance 69,047.13 46,474.36
Expenditure during the year 87,454.80 44,666.12
Less : Sale proceeds of Oil and Gas (Net of levies) 38.43 87,416.37 47.31
Depreciation during the year 7,671.69 9,267.36
164,135.19 100,360.53
Less:
Transfer to Producing Properties 16,218.44 2,700.48
Wells written off during the year 72,124.75 36,754.72
Other Adjustments 8,720.82 (6,359.03)
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments (625.36) (1,782.77)
67,696.54 69,047.13
Less: Provision for Dry Wells 9,409.63 8,529.89
NET EXPLORATORY WELLS-IN-PROGRESS (A) 58,286.91 60,517.24
B) DEVELOPMENT WELLS-IN-PROGRESS
Opening Balance 21,908.76 17,767.20
Expenditure during the year 50,718.54 53,152.34
Depreciation during the year 4,979.20 5,173.61
Other Adjustments 8,519.55 -
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments (370.85) 658.57
Less: Transfer to Producing Properties 63,862.33 54,842.96
21,892.87 21,908.76
Less : Impairment
Opening balance 67.49 260.22
Transfer to Producing Properties (17.96) (98.61)
Provision for the year 5.83 67.00
Write back / Reversed during the year {0.49) (161.12)
54.87 67.49
NET DEVELOPMENT WELLS - IN - PROGRESS (B) 21,838.00 21,841.27
EXPLORATORY/DEVELOPMENT WELLS -IN-PROGRESS (A+B) 80,124.91 82,358.51

Note: Includes ¥ 1,376.59 million share of jointly controlled entities (Previous year ¥ 1,156.67 million).
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Schedule to the Consolidated Balance Sheet

SCHEDULE-9 @ in million)
As at As at
31st March, 31st March,
2010 2009
INVENTORIES
Finished Goods (Including Carbon Credits) 19,275.18 15,209.57
Raw Material
- inhand 10,547.66 5,047 45
- intransit 5,400.09 15,947.75 3,721.26
Stock in Process 1,090.92 692.84
Stores and spare parts
- inhand 46,733.00 40,534.31
- infransit (including inter-project transfers) 3,510.15 4,222.79
50,243.15
Less: Provision for Non Moving Stores and Spare parts 4,269.02 45,974.13 4,143.12
Unserviceable Items 112.09 138.79
TOTAL 82,400.07 65,423.89

Note: Includes T 344.73 million share of jointly controlled entities (Previous year ¥ 513.86 million).

SCHEDULE-10 @& in million)
As at As at
31st March, 31st March,
2010 2009
SUNDRY DEBTORS

(Unsecured, Considered Good unless otherwise stated)

Debts - Outstanding for a period exceeding six months :

- Considered Good 2,054.36 1,779.36

- Considered Doubtful 3,444.96 3,559.31
Other debts :

- Considered Good 69,369.16 70,034.15

- Considered Doubtful 21.07 16.62

74,889.55 75,389.44

Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts 3,466.03 3,575.93

TOTAL 71,423.52 71,813.51

Note: Includes ¥ 662.79 million share of jointly controlled entities (Previous year X 861.71 million).
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Schedule to the Consolidated Balance Sheet

SCHEDULE-11 @& in million)
As at As at
31st March, 31st March,
2010 2009
A) CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash balance in Hand* 16.44 16.29
Balances with Scheduled Banks in:
Current Accounts 7,463.09 9,104.21
Fixed Deposits 135,431.64 139,073.17
Balances with Non-Scheduled Banks 1,292.60 1,218.44
Bank Balances (In respect of Joint ventures of OVL) 5,500.06 6,919.09
Total 149,703.83 156,331.20
B) Deposit with Bank Under Site Restoration Fund Scheme** 74,138.43 69,624.35
Note: Includes T 2,370.84 million share of jointly controlled entities (Previous year ¥ 2,575.24 million).
* Includes Gold Coins valued ¥ 1.36 million (Previous year ¥ 0.30 million).
** Deposited u/s 33ABA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and can be withdrawn only for the purposes specified in the Scheme.
SCHEDULE-12 & in million)
As at As at
31st March, 31st March,
2010 2009
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
{(Unsecured, Considered Good unless otherwise stated)
Interest Accrued On
- Investments 37.85 37.98
- Deposits with Banks/PSUs/Financial Institutions 4,353.63 8,224.95
- Others
- Considered Good 3,010.86 3,007.40
- Considered Doubtful 24.20 1.32
3,035.06 3,008.72
Less : Provision 24.20 3,010.86 1.32
Other Accounts pending adjustments
- Considered Good 28.55 38.77
- Considered Doubtful 899.19 872.49
927.74 911.26
Less: Provision for Doubtful Accounts 899.19 28.55 872.49
TOTAL 743089 11,300.10

Note: Includes ¥ 5.03 million share of jointly controlled entities (Previous year ¥ 28.36 million).
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Schedule to the Consolidated Balance Sheet

SCHEDULE-13 @& in million)
As at As at
31st March, 31st March,
210 2009
LOANS AND ADVANCES
Loans to Public Sector Undertakings & Other Body Corporate 1,024.51 1,345.11
Advance against equity pending allotment 7,058.01 4,183.58
Loans and Advances to Employees 9,361.78 12,172.18
Advances Recoverable in Cash or in Kind or for Value to be received 55,160.22 39,072.51
Recoverable from Petroleum Planning & Analysis cell (PPAC) 6.36 6.36
Carry finance 7,723.69 7,466.51
Insurance Claims 33.82 400.01
Investment in Lease 5,697.53 12,956.82
Deposits:
a)  With Customs/Port Trusts etc. 54.70 42.81
b)  With Financial Institutions/PSUs 15,000.00 20,000.00
¢) Others 6,955.53 11,102.74
108,076.15 108,748.63
Less : Provision for Doubtful Claims/advances 13,167.61 11,208.17
94,908.54 97,540.46
Income Tax ;
Advance payment of Income Tax 353,439.67 296,506.82
(Including advance payment of Wealth Tax ¥ 35.37 million Previous year ¥ 37.96 million)
Less: Provision 327,781.31 25,658.36 261,403.03
(Including provision for Wealth Tax ¥ 141.11 million Previous year ¥ 116.79 million)
TOTAL 120,566.90 132,644.25
Particulars of loans and advances:
Secured 6,446.24 5,957.38
Unsecured - Considered Good 114,120.66 126,686.87
- Considered Doubtful 13,167.61 11,208.17
133,734.51 143,852.42
Less : Considered Doubtful and provided for 13,167.61 11,208.17
TOTAL 120,566.90 132,644.25

Note: Includes ¥ 761.64 million share of jointly controlled entities (Previous year X 402.84 million).
Loans to employees include an amount of ¥ 0.7 million (Previous year T 4.13 million) outstanding from whole time Directors.
Maximum amount outstanding during the year ¥ 4.27 million (Previous year ¥ 4.71 million).
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Schedule to the Consolidated Balance Sheet

SCHEDULE-14 & in million)
As at As at
31st March, 31st March,
2010 2009
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Sundry Creditors for Supplies / Works :
- Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises 10.95 63.43
- Other than Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises 126,805.86 100,076.89
Liability for Royalty/Cess/Sales tax etc. 10,792.05 10,882.62
Unpaid Matured debentures * 4.28 4242
Unclaimed Interest on debentures * 0.74 7.77
Unclaimed Dividend* 177.15 156.20
Liability for Gratuity 498.70 10,294.92
Deposits from Suppliers/Contractors 5,106.41 6,416.26
Deferred Credit on Gas Sales 3.61 5.99
Other Liabilities 69,353.68 64,745.07
Liablity on Foreign Currency Forward Contracts - 196.27
Interest Accrued but not due on loans - 7.36
Sundry Creditors for Supplies / Works 14,065.47 17,631.76
(in respect of Joint Ventures)
TOTAL 226,818.90 210,526.96
Note: Includes T 4,497.88 million share of jointly controlled entities (Previous year ¥ 2,152.04 million).
* No amount is due for Payment to Investor Education and Protection Fund.
SCHEDULE-15 @ in million)
As at As at
31st March, 31st March,
2010 2009
PROVISIONS
Leave 14,245.94 13,667.15
Post Retirment Medical & Terminal Benefit 14,877.25 13,323.32
Others 8,246.30 9,453.55
Proposed Dividend 32,083.09 29,944.22
Tax on Proposed Dividend 5,705.15 5,474.39
TOTAL 75,157.73 71,862.63

Note: Includes T 206.98 million share of jointly controlled entities (Previous year ¥ 223.19 million).
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Schedule to the Consolidated Balance Sheet

SCHEDULE-16 @ in million)

As at As at
31st March, 31st March,

2010 2009

MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE

(to the extent not written off or adjusted)

Deferred Revenue Expenditure

Dry Docking Charges 6,612.99 4,529.70

Mobilisation Charges 1,800.25 1,976.52

TOTAL 8,413.24 6,506.22

Note: Includes T 0.08 million share of jointly controlled entities (Previous year ¥ 0.12 million).

Schedule to the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

For the Year For the Year
2009-10 2008-09
SALES
Sales 1,077,159.43 1,114,954 .48
Less:
Transfer to Exploratory Wells in Progress 52.70 67.07
Government of India's (GOI's)share in Profit Petroleum 15,418.29 15,470.99 20,757.99
TOTAL 1,061,688.44 1,094,129.42

Note: Includes T 14,442.57 million share of jointly controlled entities (Previous year ¥ 10,707.52 million).



Schedule to the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

SCHEDULE-18 @ in million)
For the Year For the Year
2009-10 2008-09
OTHER INCOME
Contractual Short Lifted Gas Receipts 26.88 189.67
Pipeline Transportation Receipts 3,125.91 5,267.38
Reimbursement from Govt. of India 4,415.79 -
Other Contractual Receipts 1,541.51 1,415.72
Lease Income 317.82 376.97
Income from Trade Investments :
Dividend on Long term Investments 1,479.22 1,500.67
Interest on Long Term Investments 783.97 1,391.64
Profit on sale of Investment 0.55 3.89
2,263.74 2,896.20
Income from Non Trade Investments :
Intereston Long Term Investments 0.06 0.06
Dividend on Current Investments 490.57 258.88
Interest Income on :
Deposits with Banks/Financial Institutions 13,965.44 23,750.41
(Tax deducted at source ¥ 2120.82 million Previous year ¥ 5,142.63 million)
Loans and Advances to Employees 315.60 317.59
Income Tax Refund 29 791.08
On Site Restoration Fund Deposit 4,267.83 5,503.72
Delayed Payment from Customers and Others 688.38 1,818.55
(Tax deducted at source ¥ 50.98 million Previous year ¥ 26.21 million) 19,240.16 32,181.35
Exchange Variation 10,670.63 -
Excess Provisions written back 766.26 1,112.38
Liabilities no longer required written back 913.03 1,456.76
Miscellaneous Receipts 8,955.24 5,566.10
TOTAL 52,727.60 50,721.47
Note: Includes < 102.50 million share of jointly controlled entities (Previous year ¥ 185.62 million).
SCHEDULE-19 (Z in million)
For the Year For the Year
2009-10 2008-09
DECREASE/(INCREASE) IN STOCKS
Closing Stock
Stock in Process 1,090.92 692.84
Finished Products 17,197.04 14,668.09
Carbon Credits 0.56 -
18,288.52 15,360.93
Opening Stock
Stock in Process 692.84 1,473.30
Finished Products 14,695.31 17,302.38
Less : Adjustment 828.44 29.29
14,559.71 18,804.97
NET DECREASE/(INCREASE) IN STOCKS (3,728.81) 3,444.04



Schedule to the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

SCHEDULE-20 @& in million)
For the Year For the Year
2009-10 2008-09
PRODUCTION, TRANSPORTATION, SELLING
AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENDITURE
Royalty 103,592.72 111,546.34
Cess 54,538.03 55,788.35
Sales Tax 3,733.74 7,839.33
Natural Calamity Contingent Duty 1,061.67 1,081.40
Excise Duty on Stocks (Net) 150.29 (462.93)
Service Tax 906.88 247444
Education Cess 1,718.99 1,795.54
Octroi and Port Trust Charges 4,484.28 4,129.85
Staff Expenditure 14,070.70 11,619.33
Workover Operations 31,172.60 26,226.11
Water Injection, Desalting and Demulsification 11,037.73 8,608.44
Consumption of Raw material, Stores and Spares & etc. 257,080.89 286,301.97
Pollution Control 4,315.68 3,748.73
Transport Expenses 3,235.67 3,070.62
Insurance 1,185.45 965.67
Power and Fuel 1,347.28 1,610.32
Repairs and Maintenance 6,700.45 6,366.73
Contractual payments including Hire charges etc. 6,410.32 6,375.09
Other Production Expenditure 19,310.75 17,171.73
Transportation and Freight of Products 11,966.97 10,724.94
Research and Development 1,985.78 1,574.44
General Administrative Expenses 20,430.78 17,033.62
Exchange Variation - 11,715.95
Other Expenditure 11,307.71 12,884.76
TOTAL 571,745.36 610,190.77

Note: Includes T 12,420.93 million share of jointly controlled entities (Previous year ¥ 9,433.41 million).
The above expenses classified in accordance with Part Il of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956 and exhibited in Note no. 32.4 of Schedule 27.



Schedule to the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

SCHEDULE-21 @ in million)
For the Year For the Year
2009-10 2008-09
DEPRECIATION, DEPLETION, AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT
Survey 26,549.04 38,947.96
Pre Acquisition Expenditure 243.51 726.53
Wells Written off 72,959.78 37,308.94
Amortisation of Goodwill 4,978.91 2,876.56
Depletion 62,242.14 55,883.07
Depreciation* 63,710.72 57,058.26
Less | Allocated to :
Survey 1,181.07 1,654.72
Exploratory Drilling 7,671.69 9,267.36
Development Drilling 4,979.20 5,173.61
Depreciation on Facilities 29,119.11 19,251.65
Others 112.01 139.82
43,063.08 20,647.64 21,671.10
Impairment loss
During the year 553.44 1,240.59
Less : Reversal during the year 986.16 4,350.91
(432.72) (3,110.32)
TOTAL 187,188.30 154,303.84
Note: Includes T 712.44 million share of jointly controlled entities (Previous year ¥ 895.96 million).
* Refer note 2.1 of Schedule-27.
For the Year For the Year
2009-10 2008-09
FINANCING COSTS
(i) Interest:
On Fixed Loans
- Foreign Currency Loans 5.33 9.97
On Term Loans from Banks 254.34 206.46
(i) Lease Finance Charges 463.30 -
On Cash Credit 11.75 57.13
On Others 1,037.26 1,255.04
(iii) Discount on Commercial Papers 3,249.92 856.47
TOTAL 5,021.90 2,385.07

Note: Includes T 288.07 million share of jointly controlled entities (Previous year ¥ 310.01 million).



Schedule to the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

SCHEDULE-23 @ in million)

For the Year For the Year
2009-10 2008-09

PROVISIONS AND WRITE-OFFS

PROVISIONS

Provision for Doubtful Debts 1,160.60 2,390.92

Provision for Doubtful Claims/Advances 1,845.73 2,172.86

Provision against Non-Moving Inventories 145.49 91.73

Provison for Others 93.20 8,778.72

Sub-Total 3,245.02 13,434.23

WRITE-OFFS

Loss on Disposal/Condemnation of Fixed Assets (Net) 71.58 92.05

Claims/Advances Written Off 42.90 8.58

Less: Provisions - 42.90 4,70 3.88

Inventories Written Off 105.03 22517

Bad debts Written Off 224.97

Less: Provisions 207.80 1717 -

Other Write offs 2,513.87 1,594.62

Sub-Total 2,750.55 1,915.72

TOTAL 5,995.57 15,349.95

Note: Includes ¥ 874.49 million share of jointly controlled entities (Previous year ¥ 172.93 million).

SCHEDULE-24 @ in million)
For the Year For the Year
2009-10 2008-09

ADJUSTMENTS RELATING TO PRIOR PERIOD (NET)

Statutory levies* (32.18) 0.23
Other Production Expenditure* (806.15) (1,956.65)
Interest -Others 542.24 0.46
Depreciation 119.66 150.62
Survey (64.40) (620.58)
Dry well 109.40 1,870.87
Amortisation of Goodwill 38.35 -
Total Debit (93.08) {555.05)
Sales 26.01 (189.51)
Interest -Others 0.07 -
Other Income 281.45 (259.79)
Total Credit 307.53 449.30

Net Debit/(Credit) (400.61) (105.75)

Note: Includes ¥ Nil share of jointly controlled entities (Previous year ¥ (-) 2.70 million).

* The above expenses classified in accordance with Part Il of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956 and exhibited in note no 32.4 of Schedule 27.



Schedule to the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account
SCHEDULE-25

(% in million)
For the Year For the Year
2009-10 2008-09
EARNING PER SHARE
A) Net Profit after Tax 194,035.33 197,953.44
Less:
B) Extraordinary items - 657.73
C) Taximpact on Exiraordinary items - (223.56)
D) Net Profit before Extraordinary items (net of tax) 194,035.33 197,519.27
E) Number of Shares 2,138,872,530 2,138,872,530
(Amount in ¥)
Basic & Diluted eamnings per equity share
- Before extraordinary items (net of tax) - (D/E) 90.72 92.35
- After extraordinary items - (A/E) 90.72 92.55



CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SCHEDULE-26 | SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A

)

iv)

vi)

vil)

vil

Principles of Consolidation

The Consolidated financial statements relate to the Company (Qil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited), its Subsidiaries, Joint
Venture entities and Associates. The consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on the following basis: -

The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies are combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together
the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses after fully eliminating intra-group balances and intra-
group transactions resulting in unrealised profits or losses in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 21 - "Consolidated
Financial Statements".

The financial statements of Joint Venture entities are combined by applying proportionate consolidation method on a line by
line basis on like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses after eliminating proportionate share of unrealized profits or
losses in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS-27) - "Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint Ventures”.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like fransactions and other events in
similar circumstances and are presented to the extent possible, in the same manner as the Company's separate Financial
Statements except as otherwise statedin the Notes to the Accounts.

The difference between the cost of investment in the Subsidiaries/Associates/ Joint Ventures, over the net assets at the time of
acquisition of shares in the Subsidiaries/Associates is recognized in the Consolidated Financial Statements as Goodwill or
Capital Reserve as the case may be.

Minority Interest's share of Net Profit/Loss of Consolidated Subsidiaries for the year is identified and adjusted against the
income of the group in order to arrive at the Net Income attributable to the shareholders of the Company.

Minority Interest's share of Net Assets of Consolidated subsidiaries is identified and presented in the Consolidated Balance
Sheet separately from liabilities and the equity of the Company's shareholders.

In case of foreign subsidiaries and Joint Ventures, foreign currency transactions are translated as per the provisions of
Accounting Standard (AS)-11 - "Accounting for Effects of changes in Foreign Exchange Rates" in the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

In case of Associates, where the company directly or indirectly through Subsidiaries holds more than 20% of equity,
investments in Associates are accounted for using equity method in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 23 -
"Accounting for Investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements".

The difference between the proceeds from disposal of investments in a subsidiary and the carrying amount of its assets less
liabilities as on the date of disposal is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss Account as the profit or loss
(asapplicable) on disposal of the investment in the subsidiary.

Investments other than in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures have been accounted for as per Accounting
Standard (AS)-13 "Accounting for Investments®,

Other Significant Accounting Policies:
Accounting Conventions

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis in accordance with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), applying the Successful Efforts Method as per the Guidance Note on Accounting for
Oil and Gas Producing Activities issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and Accounting Standards issued
under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 and provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions which affect the reported amount of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses of the reporting period. The difference between the actual results and estimates are
recognised in the period in which the results are known or materialised.

Government Grants

Government grants for acquisition of fixed assets are initially treated as Capital Reserve and are subsequently recognised as
income in the Profit & Loss Account on a systematic basis over the useful life of the assets in the proportion in which
depreciation on those assets s charged.
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5.1

6.1
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6.3
6.3.1

6.3.2

6.3.3

6.4
6.4.1

6.4.2

6.5

6.5.1

6.6

6.6.1
6.6.2
6.6.3

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Fixed assets received as
donations/gifts are capitalised atassessed values with corresponding credit taken to Capital Reserve.

All costs relating to acquisition of fixed assets till the time of bringing the assets to working condition for intending use are
capitalised.

Intangible Assets

Costsincurred on intangible assets, resulting in future economic benefits are capitalised as intangible assets.
Exploration, Development and Production Costs

Acquisition Cost

Acquisition cost of an oil and gas property in exploration/development stage is taken to acquisition cost under the respective
category. In case of overseas projects, the same is taken to capital work in progress. Such costs are capitalised by transferring
to Producing Property when it is ready to commence commercial production. In case of abandonment, such costs are
expensed. Acquisition cost of a producing oil and gas property is capitalised as Producing Property.

Survey Cost

Cost of Survey and prospecting activities conducted in the search of oil and gas are expensed in the year in which these are
incurred.

Exploratory/ Development Wells in Progress

All acquisition costs, exploration costs involved in drilling and equipping exploratory and appraisal wells, cost of drilling
exploratory type stratigraphic test wells are initially capitalised as Exploratory Wells in Progress till the time these are either
transferred to Producing Properties on completion as per policy no. 6.4.1 or expensed in the year when determined to be dry or
of nofurther use, as the case may be.

All wells under "exploratory wells in progress" which are more than two years old from the date of completion of drilling are
charged to Profit and Loss Account except those wells where it could be reasonably demonstrated that the well has proved
reserves and the development of the field in which the wells are located has been planned.

All costs relating to development wells are initially capitalised as development wells in progress and transferred to producing
properties on completion as per policy no. 6.4.

Producing Properties

Producing Properties are created in respect of an area/field having proved developed oil and gas reserves, when the well in the
areaffield is ready to commence commercial production.

Cost of temporary occupation of land, successful exploratory wells, all development wells, depreciation on related equipment,
faciliies, and estimated future abandonment costs are capitalised and reflected as Producing Properties.

Depletion of Producing Properties

Producing properties are depleted using the "Unit of Production Method". The rate of depletion is computed with reference to
an area covered by individual lease/licence/ asset/amortisation base by considering the proved developed reserves and
related capital costs incurred including estimated future abandonment costs. In case of acquisition, cost of producing
properties is depleted by considering the Proved Reserves. These reserves are estimated annually by the Reserve Estimates
Committee of the Company, which follows the International Reservoir Engineering Procedures.

Production Costs

Production costs include pre-well head and post well head expenses including depreciation and applicable operating costs of
support equipment and facilities.

Side tracking
The cost of abandoned portion of side tracked exploratory wells is charged to Profit & Loss Account as dry wells.
The cost of abandoned portion of side tracked development wells is considered as part of cost of development wells.

The cost of sidetracking in respect of existing producing wells is capitalised if it increases the Proved Developed Reserves
otherwise, charged to Profit & Loss Account as workover expenditure.

ONGC Eh
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Impairment

Producing Properties, Development Wells in Progress (DWIP) and Fixed Assets (incl. Capital Works in Progress) of a "Cash
Generating Unit" (CGU) are reviewed for impairment at each Balance Sheet date. In case, events and circumstances indicate
any impairment, recoverable amount of these assets is determined. An impairment loss is recognised, whenever the carrying
amount of such assets exceeds the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is its 'value in use' or 'net selling price’ (if
determinable) whichever is higher. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows from the use of assets and from
its disposal at the end of its useful life are discounted to their present value at appropriate rate.

An impairment loss is reversed if there is change in the recoverable amount and such loss either no longer exists or has
decreased. Impairment loss / reversal thereof is adjusted to the carrying value of the respective assets, which in case of CGU,
is allocated to its assets on a pro-rata basis. Subsequent to impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying value
of the assets over the remaining useful life.

Abandonment Cost

The full eventual estimated liability towards costs relating to dismantling, abandoning and restoring offshore well sites and
allied facilities are recognised in respective assets when the wellis complete / facilities are installed.

The full eventual estimated liability towards costs relating to dismantling, abandoning and restoring onshore well sites are
recognised when the well is complete. Cost relating to dismantling, abandoning and restoring its allied facilities are accounted
for in the year in which such costs are incurred as the salvage value is expected to take care of the abandonment costs. The
abandonment cost on dry well is charged to Profit and Loss Account.

Liability for abandonment cost is updated based on the technical assessment available at current costs with the Company.
Joint Ventures

The Company has Joint Ventures in the nature of Production Sharing Contracts (PSC) with the Government of India, Govt. of
foreign countries and various bodies corporate for exploration, development and production activities.

The income, expenditure, assets and liabilities of the Jointly Controlled Assets are merged on line by line basis according to
the participating interest with the similar items in the Financial Statements of the Company and adjusted for depreciation,
depletion, survey, dry wells, abandonment, impairment and sidetracking in accordance with the accounting policies of the
Company.

Consideration for the right to participate in operations recoverable from new Joint Venture Partners are :

1. Reduced from respective capitalised cost wherever applicable

2. Reduced from current expenditure to the extent it relates to current year.

3.  Balanceis considered as miscellaneous receipts.

The hydrocarbon reserves in such areas are taken in proportion to the participating interest of the Company.
Investments

Long-term investments are valued at cost. Provision is made for any diminution, other than temporary, in the value of such
investments.

Current Investments are valued at lower of cost and fair value.
Inventories

Finished goods (other than Sulphur) and stock in pipelines/tanks and carbon credits are valued at Cost or net realisable value
whichever is lower. Cost of finished goods is determined on absorption costing method. Sulphur is valued at net realisable
value. The value of inventories includes excise duty and royalty wherever applicable but excludes cess.

Crude Oil in unfinished condition in flow lines upto Group Gathering Stations/platform and Natural Gas in Pipelines are not
valued.

Stock-in-Process is valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower. Cost is determined at Raw material and
Proportionate Conversion cost.

Raw material is valued atlower of cost or net realisable value. Costis determined on Firstin First Out (FIFO) basis.

Inventory of stores and spare parts is valued at Weighted Average Cost or net realisable value whichever is lower. Provisions
are made for obsolete and non moving inventories.

Unserviceable items, when determined, are valued at estimated net realisable value.



12. Revenue Recognition

121 Revenue from sale of products is recognised on transfer of custody to customers. Any difference as of the reporting date
between the entitiement quantity minus the quantities sold in respect of crude oil {including condensate), if positive is treated as
inventory and, if negative, is adjusted to revenue by recording the same as liability.

12.2  Saleof crude oil and gas produced from exploratory wells in progress is deducted from expenditure on such wells.

12.3  Salesareinclusive of all statutory levies except Value Added Tax (VAT). Any retrospective revision in prices is accounted forin
the year of such revision.

124  Revenue in respect of fixed price contracts is recognised for the quantum of work done on the basis of percentage of
completion method. The quantum of work done is measured in proportion of cost incurred to date to the estimated total cost of
the contract or based on reports of physical work done.

12.5  Financeincome in respect of assets given on finance lease is recognised based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate
of return on the netinvestment outstanding in respect of the finance lease.

12.6  Revenueinrespectofthe following is recognised when there is reasonable certainty regarding ultimate collection;
a.  Shortlifted quantity of gas.
b.  Gaspipeline transportation charges and statutory duties thereon.
¢.  Reimbursable subsidies and grants.
d.  Interestondelayed realisation from customers.
e. Liquidated damages from contractors/suppliers.
13. Depreciation and Amortisation

13.1  Depreciation on fixed assets (including those taken on finance lease) is provided for under the written down value method in
accordance with the rates specified in Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956.

13.2  Depreciation on additions/deletions during the year is provided for on prorata basis with reference to the date of
additions/deletions except items of Plant and Machinery used in wells with 100% rate of depreciation and low value items not
exceeding < 5000/- which are fully depreciated at the time of addition.

13.3  Depreciation on subsequent expenditure on fixed assets arising on account of capital improvement or other factor is provided
for prospectively.

Depreciation on refurbished/revamped assets which are capitalised separately is provided for over the reassessed useful life
atrates which are notless than the rates specified in Schedule X1V to the Companies Act, 1956.

134  Depreciation on fixed assets (including support equipment and facilities and taken on finance lease) used for exploration,
drilling activities and on related equipment and facilities is initially capitalised as part of exploration cost, development cost or
producing properties and expensed/depleted as stated in policy 6 above.

13.5  Leasehold landis amortised over the lease period except perpetual leases
13.6 Intangible assets are amortised over the estimated useful life not exceeding ten years from the date of capitalisation.
14. Foreign Exchange Transactions

141  Foreign currency transactions on initial recognition in the reporting currency are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing
on the date of transaction.

14.2  Ateach Balance Sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are translated using the mean exchange rates prevailing on the
balance sheet date and non-monetary items are translated using the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction or on
the date when the fair value of such item was determined.

14.3  Theloss or gain thereon and also the exchange differences on settlement of the foreign currency transactions during the year
are recognised as income or expense and adjusted to the profit and loss account except where such liabilities and /or
transactions relate to fixed assets/ projects and these were incurred/ entered into before 1.4.2004; in which case, these are
adjusted to the cost of respective fixed assets.

144  Inrespectofthe Company'sintegral foreign operations:

14.4.1 The foreign currency transactions on initial recognition in the reporting currency are recorded following the policy stated in
14.1. For practical reasons, the average exchange rate of the relevant month is taken for the transactions of the month in
respect of joint venture operations, where actual date of transaction is not available.
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Ateach Balance Sheet date, monetary and non-monetary items are translated following the policy stated in 14.2.
All exchange differences are treated following the policy stated in 14.3.

The financial statements of the non-integral foreign operations of the company are incorporated in the financial statements
using the following principles:

The assets and liabilities, both monetary and non-monetary, of the non-integral foreign operation are franslated at the average
of the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the balance sheet;

Income and expense items of the non-integral foreign operation are translated at the average exchange rates for the period to
which the financial statements relate;

The resulting exchange differences are accumulated in a foreign currency translation reserve until the disposal of the net
investmentin the non-integral foreign operation.

Exchange differences arising on the company's net investmentin a non-integral foreign operation are accumulated in a foreign
currency translation reserve until the disposal of such investment, at which time they are recognised as income or as
expenses.

In the case of forward exchange contracts, the premium or discount arising at the inception of such contracts, is amortised as
income or expense over the life of the contract as well as exchange difference on such contracts, i.e. difference between the
exchange rate at the reporting / settlement date and the exchange rate on the date of inception / the last reporting date, is
recognised as income / expense for the period.

Forward exchange contracts other than those covered under -Accounting Standard-11 on The effect of Changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates, are marked to market basis at the reporting date and the losses are charged to Profit & Loss A/c. Unrealised
gains are ignored.

Employee Benefits

All short term employee benefits are recognised at their undiscounted amount in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

Employee Benefit under defined contribution plans comprising provident fund efc. is recognised based on the undiscounted
obligations of the company to contribute to the plan. The same is paid to a fund administered through a separate trust.

Employee benefits under defined benefit plans comprising of gratuity, leave encashment, compensated absences, post
retirement medical benefits and other terminal benefits are recognised based on the present value of defined benefit
obligation, which is computed on the basis of actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial Liability in
excess of respective plan assets is recognised during the year.

Provision for gratuity as per actuarial valuation is funded with a separate trust.

Voluntary Retirement Scheme

Expenditure on Voluntary Retirement Scheme (VRS) is charged to Profit and Loss Account when incurred.
General Administrative Expenses

General Administrative Expenses which are identifiable to Assets, Basins & Services are allocated to activities and the balance
are charged to Profitand Loss Account. Such expenses at Headquarters are charged to Profit and Loss Account.

Insurance claims
The company accounts forinsurance claims as under :-

In case of total loss of asset by transferring, either the Carrying cost of the relevant asset or Insurance Value (subject to
deductibles), whichever is lower under the head "Claims Recoverable-Insurance” on intimation to Insurer. In case insurance
claimis less than carrying cost, the difference is charged to Profitand Loss Account.

In case of partial or other losses, expenditure incurred/payments made to put such assets back into use, to meet third party or
other liabilities (Less policy deductibles) if any, are accounted for as "Claims Recoverable-Insurance”. Insurance Policy
deductibles are expensed in the year the corresponding expenditure is incurred.

As and when claims are finally received from Insurer, the difference, if any, between Claims Recoverable-Insurance and
Claims received is adjusted to Profit and Loss Account.



19. Research Expenditure
Revenue expenses on Research are charged to Profit and Loss Account, when incurred.
20. Taxes onIncome

Provision for current tax is made as per the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961/other applicable tax laws. Deferred Tax
Liability / Asset resulting from timing differences' between book and taxable profitis accounted for considering the tax rate and
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted as on the Balance Sheet date. Deferred Tax Asset is recognised and
carried forward only to the extent that there is virtual certainty that the asset will be realised in future.

21. Borrowing Costs

Borrowing Cost specifically identified to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets is capitalised as part of such asset.
Aqualifying assetis one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for intended use. All other borrowing costs
are charged to Profitand Loss Account.

22, RigDays Costs
Rig movement costs are booked to the next location planned for drilling. Abnormal rig days' costs are considered as
unallocable and charged to Profitand Loss Account.

23. Deferred Revenue Expenditure

231 Dry docking charges of Rigs/ Multipurpose Supply Vessels (MSVs), Geo Technical Vessels (GTVs), Well Stimulation Vessels,
Offshore Supply Vessels (OSVs), Rig/equipment mobilisation expenses and other related expenditure are considered as
deferred expenditure and amortised over the period of use not exceeding five years.

23.2  Transportation Costs in respect of the quantity of gas short transported, for which the right exists to transport such gas in
subsequent periods at no charge, is treated as Deferred Expenditure in the year of payment. The same is treated as costin the
year in which the gas is actually fransported for the quantity fransported or in the year in which the right to transport such gas
ceases, whicheveris earlier.

24, Claims
Claims/Surrenders on/to Petroleum Planning and Analysis Cell, Government of India are booked on ‘in principle acceptance’
thereof on the basis of available instructions/clarifications subject to final adjustments, as stipulated. All other claims and
provisions are booked on the merits of each case.

25. Lease
251  Assets givenon Lease:

25.1.1 Assets given on finance lease are accounted for as per Accounting Standard (AS) 19 "Leases". Such assets are included as a
receivable atan amountequal to the netinvestmentin the lease.

25.1.2 Initial direct costs incurred in respect of finance leases are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which
such costs areincurred.

25.2  AssetstakenonLease

25.2.1 Assetstaken onfinance lease are capitalised and recognised at the lower of the fair value of the asset and the discounted value
of the minimum lease installments. The lease payments are bifurcated into repayment and interest components, based on a
fixed interest rate and installment as derived from the underlying agreement. The lease commitments are carried under
liabilities exclusive of interest. The interest component s recognised in the profit and loss account in accordance with the lease
installments.

25.2.2 Assets acquired on lease where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Lease rentals are charged to the Profit and Loss Account on accrual basis.

26. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised when there is a present obligation as a
result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources. ContingentAssets are neither recognised nor
disclosed in the financial statements. Contingent iabilities, if material, are disclosed by way of notes to accounts.

27 Accounting for derivatives
As per the ICAI Announcement, Accounting for Derivatives, other than those covered under -AS-11, is done on marked to
market basis and the losses are charged to Profit & Loss Account. Unrealised gains are ignored.

28, Goodwill on Consolidation
Goodwill arising on Consolidation of Companies having Hydrocarbon reserve is amortised based on "Unit of Production
Method" considering the related Proved Reserves. Other goodwill on consolidation is not amortised.



SCHEDULE- 27 | NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

1.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Consolidated Financial Statements represent consolidation of accounts of the Company (QOil and Natural Gas Corporation
Limited), its subsidiaries and joint venture entities as detailed below:

SI No. | Name of the Subsidiaries/ Country of Proportion of Ownership Status of
Joint Venture Companies Incorporation Interest Audit as on
31 March 31 March | 31 March
2010 2009 2010
1. | ONGC Videsh Limited (OVL) India 100% 100% Audited
1.1 | ONGC Nile Ganga BV (ONGBV)
Class Aand Class B 100% 100%
Class C Netherlands 55% by OVL | 55% by Audited
and 45% OVL and
by OMEL 45% by
OMEL
1.1 (i) | ONGC Do Brasil Explorancao Petrolifera Ltda. | Brazil 100% 100% Audited
1.1 (ii) | ONGC Campos Ltda. Brazil 100% 100% Audited
1.1 (iii) | ONGC Nile Ganga (Cyprus) Ltd. Cyprus 100% 100% Audited
1.1 (iv) | ONGC Nile Ganga (San Cristobal) B.V. Netherlands 100% 100% Audited
1.2 | ONGC Narmada Limited (ONL) Nigeria 100% 100% Audited
1.3 | ONGC Amazon Alaknanda Limited (OAAL) Bermuda 100% 100% Audited
1.4 | ONGC Mittal Energy Limited (OMEL})-JV Cyprus 49.98% 49.98% Audited
1.5 [ Jarpeno Limited Cyprus 100% 100% Audited
1.5 (i) | Imperial Energy Corporation Pic* UK 100% 100% Audited
1.5 (ii) | Imperial Energy Limited* UK 100% 100% Audited
1.5 (jii) | Rus Imperial Corporation plc* UK 100% 100% Audited
1.5 (iv) | Imperial Energy Tomsk Limited Cyprus 85% 85% Audited
1.5 (v) | Imperial Energy (Cyprus) Limited Cyprus 100% 100% Audited
1.5 (vi) | Imperial Energy Nord Limited Cyprus 100% 100% Audited
1.5 (vii)| Imperial Energy Gas Limited Cyprus 100% 100% Audited
1.5 (viii}| Nefsilius Holdings Limited Cyprus 100% 100% Audited
1.5 (ix) | RK Imperial Energy Kostanai Limited Cyprus 100% 100% Audited
1.5 (x) | Imperial Frac Services (Cyprus) Limited Cyprus 100% 100% Audited
1.5 (xi) | Freshspring Investments Limited Cyprus 100% 100% Audited
1.5 (xii)| Redgliffe Holdings Limited, Cyprus Cyprus 100% 100% Audited
1.5 (xiii)| San Agio Investments Limited Cyprus 100% 100% Audited
1.5 (xiv)| Imperial Energy Trading AG Switzerland Liquidated in 100% Audited
Dec 09
1.5 (xv)| Imperial Energy Finance (Jersey) Limited * Jersey 100% 100% Audited
1.5 (xvi)| Biancus Holdings Limited Cyprus 100% 100% Audited




SINo. | Name of the Subsidiaries/ Country of Proportion of Ownership Status of
Joint Venture Companies Incorporation Interest Audit as on
31 March 31 March 31 March
2010 2009 2010
1.5 (xvii) |Rus Imperial Limited * UK 100% 100% Audited
1.5 (xviii) | Imperial Energy Kostanai Limited * UK 100% 100% Audited
1.5 (xix) |00O0 Sibinterneft Russian Federation 47.5% 47.5% Audited
1.5 (xx) |00O0 Allianceneftegaz Russian Federation 100% 100% Audited
1.5 (xxi) |O0O Nord Imperial Russian Federation 100% 100% Audited
1.5 (xxii) |OOO Imperial Energy Russian Federation 100% 100% Audited
1.5 (xxiii) | 00O Imperial Energy Tomsk Gas Russian Federation 95% 95% Audited
1.5 (xxiv)|O0O Stratum Russian Federation 100% 100% Audited
1.5 (xxv) |00O0 Imperial Trans Service Russian Federation 100% 100% Audited
1.5 (xxvi)|OO0O Rus Imperial Group Russian Federation 100% 100% Audited
1.5 (xxvii) TOO Sevkazgra Kazakhstan 100% 75% Audited
1.5 (xxviii) OO0 Imperial Frac Service Russian Federation 50% 50% Audited
1.6 |Carabobo One AB Sweden 100% N/A Unaudited
1.6.(i) |Petro Carabobo Ganga B.V. The Netherlands 100% N/A Unaudited
2.  |Mangalore Refinery and Petrochemicals Ltd. India 71.62% 71.62% Audited
(MRPL)
3. |Pefronet LNG Limited (PLL) (JV) India 12.50% 12.50% Audited
4.  |Petronet MHB Ltd (PMHBL) (JV) India 28.77% 28.77% Audited
5.  |Mangalore SEZ Ltd (MSEZ) (JV) India 26.00% $ 26.00% Audited
6. |ONGC Managalore Petrochemicals Ltd. India 46.00% # 46.00% Audited
(OMPL) (JV)
7. |ONGC Petro Additions Ltd. (OPAL) (JV) India 41.93% 41.93% Audited
8 ONGC Tripura Power Company Ltd. (JV) India 49.52% 49.52% Audited
. |ONGC Teri Biotec Ltd. (JV) India 49.98% 49.98% Audited
10. [Dahej SEZ Limited (JV) India 49.60 - Refer Note 3
* Under Liguidation

$ Does not include holding of 0.96% by OMPL.
# Does not include holding of 3% by MRPL

ulpi={e3213]
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2.

In view of different sets of environment/prevalent laws in the respective countries in which the subsidiaries/JVs are
operating, the accounting policies followed (for treatment of depreciation of fixed assets, sales revenue and royalty etc.)
by the subsidiaries/JVs are different from the accounting policies of the Company. Such different accounting policies have
been adopted in respect of the following:

2.1 Depreciation on Fixed Assets (Schedule 5)  in million)
Names of Subsidiaries/JV Accounting Policies Proportion -Depreciation| Proportion-NetBlock
Company | Subsidiaries/JV| 2009-10 2008-09 2009-10 2008-09
MRPL 3,904.56 3,821.76 32,674.59 | 36,319.32
PetronetLNG Ltd. 200.75 127.65 3,597.36 1,829.24
PetronetMHB Ltd.* Written Down 122.12 126.30 971.85 1,093.65
Mangalore SEZ Ltd. Value Method Straight 0.37 0.24 2.91 2.65
OMPL attherates Line 1.82 1.62 3.90 4.51
OPaL specifiedin Method 2.66 0.12 743 594
Jarpeno Limited Schedule XIV. 116.94 134.45 778.62 615.05
OAAL 655.53 430.27 3,657.97 3580.92
OMEL 16.74 5.08 44,92 19.14
Total- Proportion 5,021.49 4,647.49 41,739.55 | 43,470.42
Total CFS 57,076.51 | 57,157.73 | 232,122.60 | 174,575.01

2.2
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24
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4.1

Above table excludes Free hold land and Lease hold land.
*In respect of Joint Venture - Petronet MHB Ltd (PMHBL), Cost of Right of way for laying pipeline amounting to ¥ 38.67

million (Previous year¥ 38.67 million) included above is capitalised as intangible asset and being perpetual in nature is not
amortised.

ONGBYV, the subsidiary of OVL follows the entitlement method for revenue recognition associated with sale of crude oil and
liquids for its share of petroleum production as specified in the Exploration Production Sharing Agreement (EPSA) and
Crude Qil Pipeline Agreement (COPA). The amount involved is ¥ 66,283.67 million (Previous year ¥ 82,410.16 million)
shown as sales under Schedule-17.

The Subsidiary of OVL, ONGBV conducts its operations in Sudan jointly with Sudapet the national oil company of Sudan
among others. All government stakes other than income taxes are considered to be royalty interest. Royalties on production
represent the entitlement of the government of Sudan to a portion of ONGBV's share of crude oil and liquid production and
are recorded using the rates in effect under the terms of the contract at the time of production. Royalties / Taxes in Syrian
concession are accounted similarly by ONGBV. The amount involved is ¥ 43,287.70 million (Previous year ¥ 62,096.09
million) under the head Royalty in Schedule -20.

The subsidiaries and joint venture entities of subsidiary - OVL provide for the retirement benefits in accordance with the
laws of their respective jurisdictions. The netimpact on account of the difference in accounting policy is not ascertainable.

Inrespect of OPaL, Foreign Exchange Variation amounting to ¥ 156.16 million (Previous year¥ (-) 34.93) has been treated
as incidental expenditure during construction period and shown as Capital Work in Progress.

In the absence of certified financial statements of Dahej SEZ Limited for the year 2009-10, the same has not been
considered for consolidation.

The Associate considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements is as under:

Name of the Associate Country of incorporation Proportion of ownership interest
2009-10 2008-09
Pawan Hans Helicopters Limited India 21.54% 21.54%
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7.1

7.2
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9.1

In respect of Pawan Hans Helicopters Limited (PHHL), the audited Annual Accounts for the year 2009-10 have notbeen
received. In the current year, the un-audited accounts for the year 2009-10 and the audited accounts for the year 2008-09
have been provided by PHHL and considered. The share of profit of ¥ 75.31 million and ¥ 2.82 million (difference in Profit
After Tax between unaudited accounts and audited accounts) for the year 2009-10 and 2008-09 respectively have been
considered as share of profit in Associate. Dividend amounting to ¥ 24.50 million has been received during the year
2009-10. No significant events or transactions between the company (or its subsidiaries) and PHHL have occurred which
cause for adjustmentin consolidated accounts.

Due to different nature of their operations, Pawan Hans Helicopters Limited, the Associate of the Company, follows
different accounting policies. It is not practicable for the Company to make adjustment for the purposes of applying the
equity method.

The Minority Interestis net of¥ 701.96 million (Previous year ¥ 705.19 million) in respect of Jarpeno Limited. The losses
applicable to the minority in consolidated subsidiaries of Jarpeno Limited are exceeding the minority interest in the equity
of the subsidiaries. However, the excess applicable to the minority, are not adjusted against the majority interest in view
of the minority shareholders obligation to make good the losses and their ability to make good the losses as the economic
value of oil reserves attributable to minority shareholders is considered to be higher than the accumulated losses for
minority shareholders.

In terms of the decision of Government of India (Gol), the Company has shared under- recoveries of Oil Marketing
Companies (OMCs) for the year 2009-10 by allowing discount in the prices of Crude Oil, PDS Kerosene and domestic
LPG based on provisional rates of discount communicated by Petroleum Planning and Analysis Cell, Ministry of
Petroleum & Natural Gas (MoP&NG). The Company does not foresee any material impact on finalization of discount
rates. The impact of discountis as under:

(X in million)

Decreasein Forthe Yearended

2009-10 2008-09
Gross Revenue 115,543.07 282,252.09
Less: Value Added Tax (VAT) 2,760.27 7,373.66
Sales Revenue 112,782.80 274,878.43
Less: Statutory Levies 13,534.06 35,549.26
Profit Before Tax 99,248.74 239,329.17

Sales revenue in respect of Crude Oil from Indian Operations is based on the pricing formula agreed with the customers
for the period from 01.04.2002 to 31.03.2004. Pending finalisation of fresh Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) /Crude
Oil Sale Agreement (COSA) with the customers, the same pricing formula has been provisionally applied from
01.04.2004 onwards. However, for Crude Oil produced in Assam, benchmark price revised by MoP&NG w.e.f.
01.04.2008 has been adopted.

Sales revenue in respect of Natural Gas under Administered Price Mechanism (APM) is based on the gas prices fixed on
provisional basis as per directives dated 20.06.2005 and 05.06.2006 of the Gol, MOP&NG.

Adjustments, if any, on account of para 7.1 and 7.2 above shall be carried out on finalisation of agreements/ receipt of
government directives. However, the Company does not foresee any material impact on current year's results.

MoP&NG vide letters dated 15.03.10 and 09.04.10 have directed GAIL (India) Limited (GAIL} that difference between
consumer price and producer price revised vide MoP&NG letter dated 5" June, 2006 for APM gas being supplied to City
Gas Distribution Projects and small consumers having allocations up to 0.05 MMSCMD should be transferred by GAIL
from surplus in Gas Pool Account to the producers. Accordingly, an amount of ¥ 4,415.79 million on account of above for
the period from 06.06.06 to 31.03.10 has been recognised during the current year.

During the year, the Company has changed its accounting policy on abandonment cost and started providing the full
eventual estimated liability towards costs relating to dismantling, abandoning and restoring of onshore well sites. Such
cost of onshore well site has been capitalised to Producing Property/Development Wells in Progress /Exploratory Wells in
Progress when completed and in case of dry wells it is charged to Profit & Loss account. This has resulted in increase in
Producing Property by ¥ 8,353.36 million, Exploratory Wells in Progress by ¥ 166.64 million and Development Wells in
Progress by ¥ 102.57 million with corresponding increase in abandonment liability by ¥ 8,622.57 million. This has also
resulted in increase in Depletion cost by ¥ 403.72 million and cost of dry wells by ¥ 88.50 million with corresponding
decrease in profit before tax by ¥492.22 million.
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Further, in case of offshore wells, upto the previous year the Company was providing full eventual estimated liability towards
costs relating to dismantling, abandoning and restoring of offshore wells/facilities that were forming part of producing
properties. However, during the current year, the Company started providing such liability in respect of wells completed and
facilities capitalised also whether they are transferred to Producing Property or not. This has resulted in increase in
‘Development Wells in Progress' by ¥ 305.52 million and corresponding increase in abandonment liability by a similar
amount. This has noimpact on profit before tax.

During the year, the Company changed its accounting policy of amortising intangible assets from Written Down Value Method
@ 40% to Straight Line Method over the useful life not exceeding a period of 5 years in order to systematically amortise its
intangible assets. This has resulted in decrease in Depreciation, Depletion, Amortisation and Impairment by ¥ 424.55 million,
consequently activity cost decreased by 3.22 million and Profit before tax increased by ¥ 421.33 million.

In the Finance Act, 2009, the definition of eligible undertaking for the purpose of claiming tax holidays under section 80-1B(9)
of Income Tax Act, 1961 has been changed to 'Block' retrospectively in place of 'Well' as considered earlier. Since the
amendment requires clarity on various issues and considering the advice of legal experts, the company continued to make
provision fortax without considering the benefitu/s 80-1B(9).

Acquisitions Carabobo Project

The consortium of ONGC Videsh Limited ("OVL", 11.0%), Indian Oil Corporation Limited ("IOC", 3.5%), Oil India Limited
("OIL", 3.5%), Repsol YPF ("Repsol", 11.0%) and Petroliam Nasional Berhad ("PETRONAS", 11.0%), was awarded by the
Government of Venezuela, 40% ownership interest in an "Empresa Mixta" (or "Mixed Company") which will develop the
Carabobo 1 Norte and Carabobo 1 Centro blocks located in the Orinoco Heavy Qil Belt. The Corporacion Venezolana del
Petréleo ("CVP"), a subsidiary of Petroleos de Venezuela S.A. ("PDVSA"), Venezuela's state oil company, will hold the
remaining 60% equity interest. Awholly owned subsidiary of the Company, Carabobo One AB was incorporated in Sweden on
25 February 2010. Petro Carabobo Ganga B.V. a wholly owned subsidiary of Carabobo One AB was incorporated in the
Netherlands on 26 February 2010. Petro Carabobo Ganga B.V. will hold 11% shares in the Mixed Company. The Mixed
Company contract for the development and production from Carabobo-1 Project was signed on 12 May 2010 in Caracas.

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve:

The Subsidiary-OVL has followed the Accounting Standard AS- 11 on "Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates" for
incorporating in the consolidated financial statements following the principles for translation of the financial statements of
Non-integral Foreign Operations. Accordingly, the resulting exchange loss of ¥ 19,514.38 million (Previous Year ¥ 23,965.05
million exchange gain) has been accounted as foreign currency translation reserve and shown in Schedule 2 as per details
given below:

(% in million)
Particulars 2009-10 2008-09
Opening Balance 15.399.10 (8,565.95)
Addition/ (Deduction) during the year (19,514.38) 23,965.05
Closing balance (As per Schedule - 2) (4,115.28) 15,399.10
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Amortisation of Goodwill on Consolidation:

Goodwill arising on Consolidation of Companies having Hydrocarbon reserves has been amortised amounting to
<4,978.91 million (Previous year< 2,876.56 million) in respect of following projects/subsidiaries :-

& in million)

Particulars 200910 2008-09

Cumulative Goodwill Amortisation at beginning of the year 10,564.74 7,625.12

Amortisation forthe year:

GNOP, Sudan (ONGC Nile GangaB.V.) 471.46 750.84

MECL Project, Colombia (ONGC Amazon Alaknanda Ltd.) 1,445.38 1,549.68

BC-10Project, Brazil, Offshore (Through ONGC 169.76 N/A

Nile GangaB.V)

San Cristobal Project, Venezuela (ONGC Nile Ganga 379.19 300.89

{San Cristobal) B.V.)

Imperial Energy Project, Russia (Jarpeno Ltd.) 2,513.12 275.15
| Sub-total 4,978.91 2,876.56

Foreign currency translation difference (186.29) 63.06

Cumulative Goodwill Amortisation at end of the year 15,357.36 10,564.74

In Ravva Joint Venture, the demand towards additional profit petroleum raised by Gol, based on the decision of the
Malaysian High Court, was disputed by the Operator M/s Cairn Energy India Limited, due to difference in interpretation of
provision of Production Sharing Contract (PSC)in respect of computation of Post Tax Rate of Return (PTRR). The Company
is not a party to the dispute but agreed to abide by the decision applicable to the Operator. As the dispute between the
Operator and Gol was not resolved, the Company made a provision in Financial Year 2008-09 amounting to ¥ 5,771.14
million { USD 113.82 million) on account of additional profit petroleum and ¥ 2,829.86 million (USD 54.88 million) towards
interest thereon totaling to ¥ 8,601.00 million (USD 168.70 million) as an abundant precaution. Gol has recovered such
amount subsequently.

The appellate authority of Honorable Malaysian High Court of Kuala Lampur, Malaysia has set aside the decision of the
Malaysian High Court and the decision of arbitral tribunal in favour of Operator was restored on 15" September 2009. Gol
has filed an appeal in the Federal Court of Malaysia against such restoration.

An additional interest of ¥ 65.41 million (USD 1.45 million) has been provided during the year. Pending final outcome of this
appeal, the provision is retained at ¥ 7,679.21 million (USD 170.15 million) net of reversal of ¥ 987.20 million towards
exchange gain during the year.

The Company acquired 90% Participating Interest in Exploration Block KG-DWN- 98/2 from M/s Cairn Energy India Ltd. in
2004-05 for a lump sum consideration of ¥ 3,711.22 million which was capitalised under Exploratory Wells in Progress as
per Accounting Policy No.6.3. Subsequent exploratory drilling cost of wells in this block were capitalised as Exploratory
Wells in Progress. Initial-in-Place-Reserves have been established in this block and a conceptual development planiis also
under preparation. This being deep water block, needs more time for completion of appraisal programme. However, the
Company as an abundant precaution made a provision of¥ 6,104.80 million and ¥ 2,360.39 million in respect of above costs
in 2007-08 and 2008-09 respectively. Since there is no significant change in status of this block during the current year, the
expenditure amounting to ¥ 918.48 million on the wells completed upto 31* March 2008, being more than two years old is
provided forin the current year.

As per the Production Sharing Contracts signed by the Company with the Gol, the Company is required to complete
Minimum Work Programme (MWP) within stipulated time. In case of delay in completion of the MWP, Liquidated Damages
(LD) is payable for extension of time to complete MWP. Further, in case the Company does not complete MWP or surrender
the block without completing the MWP, the estimated cost of completing balance work programme is required to be paid to
the Gol. LD amounting to ¥ (-)78.41 million net of reversal (Previous year ¥ 563.28 million) and cost of unfinished MWP
¥ 3,148.58 million (Previous year ¥ 1,439.51 million) paid/payable to the Gol is included in survey and wells written off
expenditure in Schedule 21.
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In respect of 16 (Previous year 16) Deepwater NELP Blocks, company's share in LD and MWP amounting to ¥ 12,037.37
million (Previous year ¥ 6,229.03 million) and ¥ 33,024.85 million (Previous year ¥ 13,075.42 million) respectively has not
been provided for, since the rig moratorium proposal is under consideration of Gol as per the letter dated 18.08.2008 from
Director General of Hydrocarbons (DGH). Out of the above MWP amounting to ¥ 1,770.62 million (Previous year Nil) has
already been completed during the year and balance amounting to ¥ 31,254.23 million (Previous year ¥13,075.42 million) is
included in Capital Commitment (Note No 32.1).

In case of Jointly Controlled Assets - Panna Mukia & Tapti ( ONGC Share - 40%), where Block's auditors have opined
regarding non ascertainment and adjustment of certain observations raised by auditors appointed by Director General
Hydrocarbon (DGH) under Production Sharing Contract for the period 1994 to 2007 in respect of cost and profit petroleum
share. Pending resolution of such issues, no adjustment has been made in the accounts of the operator. The amount of
liability arising out of such observations has not been quantified and impact of the same on Company's accounts is
unascertainable.

In respect of a Subsidiary MRPL, Forward contracts of US $ 1.90 million is outstanding as on 31* March 2010 (US$ 56.17
million as on 31* March, 2009 ), which were entered into, to hedge the risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates on
future export sales against existing long term export contract. Keeping in view of the principle of prudence, the Company, has
recognised an amount of Z Nil (Previous Year : ¥ 226.38 million) towards the mark to market (MTM) loss (net) as on 31* March
2010 (included under the head exchange fluctuation (net)) on outstanding forward contracts mentioned. During the year Mark
to Market Gain on theses unexpired contracts as on March 31, 2010 amounting to ¥ 1.85 million has not been considered in
the financial Statements.

In respect of a Subsidiary OVL, the hedging gain for the year is ¥ 19.42 million (Previous year gain ¥ 153.65 million)
comprises of unrealised losses of ¥ 14.22 million and realised gains of ¥ 33.64 million (Previous year realised losses of
¥71.99 million and realised gains of ¥ 225.64 million) in respect of hedging of crude oil against prices by OMEL.

ONGBYV along with its consortium partners (ONGBV's share being 25%) charges tariff for transporting crude oil through a
pipeline, whichis under the rights of Greater Nile Oil Project (GNOP) under Crude Qil Pipeline Agreement (COPA). The tariffis
charged under the provisions of Crude Oil Pipeline Agreement (COPA) and Crude Qil Transportation Agreement (COTA)
signed with the Government of Sudan (GoS). The pipeline and all associated rights would be permanently transferred to the
GoS at a date, which comes after duration of 15 years from the startup date, which falls on 01.09.2014 or when consortium
achieves expected economic return of 16.2%, whichever comes later as per COPA. By way of various letters from late 2006
till Nov 2008, the GoS, through its Ministry of Energy & Mining (MEM), has been insisting the Consortium to transfer the
pipeline together with all revenues; with effect from 01.10.2006 i.e. the date on which Consortium had achieved expected
economic return of 16.2%. The Consortium does not agree with the contention of GoS for an early transfer of pipeline i.e. prior
to 01.09.2014 and the dispute is under arbitration with a claim by MEM, GoS of USD 876.10 Million (ONGBV's share being
USD 219.03 million equivalent to ¥ 9884.82 million) as on 31.03.2010. Hearing before the arbitral tribunal is scheduled in July
2010 and the Consortium is confident of an award in its favour. As such no provision has been made in the financial
statements.

The Company changed the rate of depreciation on all Trunk Pipelines and Onshore Flow Lines (assets below ground) from
27.82% to 100% based on technical assessment by the management during 2005-06. The Company made a reference to the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) during 2008-07 for confirmation of the rate of depreciation. Pending confirmation by the
MCA, Company continues to charge depreciation at 100% on such assets.

Some balances of Debtors, Creditors and Loans & Advances are subject to confirmation/reconciliation. Adjustments, if any,
will be accounted for on receipt/ confirmation of the same after examination.
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25.2
25.2.1

2522

2523

2524
2525
2526

26.
26.1
26.1.1

Notes:

The annexed matrix presentation depicts the geographical segments based on assets as primary segments and business segments as
secondary segments.

Segments have been identified and reported taking into account the differing risks and retums, the organisation structure and the internal
reporting systems. These have been organised into the following main geographical and business segments:

Geographical Segments

a)Inindia - Offshore
- Onshore
b) Outside India.

Business Segments

a) Exploration & Production
b) Refining

Segment Revenue, Results, Assets and Liabilities include the respective amounts identifiable to each of the segments and amount allocated on
reasonable basis. Unallocated includes common expenditure incurred for all the segments and expenses incurred at the corporate level.

Inter Segment Sales have been priced at prevailing market rates.

SegmentAssets includes 2,168.10 million of Intangible Assets (Previous year-¥1,539.25 million)
Reconciliation of the Segment Revenue with the Revenue as per Schedules 17, 18 & 24 is given below:

& in million)
Particulars Schedule 200910 2008-09
Sales -As per P&LAccount 17 1,061,688.44 1,094,129.42
OtherIncome 18 52,727.60 50,721.47
Prior period Sales 24 26.01 (189.51)
Prior period other Income 24 281.45 (259.79)
Total 1,114,723.50 1,144,401.59
Less:
Income from trade investments 18 2,263.74 2,896.20
Income from Non trade investments 18 430.63 258.94
Interestincome on Deposits with 18 19,240.16 32,181.35
banks/Fls,IT Refund, SRF Fund and
carry Finance
Segment Revenue 1,092,728.97 1,109,065.10
Disclosure under Accounting Standard -18 on "Related Party Disclosure”
Name of related parties and description of relationship :
Joint Ventures/Jointly Controlled Entities
SiNo. Name Relationship
A Joint VentureinIndia
i Ravva JointVenturein India
i CY-0S-90/1(PY3) Joint Venture in India
i Panna, Mukta & Tapti Joint Venture in India
iv CB-0S-1 Joint Venture in India
v CB-0S-2 JointVenture in India
vi GK-08J-3 JointVenturein India
vii RJ-ON-90/1 Joint Venture in India
viii RJ-ONN-2003/1 Joint Venture in India
ix KK-DWN-2004/1 Joint Venture in India




SINo. Name Relationship
B Joint Controlled Entity in India
i ONGC Mangalore Petrochemicals Limited Joint Controlled Entity in India
i Petronet LNG Limited Joint Controlled Entity in India
i ONGC Teri Biotech Limited. Joint Controlled Entity in India
iv Mangalore SEZ Limited Joint Controlled Entity in India
v ONGC Petro-additions Limited Joint Controlled Entity in India
vi ONGC Tripura Power Co. Limited Joint Controlled Entity in India
vii DahejSEZ Ltd Joint Controlled Entity in India
c Joint Ventures/Associates of Subsidiary
i Block 06.1 Project, Vietnam Joint Ventures (Outside India) through OVL
i Sakhalin-1 Project, Russia Joint Ventures (Outside India) through OVL
i Block 1a, 1b, 2a, 2b &4 Project, Sudan Joint Ventures (Outside India) through OVL
iv Block 5A Project, Sudan Joint Ventures (Outside India) through OVL
v MECL, Colombia Joint Ventures (Outside India) through OVL
vi AFPC, Syria Joint Ventures (Outside India) through OVL
vii Block BC-10, Brazil Joint Ventures (Outside India) through OVL
viii Block BM-SEAL-4, Brazil Joint Ventures (Outside India) through OVL
iX Block BM-BAR-1, Brazil Joint Ventures (Outside India) through OVL
X Block A-1Project, Myanmar Joint Ventures (Outside India) through OVL
Xi BlockA-3 Project, Myanmar Joint Ventures (Outside India) through OVL
Xii FarsiBlock Project, Iran Joint Ventures (Outside India) through OVL
Xiii Block 6 North Ramadan Project, Egypt Joint Ventures (Outside India) through OVL
xiv Block NC-189 Project, Libya Joint Ventures (Outside India) through OVL
XV Block XXIV Project, Syria Joint Ventures (Outside India) through OVL
XVi Block 2, JDZ, Nigeria/STP Joint Ventures (Outside India) through OVL
Xvii Block 25-29, 35 (Part) & 36 Project, Cuba Joint Ventures (Outside India) through OVL
xviii Khartoum - Port Sudan Pipeline Project, Sudan Joint Ventures (Outside India) through OVL
XiX ONGC Mittal Energy Limited, Cyprus Joint Ventures (Outside India) through OVL
XX Block NEMED in Offshore, Egypt Joint Ventures (Outside India) through OVL
XXi Block RC-8, Colombia Joint Ventures (Outside India) through OVL
XXii Block RC-9, Colombia Joint Ventures (Outside India) through OVL
Xxiii Block RC-10, Colombia Joint Ventures (Outside India) through OVL
XXiv Block SSJN-7, Colombia Joint Ventures (Outside India) through OVL
XXV MTPN Block, Congo Joint Ventures (Outside India) through OVL
Xxvi San Cristobal Project, Venezuela Joint Ventures (Outside India) through OVL
XXVii ONGC Nile GangaB.V., The Netherlands Joint Ventures (Outside India) through OVL
xooviii Imperial Energy Tomsk Limited, Cyprus Joint Ventures (Outside India) through OVL
XXix 000 Sibinterneft, Russian Federation Joint Ventures (Outside India) through OVL
XXX 000 Imperial Energy Tomsk Gas,Russian Federation | Joint Ventures (Outside India) through OVL
X0 TOO Sevkazgra, Russian Federation Joint Ventures (Outside India) through OVL
XXXii Shell MRPLAviation Fuels & Services Pvt. Limited Joint Venture of MRPL
XOxiii Mangalam Retail Services Limited Joint Venture of MRPL
D Related Parties of JV Entities
[ Infrastructure Leasing & Financial JointVenture of OTPC
ServicesLid. (IL&FS)
i IL&FS Infrastructure Development Corp. Lid. Associate of OTPC
i IL&FS Energy Development Company Ltd. Associate of OTPC
iv IL&FS Technology Limited Associate of OTPC
v IL&FS Financial Services Limited Associate of OTPC
vi IL&FS1IDC Fund Associate of OMPL
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26.1.2 Key Management Personnel:
Functional Directors:

SINo. | Parent Company

i) ShriR.S. Sharma, Chairman & Managing Director

i) Dr.A.K.Balyan

i) ShriA.K. Hazarika

iv) ShriU. N. Bose

v) Shri D.K.Pande

vi) ShriD.K.Sarraf

vii} | ShriSudhirVasudeva

Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures

viii) | MrR.S.Butola, Managing Director, ONGC Videsh Limited

ix) MrJ. Thomas, Director (Exploration), ONGC Videsh Limited

X) MrS. P. Garg, Director (Finance), ONGC Videsh Limited

Xi) MrA. Mathur, Director (Commercial) ( ill 31 August'2009), ONGC Videsh Limited
xii) | MrS.Roychoudhary, Director (Commercial)(with effectfrom 01* September, 2009), ONGC Videsh Limited
xiii) | I A.R.Baron Mackay Holding B.V., Director, ONGC Nile GangaB.V.,
xiv) | Dr.C.M.Lamba, Director, ONGC Nile GangaB.V. (till 18" December, 2009)
xv) | MrCostas Christoforou, Director, Jarpeno Limited

xvi) | Ms Arene Nahikian, Director, Jarpeno Limited

xvii) | Ms.K.Antoniadou, Director, Jarpeno Limited

xviii) | Ms. E. Chrysanthou, Director, Jarpeno Limited

xix) | Mr A.Loizou, Director, Jarpeno Limited

xx) | Mr.Roland Géransson, Director, Carabobo One AB

xxi) | Mr.Richard Chindt, Director, Carabobo One AB

xxii) | ShriU.K. Basu, Managing Director, MRPL

xxiii) | ShriL.K. Gupta, Director (Finance). MRPL

xxiv) | ShriProsad Dasgupta (Managing Director & CEO), PLL

xxv) | ShriAmitava Sengupta (Director-Finance & Commercial), PLL

xxvi) | ShriC.S.Mani(Director-Technical), PLL.

xxvii) [ Shril.S.N. Prasad, Managing Director, Mangalore SEZ

xxviii) | ShriRajivBanga, Mangalore SEZ

xxix) | ShriP.P. Nadkarni, Managing Director, PMHBL

xxx} | ShriAlok Mukherjee (whole time Director & CEO), OTPCL




26.2
26.21

Details of Transactions
Joint Ventures/ Jointly Controlled Entities

(X in million)
Details 2009-10 2008-09
Sale of Products to
a) Shell MRPL Aviation Fuels & Services Pvt. Limited 1,643.97 1,090.74
Services Received from:
a) Rawva 60.40 78.59
b) ONGC TeriBiotech Ltd 151.26 -
Services Providedto:
a) Rawva 11.19 10.52
b) Panna Mukta & Tapti 2,329.66 4,126.80
C) ONGC Petro-additions Ltd. 162.54 295.72
d) Petronet LNG Limited 3.57 0.76
e) Mangalore SEZ Ltd. 1.80 -
f) ONGC Tripura Power Co. Pvt. Ltd. 3.94 -
q) JVsof OVL 158.00 46.25
h) ONGC Mangalore Petrochemicals Limited 52.40 -
Interest Income (JVs of OVL) 351.07 439.94
Purchase of Condensate (Panna Mukta & Tapti) 4,584.91 8,273.69
Capital Contribution to (JVs of OVL) 0.77 -
Advance:
a) ONGC Petro-additions Ltd. 4,560.00 3,290.00
b) ONGC Mangalore Petrochemicals Ltd. 1424.00 2945.77
Amount Receivable :
a) Panna Mukta & Tapti™ 2,009.68 2,998.74
b) ONGC Petro-additions Limited 138.99 9.10
C) ONGC Tripura Power Co. Pvt. Ltd 0.95 -
d) Petronet LNG Limited 0.60 -
Amount Payable :
a) Panna Mukta & Tapti 67.96 -
b) ONGC TeriBiotech Ltd 31.26 -
Advance Outstanding :
a) ONGC Petro-addition Limited 7,850.00 3,290.00
b) ONGC Tripura Power Co. Pvt. Ltd 1,233.87 1,233.87
C) ONGC Mangalore Petrochemicals Ltd. 4,369.77 2,945.77
d) Dahej SEZ Lid. - 0.25

The above represents the full value of the transaction without restricting to percentage of interestin Joint Venture.
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26.2.2 KeyManagementPersonnel

27.
271

27.2

Remuneration Paid to Key Management Personnel ¥ 78.16 million (Previous year ¥ 48.27 million)
Disclosure under Accounting Standard -19 on "Leases”
Assettaken on Lease:

ONGBV owns 15% equity shares in Tamba B.V. The Netherlands; with the balance held by Shell E and P Offshore Services
B.V,, The Netherlands ("SEPBV"), and Petobras Netherlands B.V. The Netherlands ("PNBV"). Tamba B.V. has been
established to facilitate the development and production of hydrocarbons in the BC-10 concession, Campos Basin area in
Brazil. Tamba B.V. has a third party lease for major oil field equipment (FPSO) and constructed other sub-sea assets for
onwards lease to the BC-10 Project. Both financial leases commenced on 31* December 2008. The financial statements of
Tamba BV were prepared and audited for the period ending December 31, 2009. For the period, January 1%, 2010 to
March 31%, 2010, the financial statements were reviewed by the auditors of Tamba BV.

Tamba BV leases part of its assets from a third party, the risks and rewards incidental to ownership are largely transferred toit.
These assets are capitalised and recognised in the balance sheet as from the moment the lease contract is concluded, at the
lower of the fair value of the asset and the discounted value of the minimum lease instalments. The lease instalments payable
are broken down into repayment and interest components, based on a fixed interest rate and instalments as derived from the
underlying agreement. The lease commitments are carried under long-term liabilities exclusive of interest. The interest
componentis recognised in the profit and loss account in accordance with the lease instalments.

Revenue of finance lease contracts represents the transfer of economic ownership from Tamba BV (lessor) fo the lessee of
the asset, being an affiliate. Cost of sales represents the costs associated with the finance lease contracts. The Company's
share of the lease liability (at USD 1=3 45.13) are tabulated below:

Lease liability Zin million
Opening balance as at 1* January 2009 5,205.89
Interest 545.03
Lease Payments (1,243.40)
Downtime Provision 9.7
Closing balance as at 31" March 2010 4,517.23

The Company's 15% share of future estimated minimum lease expenses in the period and their present values are scheduled
to be as follows:

X in million)
Particulars <1Year 1-5Years >5Years Total
Future minimum lease payments: 840.77 3,047.63 3,078.09 6,966.49
Present value of minimum lease payments 798.80 2,332.09 1,410.09 4,540.98

Tamba BV has entered into a 15 year lease contract for the supply of the FPSO "Espirito Santo" with a third party. The lease
contract contains priced termination options for each of the 15 years and priced extension options for the 4 years following the
initial 15 year term. The company can exercise a priced purchase option during the term of the lease. Certain operational
elements that are priced in the contractual rates are escalated per 5 year intervals on the basis of agreed price indices.

Assetgivenon Lease:

The Subsidiary - OVL had completed the execution of the 12"X741 Kms multi product pipeline from Khartoum Refinery to Port
Sudan for the Ministry of Energy and Mining of the Government of Sudan (MEM) on Build, Own, Lease and Transfer (BOLT)
basis and handed over the same to MEM during the financial year 2005-06. The project was implemented in consortium with
Oil India Limited, Company's share being 90%.



The EPC Contractor executing the project claimed additional costs aggregating to ¥ 1,676.46 million (Previous year
T 1,894.15 million), Company's share being ¥ 1,508.82 million, (Previous year ¥ 1,704.73 million), which have not been
accepted by the Company. However, the claims have been forwarded to MEM for their approval for an aggregate amount of
receivables from MEM of ¥ 2,083.95 million (Previous year ¥ 2,354.55 million), Company's share being ¥ 1,875.56 million
(Previous Year< 2,119.10 million). Pending final approval by MEM, no revenue in this respect has been recognised. The EPC
Contractor has initiated arbitration with a claim for ¥ 1,150.24 million (USD 25.49 million) plus interest against the Company.
Pending settlement with the EPC Contractor, an amount of ¥ 1,035.22 million, being the Company's share out of ¥ 1,150.24
million has been shown as liability. OVL has served a pre-arbitral notice on MEM, Government of Sudan, which is a statutory
requirement prior to initiating any legal proceedings in Sudan.

The payment under the contract would be received over a period of 10 years with a moratorium of one year from the date of
the contracti.e. 30" June, 2004 in 18 equal semi-annual installments along with lease rental. The lease period commenced
from the date of handing over of the pipeline system and will continue till all payments by MEM are completed. Al titles in the
works and the transportation system shall vest in the Company and the title shall pass to MEM in proportion to the payments
made by MEM against total payments due to Company under the contract. Further, subject to regular payments on due dates
by MEM to the Company, MEM shall have the exclusive right to use and operate the pipeline system and the Company shall
not assign, transfer, sub-let, sub-contract, mortgage or create any rights to any third party or encumbrances or make any
disposition to any third party. Accordingly, the amount of net investment in the lease (i.e. aggregate of Minimum Lease
Payments MINUS Unearned Finance Income) is recognised and recorded as receivables under the lease. The finance
income thereon has been recognised based upon the pattemn reflecting the constant periodic rate of return on the outstanding
netinvestmentin the lease.

Thefirst nine installments due under the contract ill the reporting date have been received. The disclosure in accordance with
the Accounting Standard (AS) 19 viz. Leases is as under:

{ in million)
Particulars 31" March, 2010 31*March, 2009
Gross Net Gross Net
a) Reconciliation between the total grossinvestmentin the
lease and the present value of minimum lease payments
asatyearend
-Notlater than one year 1,139.51 886.75 1,287.47 943.03
-Laterthan one year and not later than five years 3,988.27 3,576.08 5,149.87 4,408.72
- Laterthan five years 0.00 0.00 643.74 633.59
Total 5,127.78 4,462.83 7,081.08 | 5,985.34
b) Unearned Finance Income 664.95 1,095.74
¢) Unguaranteed residual value accruing to Company's benefit Nil Nil
d) Accumulated provision for uncollectible minimum lease
payments receivable Nil Nil
e) Contingent rents recognised in the statement of profitand loss
forthe period Nil Nil
f) General description of the significant leasing arrangement As described in paraabove| As describedin para above
g)Accounting Policy followed in respect of initial direct costs As perAccounting Policy 25.2
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271.3

28.

The Subsidiary - MRPL has taken various premises under cancellable operating lease. These lease agreements are normally
renewed on expiry of the term. Lease rental expenses for 2009-10 in respect of such leases are ¥ 40.87 million (previous year
< 38.80 million).

Disclosure under Accounting Standard -22 on "Accounting for Taxes on Income”

The Net Deferred Tax Liability of the company, its subsidiaries and joint ventures as at 31 March, 2010 comprises of the
major components of Deferred Tax Liabilities and Deferred Tax Assets as under:

& in million)
Particulars Asat31" Asat31"
March, 2010 March, 2009
(i) Liabilities
Depletion of Producing Properties 133,460.20 122,470.73
Depreciation Allocated to Wells in Progress & expenses relating to NELP 7,038.26 5,294.21
Deferred Revenue Expenditure written off 2,794.64 2,211.42
Development wells-in Progress 5,908.70 6,444.16
Depreciation 20,392.46 19,710.56
Others 2,367.99 1,969.66
Deferred tax liability of ONGBV, OAAL- Subsidiary of OVL 5,394.76 5,957.26
Sub Total 177,357.01 164,058.00
(i) Assets
Depreciation 4,677.42 5,021.17
Unabsorbed losses and allowances 379.43 409.23
Dry wells written off 22,021.71 14,270.87
Provision for Non Moving Inventories 1,285.75 1,324.95
Provision for Doubtful Debts/ Claims /Advances/ Interest 3,229.18 2,887.20
Provision forAbandonment 28,882.40 29,888.16
Provision for Leave Encashment 4,629.69 4,564.62
Provision toward Additional Profit Petroleum & interest 2,550.84 2,923.48
Statutory duties unpaid u/s 43B 543.75 773.52
Others 3,948.10 8,693.01
Deferred tax asset of ONGBV,0AAL,OMEL -Subsidiary of OVL 2,296.53 1,070.96
Sub Total 74,444.80 71,827.17
Net Liability (i-ii) 102,912.21 92,230.83

The above includes Deferred Tax Asset of ¥ 164.69 million (Previous year ¥ 185.98 million) and Deferred Tax Liability of
<103,076.90 million (Previous year< 92,416.81 million) in respect of various components consolidated.

The above includes Deferred Tax Asset in respect of depreciation and carried forward losses of Petronet MHB Limited
amounting to ¥ 379.43 million (Previous year ¥ 409.23 million). In view of the approved financial restructuring scheme and
further business plans and projections, the same has been recognized and carried forward, since the managementis virtually
certain of realizing the same in due course within the statutory time frame of availability of the unabsorbed los, unabsorbed
depreciation under the Income TaxAct, 1961.



29.
29.1

Disclosure under Accounting Standard -27 on Financial Reporting of Interest in Joint Ventures:

Jointly Controlled Assets in India

In respect of certain blocks, the Company's Joint ventures (JVs) with certain bodies corporate have entered into Production
Sharing Contracts (PSCs)with Gol. Details of these blocks and JVs as on 31.03.2010 are as under:

Sl.No.| Blocks Company's PI*
A | Jointly Operated JVs
1 | Panna, Muktaand Tapti 40% (40%)
B | Non-Operated JVs
2 | Rawa 40% (40%)
3 | CY-08-90/1(PY3) 40% (40%)
4 | RJ-ON-90/1 30% (30%)
5 | CB-OS/2-Exploration Phase 25%(25%)
CB-08/2-Development Phase 50% (50%)
6 | CB-ON/7-DevelopmentPhase** 30% (30%)
7 | CB-ON/3- Development Phase™* 30% (30%)
8 | GK-0S8J-3 25% (25%)
9 | RJ-ONN-2002/1 40% (40%)
10 | AA-ONN-2002/3 70% (70%)
11 | AN-DWN-2003/2 45%(45%)
12 | KG-ONN-2003/1 51% (51%)
13 | RJ-ONN-2003/1 36%(36%)
14 | PR-OSN-2004/1 35% (35%)
15 | CB-ON/2-Devphase** 30% (Nil)
16 | RJ-ONN-2005/3 40%(Nil)
17 | AA-ONJ/2 40% (40%)
C | ONGC Operated JVs
18 | CB-0S/1 ExplPhase 32.89 % (32.89%)
CB-0S/1 Dev Phase™* 55.26% (32.89%)
19 | KG-DWN-98/2 65% (65%)
20 | KG-DWN-98/4 55% (55%)
21 | MN-DWN-98/3 60% (60%)
22 | VN-ONN-2003/1* 100% (51%)
23 | MN-OSN-2000/2 40% (40%)
24 | CY-DWN-2001/1 45% (55%)
25 | AA-ONN-2001/2 80% (80%)
26 | AA-ONN-2001/3 85% (85%)
27 | KK-DWN-2002/2 80% (80%)
28 | KK-DWN-2002/3 80% (80%)
29 | KG-DWN-2002/1 70% (70%)
30 | MN-DWN-2002/1 36% (36%)
31 | CY-ONN-2002/2 60% (60%)
32 | CB-ONN-2002/1** 100% (70%)
33 | AA-ONN-2002/4 90% (90%)
34 | MN-DWN-2002/2 75% (75%)
35 | GS-OSN-2003/1 51% (51%)
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36 | KK-DWN-2004/1 45% (45%)
37 | CY-DWN-2004/1 70% (70%)
38 | CY-DWN-2004/2 70% (70%)
39 | CY-DWN-2004/3 70% (70%)
40 | CY-DWN-2004/4 70% (70%)
41 | CY-PR-DWN-2004/1 70% (70%)
42 | CY-PR-DWN-2004/2 70% (70%)
43 | KG-DWN-2004/1 70% (70%)
44 | KG-DWN-2004/2 60% (60%)
45 | KG-DWN-2004/3 70% (70%)
46 | KG-DWN-2004/5 50% (50%)
47 | KG-DWN-2004/6 60% (60%)
48 | KG-OSN-2004/1 55% (55%)
49 | CB-ONN-2004/1 50% (50%)
50 | CB-ONN-2004/2 50% (50%)
51 | CB-ONN-2004/3 40% (40%)
52 | CB-ONN-2004/4 50% (50%)
53 | CY-ONN-2004/1 80% (80%)
54 | CY-ONN-2004/2 80% (80%)
55 | MB-OSN-2005-1 80% (80% )
56 | MB-OSN-20055 70% (70% )
57 | MB-OSN-20056 80% (80%)
58 | AN-DWN-2005/1 90% (90% )
59 | KG-DWN-2005/1 70% (70%)
60 | KK-DWN-20052 90% (90%)
61 | KG-OSN-2005/1 60% (60%)
62 | KG-OSN-2005/2 80% (80%)
83 | Raniganj 74% (74%)
64 | Jharia 90% (90%)
65 | NK-CBM-2001/1 80% (80%)
66 | BK-CBM-2001/1 80% (80%)
67 | CB-ONN-2005/4 51% (Ni)
68 | CB-ONN-2005/10 51% (Nil)
69 | PR-ONN-2005/1 80% (Nil)
70 | WB-ONN-2005/4 75% (Nil)
71 | AA-ONN-2005/1 60% (Nil)
72 | GV-ONN-2005/3 80% (Nil)
73 | HF-ONN-2001/1 65% (100%)
74 | CB-ONN-2001/1* 100% (70% )

* PI - Participating Interest

**Approval towards assignment of Pl is awaited from GOI.




29.11

29.1.2

2913

2914

29.1.5

29.1.6

List of the blocks surrendered during the year are given below:-

Sl. No. Joint Ventures /PSCs Company's PI*
1 WB-OSN-2000/1 85%
2 GV-ONN-2003/1 51%
3 RJ-ONN-2001/1 30%
4 KK-OSN-2001/2 100%
5 KK-OSN-2001/3 100%
*PlI - Participating Interest
The Financial position of the JV/NELP blocks are as under: @ in million)
No.of JVs/ Assets | Liabilities Income |Expenditure |  Profit/(-)
NELP Blocks Loss before
tax
NELP Block-100% PI* 19 1,822.27 165.89 0.11 714944 | -7,149.33
(19) [ (1,126.02) (638.60) (0.08) | (13,668.21) | (-13,668.13)
Blocks with other partners 74 | 90,350.03 | 29,287.34 | 51,148.14| 39,842.90  11,305.24
(67) | (67,655.63) | (32,876.06) | (49,971.59) | (40,258.55) | (9,713.04)
Surrenderedfill date 31 219.26 6,184.08 0.28 561640 | -5,616.12
(26) (155.22) | (1,902.51) (0.10) | (3,147.64) | (-3147.54)
Total 124 | 92,391.56 | 35,637.31 | 51,148.53| 52,608.74 | -1,460.21
(112) | (68,936.87) | (35,417.17) | (49,971.77) | (57,074.40) | (-7,102.63)

The financial statements of 117 (Previous year 93) out of 124 (Previous year 112) JVs/NELP as per para no. 29.1.2 have
been incorporated in the accounts to the extent of Company's participating interest in assets, liabilities, income and
expenditure profit/(loss) before tax on the basis of statements certified in accordance with production sharing contract and
the same has been adjusted for changes as per accounting policy No. 9.1 in Schedule-26.

In respect of balance 7 (Previous year 19) JVs/NELP assets, liabilities, income and expenditure amounting to ¥ 69.80 million
(Previous year ¥ 32.93 million), 143.98 million (Previous year ¥ 921.25 million), T 152.55 million (Previous year ¥ 0.06
million) and ¥ 812.85 million (Previous year ¥ 478.69 million) respectively have been incorporated on the basis of uncertified
statements prepared under the production sharing contracts and the same has been adjusted for changes as per accounting
policy No. 9.1 in Schedule-26.

In respect of Farm Out agreements, where necessary approval from Central Govemment has been obtained during the
year, a sum of ¥ 1,196.19 million (previous year ¥ 4,979.55 million) has been considered recoverable from the farmees
towards the share of expenditure incurred from the effective date of the farm out agreement and has been credited to
Miscellaneous Receipts amounting to ¥ 1,049.66 million (previous year ¥ 4,976.82 million) in respect of earlier year and the
balance current year expenditure has been credited to respective natural heads.

The Company has given an undertaking to Power Finance Corporation (PFC), for an additional funding up to ¥ 2,234.00
million in respect of ONGC Tripura Power Co. Limited (OTPC) for cost overrun, if any.
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Company's share in Joint Ventures (Outside India) through Subsidiary - OVL.:

SLNo.| Name ofthe Project and Country of Operation Company's participating
share (%)
1. | Block06.1Project, Vietnam, Offshore 45% (45%)
2. | Block1a, 1b, 2a,2b &4 (GNOP) Project, 25% (25%)
Sudan, Onshore (Through ONGC Nile Ganga B.V)
3. | Sakhalin-1 Project, Russia, Offshore 20% (20%)
4. | AFPCProject 38.75%(38.75%)
Syria, Onshore (Through ONGC Nile Ganga B.V)
5. | MECL, Colombia, Onshore 50% (50%)
(Through ONGC Amazon Alaknanda Limited)
6. | Block5AProject, Sudan, Onshore 24.125% (24.125%)
7. | Block BC-10 Project, 15% (15%)
Brazil, Offshore (Through ONGC Nile GangaB.V)
8. | OOO Imperial Frac Service 50% (50%)
(Through Jarpeno Ltd)
9. | SanCristobal Project, Venezuela 40% (40%)
(Through ONGC Nile GangaB.V.)
10. | BlockA-1Project, Myanmar, Offshore 20% (20%)
11. | BlockA-3 Project, Myanmar, Offshore 20% (20%)
12. | FarsiBlockProject, Iran, Offshore 40% (40%)
13. | NC-189 Project, Libya, Onshore 49% (49%)
14. | Block XXIV Project, Syria, Onshore 60% (60%)
15. | Block 6 North Ramadan Project, Egypt, Offshore 70% (70%)
16. | Block2, Joint DevelopmentZone, 13.5%(13.5%)
Nigeria/Sao Tome Principe (STP), Offshore
(Through ONGC Narmada Limited)
17. | Block25-29,35(Part} & 36 Project, Cuba, Offshore 30% (30%)
18. | Khartoum-Port Sudan Pipeline Project, Sudan 90% (30%)
19. | BlockNEMED in Offshore, Egypt 33% (33%)
20. | Block RC-8, Colombia 40% (40%)
21. | Block RC-9, Colombia 50% (50%)
22. | Block RC-10, Colombia 50% (50%)
23. | Block BM-SEAL-4,Brazil. (Through ONGC Nile Ganga B.V) 25% (25%)
24, | Block BM-BAR-1, Brazil (Through ONGC Nile GangaB.V) 25% (25%)
25. | Block SSJUN-7, Colombia 50% (50%)
26. | OPL-279, Nigeria (Through ONGC Mittal Energy Limited) 22.74% & OMEL 45.5%
(22.74% & OMEL 45.5%)
27. | OPL-285, Nigeria (Through ONGC Mittal Energy Limited) 32.15% & OMEL 64.33%
(32.15% & OMEL 64.33%)




29.21 Company's share in JointVentures

The Company, its Subsidiaries' and the Joint Venture Company's share of assets, liabilities, income and expenses in the Joint
Ventures as furnished by the Operator has been incorporated in the financial statements as given below:

 in million)
NEt 3 | Exploratory Cash
. e apita and and Expenditure*
NetFixed " : Current
Project Asls):ats Producing |  Workin | Development :ssets Bank| Liabilities| Income| (Including
Property | Progress Wellsin Balance depreciation)
Progress
A. Audited as of
the Reporting
Date
Block5A,Sudan | 2,014.03| 5,332.98| 1,447.25 1,308.12 ( 1,177.64 | 251.57| 436.33( 2,962.58| 1,900.32
Block 5B, Sudan 3.82 - - - - - (42.05)
Block 1a, 1b, 753.63 | 18,813.42| 2,141.11 4,115.81 [ 16,455.88 | 4,725.59| 10,382.25 | 51,486.02| 40,312.04
2a,2b &4, Sudan
AFPC, Syria 074 | 240227 - -| 5,971.26 4.24| 5406.35| 21,558.53| 19,917.71
BlockBC-10& 12,037.28 | 14,753.16 - 1,009.36 | 3,165.87 | 73249 811.58( 2,413.55| (558.23)
Exploratory
Blocks, Brazil
PIVSA(San 539.83| 1,632.54 579.79 -(15,396.81 | 212.27| 6,034.27 | 14,250.20| 9,731.86
Cristobal),
Venezuela
TambaBV - - - -| 14433 | 814.61| 5415.54 36.09 427.69
MECL 3,657.97 | 3,846.89 66.22 1,820.10 | 2,282.47 | 2,522.49| 1,601.89| 7,113.25| 3,666.22
LLC Imperial
Frac Service, 32.27 53.48 - - 47.21 2.03 85.30 (14342 135.45
(Jarpeno)
Block2, JDZ, 18.95 - 513.81 312.76 82.45 - 9.66 8.88 126.20
Nigeria (ONL)
Farsi Block Iran 041 - - 1,444.66 0.7 1.63| 168.27 0.37 24.12
Sudan Pipeline - - - -| 4,470.76 8.02| 1491.79 325.79 (283.40)
Block 06.1 1,659.59 | 2,988.33| 2,53.17 1541 1,575.83 118 928.06( 7,413.68) 3,874.65
Vietnam
Total (A) 20,718.52 | 49,823.07| 5,001.35 10,026.22 | 50,771.22 | 9,276.12| 32,771.29 107,425.52 79,232.58
B. Audited as of
31 Dec. 2009
Sakhalin 1 24,347.64 | 37,000.11| 25,497.72 1,280.84 [ 11,625.42 | 129.02( 16,185.27 | 38,907.22| 21,577.40
Russia#
Block 6 North
Ramadan, Egypt 3.98 - 33.50 1,204.23 67.90 - 10.59 - 78.28
Block RC-8, 0.03 - - - -| 1032 21.02 - 52.66
Colombia
Block RC-10, 0.04 - - - - - 38.24 - 91.64
Colombia
Blocks 25-29, 35 - - 346.91 121.74 62.43 - 10.31 - 48.22
(Part) & 36, Cuba
Total (B) 24,351.69 | 37,000.11| 25,878.13 2,606.81 |11,755.75 | 139.34| 16,265.43 | 38,907.22| 21,848.20
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C. Unaudited

BlockA-1, 5.79 - | 1,236.07 | 1,096.69 | 103.80 -| 10218 - 55.78
Myanmar

BlockA-3, 4,06 - 599.70 | 675.58 25.99 - 37.26 - 35.75
Myanmar

Block XXIV, Syria 7.51 - - | 449.15 36.83 -| 106.26 2.70 (2.84)
Block NC-189, 1.66 - - - 37.84 - 30.20 - 514.95
Libya

Block NEMED, - - - | 2,788.67 58.02 - 27.95 - 69.38
Egypt.

Block RC-9, - - - - - - 0.03 0.64 181.57
Colombia

Block MTPN, - - - - 10.61 - 59.62 - 470.95
Congo

Block SSJN-7, - - - - - - - - 31.40
Colombia

Total (C) 19.02 - | 1,835.77 | 5,010.09 | 273.09 -| 363.50 3.34| 1,356.94
Grand Total 45,089.23 | 86,823.18 (32,715.25 (17,643.12 |62,800.06 |9,415.46 | 49,400.22 | 146,336.08 |102,437.72
(A+B+C)

*Represents expenditure as per joint venture statement. In the accounts of the Company, the amount is reflected after netting
off as perthe Accounting Standard (AS) 27 viz. Financial Reporting of interests in Joint Ventures.

#Amounts for the period Jan-March 2010 for Sakhalin are provisional.

The Company's share of assets, liabilities, income and expenses have been converted into the reporting currency at the
average exchange rates over the period for which the details are provided by the Operators. Generally the details are
provided by the Operators on monthly basis exceptin respect of Sakhalin-1, Russia Project, where the details are provided by
the Operator on quarterly basis.

Title to Fixed Assets under Production Sharing Agreements

The Company, the Subsidiaries and Joint Venture Company in consortium with other partners (Consortium) carry on their
business in respect of exploration, development and production of hydrocarbons under agreements with the host
governments. In several of these agreements governing activities in the fields / projects, the agreements provide that the title
to the fixed assets and other ancillary installations shall pass to host government or its nominated entities either upon
acquisition / first use of such assets or upon 100% recovery of such costs through allocation of "Cost Oil* and "Cost Gas" or
upon relinquishment of the relevant contract areas or termination of the relevant agreement. However, as per the terms of the
agreements, the Consortium and/ or Operator has the custody of all such assets and is entitled to use, free of charge all such
assets for Petroleum Operations till the full term of the respective agreements. The Consortium also bears the custody and
maintenance of such assets and all risks of accidental loss and damage and all costs necessary to maintain such assets and
to replace or repair such damage or loss. Under the circumstances, such assets are kept in the records of the Company,
Subsidiaries or the Joint Venture Company, as the case may be, till the full term of the respective agreements.



29.3

29.3.1

30.
30.1

30.2

3.

32
32.1
3211

Jointly Controlled Entities:

The Company's share in assets, liabilities, income, expenses, contingent liabilities and capital commitments of Jointly
Controlled Entities (excluding for Dahej SEZ Limited for which Financial Statements have not been received):

X in million)
Description Asat31" Asat31*
March, 2010 March, 2009
i) | Assets

- | Longtermassets 29,786.13 19,408.94
- | Investments 1,064.57 1,541.89
- | Currentassets 4,637.39 4,781.05

ii) | Liabilities
- | Currentliabilities and provisions 5,804.74 3,042.16
- | Otherliabilities 17,786.44 13,121.29
i) | Deferedtaxliabilities 241.83 154.42
iv) | Income 14,674.79 11,433.18
v) | Expenses 15,130.93 11,379.06
vi) | Contingentliabilities 1,815.24 2,196.99
vii) | Capital commitments 46,051.70 36,235.60

Disclosure under Accounting Standard - 28 on "Impairment of Assets”

The Company is engaged mainly in the business of oil and gas exploration and production where each cost centre used for
depreciation (depletion) purpases is identified as independent Cash Generating Unit (CGU) for assessing the impairment in
Producing Properties and fixed assets etc. on the basis of 'value in use'. The Company has tested all its CGUs for impairment
as on 31.03.2010 by applying discount rates of 17.31% (Previous year 16.61 %) for Rupee ftransactions and 13.07 %
(Previous year 13.40 %} for crude oil and value added products revenue measured in USD as on 31.03.2010.

During the year, ¥ 553.45 million (Previous year ¥ 1,240.59 million) was provided as an additional impairment loss in respect
of certain CGUs. Further, impairment loss to the extent of ¥ 986.17 million (Previous year ¥ 4,350.91 million) has been
reversedin respectof DVP Jorhatand Ratna CGUs due toincreased sale price and accretionin reserves.

Disclosure under Accounting Standard -29 on "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets™:
Movementin Provisions - Others
For Court cases, arbitration and others, where the timing of expected outflows is upon seftlement of the proceedings:

(% in million)
Particulars 2009-10 2008-09
Opening Balance 9,453.55 764.71
Add: Provision made during the year 93.20 8,778.72
Less: Provision written back/ reclassified/ reduction during the year 1,300.45 89.88
Closing Balance 8,246.30 9,453.55

Disclosures under Schedule Vito the Companies Act, 1956 :-
Capital Commitment not provided for:-
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account:-

) In respect of the Company, its subsidiaries and Joint Venture Entities - ¥ 333,307.98 million (Previous year ¥ 205,833.96
million).

ii) In respect of Joint Ventures - ¥ 6,450.55 million (Previous year ¥5,569.32 million).
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32.21

32.2.2
32.2.3

3224
32.2.5

Estimated amount of Minimum Work Programme (MWP) committed under various ‘Production Sharing Contracts'
with Government of India/ Nominated Blocks:-

In respect of NELP blocks in which the Company has 100% participating interest - ¥ 33,419.14 million (Previous year ¥
21,016.72 million).

Inrespect Nominated Blocks ¥ 1,128.13 million (Previous year Nil).
Inrespect of NELP blocks in Joint Ventures -X 90,277.51 million (Previous year 64,397.15 million).

Contingent Liabilities:
Claims against the Company/ disputed demands not acknowledged as debt :-
& in million)
Asat31" Asat31"
March, 2010 March, 2009
I| InrespectofCompany:
i.  Incometaxmatters 17,012.68 22,211.09
ii. Excise Duty matters 2,518.89 1,837.91
ji. ~ Custom Duty matters 1,576.29 1,571.68
iv.  Royalty 18,849.79 360.39
v. Cess 12.76 4,92
vi. SalesTax 21,324.28 8,956.38
vii.  Octroi 66.89 66.89
vii. AP Mineral Bearing Land Tax 1,171.84 922.92
ix. Specified Land Tax (Assam) 2,274.50 1,646.06
X.  Claims of contractors in Arbitration/Court 21,774.50 64,348.30
X.  inrespectof other matters 20,071.51 6,907.04
Sub Total 106,653.93 108,833.58
Il Inrespectof JointVentures:

i.  Income tax matters 8.91 8.91
ii.  Excise Duty matters 32242 -
jii.  Custom Duty matters 3,457.89 3,262.74
iv.  Royalty - 12.39
v. Cess 10.64 10.64
vi. SalesTax 2,959.13 2,941.15
vii.  Claims of contractors in Arbitration/Court 740.73 471.74
Viii. inrespectof other matters 4,898.72 550.41
Sub Total 12,398.44 7,257.98
Total 119,052.37 116,091.56

Contingent liabilities, if any, in respect of JVs where OVL is non-operator, is not ascertainable except where the Operator
has intimated. In respect of Petronet MHB Limited, there are 173 cases (previous year 162 cases) regarding enhancement
of land compensation pending with Bangalore Rural District Court and Hassan District Court and Mangalore District Court
the amounts are not ascertainable at present.

The above claims / demands are at various stages of appeal and in the opinion of the Company are not tenable.

Bank Guarantees given by the Company ¥ 5,079.01 million (Previous year ¥ 1,542.65 million) including ¥ 1,142.37 million
(Previous year< 1,495.11 million) for NELP Blocks where the Company has 100% participating interest (PI).

Bank Guarantees in respect of Joint ventures -¥ 7,082.46 million (Previous year¥ 4,947.94 million).
Foreign Letter of credit given by Subsidiary OVL -3 4,647.37 million (Previous year< 2,353.99 million).
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32.31

32.3.2

32.3.3

32.34

32.35
32.3.5.1

Corporate Guarantees executed by the Company on behalf of its wholly owned subsidiary, ONGC Videsh Limited
(OVL)and ONGC Nile Ganga BV (wholly owned subsidiary of OVL).

Guarantees executed for financial obligations:

i) Amount of Guarantee ¥ 38,043.51 million (Previous year¥ 57,062.28 million).
ii) Amount Outstanding ¥ 34,932.70 million {Previous year< 56,447.65 million).
Performance Guarantees executed under the contracts:

i) The Company has issued Performance Guarantee in respect of concessionary contract for Block BC-10, Brazil and
Blocks BM-S-73 and BM-ES-42 on behalf of ONGC Campos Ltda (OCL). The Company is confident that OCL will be
able to honor its obligations.

ii) ONGBV has given performance guarantee to ANP, the regulatory authority in Brazil, favoring ONGC Campos Ltda
(OCL) for BC-10 Project where OCL has a 15% participating interest and Shell Brazil is the operator. OCL has paid its
cash calls under the project. The total financial investment budgeted for the BC-10 Project from 2009 onwards is
USD 3,568.16 million (equivalent to ¥ 161,031.06 million) out of which OCL's 15% share works out to USD 535.22
million (equivalentto< 24,154.66 million).

Corporate Guarantees executed by the Company on behalf of its subsidiary, MRPL:
i) Amount of Guarantee ¥ 16,246.80 million (Previous year ¥ 18,356.40 million).
i) Amount Outstanding< 4,828.91 million (Previous year< 3,295.49 million).

Corporate Guarantee executed by Subsidiary - OVL

The Company has issued Corporate Guarantee in respect of Blocks AD-2, AD-3 & AD-9, Myanmar to Myanmar Oil & Gas
Enterprise (MOGE) for an amount of USD 132 million (equivalent to ¥ 5,957.16 million) towards its commitment to discharge
all obligations under the PSC.

Guarantees given by ONGBV (a subsidiary of OVL)

ONGBYV has given guarantee to State Bank of India for granting of guarantee facilities to ONGC Mittal Energy Limited
(OMEL). Under the said guarantee facility to OMEL, SBI London has issued performance bonds in favour of Nigerian
National Petroleum Corporation. The obligation of the Company is limited to 51% of the guaranteed amounts. As on
31.03.2009, the outstanding guarantee obligation of the company was USD 56.35 million (equivalent to ¥ 2,543.08 million).



32.4 DETAILS OF EXPENDITURE

Details of expenditure incurred during the year on Production, Selling and Distribution, Operation and Maintenance of Pipelines,
Exploration, Drilling and Development.

® in million)
2009-10 2008-09
Manpower Cost:
(@) Salaries, Wages, Ex-gratia, efc. 47,501.86 36,636.24
(b)  Contribution to Provident and other funds 3,397.90 2,223.62
(¢}  Provision for gratuity (465.80) 1,203.79
(d) Provisionforleave encashment 3,521.74 3,628.52
(e) Provision for post retirement medical & terminal benefits 1,521.67 2,039.12
(fy  Staffwelfare expenses 4,711.20 4,397.44
Sub Total 60,188.57 50,128.73
Consumption of Raw Materials, Store and Spares 275,557.23 3,02,509.55
Cess 54,547.67 55,788.33
Natural Calamity Contingent Duty - Crude Oil 1,061.86 1,081.40
Excise Duty 44,291.53 47,779.76
Royalty 103,560.48 111,570.44
Sales Tax 3,734.18 7,839.83
Octroi/BPT 4,966.61 4,4684.74
Service Tax 919.14 2,511.35
Education cess 1,711.65 1,798.34
Rent 2,220.14 1,554.38
Rates and taxes 562.28 491.05
Hire charges of equipments and vehicles 116,683.74 87,545.48
Power, fuel and water charges 2,814.94 3,021.56
Contractual drilling, logging, workover etc. 115,529.46 69,970.28
Contractual security 2,586.76 1,751.16
Repairs to building 1,341.35 651.74
Repairs to plantand machinery 2,355.66 2,381.39
Otherrepairs 3,763.38 3,753.16
Insurance 2,592.99 2,039.83
Other Operating Expenditure 18,654.53 11,372.64
Miscellaneous expenditure 11,078.00 15,874.09
Exchange Variation - 11,715.95
830,722.15 797,595.18
Less:
Allocated to exploration, development drilling, capital jobs 215,054.30 141,118.82
recoverables, etc.
Excise duty 4414277 48,245.55
Prior Period Adjustment (220.73) (1,959.96)
Production, Transportation, Selling and Distribution Expenditure etc. 571,745.81 610,190.77

Other operating expenditure above includes the expenses in respect of Sakhalin-1, Russia project, where the above details are
not made available by the Operator.



32,5 MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION:

 in million)

REMUNERATION PAID OR PAYABLE TO DIRECTORS 2009-10 2008-09
Functional Directors :

Salaries and Allowances 51.54 29.71
Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 292 1.68
Other Benefits and Perquisites * 26.92 16.88
Independent Directors :

Sitting Fees 4,24 4.02
Total 85.62 52.29

#Includes adhoc advance paid on account of pay revision due from 01.01.2007.

* Other Benefits and Perquisites includes Performance Related Payments, incentives, commission provision for gratuity &
leave encashment but does not include cost of medical treatment availed from the Corporation's own medical facilities as
the amountis not determinable.

32.6 AUDITORS' REMUNERATION:

(% in million)
2009-10 2008-09
Audit Fees 10.31 9.50
For Certification work etc. 749 6.31
Traveling and Out of Pocket Expenses 13.68 15.23
31.48 31.04

Company's share of Proved Reserves on the geographical basis is as under:-

33. Disclosure under Guidance Note on "0il & Gas Producing Activities" (approved by Reserve Estimates Committee).

Details Crude Oil (MMT)* Gas Total Oil Equivalent
(Billion Cubic Meter) (MTOE)*
As at As at As at As at Asa As at
31.03.10 | 31.03.09 | 31.03.10 | 31.03.09 | 31.03.10 | 31.03.09
Offshore Opening 222.710 | 226.420 | 196.712 | 198.011 419.422 | 424431
Addition 19.620 14.910 33.624 | 18.221 53.244 | 33.131
Production 18.060 18.620 19.819 | 19.520 37.879 | 38.140
Closing 224260 | 222.710 | 210.517 | 196.712 | 434.777 | 419.422
Onshore Opening 191.760 | 190.340 | 148.125 | 149.206 | 339.885 | 339.546
Addition 5.810 8.990 9.678 4.627 15488 | 13.617
Production 7.660 7.570 5.576 5.708 13.236 | 13.278
Closing 189.900 | 191.760 | 152.227 | 148.125 | 342.127 | 339.885
Block 06.1, Opening 0.752 0.623 14.756 | 12.991 15508 | 13.614
Vietnam Addition - 0.174 - 3.613 - 3.787
Adjustment - (0.001) - - -| (0.001)
Production 0.042 0.046 1.967 1.848 2.009 1.894
Closing 0.7 0.752 12.789 | 14.756 13.499 | 15.508
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Sakhalin-1, Opening 37.946 39.187 70.147 | 70.404 | 108.093 | 109.59
Russia Addition 0.535 0.612 0.236 0.114 0.771 0.726
Production 1.532 1.853 0.39 0.372 1.922 2.225
Closing 36.949 37.946 69.993 | 70.146 | 106.942 (108.092
Block 1a, 1b, Opening 20.22 22.304 - - 20.22 | 22.304
2a,2b &4 Addition 1.762 0.363 - - 1.762 0.363
(GNOP), Sudan Adjustment 0.025 0.004 - - 0.025 0.004
Production 2.126 2.443 - - 2.126 2.443
Closing 19.831 20.220 - - 19.831 | 20.220
Block 5A, Opening 6.584 5.848 - - 6.584 5.848
Sudan Addition 0.234 1.016 - - 0.234 1.016
Adjustment - (0.005) - - - | (0.005)
Production 0.247 0.285 - - 0.247 0.285
Closing 6.571 6.584 - - 6.571 6.584
AFPC Opening 2.988 3.135 - - 2,988 3.135
Syria Addition 0.669 0.664 - - 0.669 0.664
Adjustment - (0.001) - - - | (0.001)
Production 0.718 0.812 - - 0.718 0.812
Closing 2.939 2.988 - - 2,939 2.988
MECL, Opening 3.729 2.736 - - 3.729 2.736
Columbia Addition 0.062 1.365 - - 0.062 1.365
Adjustment 0.001 0.002 - - 0.001 0.002
Production 0.409 0.370 - - 0.409 0.370
Closing 3.381 3.729 - - 3.381 3.729
BC-10, Opening 1.946 1.909 0.601 0.605 2547 2514
Brazil Addition - 0.038 - - - 0.038
Adjustment 0.149 0.001 0.038 0.004 0.187 0.005
Production 0.192 - - - 0.192 -
Closing 1.605 1.946 0.563 0.601 2.168 2.547
Imperial Opening 18.946 - 3.901 - 22.847 -
Energy, Russia Addition - 19.022 1.091 3.901 1.091 | 22.923
Adjustment 1.527 - - - 1.527 -
Production 0.543 0.076 - - 0.543 0.076
Closing 16.876 18.946 4.992 3.901 21.868 | 22.847
Block-24, Syria Opening - - - - - -
Addition 1.815 1.344 - - 1.815 1.344
Adjustment - 0.889 - - - 0.889
Production - - - - - -
Closing 1.815 0.455 - - 1.815 0.455




North Opening 0.455 - - 0.455 -
Ramadan Addition - 7.931 - - 7.931
Production - 0.671 - - 0.671
Closing 0.455 7.260 - 0.455 7.26
PIVSA, Opening 7.26 - - 7.26 -
Venezuela Addition - - - - -
Adjustment 0.03 - - 0.03 -
Production 0.704 - - 0.704 -
Closing 6.526 - - 6.526 -

33.2 Company's share of Proved Developed Reserves on the geographical basis is as under:

Details Crude Oil (MMT)* Gas Total Oil Equivalent
(Billion Cubic Meter) (MTOE)*™

Asat As at As at As at Asa As at
31.0310 | 31.03.09 | 31.03.10 | 31.03.09 | 31.03.10 | 31.03.09
Offshore Opening 176.440 182.900 | 126.770 | 122.892 303.210 | 305.792
Addition 15.060 12.160 | 22.910 23.398 37.970 35.558
Production 18.060 18.620 19.819 19.520 37.879 38.140
Closing 173.440 176.440 | 129.860 | 126.770 303.300 | 303.210
Onshore Opening 148.490 148.140 | 111.069 | 112.317 259.559 | 260.457
Addition 5.39 8.580 5.644 4.961 11.034 13.541
Production 7.61 8.230 5.535 6.209 13.145 14.439
Closing 146.26 148.490 | 111.178 111.069 257.438 | 259.559
Block 06.1, Opening 0.743 0.616 11.201 9.436 11.944 10.052
Vietnam Addition - 0.174 - 3.613 - 3.787
Adjustment - 0.001 - - - 0.001
Production 0.042 0.046 1.967 1.848 2.009 1.894
Closing 0.701 0.743 9.234 11.201 9.935 11.944
Sakhalin-1, Opening 11.146 10.033 12.093 12.466 23.239 22.499
Russia Addition - 2.966 0.001 - 0.001 2.966
Adjustment - - - 0.001 - 0.001
Production 1.532 1.853 0.39 0.372 1.922 2.225
Closing 9.614 11.146 11.704 12.093 21.318 23.239

u]gi={s3 239



Block 1a, 1b, Opening 7.83 14.035 - - 7.83 14.035
2a,2b&4 Addition 1.426 - - - 1.426 -
(GNOP), Adjustment 0.025 3.762 - - 0.025 3.762
Sudan Production 2.126 2.443 - - 2.126 2.443
Closing 7.105 7.830 - - 7.105 7.830
Block 5A, Opening 4.234 4.560 - - 4.234 4.560
Sudan Addition 0.009 - - - 0.009 -
Adjustment - 0.041 - - - 0.041
Production 0.247 0.285 - - 0.247 0.285
Closing 3.996 4,234 - - 3.996 4,234
AFPC, Opening 2.693 2.743 - - 2.693 2.743
Syria Addition 0.741 0.762 - - 0.741 0.762
Adjustment - - - - - -
Production 0.718 0.812 - - 0.718 0.812
Closing 2.716 2.693 - - 2.716 2.693
MECL, Opening 3.041 2.736 - - 3.041 2.736
Columbia Addition - 0.678 - - - 0.678
Adjustment 0.539 0.003 - - 0.539 0.003
Production 0.409 0.370 - - 0.409 0.370
Closing 2.094 3.041 - - 2.094 3.041
Imperial Opening 2.648 - - - 2.648 -
Energy, Addition 1.892 2.724 - - 1.892 2.724
Russia Production 0.543 0.076 - - 0.543 0.076
Closing 3.997 2.648 - - 3.997 2.648
BC-10,Brazil Opening - - - - - -
Addition 1.363 - 0.41 - 1.773 -
Adjustment - - 0.001 - 0.001 -
Production 0.192 - - - 0.192 -
Closing 1.171 - 0.409 - 1.58 -
PIVSA, Opening 0.056 - - - 0.056 -
Venezuela Addition 3.752 0.727 - - 3.752 0.727
Adjustment 0.03 - - - 0.03 -
Production 0.704 0.671 - - 0.704 0.671
Closing 3.074 0.056 - - 3.074 0.056

*  Crude Oil includes oil condensate and does not include 0.940 MMT (previous year 0.842 MMT) of Condensate due to line condensation and 198.6 MMm®
(previous year 159 MMm?®) of CSU off gas.

**  MTOE denotes "Million Tonne Oil Equivalent” and for calculating Oil equivalent of Gas, 1000 M® of Gas has been taken to be equal to 1 MT of Crude Oil.
Variationsin totals, if any, are due to internal summation and rounding off.



34.

35.

36.

37.
38.
39.

The figures in respect of Subsidiaries/Joint Venture Companies have been regrouped/rearranged based upon the details
obtained from the management of the subsidiaries/Joint Venture Companies wherever their audited accounts did not provide
the breakup details required for consolidated financial statements.

In view of the several subsidiaries and Joint Ventures of the company, with each entity operating under different regulatory
requirements in different countries and adopting different policies and discloser, the information requirement under
Accounting Standards(AS) -15 on Employee Benefit is not disclosed in Consolidated Financial statement due fo
impracticability :

Disclosure requirement is respect of subsidiaries/Joint Ventures companies have been disclosed to the extent available from
their audited/unaudited accounts.

Previous year's figures have been regrouped/ reclassified, wherever necessary, to conform to current year's classification.
Figures in parenthesis as given in these Notes to the Accounts relate to previous year.

Figures in the accounts are stated in ¥ Million except those in parenthesis which would otherwise have become NIL on
account of rounding off.



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2010

& in million)
Year Ended Year Ended
31st March, 31st March,
2010 2009
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Profit before tax and extraordinary items 304,413.64 311,037.17
Adjustments For:
Prior Period Items (400.61) (105.75)
Recouped Costs
(Represented by Depreciation, Depletion and Amortisation)
Gross Amount 187,173.65 154,245.70
Cash Outflows (98,545.32) (66,454.37)
88,628.33 87,791.33
- Interest on Borrowings 5,009.44 2,368.48
- Foreign Exchange Loss/(Gain) (1,056.90) 2,973.06
- Provision for Gratuity 25.28 879.70
- Provision for Leave Encashment 533.84 2,504.49
- Provision for AS-15 Benefits 1,544.63 2,074.71
- Provision for Pay Revision (116.46) 48.48
- Miscellaneous Expenditure written off 0.03 -
- Profit/Loss on sale of fixed assets 54.15 -
- Other Provision and Write offs 5,285.75 14,702.41
- Interest Income (17,746.59) (33,969.49)
- Excess Provision written Back (913.03) (1,473.36)
- Deffered Government Grant (5.29) (7.02)
- Dividend Received (4,238.87) (1,353.57)
- Prepayment Loan Benefit - (18.99)
- Profit on sale of investment (9.05) (3.89)
76,594.65 76,410.59
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 381,008.29 387,447.76
Adjustments for:-
- Debtors 1,091.84 (6,238.58)
- Loans and Advances (12,337.85) (29,233.62)
- Other Current Assets (16.98) 59.33
- Deferred Revenue Expenditure/ Miscellaneous Exp. W/off (2,641.23) 13.59
- Inventories (17,271.39) 7,626.64
- Trade Payable and Other Liabilities 14,980.85 (16,194.76) 32,597.31 4,824.67
Cash generated from Operations 364,813.53 392,272.43
Direct Taxes Paid (Net of tax refund) (77,483.72) (102,442.61)
Cash Flow before prior period and Extra ordinary ltems 287,329.81 289,829.82
Prior period items 500.75 146.98
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 'A’ 287,830.56 289,976.80
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of Fixed Assets (Net) (123,123.39) (102,136.44)
Exploratory and Development Drilling (89,407.83) (114,253.40)
Purchase of Investments (31,410.34) (774.76)
Sale of Investments 8,925.07 9,792.68
Loans to Public Sector Undertakings and Other Bodies Comporate 320.60 49258
Deposit with Public Sector Undertakings 5,000.00 (20,000.00)
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment 6,009.95 (78,800.42)
Share of Dividend/Profit in Associate Company 24,50 98.83
Investment in Associate Company (430.59) (150.00)
Adjustment of Preoperative expenditure (6,856.02) 65.43
Advance to Sudapet & Carry Finances 257.17 1,633.04
Dividend Received from Others 1,595.25 1,254.73
Extraordinary ltem-Insurance Claims Received - 657.73
Tax paid on Excess of insurance Claim over book value - (223.56)
Interest Received 26,727.67 33,646.17
Tax paid on Interest Income (8,650.81) (13,013.61)
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities "B’ {211,018.77) 281,711.00



 in million)
Year Ended Year Ended
31st March, 31st March,
2010 2009
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issue of Share Capital 0.19 -
Advance Against Equity 2,874.43 -
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Term Loans/Commercial Papers (3,038.74) 49,675.61
Dividend Paid (69,377.54) (69,373.97)
Tax on Dividend (11,403.91) (11,655.94)
Interest Paid (1,781.63 (1,537.89)
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities 'C’ (82,727.20 (32,892.19)
Net increase/(decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) {5,915.41) {24,626.39)
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 1st April, 2009 (Closing Balance) 225,883.48 250,486.80
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 31st March, 2010 (Closing Balance) 219,968.07 225,860.41
Notes:

1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method' as set out in the Accounting Standard-3 on Cash Flow Statements
issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

2. Adjustments have not been made to "Purchase of Fixed Assets" (Investing Activities), on account of increase/decrease in Capital Creditors. The
impact of the above is not readily ascertainable.

3. Cash and Cash equivalents represent:-

(X in million)

2009-10 2008-09

a) Cash and Bank Balances and Cheques in hand (Schedule 11A) 149,703.83 156,331.20
b) Deposits with Bank under Site Restoration Fund Scheme (Schedule 11B) 74,138.43 69,624.35
Total 223,842.26 225,955.55

4. Cash and Cash equivalent excludes ¥ 3,874.16 million (Previous year ¥ 95.14 million) in current account/deposit account of interest warrant/
refund accounts, under lien, pledge with banks/Govt. authorities in respect of MRPL.

5. Cash Balance includes ¥ 2,370.84 million share of jointly controlled entity. (Previous year ¥ 2,575.24 million)
6. Bracket indicates cash outflow.
7. Previous years figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to conform to current year's classification.

For and On behalf of the Board
(N. K. Sinha) (D. K. Sarraf) (R. S. Sharma)
Company Secretary Director (Finance) Chairman & Managing Director
In terms of our report of even date attached
For Arun K. Agarwal & Associates For Singhi & Co. For P.S.D. & Associates
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(Rajesh Surolia) (B. K. Sipani) (Prakash Sharmay)
Partner (Mem. No. 88008) Partner (Mem. No. 88926) Partner (Mem. No. 72332)
For Kalyaniwalla & Mistry For Padmanabhan Ramani & Ramanujam
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(Ermin K. Irani) (K. R. Ganesh)
Partner (Mem.No. 35646) Partner (Mem. No.22439 )
New Delhi
May 28, 2010



ELECTRONIC CLEARING SERVICES (ECS)

Electronic Clearing Services (ECS) Request Form

The Company extends the ECS facility to shareholders so as to enable them to receive dividend through electronic mode to their bank. This facility
will be available in the following centres: Ahemdabad, Bangalore, Bhubaneswar, Chandigarh, Chennai, Delhi, Guwahati, Hydrebad, Jaipur, Kanpur,
Kolkata, Mumbai, Nagpur, Patna, Thiruvananthapuram, Agra, Allahabad, Amritsar, Aurangabad, Baroda, Bhopal, Calicut, Cochin, Coimbatore,
Dehradun, Erode, Gorakhpur, Gwalior, Hubli, Indore, Jabalpur, Jalandhar, Jammu, Jamshedpur, Jodhpur, Kohlapur, Lucknow, Ludhiana, Madurai,
Mangalore, Mysore, Nasik, Panjim, Pune, Raipur, Rajkot, Salem, Shimla, Surat, Trichur, Trichy, Udaipur, Varanasi, Vijyawada, Vishkhapatnam.
Those who wish to avalil the facility may fill up the ECS form given below and send the same to the Share Transfer Agent of the Company - M/s Karvy
Computershare Private Limited in case of shares held in physical form and to their respective Depository Participant in case of shares held in
Electronic/Demant form.

Electronic Clearing Services (ECS) Request form
(Note: Ifyou are already receiving through ECS, please ignore this form)

SHAREHOLDERS IN PHYSICAL FORM SHAREHOLDERS IN DEMAT FORM

Karvy Computershare Pvt. Ltd To be sent to your Depositary Participant (DP)
Unit-ONGC, 17-24, Vittal Rao Nagar
Madhapur, Hyderabad —500 081

Andhra Pradesh—India

Tel: 040 23420815-819, Fax: 040 23420814

Dear Sir,

Subject : ECS Mandate/ Bank form for Dividend Payment

| the undersigned, shareholder of Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited {(ONGC), wish to opt for ECS facility for payment of dividend. The
following is a confirmation of my details and | hereby confirm my choice to opt for payment of dividend payable to me by a physical dividend
warrant/demand draft, on account of any circumstances beyond the control of ONGC, that may affect payment of dividend through ECS.

1) Forshares heldin physical form
Folio No:

2) For shares held in Electronic form [Shareholders holding shares in electronic form should forward this form to their respective
Depositary Participant (DP)].

DPID | | | | | | | | |

Cleto | | | | [ [ [ | | [ | [ [ | | | |

3) Name&Address:

4) BankParticulars:

Bank Name

Branch Name & Address

Account No. (as appearing in cheque book)
Account type

9 digit MICR code as appearing on the cheque




Proxy Form

QOil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited
Registered Office: Jeevan Bharati Bldg., Tower- Il, 124 Indira Chowk, New Delhi — 110 001

| D.PID* | | | Master Folio No. | |

| Client ID* | | | No. of share(s) held | |
IWE. ...t n e Rt R e R e e er s re e e neenneeen (o) ST being a member(s) of OIL
AND NATURAL GAS CORPORATION LIMITED hereby appointME/MS..........ccooiiiinieiiesie e
...................... Ofieeiiiisiieesiienennnnn0r failing him/ her ..ooecveeciveeceen0f - Liiiii.@s my four proxy to vote for me/us on my/our

behalf at the 17th Annual General Meeting of Oil And Natural Gas Corporation Limited to be held on Thursday, 23rd September, 2010 at 10.00A.M.
or atany adjournmentthereof.

Affix revenue

Signedthis.........ccccceeeeennnn dayof......ccccoveiiininnnn 2010. stamp
of Re 1

*Applicable forinvestor holding share(s) in electronic form.

Note: The proxy in order to be effective should be duly stamped, completed and signed and must be deposited at the Registered Office of the
Company notless than 48 hours before the scheduled time of the aforesaid meeting.

Attendance Slip

QOil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited
Registered Office: Jeevan Bharati Bldg., Tower- Il, 124 Indira Chowk, New Delhi — 110 001

Pleasefillin this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting venue.

| D.PID* | | | MasterFolioNo. | |

| Client ID* | | | No. of share (s) held | |

| certify that | am a member/proxy for the member of the Company.

| hereby record my presence at the 17th Annual General Meeting of the Oil And Natural Gas Corporation Limited held on Thursday, the 23"
September, 2010 at 10:00 A.M. at Siri Fort Auditorium, New Delhi-110 049.

Members/Proxy's name in Block Letters Signature of Member/Proxy

*Applicable forinvestor holding Share(s) in electronic Form.

onGc
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